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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

  

SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC, 

Plaintiff, 

Case No. 1:21-CV-16625-JHR-MJS 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, 

and JULIE SU, in her official capacity 

as United States Secretary of Labor, 

Defendants.   
  

PLAINTIFF’S NOTICE OF APPEAL 

Notice is hereby given that Sun Valley Orchards, LLC, Plaintiff in the above-captioned 

action, hereby appeals to the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit from the final 

judgment, order, and decision entered in this action on July 27, 2023, granting Defendants’ 

Motion to Dismiss, denying Defendants’ Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment as moot, and 

denying Plaintiff's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment. See Dkt. Nos. 36, 37.
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Dated: September 1, 2023 Respectfully submitted, 

WINEGAR, WILHELM, GLYNN & ROEMERSMA, P.C. 

/s/ Scott M. Wilhelm 

Scott M. Wilhelm 

WINEGAR, WILHELM, GLYNN & ROEMERSMA, P.C. 

305 Roseberry Street, P.O. Box 800 

Phillipsburg, NJ 08865 

Tel: (908) 454-3200 Fax: (908) 454-3322 

Email: wilhelms@wwegrlaw.com 

  

-and- 

Robert E. Johnson* 

INSTITUTE FOR JUSTICE 

16781 Chagrin Blvd., #256 

Shaker Heights, OH 44120 
Tel: (703) 682-9320 Fax: (703) 682-9321 

Email: rjohnson@ij.org 

Robert Belden* 

INSTITUTE FOR JUSTICE 

901 N. Glebe Road, Suite 900 

Arlington, VA 22203 

Tel: (703) 682-9320 Fax: (703) 682-9321 

Email: rbelden@yj.org 

*Admitted pro hac vice 

Attorneys for Plaintiff Sun Valley Orchards, LLC
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 1 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

 
 

SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC,  : 
  : Hon. Joseph H. Rodriguez 
 Plaintiff,     : 
       : 
 v.      : Civil No. 21-cv-16625 

 :  
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, et al.,  :  
       : ORDER 
 Defendants.     : 
       : 
        

These matters having come before the Court on motion of Sun Valley Orchards, 

LLC, (“Sun Valley”) seeking an order for partial summary judgment pursuant to Fed. R. 

Civ. P. 56 [Dkt. 19] and on Motions U.S. Department of Labor (“DOL”) seeking an order 

for dismissal pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6) and cross-motion for summary judgment 

pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 56 [Dkt. 22]; and the Court having considered the written 

submissions of the parties and the arguments advanced at the hearing on April 20, 2023; 

and for the reasons set forth on the record that day and those expressed in the Court’s 

Opinion of even date, 

IT IS on this 27th day of July 2023 hereby  

ORDERED that DOL’s motion to dismiss [Dkt. No. 22] is granted; and it is further 

ORDERED that Sun Valley’s motion for partial summary judgment [Dkt. No. 19] 

and DOL’s cross motion for summary judgment [Dkt. No. 22] are denied as moot.  

 

 
 
      s/ Joseph H. Rodriguez    
      Hon. Joseph H. Rodriguez,  
      UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE  

Case 1:21-cv-16625-JHR-MJS   Document 37   Filed 07/27/23   Page 1 of 1 PageID: 652

Appx003

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-1     Page: 5      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



 1 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

 
 

 
SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC,  : 
  : Hon. Joseph H. Rodriguez 
 Plaintiff,     : 
       : 
 v.      : Civil No. 1:21-cv-16625 

 :  
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, et al.,  :  
       : OPINION 
 Defendants.     : 
       : 
        

 

Plaintiff, Sun Valley Orchards, LLC (“Sun Valley”), moves for partial summary 

judgment to all claims that are susceptible to the decision based on the administrative 

record but not as to Sun Valley’s additional claims seeking a de novo trial before the 

Court. The defendants, U.S. Department of Labor (“DOL”), move to dismiss and for 

summary judgment on all Sun Valley’s claims.  

Sun Valley is a New Jersey family farm owned and operated by Joe and Russell 

Marino. During the 2015 growing season, Sun Valley hired nineteen H-2A workers to 

harvest asparagus. The workers left the farm later that year and the Department of 

Labor investigated their departure and found several violations of the H-2A program 

requirements. Following adjudications against Sun Valley by the Administrative Law 

Judge and the Administrative Review Board, Sun Valley filed the instant action.  

 The Court has considered the written submissions of the parties and the arguments 

advanced at the hearing on April 20, 2023.  The record of that hearing is incorporated.  

 
 
  

Case 1:21-cv-16625-JHR-MJS   Document 36   Filed 07/27/23   Page 1 of 24 PageID: 628

Appx004

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-1     Page: 6      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



 2 

I. Background 

a. The H-2A Visa Program 

To appreciate the facts of this case, some legal background is necessary. The 

Immigration and Nationality Act of 1952 established the modern framework for 

regulation of immigration in the United States, including provisions for the admission of 

permanent and temporary foreign workers. See Immigration and Nationality Act of 1952 

(“INA”), Pub.L. No. 82–414, 66 Stat. 163 (codified as amended at 8 U.S.C. §§ 1101 et 

seq.). One such provision was the H–2 visa program, which governed the recruitment of 

foreign workers for agricultural and non-agricultural jobs. 8 U.S.C. § 1101(a)(15)(H)(ii). 

In 1986, Congress enacted the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (“IRCA”), 

which amended the INA by, among other things, bifurcating the H–2 visa program into 

the H–2A and H–2B programs,1 which govern the admission of agricultural and non-

agricultural workers, respectively. See Pub.L. No. 99–603, § 301(a), 100 Stat. 3359, 3411 

(amending 8 U.S.C. § 1101(a)(15)(H)(ii)(a)-(b)).  

The Immigration and Nationality Act provides temporary work authorization for 

foreign agricultural workers under the H-2A program. See 8 U.S.C. § 

1101(a)(15)(H)(ii)(a); § 1184(c)(1). The H-2A program permits employers to temporarily 

hire foreign workers upon certification that “(A) there are not sufficient workers who are 

able, willing, and qualified, and who will be available at the time and place needed, to 

perform the labor or services involved in the petitioner” and “(B) the employment of the 

 
1 The H-2A program is for agricultural workers, and the H-2B program is for non-agricultural 
workers. 
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alien in such labor or services will not adversely affect the wages and working conditions 

of workers in the United States similarly employed.” 8 U.S.C. § 1188(a)(1)(A)–(B).  

“Congress directed the Secretary of Labor (“Secretary”) to promulgate regulations 

that would set the parameters of the program, particularly for temporary workers 

coming ‘to perform agricultural labor or services.’” Overdevest Nurseries, L.P. v. Walsh, 

2 F.4th 977, 980 (D.C. Cir. 2021) (quoting 8 U.S.C. § 1101(a)(15)(H)). Pursuant to this 

authority, the Secretary promulgated regulations2 to protect American workers. Under 

these regulations, employers must first offer the job to workers in the United States. 20 

C.F.R. § 655.121. Furthermore, the employer must offer domestic workers “no less than 

the same benefits, wages, and working conditions that the employer is offering, intends 

to offer, or will provide to H-2A workers.” 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(a). Only if an American 

worker does not accept a position offered through this process can the employer submit 

an Application for Temporary Employment Certification (an “H-2A Application”) to the 

Department of Labor (“DOL”). See generally 8 U.S.C. § 1188(a), (c)(3)(A). 

Before submitting an Application for Temporary Employment Certification, an 

“employer must submit a completed job order.” 20 C.F.R. § 655.121(a)(1). The job order 

lists the “[j]ob qualifications and requirements[,]” 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(b), and 

“[m]inimum benefits, wages, and working conditions[,]” 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(c). Once 

the DOL certifies an employer’s petition, the employer can petition the Department of 

 
2 The H-2A visa is also governed by regulations issued by the Immigration and Naturalization 
Service. See 8 C.F.R. § 214.2(h). H-2A workers are only admitted into the United States to work 
for the designated employer and for the duration of the certified period of employment, which 
cannot exceed one year. If the employment relationship ends, whether the employee quits or the 
employer terminates the employment, the H-2A visa expires, and the workers must leave the 
United States. See 8 C.F.R. § 214.2(h)(5)(viii), (h)(11)(iii)(A)(1), & (h)(13). 
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Homeland Security to designate foreign workers as H-2A workers. See Overdevest 

Nurseries, 2 F.4th at 980. 

b. The H2-A Enforcement System 

The Secretary of Labor is “authorized to take such actions, including imposing 

appropriate penalties and seeking appropriate injunctive relief and specific performance 

of contractual obligations, as may be necessary to assure employer compliance with 

terms and conditions of employment” of the H-2A program. 8 U.S.C. § 1188(g) (2); 29 

C.F.R. § 501.1. The Secretary of Labor may also initiate administrative proceedings as 

necessary, or alternatively may petition “any appropriate District Court of the United 

States” for injunctive relief, or “specific performance of contractual obligations.” 29 

C.F.R. § 501.16. The Department’s Wage and Hour Division Administrator 

(“Administrator”) investigates possible H-2A violations. If the Administrator determines 

violations occurred, it may recover back wages, debar the employer from receiving 

future H-2A labor certifications, and impose civil money penalties. 29 C.F.R. §§ 501.15, 

501.16(a)(1), 501.19(a), 501.20(a). The Administrator may also impose civil monetary 

penalties for “each violation of the work contract, or the obligations imposed by 8 U.S.C. 

§ 1188, 20 C.F.R. part 655.” 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(a). “In determining the amount of 

penalty to be assessed for each violation, the Administrator shall consider the type of 

violation committed and other relevant factors.” 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(b). 

To institute administrative proceedings, the Administrator issues a written 

determination explaining the Wage and Hour Division’s findings and imposes sanctions 

and remedies. 29 C.F.R. §§ 501.31, 501.32. An employer can request an administrative 

hearing before an Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”) to review the Administrator’s 
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determination. 29 C.F.R. §§ 501.33(a), 501.34, 501.35. The Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure are generally applicable to litigation before the ALJ. In proceedings before 

the United States Department of Labor, Office of Administrative Law Judges, “[t]he 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (FRCP) apply in any situation not provided for or 

controlled by these rules, or a governing statute, regulation, or executive order.” 29 

C.F.R. § 18.10(a). The ALJ will prepare a decision on the issues referred by the

Administrator. 29 C.F.R. § 501.41(a). Any party wishing review of the ALJ decision can 

petition the Administrative Review Board (“ARB”). 29 C.F.R. § 501.42(a). 

c. Sun Valley’s H-2A Violations

During the 2015 growing season, Sun Valley hired nineteen H-2A workers to 

harvest asparagus. In completing the H-2A paperwork, Sun Valley stated they would 

provide the workers access to a kitchen on the premises of the farm when instead, the 

workers’ supervisor cooked out of the kitchen adjacent to the crew quarters and charged 

the workers a flat rate of $75-$80 per week for food. The supervisor also sold beverages 

to the workers. 

The contract with the nineteen workers entitled them to forty hours of work per 

week during the season, totaling 1,040 hours. However, if the workers left voluntarily or 

were fired for cause, they were not entitled to those hours. Fired for cause included a 

failure “to perform the work as specified,” as well as failure “to meet applicable 

production standard.” See Dkt. 19-1 at 5 (quoting A.R. 1516). 

Upon a dispute between the workers and Russel Marino in May 2015, the 

workers left the farm. When the workers left Sun Valley, they had to complete 

paperwork stating their reason for departure. The contractor, whom the Marinos hired 
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to assist them with the H-2A program, advised the workers would hamper Sun Valley’s 

future employment opportunities if they stated they quit because they did not like the 

work. Instead, the contractor advised Sun Valley that the workers should state they left 

for personal reasons. Sun Valley then had the workers sign departure forms disclosing 

they resigned due to personal issues. 

 After an investigation in July 2015, the Administrator concluded Sun Valley 

violated various aspects of the H-2A program and assessed $369,703.22 in back wages 

and $212,250 in penalties. Sun Valley timely requested an ALJ hearing in July 2016, 

and Judge Theresa Timlin was assigned to the case, holding a four-day evidentiary 

hearing in July 2017. The Secretary of Labor ratified Judge Timlin’s appointment “to 

address any claim that administrative proceedings pending before, or presided over by, 

administrative law judges of the U.S. Department of Labor violate the Appointments 

Clause.” See Dkt. 22-1 at 6 (quoting Ltr. To Hon. Theresa C. Timlin (Dec. 21, 2017)).  

Almost two years later after the appointment on October 28, 2019, Judge Timlin 

issued the decision, finding numerous H-2A violations and imposing $344,945.80 in 

back wages and $211,800 in penalties, a reduction of over $25,000 from the 

Administrator’s assessment. Sun Valley then appealed to the ARB, which affirmed the 

ALJ decision. 

Sun Valley argues the DOL’s adjudication of these claims in agency courts, before 

agency judges, violated Article III; the DOL’s award must be vacated because the ALJ 

was neither appointed nor subject to removal as required by the Constitution; the DOL’s 

award is contrary to law and cannot be sustained based on the evidence in the 
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administrative record; and the DOL’s award violates the Excessive Fines Clause.3 The 

DOL argues the adjudication does not violate Article III; the ALJs do not violate the 

Appointments Clauses or the President’s removal power; the adjudicatory system is 

authorized by the statute and Sun Valley is not entitled to a trial de novo; the imposition 

of back pay and penalties is fully supported by the record and is neither arbitrary nor 

capricious; and the DOL did not violate the Excessive Fines Clause. 

II. Standard of Review 

a. Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6) 

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6) allows a party to move for dismissal of a 

claim based on “failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 

12(b)(6). A complaint should be dismissed pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6) if the alleged facts, 

taken as true, fail to state a claim. Id. In general, only the allegations in the complaint, 

matters of public record, orders, and exhibits attached to the complaint are taken into 

consideration when deciding a motion to dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6). See Chester 

County Intermediate Unit v. Pa. Blue Shield, 896 F.2d 808, 812 (3d Cir. 1990). It is not 

necessary for the plaintiff to plead evidence. Bogosian v. Gulf Oil Corp., 561 F.2d 434, 

446 (3d Cir. 1977). The question before the Court is not whether the plaintiff will 

ultimately prevail. Watson v. Abington Twp., 478 F.3d 144, 150 (3d Cir. 2007). Instead, 

the Court simply asks whether the plaintiff has articulated “enough facts to state a claim 

to relief that is plausible on its face.” Bell Atl. Corp. v. Twombly, 550 U.S. 544, 570 

(2007). 

 
3 Sun Valley states in addition to the claims presented in their motion for partial summary 
judgment, its complaint includes separate allegations seeking de novo review of the DOL’s 
factual determinations after trial. Because Sun Valley cannot request summary judgment in its 
favor on those claims, they are not encompassed in the motion for partial summary judgment. 
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“A claim has facial plausibility4 when the plaintiff pleads factual content that 

allows the court to draw the reasonable inference that the defendant is liable for the 

misconduct alleged.” Ashcroft v. Iqbal, 556 U.S. 662, 678 (2009) (citing Twombly, 550 

U.S. at 556). “Where there are well-pleaded factual allegations, a court should assume 

their veracity and then determine whether they plausibly give rise to an entitlement to 

relief.” Iqbal, 556 U.S. at 679. 

The Court need not accept “‘unsupported conclusions and unwarranted 

inferences,’” Baraka v. McGreevey, 481 F.3d 187, 195 (3d Cir. 2007) (citation omitted), 

however, and “[l]egal conclusions made in the guise of factual allegations . . . are given 

no presumption of truthfulness.” Wyeth v. Ranbaxy Labs., Ltd., 448 F. Supp. 2d 607, 

609 (D.N.J. 2006) (citing Papasan v. Allain, 478 U.S. 265, 286 (1986)); see also Kanter 

v. Barella, 489 F.3d 170, 177 (3d Cir. 2007) (quoting Evancho v. Fisher, 423 F.3d 347, 

351 (3d Cir. 2005) (“[A] court need not credit either ‘bald assertions’ or ‘legal 

conclusions’ in a complaint when deciding a motion to dismiss.”)). Accord Iqbal, 556 

U.S. at 678–80 (finding that pleadings that are no more than conclusions are not 

entitled to the assumption of truth).  

Further, although “detailed factual allegations” are not necessary, “a plaintiff’s 

obligation to provide the ‘grounds’ of his ‘entitlement to relief’ requires more than labels 

and conclusions, and a formulaic recitation of a cause of action’s elements will not do.” 

Twombly, 550 U.S. at 555 (internal citations omitted). See also Iqbal, 556 U.S. at 678 

 
4 This plausibility standard requires more than a mere possibility that unlawful conduct has 
occurred. “When a complaint pleads facts that are ‘merely consistent with’ a defendant’s 
liability, it ‘stops short of the line between possibility and plausibility of ‘entitlement to relief.’’’’ 
Id. 
 

Case 1:21-cv-16625-JHR-MJS   Document 36   Filed 07/27/23   Page 8 of 24 PageID: 635

Appx011

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-1     Page: 13      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



 9 

(“Threadbare recitals of the elements of a cause of action, supported by mere conclusory 

statements, do not suffice.”). 

Thus, a motion to dismiss should be granted unless the plaintiff’s factual 

allegations are “enough to raise a right to relief above the speculative level on the 

assumption that all of the complaint’s allegations are true (even if doubtful in fact).” 

Twombly, 550 U.S. at 556. “[W]here the well-pleaded facts do not permit the court to 

infer more than the mere possibility of misconduct, the complaint has alleged-but it has 

not ‘shown’-‘that the pleader is entitled to relief.’” Iqbal, 556 U.S. at 679. 

b. Federal Rule of Civil Procedure Rule 56 

Summary judgment shall be granted if “the movant shows that there is no 

genuine dispute as to any material fact and the movant is entitled to judgment as a 

matter of law.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(a). Thus, the Court will enter summary judgment in 

favor of a movant who shows that it is entitled to judgment as a matter of law and 

supports the showing that there is no genuine dispute as to any material fact by “citing 

to particular parts of materials in the record, including depositions, documents, 

electronically stored information, affidavits or declarations, stipulations ... admissions, 

interrogatory answers, or other materials.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 56 (c)(1)(A). 

A fact is “material” only if it might impact the “outcome of the suit under the 

governing law.” Gonzalez v. Sec'y of Dep't of Homeland Sec., 678 F.3d 254, 261 (3d Cir. 

2012). A “genuine” dispute of “material” fact exists where a reasonable jury’s review of 

the evidence could result in “a verdict for the non-moving party” or where such fact 

might otherwise affect the disposition of the litigation. Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inc., 

477 U.S. 242, 248 (1986). In determining whether a genuine issue of material fact exists, 
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the court must view the facts and all reasonable inferences drawn from those facts in the 

light most favorable to the nonmoving party. Matsushita Elec. Indus. Co. v. Zenith 

Radio Corp., 475 U.S. 574, 587 (1986). 

“[T]he party moving for summary judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(c) bears the 

burden of demonstrating the absence of any genuine issues of material fact.” Aman v. 

Cort Furniture Rental Corp., 85 F.3d 1074, 1080 (3d Cir. 1996). The moving party may 

satisfy its burden by producing evidence showing the absence of a genuine issue of 

material fact or by showing there is no evidence in support of the nonmoving party’s 

case. Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 325 (1986). Once the moving party has met 

this burden, the nonmoving party must identify, by affidavits or otherwise, specific facts 

showing that there is a genuine issue for trial. Id.; Maidenbaum v. Bally’s Park Place, 

Inc., 870 F. Supp. 1254, 1258 (D.N.J. 1994). Thus, to withstand a properly supported 

motion for summary judgment, the nonmoving party must identify specific facts and 

affirmative evidence that contradict those offered by the moving party. Andersen v. 

Liberty Lobby, Inc., 477 U.S. 242, 256-57 (1986). “A nonmoving party may not ‘rest 

upon mere allegations, general denials or ... vague statements….’” Trap Rock Indus., 

Inc. v. Local 825, Int'l Union of Operating Eng'rs, 982 F.2d 884, 890 (3d Cir. 1992) 

(quoting Quiroga v. Hasbro, Inc., 934 F.2d 497, 500 (3d Cir. 1991)). Indeed, 

the plain language of Rule 56(c) mandates the entry of summary judgment, 
after adequate time for discovery and upon motion, against a party who fails 
to make a showing sufficient to establish the existence of an element 
essential to that party's case, and on which that party will bear the burden 
of proof at trial. 
 

Celotex, 477 U.S. at 322. That is, the movant can support the assertion that a fact cannot 

be genuinely disputed by showing that “an adverse party cannot produce admissible 
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evidence to support the [alleged dispute of] fact.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(c)(1)(B); accord Fed. 

R. Civ. P. 56(c)(2). 

 

III. Analysis 

a. The Department of Labor’s Adjudication does not Violate 

Article III 

“The judicial power of the United States, shall be vested in one Supreme Court, 

and in such inferior courts as the Congress may from time to time ordain and establish.” 

U.S. Const. art III, § 1. Congress cannot “confer the Government’s ‘judicial Power’ on 

entities outside Article III.” Oil States Energy Servs., L.L.C. v. Greene’s Energy Grp., 

L.L.C., 138 S. Ct. 1365, 1373 (2018) (quoting Stern v. Marshall, 564 U.S. 462, 484 

(2011)). 

“When determining whether a proceeding involves an exercise of Article III 

judicial power, this Court’s precedents have distinguished between ‘public rights’ and 

‘private rights.’” Oil States Energy Servs., L.L.C., 138 S. Ct. at 1373 (quoting Executive 

Benefits Ins. Agency v. Arkison, 573 U.S. 25, 32 (2014)). “Those precedents have given 

Congress significant latitude to assign adjudication of public rights to entities other than 

Article III courts.” Id.  

The Supreme Court has not “‘definitively explained’5 the distinction between 

public and private rights,” id. (quoting Northern Pipeline Constr. Co. v. Marathon 

 
5 Crowell v. Benson, 285 U.S. 22 (1932), attempted to list some of the matters that fall within the 
public-rights doctrine: “Familiar illustrations of administrative agencies created for the 
determination of such matters are found in connection with the exercise of the congressional 
power as to interstate and foreign commerce, taxation, immigration, the public lands, public 
health, the facilities of the post office, pensions and payments to veterans.” Id., 285 U.S. at 51. 
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Pipeline Co., 458 U.S. 50, 69 (1982)), and the Court’s precedents “applying the public-

rights doctrine have ‘not been entirely consistent.’” Id. (quoting Stern, 564 U.S. at 488). 

However, precedents have recognized that the public-rights doctrine covers matters 

“which arise between the Government and persons subject to its authority in connection 

with the performance of the constitutional functions of the executive or legislative 

departments.” Crowell, 285 U.S. at 50. 

The Supreme Court continues to limit the public-rights doctrine to “cases in 

which the claim at issue derives from a federal regulatory scheme, or in which resolution 

of the claim by an expert Government agency is deemed essential to a limited regulatory 

objective within the agency’s authority.” Stern, 564 U.S. at 490. Thus, the public-rights 

doctrine applies “when the right is integrally related to [a] particular Federal 

Government action.” Id.  

The public-rights doctrine applies to the DOL’s case against Sun Valley for its H-

2A violations because the H-2A involves immigration, which is a matter that falls within 

the doctrine. Under the Constitution, “control of the admission of aliens is committed 

exclusively to Congress, and … may lawfully impose appropriate obligations, sanction 

their enforcement by reasonable money penalties, and invest in administrative officials 

the power to impose and enforce them.” Lloyd Sabaudo Societa Anonima Per Azioni v. 

Elting, 287 U.S. 329, 334 (1932). “Congress has often created new statutory obligations, 

provided for civil penalties for their violation, and committed exclusively to an 

administrative agency the function of deciding whether a violation has in fact occurred.” 
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Atlas Roofing Co. v. Occupational Safety & Health Rev. Comm’n, 430 U.S. 442, 450 

(1977).  

Sun Valley argues this is a private right case because it involves “claims that 

historically were the subject action at common law, and because imposing over half a 

million dollars in liability on a family farm (on a breach-of-contract theory) is an 

inherently judicial matter.” Dkt. 19-1 at 14. However, the enforcement action here is by 

the federal government based on Sun Valley’s DOL’s violations, which arise under the 

public-rights doctrine.  See Stern, 564 U.S. at 489 (The public rights exception arises 

“between the Government and persons subject to its authority in connection with the 

performance of the constitutional functions of the executive or legislative departments” 

and private rights involve “the liability of one individual to another under the law as 

defined.”). Because this matter is based on Sun Valley’s violations of DOL’s regulations, 

derives from a federal regulatory scheme under the federal government’s immigration 

related powers, and is integrally related to a particular Federal Government action, the 

enforcement action is adjudicated outside Article III. Thus, the DOL did not violate 

Article III and the claim is therefore dismissed.6 

b. The Department of Labor’s Adjudicatory System is Authorized 

by Statute 

 
6 Additionally, “Article III’s guarantee of an impartial and independent adjudication by the 
federal judiciary is subject to waiver.” Commodity Futures Trading Comm’n v. Schor, 478 U.S. 
833, 834 (1986). “[A] party may impliedly consent through his “actions rather than [his] words.” 
In re Trib. Media Co., 902 F.3d 384, 394 (3d Cir. 2018) (quoting Roell v. Withrow, 538 U.S. 
580, 589-90 (2003)). Here, Sun Valley impliedly consented to a non-Article III adjudication 
based upon the continued litigation through the DOL for four years and never objected to the 
agency’s non-Article III status. 

Case 1:21-cv-16625-JHR-MJS   Document 36   Filed 07/27/23   Page 13 of 24 PageID: 640

Appx016

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-1     Page: 18      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



 14 

Sun Valley argues “Congress has not authorized the Agency adjudication in this 

case.” Dkt. 19-1 at 25. However, by the plain language of the statute: 

The Secretary of Labor is authorized to take such actions, including 
imposing appropriate penalties and seeking appropriate injunctive relief 
and specific performance of contractual obligations, as may be necessary to 
assure employer compliance with terms and conditions of employment 
under this section. 
 

8 U.S.C. § 1188(g)(2). Per the statute, the Secretary could have just decided to impose 

such penalties. However, the Secretary may “prescribe regulations for the government of 

his department” and “the distribution and performance of its business.” 5 U.S.C. § 301. 

Here, the Secretary prescribed regulations for the government of its department and the 

distribution and performance of its business by allowing H-2A violators to challenge 

these assessments through an adjudicatory process where ALJs can consider testimony 

and evidence. If a party is dissatisfied with the ALJ’s decision, they then may petition 

the ARB to review the decision. 29 C.F.R. § 501.42.  

Based on the clear language of the statute, Congress authorized the DOL to 

adjudicate 

civil monetary penalties or back pay in administrative proceedings. 

  
c. Sun Valley Bore the Responsibility to Develop Issues for the 

Adjudicator’s Consideration  

“Administrative review schemes commonly require parties to give the agency an 

opportunity to address an issue before seeking judicial review of that question.” Carr v. 

Saul, 141 S. Ct. 1352, 1358 (2021). “Where statutes and regulations are silent, however, 

courts decide whether to require issue exhaustion based on ‘an analogy to the rule that 

appellate courts will not consider arguments not raised before trial courts.” Id. (quoting 

Sims v. Apfel, 530 U.S. 103, 108-09 (2000)). When determining to impose an issue 
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exhaustion requirement, the court “depends on the degree to which the analogy to 

normal adversarial litigation applies in a particular administrative proceeding.” Id. at 

1358 (quoting Sims, 530 U.S. at 109). Issue exhaustion is at its greatest where the 

parties are expected to develop the issues in an adversarial administrative proceeding. 

Sims, 530 U.S at 110. 

The ALJ does not look into its own issues. The DOL’s H-2A enforcement 

proceedings require “formal adversarial adjudications.” 29 C.F.R. § 18.101. “Any person 

desiring review of a determination referred to in § 501.32, including judicial review, 

shall make a written request for an administrative hearing….” 29 C.F.R. § 501.33(a). The 

request must “[s]tate the specific reason or reasons the person requesting the hearing 

believes such determination is in error[.]” 29 C.F.R. § 501.33(b)(3). Additionally, within 

the prehearing statement, it must state “[t]he issues of law to be determined with 

reference to the appropriate statute, regulation, or case law[.]” 29 C.F.R. §18.80(c)(2).  

Because issue exhaustion was required and Sun Valley bore the responsibility to 

develop issues for the adjudicator’s consideration and failed to raise its Appointments 

Clause and Removal Power objections in the agency proceedings, the claims are deemed 

forfeited and are hereby dismissed.  

d. The Administrative Law Judge did not Violate the Appointments 

Clause 

Despite, Sun Valley’s procedural missteps. Sun Valley argues the DOL’s award 

must be vacated because the ALJ was not constitutionally appointed. See Dkt. 19-1 at 28. 

However, “ratification can remedy a defect arising from the decision of ‘an improperly 

appointed official ... when.... a properly appointed official has the power to conduct an 
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independent evaluation of the merits and does so.’” Wilkes-Barre Hosp. Co. v. Nat’l 

Lab. Rels. Bd., 857 F.3d 364, 371 (D.C. Cir. 2017). There are three general requirements 

for ratification: (1) “the ratifier must, at the time of ratification, still have the authority 

to take the action to be ratified[,]” (2) “the ratifier must have full knowledge of the 

decision to be ratified[,]” and (3) “the ratifier must make a detached and considered 

affirmation of the earlier decision.” Advanced Disposal Servs. E., Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 820 

F.3d 592, 602 (3d Cir. 2016). Evidence of a detached and considered judgment can be 

“implied from subsequent conduct, [], such when a later act is necessarily an affirmation 

on an earlier act.” Id. at 603. Ratification may be done by a properly appointed superior 

official or a properly appointed official is capable of ratifying their own decisions. Id. at 

605. In determining whether ratification has occurred, agency officials are owed “proper 

deference” under the “presumption of regularity.” Id. 

Here, Judge Timlin’s appointment was ratified by the head of her department, 

the Secretary of Labor, after she held the hearing, but nearly two years before she 

decided Sun Valley’s case. Upon her appointment, Judge Timlin then ratified all prior 

proceedings. The knowledge requirement is easily satisfied since Judge Timlin presided 

over Sun Valley’s case and the four-day hearing. The detached and considered 

affirmation of all earlier decisions is also satisfied since Judge Timlin did not decide 

anything of substance for nearly two years after the Secretary ratified her appointment. 

Additionally, Judge Timlin’s later decision was an affirmation of the validity of her 

earlier actions in conducting the case. Because Judge Timlin was a properly appointed 
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inferior officer when she decided Sun Valley’s case, there was no Appointment Clause 

Violation.7 

e. The Administrative Law Judge did not Enjoy Impermissible 
Protections Against Removal 

Sun Valley claims “[t]he ALJ who adjudicated Sun Valley’s case [] was not subject 

to effective control by the President through the removal power.” Dkt. 19-1 at 30. Article 

II provides “[t]he executive Power shall be vested in a President of the United States of 

America[,]” and “he shall take Care that the Laws be faithfully executed[.]” U.S. Const. 

art. II § 1; id. at § 3. “The entire ‘executive Power’ belongs to the President alone.” Seila 

L. L.L.C. v. CFPB, 140 S. Ct. 2183, 2197 (2020). However, lesser executive officers will 

assist and “remain accountable to the President, whose authority they wield.” Id. The 

President’s authority includes “the ability to remove executive officials, for it is ‘only the 

authority that can remove’ such officials….” Id. (quoting Bowsher v. Synar, 478 U.S. 

714, 726 (1986)). 

As inferior officers, the DOL’s ALJs are appointed by the Secretary of Labor, the 

Head of their Department. Such power of appointment of executive officers comes with 

it “necessary incident of removal.” Myers v. United States, 272 U.S. 52, 126-27 (1926). 

In Humphrey's Executor v. United States, the Supreme Court held that Congress can, 

under certain circumstances, create independent agencies run by principal officers 

appointed by the President, whom the President may not remove at will but only for 

good cause. Humphrey's Executor v. United States, 295 U.S. 602 (1935). Likewise, 

 
7 Because Sun Valley does not allege its previous claim in its complaint that the ALJs who make 
up the Review Board violate the Appointments Clause because they qualify as principal officers 
of the United States insofar as their decisions are final decisions of the Labor Department and are 
not subject to review by a superior executive officer, the Court deems the alleged claim from Sun 
Valley’s complaint abandoned. 

Case 1:21-cv-16625-JHR-MJS   Document 36   Filed 07/27/23   Page 17 of 24 PageID: 644

Appx020

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-1     Page: 22      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



 18 

in United States v. Perkins, 116 U.S. 483 (1886), and Morrison v. Olson, 487 U.S. 654 

(1988), the Court sustained similar restrictions on the power of principal executive 

officers, themselves responsible to the President, to remove their own 

inferiors. Congress has the power to limit and regulate removal of such inferior officers 

in the heads of departments. Perkins, 116 U. S. at 485.  

The Supreme Court has upheld limited restrictions on the President’s removal 

power where “only one level of protected tenure separated the President from an officer 

exercising executive power.” Free Enter. Fund v. Pub. Co. Acct. Oversight Bd., 561 U.S. 

477, 495, (2010). When there is only one level of protected tenure separating the 

President from an officer, there is no removal problem because “[i]t [is] the President—

or a subordinate he [can] remove at will—who decide[s] whether the officer’s conduct 

merit[s] removal under the good-cause standard.” Id. 

Despite the Merit Systems Protection Board (the “Board”) determining whether 

there is removal for “good cause,” the action is taken by the agency which the 

administrative law judge is employed. 5 U.S.C. § 7521(a). The Board is simply there to 

make sure the agency properly invoked “good cause” for removal. Because ALJs may be 

removed by the Secretary of Labor for “good cause,” there is no removal problem. See id. 

There is only one level of protected tenure separating the President from an officer since 

the Secretary of Labor is removable by the President. 

Further, there is no removal problem when the Secretary of Labor does not need 

to use ALJs at all. Thus, “[t]he President has broad executive power to order the 

Secretary of Labor to change DOL’s regulatory scheme and remove ALJs from the 

adjudicatory process under 30 U.S.C. § 932a.” Decker Coal Co. v. Pehringer, 8 F.4th 
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1123, 1134 (9th Cir. 2021). For the above reasons, Sun Valley’s removal-power claim is 

hereby dismissed. 

f. The Department of Labor’s Imposition of Back Pay and 
Penalties was Neither Arbitrary nor Capricious 

Sun Valley makes two arguments regarding the agency’s award for the meal plan 

and beverage issues: (1) the ALJ and ARB did not adequately justify its imposition of 

monetary penalties, and (2) the DOL’s award of back wages is not supported by 

substantial evidence. “Judicial review under [the arbitrary-and-capricious standard] is 

deferential, and a court may not substitute its own policy judgment for that of the 

agency.” Fed. Commc'ns Comm'n v. Prometheus Radio Project, 141 S. Ct. 1150, 1158 

(2021). “A court simply ensures that the agency has acted within a zone of 

reasonableness and, in particular, has reasonably considered the relevant issues and 

reasonably explained the decision.” Id.  

First addressing the imposition of monetary damages. “In determining the 

amount of penalty to be assessed for each violation, the WHD Administrator shall 

consider the type of violation committed and other relevant factors.” 29 C.F.R. § 

501.19(b). “The decision [of the ALJ] shall [] include an appropriate order which may 

affirm, deny, reverse, or modify, in whole or in part, the determination of the WHD 

Administrator.” 29 C.F.R. § 501.41(b). Further, the ALJ must state the reason or reasons 

for such order. Id. 

Sun Valley complains that Judge Timlin deferred to the enforcement personnel 

instead of conducting a de novo review of the Administrator’s determination. Dkt. 19-1 

at 33. However, the ALJ only had to affirm, deny, reverse, or modify the determination 

of the WHD Administrator and state the reasons for such order. Such requirements 
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were met by the ALJ when she affirmed the Administrator’s assessment of penalties for 

meal and beverage violations and stated the reason for such order is to “deter other H-

2A employers from making the same failure to disclose in a potentially exploitative 

way.” See AR 4500-02. 

Insofar as the regulatory factors considered by the WHD Administrator, the 

Administrator assessed one penalty for Sun Valley’s combined meal and drink violations 

in the amount of $1,350 for each of Sun Valley’s 147 workers, where instead, the 

Administrator had the discretion to assess the meal and drink penalties separately. 

Judge Timlin found the Administrator applied the factors appropriately and assessed 

the penalty in this way due to the seriousness of the violation and great impact on 

workers. 

Secondly, addressing the award of back wages. “The employer must make all 

deductions from the worker’s paycheck required by law. The job offer must specify all 

deductions not required by law which the employer will take from the worker’s 

paycheck.” 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p)(1). “A deduction that is primarily for the benefit or 

convenience of the employer will not be recognized as reasonable and therefore the cost 

of such an item may not be included in computing wages.” 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p)(2).  

In this matter, Sun Valley deducted meal-plan and beverages charges from the 

workers’ pay without prior disclosure in the job order. The undisclosed deductions from 

the meal-plan charges reduced the workers’ wages below the required wages specified in 

the job order. Further, the meal-plan changed a material term of the job order, which 

harmed both the workers’ reliance on the H-2A program to ensure the protection of 

workers’ rights and the overall integrity of the H-2A program. It is evident Sun Valley 

profited from the sales of the meal-plan and beverages charges. Such profits are clearly 
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prohibited in the H-2A regulations noted above. Thus, the award of back wages due to 

the unlawful deductions are not improper because it makes the workers’ whole in 

compensation. 

The ALJ reasonably considered the relevant issues of Sun Valley’s H-2A 

violations and reasonably explained the imposition of back wages and penalties. Thus, 

such imposition of back wages and penalties in regard to Sun Valley’s H-2A violations 

are neither arbitrary nor capricious. 

g. Sun Valley Improperly Terminated Nineteen Workers 

“The employer must guarantee to offer the worker employment for a total 

number of work hours equal to at least three-fourths of the workdays of the total 

period…and ending on the expiration date specified in the work contract….” 20 C.F.R. § 

655.122(i)(1). The employer is not responsible for paying the three-fourths guaranteed if 

a “worker voluntarily abandons employment before the end of the contract period, or is 

terminated for cause….” 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(n). 

Sun Valley argues the agency’s award for early termination is not supported by 

substantial evidence. See Dkt. 19-1 at 36. The ALJ and ARB affirmed that Sun Valley 

improperly fired nineteen workers after the May 2015 altercation. Judge Timlin relied 

on testimony of various workers to determine they were fired. When evaluating the 

witnesses’ credibility, Judge Timlin found that “the [worker] witnesses were consistent 

in describing the heated events at the meeting while Joseph Marino was unable to 

remember specifically what was said.” Dkt. 22-1 at 38; see AR 4343. Upon appeal, the 

ARB reviewed Judge Timlin’s cited evidence and properly deferred to the credibility 

determinations, affirming the ALJ’s ruling. 
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“[T]he ALJ must necessarily make certain credibility determinations, and this 

Court defers to the ALJ’s assessment of credibility.” Zirnsak v. Colvin, 777 F.3d 607, 612 

(3d Cir. 2014); see Diaz v. Comm'r, 577 F.3d 500, 506 (3d Cir.2009) (“In determining 

whether there is substantial evidence to support an administrative law judge’s decision, 

we owe deference to his evaluation of the evidence [and] assessment of the credibility of 

witnesses....”). However, the ALJ must specifically identify and explain what evidence it 

found not credible and why it found it not credible. Adorno v. Shalala, 40 F.3d 43, 48 

(3d Cir.1994) (citing Stewart v. Sec’y of Health, Education and Welfare, 714 F.2d 287, 

290 (3d Cir.1983)); see also Stout v. Comm’r, 454 F.3d 1050, 1054 (9th Cir.2006) 

(stating that an ALJ is required to provide “specific reasons for rejecting lay testimony”). 

An ALJ cannot reject evidence for an incorrect or unsupported reason. Ray v. Astrue, 

649 F.Supp.2d 391, 402 (E.D.Pa.2009) (quoting Mason v. Shalala, 994 F.2d 1058, 1066 

(3d Cir.1993).  

Because the Court owes deference to the ALJ’s evaluation of the evidence and 

assessment of the credibility of witnesses, the Court agrees with Judge Timlin’s 

determination. Based on the workers’ testimony and explanation for why the ALJ found 

the workers’ testimony credible, the ARB reasonably affirmed that Sun Valley 

Improperly terminated nineteen workers in May 2015. 

h. The Department of Labor is Authorized to Assess Back Wages 

Sun Valley argues the “Agency’s entire award of back pay (for all the various 

violations) must be vacated because the statute does not authorize back pay.” Dkt. 19-1 

at 38. “The Secretary of Labor is authorized to take such actions, including imposing 

appropriate penalties and seeking appropriate injunctive relief and specific performance 
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of contractual obligations, as may be necessary to assure employer compliance with 

terms and conditions of employment….” 8 U.S.C. § 1188(g)(2). 

Nothing in the statute prevents the agency from awarding back wages. The 

statute merely includes a list of some actions the Secretary of Labor is authorized to 

take. See generally INCLUDE, Black's Law Dictionary (11th ed. 2019) (“The participle 

including typically indicates a partial list.”). Additionally, when 8 U.S.C. § 1188 has been 

violated, actions including “the recovery of unpaid wages” may be taken. 29 C.F.R. § 

501.16(a)(1).  

i. The Labor Department did not Violate the Excessive Fines 
Clause 
 

Sun Valley argues the “Agency’s award for the meal plan and beverages violations 

also violates the Eighth Amendment’s Excessive Fines Clause.” Dkt. 19-1 at 39. The 

Eighth Amendment provides that: “Excessive bail shall not be required, nor excessive 

fines imposed, nor cruel and unusual punishments inflicted.” U.S. Const. amend. VIII. 

The Eighth Amendment is applicable if the forfeiture constitutes a “fine” and is violated 

only if that fine is “excessive.” See Tillman v. Lebanon Cnty. Corr. Facility, 221 F.3d 

410, 420 (3d Cir. 2000). In Bajakajian, the Supreme Court held that the forfeiture of a 

sum of money grossly disproportionate to the defendant’s offense constituted an 

Excessive Fines Clause violation and was therefore, unconstitutional. United States v. 

Bajakajian, 524 U.S. 321, 337 (1998). 

The DOL’s award of penalties was not grossly disproportional to Sun Valley’s 

meal plan and beverages violations. Sun Valley’s violations harmed the workers’ reliance 

and overall integrity of the H-2A program. Instead of imposing separate penalties for 

each of the meal and drink violations, the DOL only imposed one penalty of $1,350 per 
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worker for Sun Valley’s combined violations. The DOL also applied a ten percent 

reduction to the penalties due to Sun Valley not having a prior history with the H-2A 

program. Such reduction and imposition of one penalty is not grossly disproportionate 

to Sun Valley’s offenses when the sum is less than legally permissible. See Tillman, 221 

F.3d at 420-21.  

Additionally, a reviewing court should evaluate “the sentences imposed for 

commission of the same crime in other jurisdictions.” United States v. Cheeseman, 600 

F.3d 270, 284 (3d Cir. 2010). “From 2005 through August 2021, the DOL [] imposed 

three civil monetary penalties over $1 million; fifty-two penalties between $100,000 and 

$1 million; 482 penalties between $10,000 and $100,000; and 1,850 penalties under 

$10,000 for alleged violations of the H-2A program.” Dkt. 19-1 at 3. Thus, there is 

nothing out of the ordinary about Sun Valley’s $198,450 penalties, and Sun Valley’s 

Excessive Fine claim is dismissed. 

IV. Conclusion 

For the reasons stated above Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss [Dkt. 22-1] is granted 

without prejudice, and Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment [Dkt. 19-1] and 

Defendant’s Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment [Dkt. 22-1] are denied as moot. 

An appropriate Order shall issue. 

 

Dated: July 27, 2023    
 

 s/ Joseph H. Rodriguez    
  Hon. Joseph H. Rodriguez,  

 UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 
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DECISION AND ORDER 
 

PER CURIAM. This case arises under the worker protection provisions of the 

H-2A temporary agricultural worker program of the Immigration and Nationality 

Act (INA) and the H-2A implementing regulations.1 The Administrator of the Wage 

and Hour Division, United States Department of Labor (Administrator), filed a 

Notice of Determination, finding that Sun Valley Orchards, LLC (Respondent) 

violated multiple H-2A program regulations through the actions of its agent, 

Agustin Hernandez. The Administrator assessed back wages and civil money 

penalties (CMPs) against the Respondent for violating the governing H-2A 

regulations. 

 

Respondent requested a hearing, and the Administrator referred the matter 

to the Office of Administrative Law Judges (OALJ). After a hearing, an 

Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) issued a Decision and Order Affirming in Part and 

Modifying in Part the Administrator’s Findings (D. & O.). The ALJ found that 

Respondent violated several of the H-2A program requirements and owed a total of 

$344,945.80 in back wages and $211,800 in CMPs. 

 

Respondent appealed the ALJ’s findings to the Administrative Review Board 

(Board). After considering the record and the parties’ arguments, we conclude that 

the ALJ correctly determined that Respondent committed serious violations of the 

H-2A program requirements and, as a result of these violations, the ALJ properly 

awarded back wages and assessed CMPs. Therefore, we affirm the ALJ’s decision.  

 

BACKGROUND 
 

Respondent is a New Jersey farm owned by the Marino family, including 

brothers Russell and Joseph.2 At all relevant times, Respondent employed 

Hernandez as its supervisor of the farmworkers.3 Hernandez supervised the 

workers in every aspect of their lives and work. Hernandez oriented the workers, 

maintained their housing facilities, sold them meals and drinks, oversaw 

                                                 
1  See 8 U.S.C. § 1188(c); 20 C.F.R. § 655, Subpart B; 29 C.F.R. § 501. 
2  D. & O. at 3.  Both brothers play a role in the events that give rise to this 

appeal. 
3  Id. at 4, 9-11. 
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transportation, and distributed pay.4 Workers paid Hernandez for meals, drinks, 

housing, and transportation.5 

 

Respondent filed two job orders with the Department of Labor (Department) 

to hire H-2A workers to pick produce crops from April 13 to October 10, 2015.6 It 

was Respondent’s first time utilizing the H-2A program.7 In these job orders, 

Respondent represented to the Department and the H-2A workers that it would 

“furnish free cooking and kitchen facilities to those workers who are entitled to live 

in the employer housing so that workers may prepare their own meals.”8  

 

During the 2015 growing season, the H-2A workers, and many of 

Respondent’s domestic workers, lived at Respondent’s housing facility.9 However, 

the kitchen at the workers’ housing facilities was not large enough to allow the 

workers to cook their own meals after returning from their shifts.10 Instead, 

Hernandez managed a meal plan for the workers, as instructed by Respondent, in 

which Hernandez would provide cooked food for a fee of $75 to $80 per week.11 All of 

the H-2A workers participated in the meal plan at some point.12 Respondent owned 

the kitchen, paid its utility bills, and directed Hernandez to maintain records of 

meal purchases and not to make a profit from the meal plan.13 The workers did not 

pay Respondent directly for the meal plan. Instead, Hernandez would take the 

workers’ checks to the bank to cash them and then return the remaining money 

after deducting the amount owed for the meal plan.14 

 

The farmworkers harvested asparagus and peppers. The workers’ shifts 

lasted for twelve hours each day with only a single, one-hour, break.15 Potable 

                                                 
4  Id. at 9-11. 
5  Id. at 11. 
6  Id. at 3-4. 
7  Id. at 20. 
8  Id. at 15. 
9  Id. at 4. 
10  Id. at 12. 
11  Id. at 10. 
12  Id. at 4, 40. 
13  Id. at 8, 10. 
14  Id. at 8. 
15  Id. at 9. 
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drinking water and clean bathroom facilities were not consistently available to the 

workers while working in the fields.16   

 

Many other aspects of the workers’ living and working conditions were 

inadequate. The workers’ dormitories had dirty bathrooms without hot water and 

two broken sinks.17 The windows and doors lacked screens and garbage cans lacked 

lids, which attracted flies and other pests.18 Respondent transported the workers 

from the dormitories in unsafe school buses that were driven by workers who were 

not licensed drivers.19 A Wage and Hour Division (WHD) investigator found that 

three of the five buses used by Respondent had worn, unsafe tires and one that had 

a broken rear turn signal.20 

 

Hernandez sold non-alcoholic beverages to the workers in the kitchen and 

while he supervised them in the fields.21 He also sold beer to the workers from the 

kitchen, though he did not have a state license to sell alcohol.22 Hernandez did not 

maintain records of the drink sales.  

 

In May 2015, nineteen workers sought a meeting with management to raise 

concerns about their living and working conditions.23 Workers testified that Russell 

Marino was very angry at the meeting and fired the workers.24 Respondent 

subsequently distributed worker departure forms that falsely stated the workers 

were resigning because of personal issues, such as a sick family member.25 

Respondent did not allow the workers to state on the forms that they were fired.26 

Respondent provided the forms to Department and other government agencies after 

the workers signed them.27 Russell Marino testified that he listed a false reason for 

the workers’ departure because he did not want to make it harder for the workers to 

                                                 
16  Id. at 18-20. 
17  Id. at 6-7, 29. 
18  Id. at 46. 
19  Id. at 8, 21. 
20  Id. at 8. 
21  Id. at 16. 
22  Id. at 7. 
23  Id. at 14. 
24  Id. at 14-15, 44. 
25  Id. at 19-20. 
26  Id. at 20. 
27  Id. at 20, 49. 
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find work later with a mark on their record but he also admitted it was to “protect 

against . . . this lawsuit.”28 Respondent replaced the workers with other H-2A 

workers.29  

 

In August, Respondent laid off another group of forty-four workers because of 

a pepper crop failure.30 Respondent had these workers also sign forms falsely 

stating their reasons for leaving.31 

 

The WHD investigated Respondent to ensure compliance with H-2A 

regulations during the 2015 growing season.32 On June 22, 2016, the Administrator 

issued a Notice of Determination after the investigation, alleging multiple violations 

of the H-2A program and assessing $369,703.22 in back wages and $212,250 in 

CMPs against Respondent.33 Respondent requested a hearing before an ALJ, and 

the Administrator referred the matter to the OALJ.34  

 

ALJ DECISION 

 

The ALJ held an evidentiary hearing on July 18 through 21, 2017 and issued 

her decision on October 28, 2019.35 The ALJ made several narrative findings of fact, 

including that “[k]itchen access was unavailable or otherwise denied” to the workers 

and that Respondent informed the workers that they could purchase a meal plan for 

$75 to $80 a week.36 The ALJ also found that potable water and clean bathroom 

facilities were only sporadically available, especially in the fields, and that the 

workers’ housing was inadequate.37 Further, the ALJ found that Respondent fired 

the nineteen workers in May 2015 after the contentious meeting and that 

Respondent provided the terminated workers with worker departure forms that 

gave false reasons for leaving.38 

                                                 
28  Id. at 19-20. 
29  Id. at 17. 
30  Id. at 12. 
31  Id. at 20-21. 
32  Id. at 6. 
33  Id. 
34  Id. 
35  Id. at 2, 6. 
36  Id. at 20. 
37  Id. 
38  Id. at 20-21. 

Case 1:21-cv-16625-JHR-MJS   Document 1-4   Filed 09/08/21   Page 6 of 22 PageID: 105

Appx032

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-1     Page: 34      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



6 

 

 

 

 

The ALJ then discussed the Administrator’s violation findings and the back 

wages and CMPs assessed against Respondent. As an initial matter, the ALJ found 

that Hernandez acted as Respondent’s agent at all relevant times with actual and 

apparent authority.39 Under 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p), the ALJ held that the 

Administrator properly found that Respondent unlawfully deducted from the 

workers’ wages for the meals, non-alcoholic beverages, and beer under 20 C.F.R.  

§ 655.122(g), (p), and (q).40 Under 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p), Respondent could not 

make deductions from the workers’ pay that provided a profit or violated any law.  

 

 The ALJ found that Respondent was required to remit back pay for the 

deductions made from the workers’ wages for the meals and non-alcoholic 

beverages.41 Under 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p)(1), job orders must list any deduction not 

required by law. The ALJ found that Respondent failed to note the deductions for 

the meal plan in the job orders, depriving the workers of the wage promised to them 

in the job order.42 The ALJ explained that the assessment of the entire amount 

deducted from the workers for the meal plan provided them their contractual right 

to the wage promised in the job orders and provided a deterrent effect to future 

employers who may also attempt to alter the terms of the job order upon the 

workers’ arrival.43 Thus, ALJ affirmed the Administrator’s $128,285 back wage 

assessment for the amount that Hernandez deducted for the meal plan. The ALJ 

also upheld the Administrator’s decision to assess one $1,350 CMP per affected 

worker for all of the meal and drink violations, totaling $198,450.44 

 

The ALJ further found that Respondent profited from the sales of the non-

alcoholic beverages to the workers. The ALJ approved of the WHD’s use of the 

Anderson v. Mt. Clemens Pottery Co.,45 method for calculating the back pay, in 

which an employee need only show a just and reasonable inference of the amount 

owed if the employer fails to keep records documenting the unpaid wages. However, 

the ALJ found the preponderance of the evidence established the workers 

                                                 
39  Id. at 36. 
40  Id. at 35. 
41  Id. at 39-40. 
42  Id. at 39. 
43  Id.  
44  Id. Under H-2A regulations at the time of the assessment, CMPs may not 

exceed $1,500 per violation. 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(c) (2010).  
45  328 U.S. 680 (1946). 
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purchased an average of 4 drinks a day rather than the Administrator’s finding of 

4.42.46 Therefore, the ALJ modified the back wages from $71,790.08 to $64,960.47 

 

The ALJ found that the beer sales were also unlawful deductions because 

Hernandez sold beer without a license in violation of New Jersey law48 and ordered 

Respondent to remit the $8,972.61 of profits from the sales.49  

 

 The ALJ next found the Administrator properly found that Respondent 

discharged twenty-four workers before they had been offered work for at least three-

fourths of the workdays specified  in the job orders in violation of 20 

C.F.R. § 655.122(i)(1).50 For the nineteen workers who left after the meeting with 

management in May 2015, the ALJ recalled the workers’ consistent testimony that 

Russell Marino became hostile to the workers and terminated their positions in 

anger.51 The ALJ credited the workers’ testimony over Joseph Marino’s testimony 

regarding the meeting because he “was unable to specifically remember what was 

said” during the argument.52 Therefore, the ALJ found that Respondent terminated 

the nineteen workers’ employment before they worked the three-fourths of the 

hours promised in the job orders and was liable for any back pay because of the 

terminations.53 

 

 The ALJ further found that Respondent violated the three-fourths guarantee 

for four of the workers that were laid off in August 2015 because of a crop failure. 

The ALJ noted that counsel for Respondent agreed to the Administrator’s 

calculations of the hours given to the four workers at the hearing and did not defend 

against the alleged violation in its post-hearing brief.54 The ALJ also found that 

                                                 
46  D. & O. at 41. 
47  Id. at 42. 
48  The parties stipulated that the beer sales violated New Jersey state law. Id. at 

38. 
49  Id. at 42. Because Hernandez failed to maintain records for the beer sold to 

workers, the Administrator also employed the Mt. Clemens method in determining the 

profits from the beer sales, which the ALJ found to be reasonable. Id. at 41. 
50  Id. at 43. 
51  Id. at 43-44. 
52  Id. at 44. 
53  Id. The ALJ also found in the alternative that Respondent constructively 

discharged the workers through the poor working and living conditions. Id. at 44-46. 
54  Id. at 47. 
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Respondent failed to satisfy its guarantee for one worker, Jose Islas Larraga, 

because the record contained no evidence that he abandoned his job.55  

 

The ALJ affirmed the Administrator’s $142,728.22 assessment of back wages 

for the three-fourths violations, noting that Respondent did not contest the 

calculations for the nineteen workers and Larraga and was unable to prove that the 

calculations for the four workers were unreasonable.56 The ALJ further found that 

the Administrator’s assessment of one $1,350 CMP for the violations was 

reasonable.57 

 

 Next, the ALJ affirmed the Administrator’s single $1,350 CMP for 

Respondent’s unlawful attempts to cause the workers to waive their three-fourths 

guarantee.58 The worker departure forms provided by Respondent to the 

Department falsely stated that the workers left voluntarily for personal reasons, 

which Respondent admitted was false.59 Though the forms did not expressly state 

that they were giving up their three-fourths guarantee, the ALJ noted that the 

misrepresentation that they left voluntarily would proximately cause the workers to 

waive the guarantee under 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(n).60  

 

 The ALJ affirmed the Administrator’s $3,150 CMP for Respondent’s 

inadequate housing conditions, including the missing screens, uncovered garbage 

cans, and shortage of hot water, that violated § 655.122(d)(1).61 The ALJ also 

affirmed the Administrator’s $7,500 in CMPs for Respondent’s use of substandard 

transportation and unlicensed drivers in violation of § 655.122(h)(4).62 

 

                                                 
55  Id. 
56  Id. at 47-48. 
57  Id. at 48. Respondent does not contest the back pay and CMP calculations on 

appeal. 
58  Id. at 49-50. Respondent does not contest the calculation of the CMP on 

appeal. 
59  Id. 
60  Id. at 49. 
61  Id. at 50. The ALJ did find that the Administrator’s $450 CMP for a mattress 

found on the ground of the dormitories was unreasonable because the evidence did not 

establish that the mattress was unlawfully unclean. Id. at 51-52.  
62  Id. at 52-53. Respondent does not contest the CMPs for the transportation 

violations on appeal. 
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 In total, the ALJ imposed $344,945.80 in back wages and $211,800 in CMPs 

against Respondent.63 Respondent petitioned for review of the decision thereafter. 

 

JURISDICTION AND STANDARD OF REVIEW 

 
The Board has jurisdiction to hear appeals concerning questions of law or fact 

from ALJ final decisions in cases under the INA’s H-2A provisions and its 

implementing regulations.64 The Board will affirm the ALJ’s factual findings if 

supported by substantial evidence but reviews all conclusions of law de novo.65 

Substantial evidence is “such relevant evidence as a reasonable mind might accept 

as adequate to support a conclusion.”66 

 

DISCUSSION 

 
Respondent presents many arguments against several aspects of the ALJ’s 

decision on appeal. Respondent contests the ALJ’s finding that at all relevant times, 

Hernandez acted as Respondent’s agent. Respondent also contests the ALJ’s 

findings against it for the unlawful meal and drink deductions, the three-fourths 

guarantee violations, and the attempted waiver violation. We shall address each 

argument in turn. 

 

1. Hernandez’s Status as an Agent of Respondent 

 

                                                 
63  Id. at 53-54. The total back wages and CMPs included: $128,285 in back 

wages and $198,450 in CMPs for the meal-related violations; $64,960 in back wages for 

the soft drinks sold; $8,972.61 in back wages for the beer sold; $142,728.22 in back wages 
and $1,350 in CMPs for the three-fourths guarantee violations; $1,350 in CMPs for the 

attempted waiver; $3,150 in CMPs for the inadequate housing; and $7,500 for the 

substandard transportation and unlicensed drivers. Id. at 54-55. 
64  Secretary’s Order No. 01-2020 (Delegation of Authority and Assignment of 

Responsibility to the Administrative Review Board (Secretary’s discretionary review of 
ARB decisions)), 85 Fed. Reg. 13186 (Mar. 6, 2020); 20 C.F.R. § 655.845; 29 C.F.R. § 

501.42. 
65  Adm’r, Wage and Hour Div. v. Fernandez Farms, Inc., ARB No. 2016-0097, 

ALJ No. 2014-TAE-00008, slip op. at 2 (ARB Sept. 16, 2019). 
66  Biestek v. Berryhill, 139 S. Ct. 1148, 1154 (2019) (quoting Consol. Edison 

Co. v. NLRB, 305 U.S. 197, 229 (1938)). 
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Respondent contests the ALJ’s finding that Hernandez acted as Respondent’s 

agent while operating the meal plan and selling the workers beer, thereby making 

Respondent liable for his unlawful actions. Respondent claims that the principles of 

agency do not apply because “the theory in this case is breach of contract” and that 

Hernandez acted independently when operating the meal plan by using the 

workers’ payments to buy food and compensate kitchen staff. The ALJ found that 

Hernandez acted as Respondent’s agent at all relevant times, with both actual and 

apparent authority over the workers and, therefore, his actions were “legally 

equivalent to the actions of Respondent.”67  

 

First, we conclude that the ALJ correctly held that common law agency 

principles apply to violations arising under the INA, including the H-2A 

regulations.68 Therefore, an H-2A employer is liable for its employee’s unlawful 

actions while acting under actual or apparent authority of the employer.69 

 

The ALJ found that Hernandez acted with actual authority when he 

administered the meal plan. An agent acts with actual authority “when at the time 

of taking action that has legal consequences for the principal, the agent reasonably 

believes, in accordance with the principal’s manifestations to the agent, that the 

principal wishes the agent so to act.”70 Here, Respondent told Hernandez to operate 

the same meal plan that Respondent had used for workers before engaging in the 

H-2A program. It had Hernandez attend Department training sessions concerning 

meal plans, and instructed Hernandez to maintain the records of the food and 

beverage sales and to comply with the H-2A program requirements.71 Under these 

                                                 
67  D. & O. at 36. 
68  See Ramos-Barrientos v. Bland, 661 F.3d 587, 601 (11th Cir. 2011); Arriaga 

v. Fla. Pac. Farms, L.L.C., 305 F.3d 1228, 1245 (11th Cir. 2002) (quoting Burlington 
Indus. v. Ellerth, 524 U.S. 742 (1998)) (“When applying agency principles to federal 

statutes, ‘the Restatement (Second) of Agency . . . is a useful beginning point for a 

discussion of general agency principles’”); Garcia-Celestino v. Ruiz Harvesting, Inc., 843 

F.3d 1276, 1289 (11th Cir. 2016) (“The common law principles of agency . . . dictate the 

parameters of the employment relationship under the H-2A program.”). 
69  See Arriaga, 305 F.3d at 1244-45. 
70  Restatement (Third) Of Agency § 2.01 (2006); see also Castillo, 96 F. Supp. 

2d at 593 (“Express actual authority exists ‘where the principal has made it clear to the 

agent that he [or she] wants the act under scrutiny to be done.’”) (quoting Pasant v. Jackson 

Nat’l Life Ins. Co., 52 F.3d 94, 97 (5th Cir. 1995)).  
71  D. & O. at 22. 
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instructions, Hernandez operated the meal plan service and collected money from 

the workers for the food. Without Hernandez’s services, Respondent would not have 

complied with its requirement to provide meals to its workers. This evidence 

demonstrates Hernandez reasonably believed that he was operating the meal plan 

under his employer’s instructions and not as his own business. Respondent points to 

no evidence that would support a legal conclusion to the contrary. Thus, we 

conclude the ALJ correctly found that Hernandez acted with actual authority.72 

 

Though the ALJ found that Hernandez acted as Respondent’s agent at all 

relevant times, the ALJ also found that Hernandez was an “affiliated person” of 

Respondent when selling beer to the workers. An H-2A employer may not make a 

deduction from an employee’s wages that “includes profit to the employer or to any 

affiliated person.”73 WHD guidance describes an affiliated person as those “who 

furnish workers, any person acting in the employer’s behalf or interest (directly or 

indirectly), or who has an interest in the employment relationship.”74 At the very 

least, Hernandez acted indirectly in Respondent’s interest when selling the beer to 

the workers out of Respondent’s kitchen. Therefore, the ALJ correctly found 

Respondent was liable for any unlawful profit that Hernandez made from the sale of 

beer to the workers. 

 

2. The Workers’ Kitchen Facilities 

 
For the period from June 1, 2015 through October 10, 2015, Respondent 

signed a job order submitted to the Department in which it promised to “furnish 

free cooking and kitchen facilities to those workers who are entitled to live in the 

employer’s housing so that workers may prepare their own meals” and that “[o]nce 

a week the employers will offer to provide (on a voluntary basis by the workers) free 

transportation to assure workers access to the closest store where they can 

purchase groceries.”75 

                                                 
72  The ALJ also correctly found that Hernandez acted with apparent authority 

when administering the meal plan because the workers reasonably believed that 

Respondent instructed Hernandez to implement the meal plan. D. & O. at 37-38; see 

Arriaga, 305 F.3d at 1245. However, we need not discuss this finding in detail because we 

affirm the ALJ’s finding that Hernandez acted with actual authority. 
73  20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p)(2). 
74  U.S. DEP’T OF LABOR, WAGE & HOUR DIV., FIELD ASSISTANCE BULLETIN 

NO. 2012-3 2 (May 17, 2012), 

https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/WHD/legacy/files/fab2012_3.pdf. 
75  D. & O. at 15. 
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Respondent contends the ALJ’s finding that it failed to provide the kitchen 

facilities contractually promised to the workers is not supported by the evidence in 

the record. Respondent claims the testimony was “inconsistent” regarding how 

many workers could simultaneously use the kitchen and that some workers either 

used the kitchen or never asked to use it. However, Respondent’s argument misses 

the point. Even if there were inconsistencies, they do not undercut the ALJ’s finding 

that Respondent failed to meet its legal obligation to provide the workers with 

access to its kitchen to prepare meals on their own, nor would they provide an 

evidentiary basis to disturb the ALJ’s findings on this issue. The Administrator 

points out that Hernandez testified that the kitchen was too small for the workers 

to prepare their own food. Hernandez’s wife, who worked in the kitchen, further 

explained that workers were not allowed to use the kitchen.76 Hernandez himself   

testified that workers were only allowed to store small items in the kitchen, and the 

workers who were able to cook for themselves purchased and used a hot plate in the 

dormitories.77 Thus, we conclude that the ALJ’s finding is supported by substantial 

evidence in the record. 

 

3. The Back Wages and CMPs for the Undisclosed Meal Plan Deductions 
 

Respondent contests the ALJ’s order of $128,185 in back wages and $198,450 

in CMPs for the deductions made from the workers’ wages for the undisclosed meal 

plan under 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p). Respondent argues that Hernandez did not 

deduct the meal plan costs from the workers’ pay because the record demonstrated 

that the workers would pay him after they received their cash, and that the ALJ’s 

decision to assess a per-worker CMP rather than a single CMP is excessive because 

there was only one violation of failing to disclose the meal charges.  

 

As an initial matter, Respondent fails to accurately describe how the workers 

paid for the meal plan. As the ALJ observed, the workers never paid in cash for 

either the meals or the beverages Hernandez sold. Instead, Hernandez would cash 

the workers’ checks at the bank and then return the money to them, minus what 

was owed for meals and beverages.78  

 

 Further, the manner in which Hernandez charged the workers for the meal 

plan is irrelevant because shifting a cost that Respondent could not deduct 

                                                 
76  Hearing Transcript (Tr.) at 175-76; Plaintiff’s Exhibit (PX) 19 at 809.  
77  Tr. at 176; PX-19 at 1103-06. 
78  D. & O. at 8. 
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“constitutes an unlawful de facto deduction that impermissibly drives the 

employee’s pay below the required prevailing wage.”79 The Board has held that 

“there is no legal difference between an employer directly deducting a cost from a 

worker’s wages, and shifting to the employee a cost that the employer could not 

lawfully directly deduct from wages.”80 Here, whether Hernandez took the money 

before or after providing the workers’ pay is a distinction without a difference 

because the effect would be the same. The workers’ would lose $75-80 of their 

earnings. Thus, the charges Hernandez took out of the workers’ pay for the meal 

plans were deductions. 

Respondent’s contention that the Administrator can only assess one CMP for 

its failure to disclose the meal plan is incorrect. H-2A regulations permit the 

Administrator to assess a CMP “for each violation of the work contract” including 

each failure to “pay an individual worker properly or to honor the terms or 

conditions of a worker’s employment.”81 Under each worker’s job contract, 

Respondent falsely represented that an adequate kitchen would be provided. 

Further, Hernandez, acting as Respondent’s agent, failed to pay each worker 

properly by subtracting  deductions from each worker’s pay that were not disclosed 

in the job orders. Therefore, Respondent failed to honor the terms of each worker’s 

job contract, resulting in a violation for each worker Respondent employed.  

79 Weeks Marine, Inc., ARB Nos. 2012-0093, -0095, ALJ No. 2009-DBA-

00006, slip op. at 7 (ARB Apr. 29, 2015); see also Arriaga, 305 F.3d at 1236 (holding that 

the FLSA rule prohibiting deductions for the costs of facilities that primarily benefit the 

employer “cannot be avoided by simply requiring employees to make such purchases on 

their own, either in advance of or during the employment”). The H-2A regulations 

incorporate FLSA regulations for the permissibility of deductions. 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p) 

(“The principles applied in determining whether deductions are reasonable . . . are 

explained in more detail in 29 CFR part 531.”). 
80 Weeks Marine, Inc., ARB Nos. 2012-0093, slip op. at 6-7 (considering a cost 

that the employer could not lawfully deduct from employee wages under Davis-Bacon Act 

regulations that also incorporate FLSA standards for the permissibility of deductions). 
81 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(a) (2010) (“Each failure . . . constitutes a separate 

violation.”). 
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The Administrator is granted discretion in “fashioning an appropriate 

remedy for a violation” within the limits of the H-2A regulations.82 The regulations 

permit the Administrator to assess up to $1,500 per CMP.83 The Administrator’s 

decision to assess one $1,350 CMP for each worker that was misled by the job order 

was not an abuse of her discretion. 

 

4. The Impact of the Failure to Disclose the Meal Plan  

 

Respondent argues that the ALJ’s order for $128,285 in back wages and 

$198,450 in CMPs for the unlawful meal plan deductions should be reversed 

because its failure to disclose the meal plan charges would not have impacted the 

Department’s decision to approve Respondent’s H-2A application or the workers’ 

decision to accept the job orders. Respondent claims that the purpose of the H-2A 

disclosure requirements is: (1) to inform potential workers of the terms of conditions 

so they can decide whether to accept the job; and (2) to allow the Department to 

know whether the terms of the job might adversely affect similarly-employed 

domestic workers. Respondent cites Matter of Global Horizons, in which an ALJ 

granted partial summary decision to the employer that had failed to accurately 

disclose meal charges because the employer did not exploit the workers by 

overcharging for meals.84 Thus, Respondent claims that the back wages and CMPs 

are not warranted because Respondent did not profit off of the meal plan. 

 

The deductions were unlawful because they were not disclosed, not because 

they provided a profit. The H-2A wage requirements are not “met where undisclosed 

or unauthorized deductions, rebates, or refunds reduce the wage payment made to 

the employee below the minimum amounts required.”85 Here, the undisclosed 

deductions for the meal plan reduced the workers’ wages below the required wages 

(i.e. the wages specified in the job orders). Therefore, the back pay award for all 

                                                 
82  Overdevest Nurseries, LP, 2015-TAE-00008, slip op. at 18 (OALJ Feb. 18, 

2016) (citing Wage & Hour Div. v. Kutty, ARB No. 2003-0022, 2001-LCA-00010 to -

00025 (ARB May 31, 2005)); 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(a) (2010) (“A civil money penalty may 

be assessed by the WHD Administrator for each violation of the work contract.”) (emphasis 

added). 
83  29 C.F.R. § 501.19(c) (2010) (CMPs “will not exceed $1,500 per violation.”)  
84  Matter of Global Horizons, ALJ No. 2010-TAE-00002, slip op. at 9 (OALJ 

Dec. 17, 2010). 
85  20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p)(2). 
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meal plan deductions allows the workers to receive the wages that they were 

contractually promised.86 

 

Further, Respondent’s citation to Global Horizons does not support its 

argument because the ALJ in that case ultimately awarded the workers back wages 

in the full amount of undisclosed meal plan deductions.87 The ALJ in that case 

decided to grant summary decision to deny CMPs, not back wages, for the failure to 

disclose because the employer was “already being penalized the entire cost of buying 

food and paying cooks to prepare” the food.88 

 

Last, whether providing a meal plan instead of cooking facilities would affect 

any of the workers’ decisions to work for Respondent is irrelevant because all 

workers still received an inaccurate job order and had their wages reduced below 

the wage promised in the order. Further, Respondent provided inaccurate 

information to the Department that it relied upon in the application approval 

process. The Department depends on this information to ensure that the 

employment of the H-2A workers “will not adversely affect the wages and working 

conditions of” domestic workers.89 Therefore, the Administrator appropriately 

assessed the back wages and CMPs both to provide the workers with the wages they 

were promised and to deter other H-2A employers from making the same failures to 

disclose in a potentially exploitative way. 

 

5. The Back Wages for the Beverage Sales 

 

                                                 
86  Respondent does not contest the Administrator’s calculation of back wages 

for the meal plan deductions. 
87  Matter of Global Horizons, ALJ No. 2010-TAE-00002, slip op. at 2-3 (OALJ 

Dec. 13, 2011). The ALJ noted that the fact that the employer did not profit off the workers 

did not absolve it from liability for back wages because the failure to disclose the meal plan 

still “thwarted the regulatory scheme” and “circumvented the Department’s review and 
approval of the amounts being deducted,” which is “an important step in assuring that 

Congress’ prohibition of preferential treatment for the alien workers is enforced.” Id. at 2 

n.7. 
88  Matter of Global Horizons, ALJ No. 2010-TAE-00002, slip op. at 9 (OALJ 

Dec. 17, 2010).  
89  8 U.S.C § 1188(a)(1)(B). 
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Respondent contests the $64,960 back wages award for Hernandez’s soft 

drink sales to the workers.90 Respondent claims that testimony established that 

potable water was available to the workers at all times and that Hernandez’s sales 

had no impact on Respondent’s profits. Respondent adds that there was no 

testimony for why it was necessary for the workers to buy the soft drinks and that 

the H-2A regulations do not justify an award of free drinks to the workers.  

 

We agree that the regulations generally do not require H-2A employers to 

provide soft drinks to its workers. However, if an employer or an “affiliated person” 

does sell them drinks, the regulations prohibit them from profiting from the sales.91 

If an employer or affiliated person does unlawfully sell the workers drinks, the 

employer is liable for the amount charged that reduced the employee’s wages below 

the amount promised in the job orders.92 Hernandez, who was acting as 

Respondent’s agent when selling the drinks out of the kitchen or in the fields while 

supervising the workers, testified that he sold the beverages at a profit.93 Thus, the 

soft drink sales were unlawful deductions from the workers’ wages. 

 

Further, although Respondent contends that evidence demonstrated that 

water was available at meals and at all times in the fields, the ALJ did not base her 

finding on the availability of potable water. Rather, the ALJ relied on her finding 

that drinkable water was sporadically available94 to support her decision to award 

the full amount charged for the soft drinks. Even if Respondent had consistently 

provided its workers with clean, drinkable water at all times, Hernandez’s sale of 

                                                 
90  Respondent does not contest the calculation of the back wages award. 
91  See 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p)(2) (“A deduction is not reasonable if it includes 

a profit to the employer or to any affiliated person.”). 
92  Id. (“The wage requirements of § 655.120 will not be met where undisclosed 

or unauthorized deductions . . . reduce the wage payment made to the employee below the 

minimum amounts required.”); 29 C.F.R. § 501.16(a)(1) (“Whenever the WHD 

Administrator believes that 8 U.S.C. 1188, 20 CFR part 655, subpart B . . . have been 

violated, such action shall be taken and such proceedings instituted as deemed appropriate, 

including . . . the recovery of unpaid wages” and “the enforcement of provisions of the 

work contract.”). 
93  D. & O. at 16; Tr. at 195 (“Q: You would pay 13 to $14 for a 24-pack of 

soda? A: Yes. Q: Workers were charged $1 per soda? A: Seventy-five cents, I think.”).   
94  The ALJ found that workers did not have consistent access to potable water, 

based on workers’ consistent testimony that clean water was not always available. D. & O. 

at 18-19. 
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beverages for a profit still violated the regulations, and therefore, Respondent 

would be liable for the back wages. 

 

Hernandez also sold beer to the workers from the kitchen, in violation of 

state law because he did not have a license to sell alcohol.95 Hernandez did not 

maintain records of the drink sales, so the Administrator reconstructed the amount 

of drinks sold to the workers.96 The Administrator determined that Respondent 

owed $8,972.61 in back wages for the profit Hernandez earned through his sale of 

beer in violation of state law.97  

 

Respondent claims that the Administrator’s calculations of Hernandez’s beer 

sales were incorrect because the investigator based the calculations off of a different 

brand of beer, store, and price used by Hernandez. However, because Respondent 

failed to keep records of the beer sold to the workers, the ALJ correctly applied the 

Anderson v. Mt. Clemens Pottery Co. burden shifting framework, in which the 

plaintiff only needs to produce sufficient evidence of the wages owed as a matter of 

just and reasonable inference.98 The burden then shifts to the employer to produce 

evidence of the precise amount owed, and if the employer fails to do so, the court 

may award damages that need only be “approximate.”99  

 

Because Respondent could not rebut the Administrator’s calculations with 

precise amounts, the ALJ was correct in awarding back wages that were an 

approximation of Hernandez’s profits. The Administrator used the prices for beer at 

wholesale retailer Costco, while Hernandez had purchased the beer at Sam’s Club, 

another wholesale club likely to sell products at similar prices.100 Further, the 

Administrator used the price of Coors Light to calculate the profits, which is one of 

                                                 
95  Id. at 7. 
96  Id. at 7-8, 24-25. 

97  Id. at 24. To calculate Hernandez’s estimated profit from the beer sales, a WHD  
investigator used the price of $20.99 per thirty-pack of Coors Light, which is one brand of 

beer Hernandez sold, based upon the cost from a wholesale club similar to the one used by 
Hernandez to buy the beer. The investigator determined that he profited $1.30 per can 

because Hernandez sold the beer for $2 a can and each beer cost him $.70 to buy. The 

investigator determined Respondent profited $18.20 off each worker per week based on a 

reasonable estimation of how much beer each worker bought per week. Id. at 7-8. 

98  Anderson v. Mt. Clemens Pottery Co., 328 U.S. 680, 687 (1946). 
99  Id. at 687-88. 
100  D. & O. at 42. 
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the brands of beer Hernandez sold.101 The Mt. Clemens standard only requires 

estimates; precision is not required. Therefore, the ALJ’s finding of $8,972.61 in 

profits from the beer sales was reasonable. 

 

6. The Three-Fourths Guarantee Violations and Waiver Attempts 
 

Respondent contests the award of $142,728.22 in back wages and $1,350 in 

CMPs for the ALJ’s findings that Respondent had violated the three-fourths 

guarantee for several workers.102 H-2A employers must offer each worker 

“employment for a total number of work hours equal to at least three-fourths of the 

workdays” that are “specified in the work contract.”103 A worker that abandons 

employment or is terminated for cause is not entitled to the guarantee.104 

 

For the nineteen workers that left in May 2015, Respondent disputes the 

ALJ’s finding that Respondent terminated the workers without cause and the ALJ’s 

credibility determination that favored the workers over Respondent’s witnesses. 

Respondent cites one worker’s uncorroborated testimony that Russell Marino tried 

to hit him as evidence that the workers’ testimony lacked credibility and claims that 

it would have been illogical to fire the workers during harvest season. 

 

The Board gives ALJ credibility determinations “great deference” if they are 

not “inherently incredible or patently unreasonable.”105 The Board affords such 

deference because the ALJ is able to observe the “witnesses’ demeanor while 

testifying” and “the extent to which their testimony is supported or contradicted by 

other credible evidence.”106 Here, the ALJ noted the consistency of the testimony of 

several of the workers’ regarding the May 2015 meeting and that Joseph Marino’s 

hearing testimony contradicted his deposition. Although one worker’s 

uncorroborated testimony about an alleged assault does not bolster the ALJ’s 

credibility finding, it does not make the determination “inherently incredible or 

                                                 
101  Id. at 7-8. 
102  Respondent does not contest the calculation of the back wages award or 

CMPs. 
103  20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i)(1). 
104  § 655.122(n). 
105  Kanj v. Viejas Band of Kumeyaay Indians , ARB No. 2012-0002, ALJ No. 

2006-WPC-00001, slip op. at 6 (ARB Aug. 29, 2012). 
106  Id. (quoting Caldwell v. EG&G Def. Materials, Inc., ARB No. 2005-0101, 

ALJ No. 2003-SDW-00001, slip op. at 12 (ARB Oct. 31, 2008)). 
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patently unreasonable.” The ALJ’s credibility determination is substantial evidence 

that Respondent made “a rash, and perhaps illogical, decision” to fire the workers at 

that meeting and replace them in violation of their three-fourths guarantee.107  

 
The Respondent also disputes the ALJ’s finding that Respondent violated the 

three-fourths guarantee for four workers who were sent home after the pepper crop 

had become diseased.108 Respondent claims that the four workers were offered the 

required hours but were unable to work them because they were sick or injured. 

However, Respondent waived this argument before the ALJ by agreeing to the 

Administrator’s calculations regarding the three-fourths violations for the four 

workers and by failing to raise any argument against the alleged violation in its 

post-hearing brief.109 Even if it did not waive the argument, Respondent does not 

cite to any evidence in the record demonstrating that the four workers were offered 

the required amount of work. Therefore, we affirm the ALJ’s three-fourths violation 

finding concerning these four workers.110 

 

Respondent contests the ALJ’s finding that it attempted to waive the 

workers’ three-fourths guarantees by falsifying their departure forms to say they 

                                                 
107  D. & O. at 44. The ALJ also found in the alternative that Respondent 

constructively discharged the nineteen workers. Id. at 44-46. Because we affirm the ALJ’s 

finding that Respondent actually discharged the workers, we need not discuss the ALJ’s 

alternative finding regarding constructive discharge. 
108  Id. at 12, 47. 
109  Sandra Lee Bart, ARB No. 2019-0004, ALJ No. 2017-TAE-00014, slip op. 

at 4-5 (ARB Sept. 22, 2020) (“Under our well-established precedent, we decline to consider 

arguments that a party raises for the first time on appeal.”). Counsel for Respondent 

withdrew an exhibit containing its own calculations of the hours worked and stated he “was 

wrong” about its contents. D. & O. at 47. 
110  The Administrator claims that Respondent appears to group one worker, Islas 

Larraga, who left in June 2015, in with the four workers who were dismissed in August. 

The ALJ made a separate finding that the record contained no evidence that he abandoned 

his job and that Respondent violated his three-fourths guarantee. D. & O. at 47. Even if he 

did abandon the job, Respondent still failed to report the end of his employment to the 

Department as required. 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(n) (“If the worker voluntarily abandons 

employment . . . and the employer notifies [the Department,] . . . the worker is not entitled 

to the three-fourths guarantee.”).  
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left voluntarily.111 Respondent argues that it was not attempting to have the 

workers waive their three-fourths guarantee because they never presented the 

forms to WHD investigators to explain their departures. However, H-2A regulations 

state that an employer may not “seek to have an H-2A worker . . . waive any rights 

conferred under 8 U.S.C. 1188, 20 CFR part 655, subpart B.”112 Respondent had 

asked the workers to sign the falsified form. Whether Respondent presented the 

forms to WHD investigators is irrelevant in this case. Substantial evidence supports 

the finding that it was attempting to waive their rights because Respondent 

admitted that no workers had sick or deceased family members and that the 

purpose of falsifying the forms was “to protect against . . . this lawsuit.”  

 

7. Remaining Arguments 

 

Respondent contests the $3,150 in CMPs for the workers’ inadequate living 

conditions, stating that the “condition of the housing resulted from lack of care by 

the workers living there, but more importantly, could have been remedied 

immediately if the WHD Investigator had been interested in the workers’ living 

conditions rather than in assessing CMPs and raised the issue to Sun Valley in a 

timely manner.” We are unable to discern any legal argument from this statement, 

nor do we see any abuse of discretion in the ALJ’s order of CMPs for the workers’ 

poor housing conditions. 

 

Last, in a section titled “Estoppel/Laches/Mitigation,” Respondent complains 

that the WHD improperly failed to raise concerns about the meal plan charges and 

bring an enforcement action in a timely manner. Respondent claims that the WHD 

knew of the meal plan in July 2015 but did not discuss any issue with Respondent 

until February 2016. This argument is without merit.113 Respondent admits that 

there is no case law that applies the doctrines of laches or estoppel to a government 

enforcement action and that H-2A employers are ultimately still responsible for 

complying with the regulations. Indeed, the Administrator notes that there is no 

                                                 
111  Respondent does not contest the calculation of the $1,350 CMP for the 

violation. 
112  29 C.F.R. § 501.5 (emphasis added). 
113  We must make the point that participation in the H-2B visa program is 

voluntary.  Respondent was under no compulsion to file a request for visas as a means to 

fulfill its projected employment needs. However, having received the benefit of 

government action, Respondent was obliged to tell the truth, and to meet the obligations it 

had undertaken both to its visa employees and to the federal government. We see no 

mitigating factors. On the contrary, Respondent appears to have simply violated the law.   
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regulatory requirement for the WHD to notify an employer the instant a violation is 

suspected and that the Supreme Court has long recognized that laches is not a 

defense to a government enforcement action.114  

 

CONCLUSION 
 

For the foregoing reasons, we agree with the ALJ’s following findings, 

determination of back wages, and CMP assessments: 

 

1. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(g), (p), and (q) by making false 

promises about kitchen access and failing to disclose meal charges. As a result, it 

owes $128,285 in back wages, and $198,450 in CMPs. 

 

2. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p) through the sale of drinks and 

other items at a profit or in violation of state law. As a result, it owes $64,960 in 

back wages for non-alcoholic drinks sold and $8,972.61 for the profit it made from 

the beer it sold. 

 

3. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i) by discharging certain workers 

prior to such workers meeting the three-fourths guarantee. As a result, it owes 

$142,728.22 in back wages, and $1,350 in CMPs. 

 

4. Respondent violated 29 C.F.R. § 501.5 by attempting to cause workers to 

waive the three-fourths guarantee at 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i). As a result, it owes 

$1,350 in CMPs. 

 

5. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(d) through the provision of 

inadequate housing. As a result, it owes $3,150 in CMPs. 

 

6. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(h)(4) through substandard 

transportation and unlicensed drivers. As a result, it owes $7,500 in CMPs. 

 

Therefore, we AFFIRM the ALJ’s Decision and Order Affirming in Part and 

Modifying in Part the Administrator’s Findings. 

 

SO ORDERED.  

                                                 
114  See Utah Power & Light Co. v. United States , 243 U.S. 389, 409 (1917) (“As 

a general rule, laches or neglect of duty on the part of officers of the government is no 

defense to a suit by it to enforce a public right or protect a public interest.”). 
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In the Matter of 

 

ADMINISTRATOR, WAGE AND HOUR 

DIVISION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

  Plaintiff 

 

 v. 

 

SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC 

  Respondent 

 

 

 

DECISION AND ORDER 

AFFIRMING IN PART AND MODIFYING IN PART THE ADMINISTRATOR’S 

FINDINGS 

 

 This matter arises under the H-2A provision of the Immigration and Nationality Act 

(“INA” or “the Act”), as amended, 8 U.S.C. §§ 1101(a) and 1188(c), and the U.S. Department of 

Labor’s (“DOL”) implementing regulations found at 20 C.F.R. Part 655, subpart B, and 29 

C.F.R. Part 501 (“the H-2A regulations” or “the [governing] regulations”). 

 

PROCEDURAL HISTORY 
 

 The Administrator, Wage and Hour Division, U.S. Department of Labor 

(“Administrator”) filed a Notice of Determination on June 22, 2016, alleging multiple violations 

of the H-2A program against Sun Valley Orchards, LLC’s (“Respondent”).  See JX 10 

(December 23, 2006 Order of Reference and Summary of Violations).  The Administrator 

assessed back pay and civil money penalties (“CMPs”) totaling $564,026.  See Administrator’s 

Brief at 91. 

 

 On December 23, 2016, the Administrator issued an Order of Reference, which referred 

the matter to the Office of Administrative Law Judges (“OALJ”).  On January 11, 2017, the 

undersigned received the assignment of this case.  On January 18, 2017, the undersigned issued 

an Initial Notice of Hearing and Pre-Hearing Order scheduling the hearing to begin on February 

16, 2017 in Cherry Hill, New Jersey.  At a February 2, 2017 telephonic pre-hearing conference, 

the Parties petitioned the undersigned for a revised hearing schedule.  A February 7, 2017 Order 

granted the Parties’ joint motion for a revised hearing schedule, and scheduled the hearing to 

begin on July 18, 2017. 
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On May 23, 2017, by facsimile, Respondent’s counsel filed an Emergency Motion for 

Revised Schedule proposing to move the filing of motions for summary decision deadline to 

June 9, 2017.  By facsimile dated May 24, 2017, the Administrator filed her Opposition to 

Respondent’s Motion for a Third Extension to the Summary Decision Deadline.  Respondent 

submitted, by facsimile on May 24, 2017, Respondent’s Reply in Further Support of Emergency 

Motion for Revised Schedule. 

 

A May 25, 2017 Order Granting Respondent’s Emergency Motion for Revised Schedule 

afforded the parties a one-week extension to file motions for summary decision.  Further, the 

Order advised the parties that no other deadlines would change and the hearing remained 

scheduled for July 18, 2017 in Cherry Hill, New Jersey.  The undersigned received both the 

Administrator’s Motion for Partial Summary Decision and Respondent’s Motion for Summary 

Decision on June 2, 2017. 

 

On June 6, 2017, by facsimile, the Administrator filed a Joint Motion to Extend by One 

Week Certain Pre-Hearing Deadlines.  The parties jointly requested that the undersigned set June 

16, 2017 as the deadline to file summary decision oppositions, extend the deadline for pre-

hearing disclosures and exchanges to June 19, 2017, and extend the deadline for the pre-hearing 

statements to June 23, 2017.  A June 8, 2017 Order granted the parties’ joint motion to extend 

the foregoing deadlines.  A July 7, 2017 Order denied the parties’ motions for summary decision. 

 

On July 18, 2017, the hearing commenced in Cherry Hill, New Jersey.  At the conclusion 

of the hearing, on July 21, 2017,
1
 the undersigned directed the parties to meet and confer 

regarding a briefing schedule.  On September 25, 2017, by facsimile letter, the parties filed a 

Joint Motion to Set Post Hearing Briefing Schedule.  An October 5, 2017 Order granted the 

parties’ joint motion and extended the deadline to submit post-hearing briefs to December 15, 

2017.  Both parties submitted briefs on December 15, 2017.    

 

ISSUES 
 

1. Did Respondent violate 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(g), (p), and (q) by making false 

promises about kitchen access and failing to disclose meal charges? 

a. If so, did the Administrator properly assess $128,285 in back wages? 

b. If so, did the Administrator properly assess $198,450 in civil money 

penalties (“CMPs”)? 

2. Did Respondent violate 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p) through Agustin Hernandez’s sale 

of drinks and other items at a profit or in violation of state law? 

a. If so, did the Administrator properly assess $80,762.69 in back wages? 

                                                 
1
  At the hearing, the undersigned admitted the following exhibits:  Administrative Law Judge’s Exhibit 

(“ALJX”) 1; Joint Exhibits (“JX”) 1–JX 10; Prosecuting Party’s Exhibits (“PX”) 1; PX 2; PX 3; PX 15–PX 15-2; 

PX 16; PX 16-1; PX 17-1; PX 17-2; PX 17-3; PX 19; PX 20; PX 21; PX 22; PX 23; PX 24; PX 25; PX 28; PX 29; 

PX 30; PX 32; PX 33; PX 34; PX 35; PX 36; PX 37; PX 39; PX 41; and PX 42; Respondent’s Exhibits (“RX”) 1; 

RX 2; RX 5; RX 7; RX 9; and RX 12–RX 19.   
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3. Did Respondent violate 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i) by discharging certain workers 

prior to such workers meeting the three-fourths wages guarantee? 

a. If so, did the Administrator properly assess $142,728.22 in back wages? 

b. If so, did the Administrator properly assess $1,350.00 in CMPs? 

4. Did Respondent violate 29 C.F.R. § 501.5 by attempting to cause workers to 

waive the three-fourths guarantee at 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i)? 

a. If so, did the Administrator properly assess $1,350.00 in CMPs? 

5. Did Respondent violate 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(d) by providing inadequate housing? 

a. If so, did the Administrator properly assess $3,600.00 in CMPs? 

6. Did Respondent violate 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(h)(4) through providing substandard 

transportation and unlicensed drivers? 

a. If so, did the Administrator properly assess $7,500.00 in CMPs? 

 

See Administrator’s Brief at 91 (revising back wages owed); see, e.g., JX 10 page 160 (the 

Administrator’s originally submitted “Summary of Violations” table). 

 

STIPULATIONS OF FACT 
 

The Parties agree to the following stipulations, provided in full:
2
 

 

1. Respondent, a New Jersey farm, employs both foreign nationals working on H-2A visas 

(“H-2A workers”) as well as a number of non-H-2A employees, including non-H-2A 

employees engaged in corresponding employment (“domestic workers”).
3
  The workers’ 

duties include picking asparagus, peppers, and other crops. 

 

2. Respondent was founded as a limited liability corporation in 2012 and is owned by 

Russell Marino Jr.; Joseph Marino, Harry Marino; and Russell Marino, Sr. 

 

3. Respondent took over the farming operation formerly known as Marino Brothers, Inc. 

 

4. Marino Brothers, Inc. did business under the trade name “Sun Valley Orchards.” 

 

5. Russell Marino, Sr.; Sebastien Marino; and Harry Marino owned Marino Brothers, Inc.  

 

6. Marino Brothers, Inc. employed Agustin Hernandez (“Hernandez”) and Russell Marino, 

Jr. (among others). 

 

7. To obtain workers for the period of April 13, 2015 to October 10, 2015 (the “2015 

growing season”), Respondent filed two applications for Temporary Employment 

Certification ETA Form 9142 (“TEC”) and two Agricultural and Food Processing 

Clearance Orders (ETA Form 790) (“job orders”). 

                                                 
2
  The undersigned has made minor grammatical changes to the Parties’ stipulations.   

 
3
  Where necessary and appropriate, the undersigned will use the term “farmworkers” to denote both H-2A 

workers and non H-2A domestic workers.   
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8. Respondent filed a job order for the period of April 13, 2015 to October 10, 2015.  The

Department of Labor subsequently approved this job order.  JX 1 contains a true and

accurate copy of that job order.

9. Respondent also filed a TEC for this same time period.  The Department subsequently

approved this TEC.  JX 2 is a true and accurate copy of that TEC.

10. Respondent also filed a job order for the period of June 1, 2015 to October 10, 2015.  The

Department subsequently approved this job order.  JX 3 is a true and accurate copy of

that job order.

11. Respondent also filed a TEC for the period of June 1, 2015 to October 10, 2015.  The

Department subsequently approved this TEC.  JX 4 is a true and accurate copy of that

TEC.

12. After the Department of Labor approved these TECs and job orders, Respondent hired H-

2A workers.

13. During 2015, Respondent qualified as an employer within the definition of 20 C.F.R.

§ 655.103(b).

14. During 2015, Hernandez was not an employer within the definition of 20 C.F.R.

§ 655.103(b).

15. JX 5 is a chart listing the ninety-six H-2A workers and fifty-one domestic workers that

Respondent employed during the 2015 growing season.

16. In the job orders, Respondent promised to pay these employees $11.29 per hour or at a

piece rate, whichever was higher.

17. JX 6 is a true and accurate copy of Respondent’s employee roster for the 2015 growing

season.

18. During the 2015 growing season, Hernandez supervised Respondent’s H-2A and

domestic workers and selected the drivers to transport Respondent’s H-2A and domestic

workers from the housing facility to the agricultural fields.

19. During the 2015 growing season, Respondent’s H-2A workers, and many of its domestic

workers, lived at Respondent’s housing facility, which is located at 1321 Route 45 South,

Swedesboro, NJ 08085.

20. This housing facility was built before April 3, 1980, and includes (among other things)

bedrooms, a bathroom facility, and (in an adjacent building with a separate entrance) a

kitchen.
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21. During the 2015 growing season, Respondent paid for the utilities for this kitchen 

(including gas, electricity, and water), and provided various appliances for the kitchen, 

including stoves, freezers, a microwave, and refrigerators. 

 

22. During the 2015 growing season, 139 of Respondent’s H-2A and domestic workers 

purchased meals prepared in Respondent’s kitchen and paid Hernandez between $75 and 

$80 a week for these meals. 

 

23. During the 2015 growing season, many of Respondent’s H-2A and domestic workers 

paid Hernandez for soft drinks, energy drinks, and snacks, among other things. 

 

24. During the 2015 growing season, to the parties’ knowledge, Respondent withheld no 

money from any H-2A or domestic worker’s paychecks for meals, drinks, or any other 

items. 

 

25. Other than payments to Hernandez, to the parties’ knowledge, none of the H-2A workers 

or domestic workers paid Respondent for meals, drinks, or any other items. 

 

26. During the 2015 growing season, Hernandez did not have a license to sell beer or 

cigarettes. 

 

27. The chart at JX 7 lists workers who last worked at Respondent on or before May 7, 

2015.
4
 

 

28. Jose D. Islas Larraga last worked for Respondent on June 9, 2015.
5
 

 

29. On or about August 8, 2015, Respondent terminated the employment of Miguel A. 

Elizondo Soto, Luis A. Luna Gonzalez, Jose L. Silva Lopez, Dario Morales Acosta, and 

Rodrigo Raya Tapia.  These workers’ last day of work occurred on or before August 4, 

2015. 

 

30. Respondent asked workers whose work ended before the end of the season to complete a 

worker departure form. 

 

31. The top half of this form was in English and the bottom half was in Spanish. 

 

32. The workers were instructed to retain the bottom half and to return the top half. 

 

33. JX 8 contains true and accurate copies of the English portions of the worker departure 

forms signed by Respondent’s workers around the time that their work was ending. 

 

                                                 
4
  The parties dispute whether the workers’ employment ended because Respondent constructively discharged 

or terminated them, or because they voluntarily quit. 

 
5
  The parties also dispute the reasons that this worker stopped working for Respondent. 
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34. Attached, as JX 9 is a true and accurate copy of a worker departure form, including 

English and Spanish portions, dated August 8, 2015. 

 

35. Worker departure forms were distributed to H-2A workers who departed before the end 

of the season around the time that these workers’ work ended. 

 

36. During the 2015 growing season, the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of 

Labor, including Wage Hour Investigators (“WHI”) John Crudup and Jose Perez, 

investigated Respondent to determine (among other things) whether the farm was in 

compliance with H-2A regulations. 

 

37. During their investigation, [the Administrator] inspected the housing facility and five of 

Respondent’s buses, interviewed Respondent’s workers and drivers, and met with 

Respondent’s owners and with Hernandez. 

 

38. On June 22, 2016, the Administrator issued a determination letter alleging that 

Respondent violated certain H-2A regulations and assessing $369,703.22 in back wages 

and $212,250.00 in CMPs against Respondent. 

 

39. On July 20, 2016, Respondent filed a timely hearing request. 

 

40. On December 23, 2016, the Administrator filed an Order of Reference referring the 

matter to OALJ.  The Administrator also amended the determination letter by adjusting 

the amounts sought to $376,697.61 in back wages and $212,250.00 in CMPs, and added 

additional findings and bases for the Administrator’s back wage and CMP assessment. 

 

41. Attached, as JX 10 is a true and accurate copy of the Order of Reference, which includes 

true and accurate copies of the underlying determination letter and hearing request 

referenced in paragraphs 38-40. 

 

42. During the course of discovery in this matter, the Administrator took depositions of six 

H-2A workers.  In accordance with 29 C.F.R. § 18.55(a), the Parties stipulate that true 

and accurate transcripts or videos of the depositions, or portions thereof, may be used at 

the hearing to the extent that doing so would be admissible under the applicable rules of 

evidence as if the deponent were present and testifying at the hearing. 

 

See ALJX 1 (“Joint Stipulation of Agreed Facts”).  

 

FINDINGS OF FACT
6
 

Bathroom Conditions  

 

 The bathrooms at Respondent’s dormitories lacked sufficient hot water.
7
  Two of the 

sinks were completely broken.
8
  The bathrooms contained windows without screens, which 

                                                 
6
  For the sake of readability only, the undersigned has grouped the findings of fact in alphabetical order, and 

used footnote citations.   
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allowed entry to pests.
9
  Relatedly, when workers first arrived, there were no bathrooms in the 

fields.
10

 

 

Beer Sales 

 

 Hernandez sold beer to the farmworkers; however, he did not have a license from the 

State of New Jersey to do so.
11

  Hernandez did not keep a record of the amount of beers sold to 

the farmworkers.  As a result, WHI Perez created the reconstruction at PX 2, which attempted to 

calculate Hernandez’s “estimated profit.”
12

  The evidence of record reasonably establishes that 

the workers bought three and three-quarter cans of beer per week; however, some workers 

bought more per week and some did not buy any beer at all.
13

  To determine the price of beers, 

WHI Perez went to Costco and obtained a price of $20.99 for a thirty-pack of Coors Light.
14

  The 

Administrator reasonably estimated that the wholesale price for a can of beer was seventy 

cents.
15

  WHI Perez went to Costco, because Elia Pinon, Hernandez’s wife, told him that she and 

Hernandez bought their beer at another wholesaler, Sam’s Club.
16

  Hernandez sold Corona, 

                                                                                                                                                             
7
  See Tr. at 30, 60 (Maldonado’s testimony), 103–04 (Gustavo Perez’s testimony), 330 (WHI Perez’s 

testimony); PX 7 at 189 (Silva Lopez recalling that, at times, he took cold showers); PX 11 at 288 (Garcia 

Dominguez stating on deposition that there was only enough hot water for ten people to shower before it ran out).  

Cf. Tr. at 203, 215 (Hernandez’s testimony that workers had to “wait a little bit” for hot water).    

 
8
  See Tr. at 200–01 (Hernandez’s testimony). 

 
9
  See Tr. at 202–03 (Hernandez’s testimony). 

 
10

  See Tr. at 17–19, 76 (Maldonado’s testimony), 91 (Gustavo Perez’s testimony), 139 (Cheguez’s 

testimony); PX 9 at 216 (Cinta Tegoma’s deposition testimony that workers had the option to “hold” their waste or 

“run towards the trees”); PX 11 at 274 (Dominguez’s deposition testimony that bathrooms were not available). 

 
11

  See ALJX 1 at ¶ 26 (Joint Stipulation of Agreed Facts).   

 
12

  Tr. at 581, 637–38 (WHI Perez’s testimony); Appendix C to the Administrator’s brief titled “Revised Back 

Wage Computations as to Illegal Beer Sales at a Profit.”   

 
13

  See, e.g., PX 13 at 345–47 (Dario Morales Acosta testifying that he bought around two and one-half beers 

per week, but other workers likely bought more); PX 3 at 80–82 (Cervantes Ramirez recalling that he purchased six 

beers per week with three other coworkers); PX 5 at 142 (Miguel Angel Elizondo Soto stating that he bought two 

beers a week); PX 11 at 281–83 (Garcia Dominguez recalling that he purchased seven beers a week, but some 

workers bought three to five beers per night); Tr. at 25–26 (Maldonado, who only worked for Respondent for two 

weeks, bought a twelve-pack of beer each week); PX 7 at 180–82 (Silva Lopez remembering that he bought one or 

two beers a day for three days a week, and that some workers bought more beer than he did).  Cf. PX 9 at 219; Tr. at 

98, 269 (Cinta Tegoma and Gustavo Marquez Perez, respectively, testifying that they did not purchase any beer; 

Pedro Zavala Almanza only ever purchased one beer).   
 

14
  See Tr. at 450–51. 

 
15

  See Tr. at 374, 451–52, 627. 

 
16

  See Tr. at 505–06. 
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Coors Light, Budweiser, Modelo, and Coors Light.
17

  Thus, it was reasonable for WHI Perez to 

determine the per-can cost through comparison of Coors Light sold at a wholesale club, here 

Costco.  The Administrator decided to reimburse those farmworkers who bought beer for the 

amount of Hernandez’s profit, which it reasonably determined was $1.30 per can (the beers cost 

seventy cents and Hernandez sold the beers for $2).
18

  Perez provided a reasonable calculation 

that Respondent owed each worker $18.20 per week in back wages.
19

   

 

Buses 

 

 Respondent used buses to transport the farmworkers from its dormitory to the fields; one 

field was a fifteen-minute drive from the dormitory area.
20

  Hernandez chose bus drivers from 

amongst its farmworkers.
21

  Of the five buses WHI Perez inspected, three had worn, unsafe 

tires.
22

  One bus had a broken rear turn signal.
23

 

 

Deductions from Pay 

 

 The farmworkers never paid in cash for either the meals or the beverages Hernandez 

sold.
24

  Hernandez would take workers’ checks to the bank to cash them and then return the 

money to the workers, minus any money owed for meals and beverages.
25

  Russel Marino, Jr. 

told Hernandez to keep track of the farmworkers’ payments in this way.
26

 

 

Drivers 

 

 Hernandez selected bus drivers from within Respondent’s pool of workers.
27

  Hernandez 

would allow any such worker to drive if the worker had a Mexican driver’s license or driving 

                                                 
17

  See Tr. at 359–60 (WHI Perez discussing the contents of Hernandez’s refrigerator, as shown in PX 32, 

pages 1076 and 1078–79); Tr. at 580 (discussing the contents of PX 32, page 1077, showing a can of Coors Light). 

 
18

  See Appendix C to Administrator’s Brief.   

 
19

  See Tr. at 626–27; PX 2. 

 
20

  See Tr. at 204–05. C.f. 31–32 (Maldonado recalling that the trips were thirty-minutes each way).   

 
21

  See Tr. at 31, 104. 

 
22

  See Tr. at 402–06, 607–08; PX 29 pages 1058–63 (showing three tires that are clearly unsafe for road use 

due to the condition of the tires as bald and cracked). 

 
23

  See Tr. at 405; PX 29 at 1057 (showing that bus number 205 has a broken right rear turn signal).   

 
24

  See Tr. at 42 (Maldonado’s testimony), 100 (Gustavo Perez’s testimony), 186–87, 211 (Hernandez’s 

testimony that workers never paid Respondent).   

 
25

  See Tr. at 100, 189, and 338–40.   

 
26

  See Tr. at 187. 

 
27

  See Tr. at 205. 
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experience.
28

  In response to WHI Perez’s request, none of the five workers WHI Perez observed 

driving the buses could provide him with a U.S. driver’s license.
29

  Hernandez only provided 

drivers’ licenses to WHI Perez for three of the five drivers WHI Perez observed.
30

  Two had 

Mexican driver’s licenses, one had an expired Mexican driver’s license, and two had no 

licenses.
31

  Russel Marino, Jr. told WHI Perez that he could not control who drives the bus on 

any given day.
32

 

 

Hard Work 

 

 The farmworkers engaged in “hard work.”
33

  The workers worked twelve hours per day 

with only one one-hour break.
34

  Some of the workers had prior experience working in a bent 

over posture.
35

 

 

Hernandez’s Working Relationship with Respondent 

 

 Hernandez has worked for Respondent or its predecessor companies for twenty-seven 

years.
36

  His father worked for Respondent, his son currently drives a bus for Respondent, and 

his wife works in Respondent’s kitchen.
37

  Hernandez receives all of his pay from Respondent; 

Respondent provides him with an hourly pay rate plus commission for the amount of product 

that is packaged.
38

  For example, if the farmworkers packaged more asparagus, Hernandez would 

receive more money in the form of a commission.
39

 

 

                                                 
28

  See Tr. at 205–06. 

 
29

  See Tr. at 390–401. 

 
30

  Tr. at 400. 

 
31

  Tr. at 390–401; PX 30 at 1064–72. 

   
32

  See Tr. at 456.    

 
33

  See Tr. at 17 (Maldonado’s testimony), 219 (Hernandez stating that cutting asparagus “is the toughest work 

we have), 256 (Almanza’s testimony), 726 (Russel Marino, Jr. recalling that the workers at the May 2015 meeting 

complained of the difficulty of the work required).   

 
34

  See Tr. at 17 (Maldonado’s testimony), 90–91 (Gustavo Perez’s testimony), 139 (Cheguez’s testimony) 

257 (Almanza’s testimony).   

 
35

  See, e.g., Tr. at 125 (Gustavo Perez stating that he had experience harvesting beans and chili pepper which 

required “the same” posture as harvesting asparagus). 

 
36

  See Tr. at 171. 

 
37

  See id. 

 
38

  See Tr. at 230. 

 
39

  Id. 
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In 2015, Hernandez helped facilitate Respondent’s engagement in the H-2A program.
40

Hernandez operated the meal plan that fed the farmworkers.  Although Hernandez utilized 

Respondent’s kitchen to do so, he paid the cooks, and bought groceries and certain appliances, as 

needed, to cook the meals.
41

  Hernandez’s wife, Elia Pinon, worked in the kitchen.
42

  After

Respondent decided to utilize the H-2A program in 2015, Respondent told Hernandez that he 

could keep charging for meals but that Hernandez—not Respondent—would be responsible for 

paying the kitchen staff’s wages.
43

Concerning kitchen access, Russel Marino, Jr. told Hernandez to “accommodate the guys 

however he had to.”
44

  Respondent paid the kitchen’s utility bills.
45

  Respondent did not pick the

menu or otherwise tell Hernandez how to run the kitchen or set prices.
46

  Hernandez told

Respondent how much he planned to charge for the meals.
47

  Respondent told Hernandez to keep

track of the workers’ payments for the meal plan.
48

  Respondent took Hernandez to a meeting

with the Department to ensure he understood the regulatory parameters concerning meal plans.
49

Respondent told Hernandez “for years” to keep his receipts, “because you cannot make a profit 

on the men.”
50

  Hernandez charged workers seventy-five to eighty dollars per week to participate

in the meal plan and kept track of the workers’ participation.
51

  Hernandez also sold beverages,

including beer, to the farmworkers.
52

  Respondent did not receive money from Hernandez or

otherwise tell him how much to sell the drinks.
53

  Hernandez kept a “store” in Respondent’s

kitchen, where he would sell drinks, snacks, and beer.
54

40
See Tr. at 171–74, 806–07 (Russel Marino, Jr. recalling that in 2015, he asked Hernandez how many 

workers from the H-2A program he would need). 

41
See Tr. at 177–78, 229, 244, 252, and 793. 

42
Tr. at 171; PX 19.     

43
See Tr. at 177.   

44
Tr. at 743.   

45
See Tr. at 793. 

46
See Tr. at 247, 808. 

47
See Tr. at 187–88.   

48
See Tr.at 186–87.   

49
See Tr. at 738, 742–43. 

50
See Tr. at 808. 

51
See Tr. at 179–80. 

52
See Tr. at 194–95, 638. 

53
See Tr. at 737. 

54
See Tr. at 51; PX 32 pages 1075–76, 1082 (showing items associated with a company store, including a 

cash register, stacks of instant soup, a coffee urn, a Coca-Cola branded glass door refrigerator stocked with sodas 
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When workers arrived at the camp, Hernandez said that he would orient them about 

housing, the “rules of the camp,” keeping the bathrooms clean, hours of work, pay, kitchen 

access, and cost of meals.
55

  Hernandez told the workers when to work; the workers did not have 

a choice as to their hours.
56

  Russel Marino, Jr. only “sometimes” was present for the workers’ 

orientation.
57

  “Several times a day,” Russel Marino, Jr. would check in with Hernandez 

concerning the farm’s “day-to-day happenings.”
58

  Russel Marino, Jr. did not explain the meal 

cost because “that’s in the contract.”
59

  When the farmworkers paid Hernandez, the workers 

signed a form to indicate they “agreed that they received the meal and” paid for the meal plan; 

Respondent’s name appears at the top of the form.
60

 

 

Hernandez also maintained the sleeping quarters and bathroom facilities at Respondent’s 

dormitory site.
61

  Hernandez was responsible for transporting the farmworkers from the 

dormitory area to the fields.
62

  Respondent tasked Hernandez with ensuring that the workers had 

water in the fields.
63

  Workers paid Hernandez for meals, drinks, housing, and transportation; 

they did not pay Respondent directly.
64

 

 

Kitchen Access 

                                                                                                                                                             
and Monster energy drinks, and a wire display rack stocked with chips and other snack foods), PX 32 page 1079 

(showing the contents of a refrigerator full of beer).    

 
55

  See Tr. at 61 (Maldonado stating that Hernandez was “in charge” and he never spoke with anyone from the 

Marino family); 174–75 (Hernandez’s testimony); 773 (Russel Marino, Jr. stating that Hernandez “primarily” 

oriented the workers); 825 (Russel Marino, Jr. stating that the workers complained to Hernandez because Russel 

Marino, Jr. does not speak Spanish and “that’s the chain of command”); PX 3 at 101 (Carlos Cervantes Ramirez 

stating on deposition that Hernandez was “in charge”).     

 
56

  See Tr. at 17 (Maldonado’s testimony), 90–91 (Gustavo Perez’s testimony), 139 (Cheguez’s testimony), 

257 (Almanza’s testimony), PX 3 at 68–69 (deposition of Cervantes Ramirez); cf. JX 1; JX 3 (ETA Forms 790 

telling the workers to “anticipate” working seven hours each weekday and five hours on either Saturday or Sunday 

(JX 1 says Saturday and JX 3 says Sunday), and informing the workers that they “may be requested to work 12+ 

hours per day . . . but will not be required to do so”). 

 
57

  PX 15 at 401.   

 
58

  Tr. at 719. 

 
59

  PX 15 at 403–04 (Russel Marino, Jr. stating that everything he said was true as of 2015).   

 
60

  PX 17 at 764 (Hernandez’s deposition testimony, discussing PX 17-2 at 799 (the meal payment form)); Tr. 

at 182–86 (Hernandez testifying he would use the form at PX 17-2—a document Respondent created in its office—

to keep track of the workers who engaged in Respondent’s meals program).   

 
61

  See Tr. at 199–205. 

 
62

  See Tr. at 204–05.   

 
63

  See Tr. at 213. 

 
64

  See Tr. at 211, 233. 
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 Although the dormitory-area had a kitchen, workers did not have access to the kitchen.  

The workers could not make their own meals.
65

  Except for a refrigerator Hernandez added to 

keep cool the beverages he sold, Respondent owned the kitchen, all of its major appliances, and 

paid for all utilities.
66

  The workers never asked to use the kitchen facilities.
67

  Cheguez testified 

that the farmworkers “were sure that they were going to say no because . . . we couldn’t . . . do 

our own cooking there.”
68

  The kitchen was large, but not large enough for “many workers to 

cook simultaneously.”
69

 

 

Layoffs and Three-fourths Guarantee 

 

 In August 2015, Respondent’s pepper crop became diseased and Respondent had to lay 

off forty-four workers due to lack of work.
70

  Hernandez chose “troublemakers” to lay off 

because no workers initially volunteered for the layoff.
71

  The “troublemakers” were those 

employees who refused to work on the weekend.
72

  Russel Marino, Jr. did not know the names of 

                                                 
65

  See Tr. at 20–21 (Maldonado testifying “[s]ince they didn’t have another kitchen to prepare our food, we 

had to consume the food that they sold us”), 93–94 (Gustavo Perez’s testimony), 159 (Cheguez’s testimony), 175–

76 (Hernandez recognizing that the kitchen was not large enough “for everyone to cook” or to store food in the 

kitchen’s refrigerators), 263–64 (Almanza’s testimony that he could not cook in the kitchen, so he bought his own 

“stove”), 283 (Almanza’s testimony that he never observed any of the farmworkers in the kitchen), 333, 337 (WHI 

Perez concluding that workers did not have access to the kitchen for the purpose of cooking their own meals), 500 

(WHI Perez stating that workers had asked Hernandez to use the kitchen), 589–90 (WHI Perez discussing Pinon’s 

statement at PX 19 page 809, that workers were not allowed to access the kitchen to cook their own food; sometimes 

Pinon gave workers permission to reheat food, but only under supervision); cf. Tr. at 771–73 (Russel Marino, Jr. 

recalling that in 2015, Respondent provided cooking “facilities” and kitchen access to the farmworkers “free of 

charge” and that Hernandez never prevented anyone from cooking in the kitchen), Tr. at 455 (WHI Perez recalling 

that Russel Marino, Jr. and Joseph Marino told him that workers had access to the kitchen facilities).  Hernandez 

sold soft drinks, beer, and general provisions out of Respondent’s kitchen.  See Tr. at 190, 194, 357–60; PX 32 

pages 1050, 1076, and 1078–79.   

 
66

  Tr. at 745, 778, 793; ALJX 1 at ¶ 21.   

 
67

  See Tr. at 592. 

 
68

  Tr. at 159.   

s 
69

  Tr. at 744 (Russel Marino, Jr.’s testimony).  See Tr. at 501 (WHI Perez agreeing it would be “close 

quarters” if 150 people attempted to use the kitchen at once), 175–76 (Hernandez’s testimony that the kitchen was 

not large enough “for everyone to cook in the kitchen” or to store food in the kitchen’s refrigerators).   

 
70

  Tr. at 207, 238. 

 
71

  See Tr. at 208 (Hernandez’s testimony); cf. Tr. at 779 (Russel Marino, Jr. testifying that “troublemakers” 

were not selected because Respondent had no troublemakers).   

 
72

  Id. 

 

Case 1:21-cv-16625-JHR-MJS   Document 1-3   Filed 09/08/21   Page 13 of 56 PageID: 56

Appx060

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-1     Page: 62      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



- 13 - 

the laid-off workers.
73

  Of the workers who left in August 2015, Respondent only failed to fulfill 

its three-fourths requirement concerning four such workers.
74

 

 

 Russel Marino, Jr. said that Lisa Justice, Respondent’s payroll manager,
75

 ensured that 

Respondent fulfilled the three-fourths guarantee for any laid off worker.
76

  WHI Perez 

understood the H-2A regulations to mean that the employer is required to pay three-fourths of 

the hours offered, “based on the beginning and ending date” of the worker being available for 

work at the site.
77

  Perez said that the “clock” starting running the day after the employee arrived 

at the property.
78

   

 

Litter at the Dormitory 

 

 PX 33, page 1094, is a photograph of a pile of discarded cans of soda and beer.
79

  The 

pile of discarded cans is located “directly across from the dormitory housing.”
80

  PX 33, pages 

1095 through 1102, are more photographs of the discarded cans.
81

  The photographs show 

discarded cans of Budweiser, Modelo, Monster, and Coors Light.
82

  The dormitory area also had 

garbage cans without tight fitting lids; many without lids at all.
83

 

 

Mattresses 

 

PX 28, page 1056, shows mattresses on the floor with “worker belongings” on top of and 

beside the mattresses.
84

  The mattresses were made-up with blankets.
85

  During the course of his 

                                                 
73

  Tr. at 216. 

 
74

  See Tr. at 642–44. 

 
75

  Tr. at 681 

 
76

  See Tr. at 779. 

 
77

  Tr. at 610–11. 

 
78

  Tr. at 610–11, 634–35; PX 1 (WHI Perez’s calculations concerning which workers are owed back pay due 

to Respondent’s three-fourths violation). 

 
79

  See Tr. at 374–76, 603–04.   

 
80

  Tr. at 375. 

 
81

  See id.  

 
82

  See PX 33 pages 1095–1102. 

 
83

  See Tr. at 324.   

 
84

  Tr. at 324, 329–30. 

 
85

  PX 28 page 1056.   
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investigation, WHI Perez learned that workers slept on mattresses placed on the floor.
86

  WHI 

Perez did not know how the mattresses came to rest on the floor.
87

  He “assumed” that each 

worker had his or her own mattress.
88

  WHI Perez did not recall if he observed any bunkbeds 

with missing mattresses.
89

 

 

May 2015 Argument 

 

 In May 2015,
90

 a meeting occurred between Respondent—represented by Hernandez, 

Russel Marino, Jr., and Joseph Marino—and nineteen of the farmworkers.
91

  The nineteen 

workers were upset at the working and living conditions, and wanted to share their concerns with 

Respondent.
92

  During the May 2015 meeting, Russel Marino, Jr. became angry with the 

workers.
93

  A number of the nineteen workers left the argument thinking that Respondent had 

                                                 
86

  Id. 

 
87

  See Tr. at 492.   

 
88

  See Tr. at 494–95.   

 
89

  See Tr. at 599; see also Tr. at 493. 

 
90

  Neither party proffered evidence as to when in May 2015 the argument occurred; however, the argument 

had to occur before the May 7, 2015 email from Warren Wicker of National Agriculture Consultants, which 

informed the Department of the departure of the nineteen workers.     

 
91

  See, e.g., Tr. at 407, 538–41, 723–27, 766, 809–11, 826–31. 

 
92

  See, e.g., Tr. at 33–40 (Maldonado’s testimony that he and his coworkers were upset about the working 

conditions and so wanted to talk to Russel Marino, Jr.), 106–07 (Gustavo Perez’s testimony that he and a group of 

his coworkers decided to talk to Russel Marino, Jr. because “of the conditions we were in, because we didn't have a 

place to cook, because of the bathrooms, because of the way the installations were, and because of the way 

[Hernandez] treated us”), 117 (Gustavo Perez saying that he first complained to Hernandez concerning the working 

conditions “about a week” after he began working for Respondent), 122 (Gustavo Perez stating his concern that he 

did not receive proper training), 138–39 (Cheguez recalling that Hernandez was a “bad” supervisor, and threatened 

the workers with deportation, and always required the workers to work faster), 148 (Cheguez recalling that the 

workers “wanted to work” but Respondent did not treat them well), 160 (Cheguez agreeing that the goal of the 

conversation was to work at a more “comfortable pace”); PX 5 at 125 (Elizondo Soto recalling Hernandez’s threats 

to send the workers “back to Mexico”).  Cf. Tr. at 220–24 (Hernandez recalling that workers thought the work was 

too hard and that they did not complain about housing), 726 (Russel Marino, Jr. testifying that the workers could not 

perform the job because it was too hard and was for “real men”), 810 (Joseph Marino stating that the workers felt 

the work was too hard).   

 
93

  See, e.g., Tr. at 39, 65, 81–83 (Maldonado recalling that Russel Marino, Jr. said that the workers “could 

leave” if they did not like the conditions and that Russel Marino, Jr. “practically fired [Respondent’s H-2A 

workers]” during the argument, and that he felt like he “needed to leave”; he left due to problems “with [his] boss”), 

107–08 (Gustavo Perez stating that, during the May 2015 argument, Russel Marino, Jr. was very upset and cursed at 

the farmworkers; Gustavo Perez believed he could not continue working for Respondent), 129–30 (Gustavo Perez 

remembering that Russel Marino, Jr. said that the workers were not “working out for him” and then apologized after 

the conversation), 147 (Cheguez remembering that Russel Marino, Jr. “scream[ed] and yell[ed] in an arrogant 

way”), 222 (Hernandez stating that Russel Marino, Jr. “was a little bit upset”), 728 (Russel Marino, Jr. remembering 

thinking that Respondent had exhausted all of its options, and “we’re [either] going to let these guys go, or we’re 

going to send them on their way, however we had to do it”); PX 3 at 101 (Cervantes Ramirez recalling that, during 

the argument, Russel Marino, Jr. said that the workers were fired); PX 9 at 232, 258 (Cinta Tegoma recalling that 
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fired them.
94

  Joseph Marino testified on deposition to his lack of awareness of what was said 

during the argument; however, at the hearing, he recalled, “part of what [Russel Marino, Jr.] 

said.”
95

  Joseph Marino’s conflicting statements show a lack of credibility and his testimony 

merits little weight.   

 

Meals 

 

 JX 1 is the ETA Form 790 Job Order, which requested forty workers for the period of 

April 13, 2015 to October 10, 2015.  On December 12, 2014, Russel Marino, Jr. signed the Job 

Order.
96

  The Job Order at JX 1 states: 

 

Employers will furnish free cooking and kitchen facilities to those workers who 

are entitled to live in the employer’s housing so that workers may prepare their 

own meals . . . . Once a week the employers will offer to provide (on a voluntary 

basis by the workers) free transportation to assure workers access to the closest 

store where they can purchase groceries.
97

 

 

JX 3, the ETA Form 790 Job Order concerning the period June 1, 2015 to October 10, 2015, 

contained the same or substantially similar language.
98

 

  

 Respondent hired a company called National Agricultural Consultants to help complete 

the 2015 H-2A job orders.
99

  Russel Marino, Jr. said that he conducted research and sought 

advice from other farmers concerning Respondent’s participation in the H-2A program.
100

 

 

 Upon arrival at Respondent’s dormitory, Hernandez informed the farmworkers about the 

existence of a meal plan, which cost between $75 and $80 per week.
101

  Russel Marino, Jr. 

                                                                                                                                                             
Russel Marino, Jr. tried to hit him and that Russel Marino, Jr. did not give him the option of staying because he “was 

fired”); PX 11 at 305 (Hector Mishel Garcia Dominguez stating that he left Respondent’s employ not for personal 

reasons, but because Russel Marino, Jr. “decided that we were not worth for the job [sic]).”   

 
94

  See, e.g., Tr. at 39–40, 65 (Maldonado stating that Russel Marino, Jr. had “practically fired us”), 80–81 

(Maldonado saying that he understood he “needed to leave” due to the argument), 107, 125–29 (Gustavo Perez 

recalling that Russel Marino, Jr. said “we weren’t necessary” during the argument, that he did not have the 

opportunity to continue working for Respondent due to the conversation, and that Hernandez told him he “must 

leave”).  

 
95

  Tr. at 826–29.   

 
96

  See JX 1. 

 
97

  Id.  

 
98

  See JX 3. 

 
99

  See Tr. at 740–41; PX 40 (Respondent’s Form I-129, “Petition for a Nonimmigrant Worker,” which 

contains the signatures of Theresa Ward from National Agricultural Consultants and Russel Marino, Jr.).   

 
100

  Tr. at 713. 
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testified that in 2015 Respondent indeed furnished the “facilities” to allow the farmworkers to 

cook their own meals.
102

  Although in both 2015 and 2016, Respondent provided meals “at cost”

to the farmworkers, Russel Marino, Jr. recognized that the 2015 job order failed to mention that 

fact.
103

Non-alcoholic Beverages and Other Items Sold to the Farmworkers 

Hernandez sold a variety of items to the farmworkers, including soda, energy drinks, 

beer, Gatorade, cookies, toilet paper, and soup.
104

  The Administrator decided to enforce back

wages and CMPs against Respondent only for the beverages it sold to the farmworkers; the 

Administrator did not enforce back wages and CMPs for any violations resulting from the selling 

of cookies, toilet paper, and soup.  Hernandez sold the beverages in the fields and out of 

Respondent’s kitchen.
105

  The Administrator had to reconstruct the amount of non-alcoholic

drinks sold because Hernandez either destroyed or otherwise could not produce his records as to 

the workers’ purchase of drinks in the summer of 2015.
106

  The preponderant evidence of record

demonstrates that each farmworker purchased from Hernandez, on average, four non-alcoholic 

drinks per day.
107

  By contrast, the Administrator considered a 4.4 drinks-per-day figure.  The

Administrator applied a price of $1.25 per drink, even though the Administrator determined that 

was likely a conservative estimate.
108

101
See Tr. at 20 (Maldonado’s testimony), 92 (Gustavo Perez saying that he had no choice but to pay 

Hernandez for the meal plan, even though he would have rather prepared his own food ), 140–41 (Cheguez’s 

testimony of same), 176 (Hernandez stating that workers who did not wish to participate in the meal plan had to “eat 

outside or to order a delivery meal”), 178–80 (Hernandez discussing PX 17-1 and PX 17-2, where Hernandez 

tracked the workers who participated in the meal plans), 262 (Almanza’s testimony), 334 (WHI Perez’s testimony). 

WHI Perez did not learn why the meal plan cost $75 some weeks and other weeks cost $80.  See Tr. at 600.   

102
Tr. at 772. 

103
Tr. at 763. 

104
See Tr. at 22–27, 96–97, 193–97, 266–67, and 502. 

105
See Tr. at 189–94, 266–67, 360. 

106
See Tr. at 209 (Hernandez’s testimony), 361 (WHI Perez stating that Hernandez generally “did not have 

purchase receipts for drinks,” even though he had such receipts for meals). 

107
See Tr. at 360–61 (WHI Perez testifying that that Hernandez said he sold four soft drinks per day per 

worker), 143 (Cheguez testifying that he purchased “three to four” soft drinks per day), 97 (Gustavo Marquez Perez 

stating that he purchased between eight and nine soft drinks per day), 269 (Almanza recalling that he purchased 

three to four soft drinks per day), Tr. at 21–23 (Maldonado testifying that he purchased eight soft drinks per day); 

PX 3 at 72 (Cervantes Ramirez saying that he bought three to four soft drinks per day); PX 5 at 132–33 (Elizondo 

Soto testifying that he bought five or six soft drinks per day); PX 9 at 217 (Cinta Tegoma recalling that he bought 

four soft drinks per day); PX 11 at 276–77 (Garcia Dominguez saying that he bought four or five soft drinks every 

day); PX 13 at 341 (Morales Acosta testifying that he purchased three or four soft drinks per day).   

108
See PX 2; Tr. at 195–96 (Hernandez testifying that workers paid between $.75 and $1.00 for soda, and 

$1.50 for Monster and Red Bull); PX 19, page 809 (Pinon stating on an “Employee Personal Interview Statement” 

on the Department’s letterhead that she charged $1.00 for soda and Gatorade, and $2.00 for Monster).   
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Hernandez could not provide all receipts for the beverages sold because Russel Marino, 

Jr. told him he did not need to keep such receipts.
109

  PX 36, page 1141, is a July 2015 receipt for 

thirty-six cans of Coke, which Pinon and Hernandez purchased for thirteen dollars.  Pinon said 

that she and Hernandez purchased the sodas and energy drinks from a Sam’s Club in Deptford, 

New Jersey.
110

  When determining the prices of soda and Gatorade WHI Perez perused the 

website for the Deptford, New Jersey Sam’s Club.
111

 

 

Respondent’s Business, Generally 

 

 The same family has owned Respondent’s farm for four generations.
112

  Respondent is 

owned in equal parts by Joseph Marino, Russel Marino, Jr., Russel Marino—their father—and 

Harry Marino—their uncle.
113

  Russel Marino, Jr. and Joseph Marino perform most of the day-

to-day operations.  (Id.)  In 2014, Respondent’s I-129 petition stated a “gross annual income of 

$7,500,000.”
114

 

 

Labor is “essential” to Respondent’s business.
115

  Although Respondent always used 

migrant labor, after 2014, Respondent decided to participate in the H-2A program.
116

  In May 

2015, the farmworkers picked asparagus.  The asparagus harvest occurs within a six to eight 

week period.
117

  The workers perform other tasks during the asparagus harvest.
118

  In May 2015, 

Respondent needed the workers’ labor and did not want them to leave.
119

  It cost Respondent 

$1,000 to bring in each H-2A worker.
120

  Respondent replaced the nineteen workers who left 

after the May 2015 argument with other H-2A workers.
121

  

 

Rides 

                                                 
109

  See Tr. at 370–71. 

 
110

  See Tr. at 448–49; PX 19. 

 
111

  See Tr. at 647. 

 
112

  Tr. at 714–15.   

 
113

  See Tr. at 787–88. 

 
114

  Tr. at 822–24. 

 
115

  Tr. at 715. 

 
116

  See Tr. at 787–88. 

 
117

  See Tr. at 774.   

 
118

  See Tr. at 774–75. 

 
119

  Id. 

 
120

  See Tr. at 730. 

 
121

  See Tr. at 730–31.  
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JX 1 is the ETA Form 790 Job Order, which requested forty workers for the period of 

April 13, 2015 to October 10, 2015.  It states, “[o]nce a week the employers will offer to provide 

(on a voluntary basis) free transportation to assure workers access to the closest store where they 

can purchase groceries.”
122

  However, Respondent either charged its farmworkers for 

transportation or did not offer such transportation.
123

  Russel Marino, Jr. admitted the 

Respondent did not “formally” tell the farmworkers about transportation, but said “when the bus 

was getting ready to leave to go into the town, they said, okay, whoever wants to go, get on the 

bus, we’re going to the town just like your contract says that every one of you have a copy of.”
124

 

 

Screens 

 

 The screens on the windows of Respondent’s dormitory were ripped or missing.
125

  The 

windows of Respondent’s bathroom were also missing screens.
126

  Some garbage cans did not 

have lids and WHI Perez noted the presence of flies around such lidless garbage cans.
127

 

 

Water 

 

 Water was available to workers during mealtime.
128

  The water had “a bad taste to it.”
129

  

Hernandez recognized that, in the past, the water had a bad taste to it; however, Respondent 

replaced the filter and fixed the problem.
130

  At first, the water in the fields was either missing or 

                                                 
122

  JX 1. 

 
123

  See Tr. at 27–28 (Maldonado testifying that Respondent charged its workers $10 for transportation costs 

for each shopping trip), 100–02 (Gustavo Perez’s testimony), 146 (Cheguez recalling that Respondent charged $10 

for transportation costs per shopping trip), 266 (Almanza stating that Respondent did not provide free transportation 

and charged the farmworkers $10 per trip), 303 (Almanza stating that the Marinos told him to talk to Hernandez 

about rides to the store), 337, 501–02 (WHI Perez stating that his investigation revealed that Respondent charged the 

farmworkers between $10 and $15 for rides to town). 

 
124

  Tr. at 765. 

 
125

  See Tr. at 201–03 (Hernandez’s testimony); PX 28, pages 1049–55; Tr. at 323–28 (WHI Perez recalling the 

presence of flies in the dormitory).   

 
126

  See Tr. at 331; PX 28 pages 1046–47.   

 
127

  See Tr. at 332.   

 
128

  See Tr. at 281 (Almanza’s testimony), 567 (WHI Perez’s testimony), 719–20 (Russel Marino, Jr.’s 

testimony). 

 
129

  See Tr. at 23, 52 (Maldonado testifying that the water’s taste made him buy beverages from Hernandez), 

262 (Almanza’s testimony), PX 9 at 216 (Cinta Tegoma testifying on deposition that water was not present in the 

fields).   

 
130

  See Tr. at 233–34. 
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dirty.
131

  At the time of WHI Perez’s first visit, water was available in the fields, and the water 

did not have a smell.
132

  Respondent provided the farmworkers with potable water, although not 

at all times.   

 

Worker Departure Forms 

 

 Following the May 2015 argument about the working and living conditions at 

Respondent’s farm, Hernandez handed out worker departure forms to the nineteen farmworkers 

who participated in that conversation.
133

  The worker departure forms were written in both 

English and Spanish.
134

  The worker departure forms stated that the workers were voluntarily 

leaving due to personal issues, like a sick or dying loved one.
135

  The worker departure forms 

misrepresented the true reason for the workers’ departure.
136

  The worker departure forms stated 

that Respondent offered the farmworkers workers additional work for the remainder of the 

contract, but Respondent offered no such work.
137

  Before handing the worker departure forms to 

the farmworkers, Russel Marino, Jr. signed the forms; he stated at his deposition that the purpose 

of the worker departure forms was to “protect against . . . this lawsuit.”
138

 

                                                 
131

  See Tr. at 19 (Maldonado’s testimony), Tr. at 91 (Gustavo Perez stating that water was only “sometimes” 

available in the fields); 139–40 (Cheguez’s testimony), PX 5 at 134 (Elizondo Soto’s deposition), PX 3 at 73 

(Cervantes Ramirez’s testimony that water would run out by the afternoon); PX 9 at 216 (Tegoma’s deposition 

testimony that water was not available in the fields).  But cf. Tr. at 213 (Hernandez testifying that workers had 

access to water “everyday”); PX 11 at 274 (Dominguez stating that the fields had water).   

 
132

  See Tr. at 546, 553.   

 
133

  See Tr. at 108–10 (Gustavo Perez’s testimony), 149 (Cheguez’s testimony), 225 (Hernandez’s testimony), 

272–74 (Almanza’s testimony); see, e.g., JX 9.   

 
134

  See Tr. at 38, 776; see, e.g., JX 8 at 89–150; JX 9.   

 
135

  See Tr. at 37 (Maldonado’s testimony), 108–110 (Gustavo Perez’s testimony), 149 (Cheguez’s testimony), 

225 (Hernandez’s testimony), 272–74 (Almanza testifying that Hernandez gave the workers a form “and asked us to 

sign the paper because “there was no other choice” and “we couldn’t do anything about it”), 409–10 (WHI Perez’s 

testimony), 732–33 (Russel Marino, Jr. saying that he gave the workers “the option to check off the box that said 

they were returning home because of personal reasons”), and 769 (Russel Marino, Jr. recalling that he brought forms 

for the workers to sign stating that they were “resigning”).   

 
136

  See Tr. at 39–40 (Maldonado’s testimony that he left due to the problems he had “with my boss” who told 

him “we should leave” after the May 2015 argument), 109–10 (Gustavo Perez recalling that Hernandez told 

Respondent’s workers to sign next to the box indicating that the workers needed to return to Mexico for personal 

reasons because “that was the best option so that we wouldn’t have [visa] problems and they wouldn’t either”), 149–

50, 155–56 (Cheguez’s testimony that Russel Marino, Jr. had already filled out the forms prior to distribution to the 

farmworkers so that the workers’ “didn’t have any problems when we returned back”; Cheguez signed the form “out 

of fear”), and 418–19 (WHI Perez’s testimony that, based on his investigation, the forms “falsely reported that 

workers were leaving for personal reason when they were, in fact, leaving because they were terminated or for other 

circumstances”).   

 
137

  See Tr. at 280 (Almanza’s testimony), 150 (Cheguez stating that he wished to continue working because he 

had a six-month contract). 

 
138

  PX 15 at 475 (Russel Marino, Jr.’s deposition).   
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Russel Marino, Jr. testified that Theresa Ward, a manager with National Agricultural 

Consulting, created the form.
139

  National Agricultural Consultants sent the false notification to 

the Department.
140

  Ward advised Russel Marino, Jr. that the option was: 

 

the right thing to do for them for their future employment.  Because fieldwork 

may not have been for them, they may have been able to do warehouse working 

or something else.  And I didn’t want to, you know, put a little mark on their 

form, saying that, okay, this guy can’t -- I had to fire this guy.  I didn’t want to 

say that, not that I was firing them anyway.  But I gave them the option to 

personal reasons [sic] for that reason just so in the future they wouldn’t have any 

problem getting picked off a list for future work.
141

 

 

Russel Marino, Jr. noted that the worker departure forms did not allow the farmworkers the 

possibility to suggest that the workers were fired.
142

  He recognized, however, that “[a]s a 

technicality, I guess” the workers did not resign; “they were terminated.”
143

 

 

NARRATIVE FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

 Respondent is a large, family owned, agricultural producer located in southern New 

Jersey.  Although Respondent always used migrant labor, 2015 was the first year that it decided 

to engage with the H-2A program.  The job orders Respondent issued informed putative H-2A 

farmworkers that Respondent would provide the workers with kitchen access.  Upon arrival at 

Respondent’s dormitories, however, Respondent informed the farmworkers that rather than 

kitchen access, they could purchase a meal plan costing between $75 and $80 each week.  

Kitchen access was unavailable or otherwise denied.  Along with the meal plan, Respondent sold 

the farmworkers drinks, including beer.   

 

 The farmworkers engaged in hard work, including, inter alia¸ the harvesting of asparagus 

and peppers.  Potable water and clean bathroom facilities were only sporadically available, 

especially in the fields.  The farmworkers were upset with these conditions and wanted 

Respondent to address their concerns.  An argument occurred sometime in May 2015 between 

nineteen farmworkers and owners Russel Marino, Jr. and Joseph Marino and Respondent’s 

foreman, Hernandez.  This argument led directly to Respondent’s firing of the nineteen workers.  

Respondent provided the affected farmworkers with worker departure forms that 

                                                 
139

  See Tr. at 730–31, 776–80; JX 8. 

 
140

  See Tr. at 409–10 (WHI Perez’s testimony), 748 (Russel Marino, Jr. stating that he did not give the workers 

laid off in August 2015 a “choice” to stay because “work slowed down”), 753–54 (Russel Marino, Jr. discussed the 

contents of PX 39 at 1191, an August 21, 2015 email, sent by National Agricultural Consultants, copying Russel 

Marino, Jr., to the Department stating that the form listed “workers returned [home] for personal reasons”).   

 
141

  Tr. at 733; see 781. 

 
142

  Tr. at 734.   

 
143

  Tr. at 748.   
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mischaracterized the reasons for their leaving as needing to return home to care for a sick or 

dying loved one.  In August 2015, Respondent laid off another cohort of workers and had that 

group sign similar forms.   

 

 Respondent provided inadequate housing to the farmworkers.  The dormitory included 

dirty bathrooms without hot water and screens on the windows, other windows with broken or 

missing screen, and uncovered garbage cans.  Respondent transported the workers from the 

dormitory area to the fields in unsafe vehicles with unlicensed drivers.   

 

 After a full investigation, the Administrator found various violations of the Act, and 

assessed $351,775.90 in back wages and $212,250.00 in CMPs.   

 

POSITIONS OF THE PARTIES 

 

The Administrator’s Brief 

 

 The Administrator argued that Respondent violated § 655.122(g), (p)(1), and (q), because 

it did not disclose the existence of the meal plan on the job order it provided to prospective H-2A 

workers; it otherwise did not provide kitchen access to the workers.  See Administrator’s Brief at 

22 (citing JX 1 at 2).   Respondent also allegedly made impermissible deductions to the 

farmworkers’ pay when it charged for meals.  Id.  The Administrator wrote that, to fulfill its 

duties under the job order, Respondent must have actually “furnish[ed]” kitchen access; the fact 

that Respondent did not affirmatively deny kitchen access to any employees’ request is not 

enough.  See Administrator’s Brief at 24–25 (citing 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(g)). 

 

As a corollary, the Administrator argued that because Respondent did not provide its 

farmworkers with kitchen access, it was responsible for providing workers with meals free of 

charge.  See Administrator’s Brief at 26.  Additionally, because Respondent did not disclose the 

required meal charges, it violated § 655.122(g).  It violated § 655.122(q) because it omitted from 

the job offer “one of the ‘provisions required’ by § 655.122(g), namely disclosure of the meal 

charges.”  (Id.)  That Hernandez operated the meal plan does not absolve Respondent from 

liability, because Respondent was still the party responsible for disclosing the meal charges, 

which it failed to do.  Allowing an employer to deflect liability in this way would open a 

loophole, which would “eviscerate” other aspects of the program’s requirements, such as 

“prohibitions on excessive meal charges (§ 655.173(a)) and charges that include a profit 

(§ 655.122(p)(2)), and the obligation to provide [farmworkers] free housing (§ 655.122(d)).”  Id. 

n.16. 

 

The Administrator continued, stating Respondent violated the regulations through the 

actions of its “agent Hernandez.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 27.  In order not to violate the 

regulations, the job order must have disclosed any “deductions” Hernandez made for the meal 

plan.  See id. (citing § 655.122(q)).  The law allegedly makes no distinction between a deduction 

from wages and “shifting to the employee a cost that the employer could not lawfully directly 

deduct from wages.”  See id. (citing In re: Weeks Marine, Inc., ARB No. 12-093, 2015 WL 

2172482, at *4 (Apr. 29, 2015)). 
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The Act’s protections for migrant laborers do not exempt agricultural employers from 

common law agency principles.  Therefore, the Administrator argued, Hernandez’s act of 

charging workers for the meal plan was equivalent to Respondent charging its workers for the 

meal plan.  See Administrator’s Brief at 29 (citing Castillo v. Case Farms of Ohio, Inc., 96 F. 

Supp. 2d 578, 593 (W.D. Tex. 1999); Restatement (Third) of Agency (“Restatement”) § 6.01) 

(“This section states the basic principle that when an agent enters into a contract on behalf of a 

disclosed principal, the principal and the third party are parties to the contract.”).  The 

Administrator stated that because Hernandez had either “actual authority,” “apparent authority,” 

or both, to act on Respondent’s behalf to charge Respondent’s farmworkers for the meal plan, 

Respondent violated “20 C.F.R. § 655.122(g), (p)(1) and (q) by constructively deducting the 

meal charges from workers’ wages, without having disclosed the meal plan charges in the Job 

Orders.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 30. 

 

Section 2.01 of the Restatement posits that actual authority exists “when, at the time of 

taking action that has legal consequences for the principal, the agent reasonably believes, in 

accordance with the principal’s manifestations to the agent, that the principal wishes the agent so 

to act.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 29.  Due to the kitchen’s size, Respondent’s “longstanding 

practice” was to require farmworkers to purchase meal plans from Hernandez.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 30 (citing Tr. 176–77, 186–87, 738, 742–43, 808).  Respondent showed 

its authority over Hernandez by having Hernandez attend Departmental training sessions 

concerning meal plans, and following up with Hernandez to ensure compliance.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 30–31 (citing PX 15 at 401–03; Tr. 51, 174–75, 773 (orientation), 187 

(follow-up), 776). 

 

Apparent authority exists when “a third party reasonably believes the actor has authority 

to act on behalf of the principal and that belief is traceable to the principal’s manifestations.”  

See Administrator’s Brief at 30–32 (Restatement § 2.03).  The Administrator argued that 

Respondent’s workers held a reasonable belief that Hernandez had apparent authority to act on 

Respondent’s behalf for several reasons.  First, Russel Marino, Jr. told the workers that 

Hernandez would feed them “three squares a day”.  In addition, the workers recorded their 

payment for the meal plan using a form bearing Respondent’s name. Finally, “Hernandez was 

the intermediary between workers and [Respondent] and [Hernandez] was their supervisor in 

every aspect of their lives.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 32 (citing PX 7 at 173; PX 15 at 401–

03; PX 17-2 at 799–800, Tr. at 51, 61, 172–75, 182, 211, 236–37, 773, 825). 

 

The H-2A regulations prohibit profiteering, because such actions would improperly 

reduce workers’ wages.  See Administrator’s Brief at 33 (citing 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p)(2)).  An 

H-2A employer or “any affiliated person” may deduct wages, but “all deductions must be 

reasonable.”  20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p)(1), (2). 

 

The wage requirements of § 655.120 will not be met where undisclosed or 

unauthorized deductions, rebates, or refunds reduce the wage payment made to 

the employee below the minimum amounts required under this subpart, or where 

the employee fails to receive such amounts free and clear because the employee 

kicks back directly or indirectly to the employer or to another person for the 

employer’s benefit the whole or part of the wage delivered to the employee. 
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20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p)(2).  The term “‘affiliated person’ includes but is not limited to . . .  any 

person acting in the employer’s behalf or interest (directly or indirectly), or who has an interest 

in the employment relationship.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 33 (quoting WHD Bulletin No. 

2012-3).  If a prohibited charge “reduce[s] the wage payment . . . below the minimum amounts 

required,” an employer owes back wages to any effected farmworkers.  See Administrator’s 

Brief at 33 (citing 20 C.F.R. § 655.120 § 655.122(l), (p)(2); 29 C.F.R. § 501.16(a)(2)). 

The governing regulations prohibit any charge or deduction that either: (1) “includes a 

profit to the employer or to any affiliated person,”  20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p)(2); or (2) involves 

items sold in violation of any federal, state, or local law, see 29 C.F.R. § 531.31 (which 

§ 655.122(p)(2) incorporates by reference).  See Administrator’s Brief at 33–34.  The 

Administrator continued that it is Respondent’s duty to prove that the products sold did not 

include a profit or were otherwise reasonable.  See Administrator’s Brief at 33 (citing Ortiz v. 

Paramo, No. 06-3062, 2008 WL 4378373, at *6 (D.N.J. Sept. 19, 2008)). 

The Administrator argued that Hernandez fits the definition of an affiliated person.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 34–35.  As such, the regulations prohibit Hernandez from profiteering 

from Respondent’s workers; neither Respondent nor Hernandez kept receipts to determine 

whether Hernandez obtained any profit.  Id. (citing Tr. at 209, 361, 371, 452–53).  Hernandez 

also sold beer without a license.  See Administrator’s Brief at 36 (citing N.J. Stat. Ann. § 33:1-

2(a) (requiring a license to sell beer in New Jersey)). 

The Administrator asserted that Respondent owes $209,047.69 in back pay to the summer 

2015 workers.  See Administrator’s Brief at 38.  The $209,047.69 figure represents the full 

amount of improper charges made to Respondent’s farmworkers for meals and drinks.  Back pay 

for the full amount charged is appropriate, the Administrator asserted, because the regulations 

require disclosure of meal costs regardless of whether an employer profited, so absent a full back 

pay requirement, an employer would have no incentive to disclose meal costs.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 38–39 (citing In re Global Horizons, Inc., No. 2010-TAE-00002, slip 

op. at 2 (OALJ Dec. 13, 2011).  The job order Respondent issued told the prospective 

farmworkers that Respondent would pay either $11.29 per hour or the piece rate, whichever is 

greater.  The piece rate or $11.29 per hour became the “minimum amount[] required” under 20 

C.F.R. §§ 655.120, 122(l), and (p)(2).  Therefore, Administrator argued, “any improper charges

to workers pushed their wages below the promised rate.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 38 n.21.

Concerning drinks, because Hernandez did not keep records as to the costs of and profits 

from the drinks he sold to Respondent’s workers, such costs should not offset the back pay 

award.  See Administrator’s Brief at 39–40 (citing various cases arising under the Fair Labor 

Standards Act (“FLSA”)).  Calculating back wages for drinks is appropriate here, the 

Administrator continued, because the water in the fields tasted bad, the work was long and hard, 

and the workers “had no practical alternative.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 40–41. 

When an H-2A employer fails to keep records of deductions, the Anderson v. Mt. 

Clemens Pottery Co. burden-shifting framework applies.  See Administrator’s Brief at 44 (citing 

Anderson v. Mt. Clemens Pottery Co., 328 U.S. 680 (1946); Hart v. Rick’s Cabaret Int’l, Inc., 73 
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F. Supp. 3d 382, 390 (S.D.N.Y. 2014)).  The Administrator argues here that, because the workers 

had no legal obligation to document such expenses, and were otherwise unable to document the 

expenses while working in the fields, the burden should fall on Respondent to account for all 

charges incurred.  See Administrator’s Brief at 44–45 (citing Tr. 22, 77–78, 209). 

 

The Mt. Clemens standard requires the Administrator to produce sufficient evidence to 

show the amount of the improper charges or deductions “as a matter of just and reasonable 

inference.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 45 (citing Weeks Marine II, slip op. at 19).  At that 

point, the burden switches to Respondent to negate the reasonableness of any inferences drawn 

from the Administrator’s evidence.  See id. (citing Hart, 73 F. Supp. 3d at 390).  If the 

Respondent is unable to negate the reasonableness, a court may award damages, though 

approximate.  See Administrator’s Brief at 45–46 (citing Anderson v. Mt. Clemens Pottery Co., 

328 U.S. 680, 688 (1946)); In re Greater Mo. Med. Pro-Care Providers, Inc., ARB No. 12-015, 

2014 WL 469269 (ARB Jan. 29, 2014), at *16).  Because the Administrator’s evidence is 

reasonable, and Respondent is unable to negate that reasonableness, the undersigned should 

uphold the back wage calculations for drinks Respondent sold in 2015.  See Administrator’s 

Brief at 46. 

 

The Administrator also calculated that Respondent owed $128,285 in back wages to 139 

workers for the unlawful meal deductions.  See Administrator’s Brief at 46–48.  The 

Administrator discussed the calculations leading to the $128,285 back wage figure.  PX 2 is a 

document the Administrator created to show Respondent’s summer 2015 weekly payroll records.  

Based on these records, the Administrator determined that Respondent employed 148 separate 

workers during the 2015 growing season for at least one week.  See Administrator’s Brief at 46.  

Except for three weeks where Respondent charged $80 per week, the Administrator determined 

that Respondent charged $75 per week for the meals.  See Administrator’s Brief at 47 (citing Tr. 

at 443.)  The Administrator reduced the back wages for those workers who did not pay for the 

meal plan.  See Administrator’s Brief at 47 (citing Tr. at 444–45.)  The Administrator noted that 

the parties stipulated that the meal plan cost between $75 and $80 per week and that 139 workers 

paid for the meal plan each week.  See Administrator’s Brief at 47.  The Administrator called the 

$128,285 back wage figure a “conservative reconstruction of the back wages owed.”  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 48. 

 

The Administrator further determined that Respondent owed $71,790.08 in back wages 

for improper soft drink charges.  See Administrator’s Brief at 48–51 (citing PX 2 at 32, 61).  

Respondent’s farmworkers allegedly purchased an average of 4.42 drinks per day and paid $1.25 

per drink, on average, for a total of $38.68 per week.  See Administrator’s Brief at 48 (citing Tr. 

at 427–28, 439, 443, 624).  Hernandez’s testimony allegedly supports the Administrator’s 

determination that workers paid on average $1.25 per drink.  See Administrator’s Brief at 51 

(comparing Tr. at 195–96, with PX 19 at 809).  Hernandez did not keep records of the number of 

drinks the farmworkers purchased, and the Administrator said that Hernandez’s estimate of three 

to four drinks per day was low and less credible than the workers’ testimony.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 49 (citing Tr. at 195, 209; Appendix A to Administrator’s Brief). 

 

The Administrator also sought back wages for $8,972.61 for the beer Hernandez sold to 

the farmworkers.  See Administrator’s Brief at 51–54.  Hernandez allegedly sold beer for two 
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dollars, $1.30 of which was profit.  See Administrator’s Brief at 51.  The Administrator also 

argued that “almost all” workers bought beer.  See Administrator’s Brief at 52 (citing Tr. at 98, 

145; PX 3 at 83; PX 7 at 202; PX 19 at 308; PX 9 at 223).  The workers bought beer at an 

average rate of three and three-quarter cans per week.  See Administrator’s Brief at 52 (citing PX 

7 at 180-81; PX 13, 345; PX 5 at 142; Tr. 25–26; PX 3 at 80–82; PX 11 at 281; Appendix C to 

Administrator’s Brief).  A local wholesaler sold beer at seventy cents per can.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 53–54 (citing PX 27 at 1044; PX 32 at 1077; Tr. at 189, 625–27). 

 

In addition to back wages, the Administrator assessed $198,450 in CMPs for unlawful 

deductions for undisclosed meals and drinks sold at a profit or in violation of state law, and 

explained how it assessed such penalties.  See Administrator’s Brief at 54–59.  At the time of the 

assessment, the governing regulations allowed the Administrator to assess $1,500 in civil money 

penalties for “[e]ach failure to pay an individual worker properly or to honor the terms or 

conditions of a worker’s employment.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 54 (quoting 29 C.F.R. § 

501.19(a),(c)(2016).  The regulations also enumerate the following paraphrased mitigating 

factors: 

 

(1) previous history of violations, (2) number of workers affected by the 

violations, (3) the gravity of the violations, (4) efforts made in good faith to 

comply, (5) explanation from the person charged with the violations, (6) 

commitment to future compliance, and (7) the extent to which the violator 

achieved a financial gain or the potential financial loss or potential injury to the 

workers. 

 

§ 501.19(b).   

 

 The Administrator argued that she reasonably considered the evidence of record and 

applied the foregoing mitigation factors concerning the allegedly unlawful deductions for the 

meal plan and drinks.  See Administrator’s Brief at 55 (citing District Director Rachor’s 

testimony at Tr. at 849–54).  Due to the “seriousness of the violation”, concerning the false 

statement in the job order about kitchen access, the Administrator initially assessed a $1,500 

CMP for each of the 147 affected workers.  The Administrator did not assess a second set of 

CMPs for each worker for the purported drink violations.  See Administrator’s Brief at 56.  

Rather, the Administrator used her discretion to apply one CMP for all violations §§ 655.122(g), 

(p), and (q).  The Administrator reduced the CMP based on mitigation factor one, because 

Respondent did not have a history of H-2A violations.  See Administrator’s Brief at 56–57.  

Thus, the Administrator assessed a $1,350 CMP for the 147 affected farmworkers.  The 

Administrator discussed why she did not apply the remaining mitigation factors.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 57–58 (noting that the violation injured a large volume of workers, 

involved false statements to employees and so constituted a serious violation, was committed 

knowingly, and caused financial loss to the farmworkers).   

 

The Administrator imposed additional CMPs and back pay because Respondent allegedly 

“terminated or constructively discharged” twenty-four workers, leaving them with a “wage 

shortfall.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 59.  The twenty-four workers allegedly discharged in 
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violation of the three-fourths guarantee
144

 included four workers terminated in August 2015 

without cause, nineteen workers discharged in May 2015, and one worker for whom Respondent 

failed to notify government agencies of the reasons for his departure in June 2015.
145

  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 60–61.  Concerning the first set of workers, Respondent has conceded it 

violated the three-fourths guarantee and owes that cohort $4,386.18 in total back pay.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 63 (citing PX 1; Tr. at 426, 639, 642–44).  The regulations only relieve 

employers from the three-fourths guarantee when a worker “voluntarily abandons employment” 

or is “terminated for cause,” and the employer also timely and properly notifies the appropriate 

federal agencies.  See Administrator’s Brief at 62 (citing § 655.122(n)). 

 

The Administrator argued that, despite what Respondent communicated to the 

Department on the worker departure forms, Respondent terminated the nineteen workers that left 

in May 2015.  See Administrator’s Brief at 63–64 (citing Tr. 39, 65, 80–81, 107–08, 125, 129; 

PX 3 at 101; PX 9 at 232–33, 258; PX 11 at 305).  The Administrator asserted that Respondent 

could not defend itself through its “false notifications to government agencies” concerning the 

worker departure forms the workers signed stating that they had sick or injured family members.  

See Administrator’s Brief at 64 n.43 (citing See JX 8 at 89–95, 102, 106, 107; PX 3-1 at 115; see 

also JX 8 at 98–100). 

 

Even if Respondent did not terminate the nineteen workers in May 2015, the 

Administrator argued in the alternative that Respondent constructively discharged the workers.  

See Administrator’s Brief at 64–68.  Respondent constructively discharged the workers based on 

the “intolerable work and living conditions that they faced.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 64 

(citing Chertkova v. Conn. Gen. Life Ins. Co., 92 F.3d 81, 89 (2d Cir. 1996)).  Constructive 

discharge operates under an objective standard: “Did working conditions become so intolerable 

that a reasonable person in the employee’s position would have felt compelled to resign?”  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 65 (quoting Pa. State Police v. Suders, 542 U.S. 129, 141 (2004)).  The 

Administrator said that the asparagus picking conditions were unendurable, because Respondent 

required the pickers to work in a crouched position for ten to twelve hours most days without 

rest.  See Administrator’s Brief at 65 (citing Tr. 17, 90–91, 139, 238–39, 257; PX 3 at 68–71).  

The field conditions were also intolerable as, in May 2015, the fields lacked bathrooms or were 

in disrepair.  See Administrator’s Brief at 66 (citing Tr. 18–19, 91, 139; PX 3 at 91; PX 9 at 216, 

220) and Administrator’s Brief at 67 (citing PX 5 at 142–43; Tr. at 39, 103, 163).  At times, the 

fields also lacked drinking water.  See Administrator’s Brief at 66 (citing Tr. 19, 139; PX 5 at 19; 

PX 9 at 216; PX 3 at 73).   

 

                                                 
144

  “The employer must guarantee to offer the worker employment for a total number of work hours equal to at 

least three-fourths of the workdays of the total period beginning with the first workday after the arrival of the worker 

at the place of employment or the advertised contractual first date of need, whichever is later, and ending on the 

expiration date specified in the work contract or in its extensions, if any.”  20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i)(1).   

 
145

  The name of the lone worker is Jose Islas Larraga.  See Administrator’s Brief at 73–74.  Respondent owes 

back pay to Islas Larraga in the amount of $2,751.94 because, contrary to the regulatory requirements, Respondent 

never provided notice that Islas Larraga no longer worked for Respondent.  Id. (Tr. 419, 436; PX 39 at 1189-1216 

(Islas Larraga absent from full set of notifications)).   
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The Administrator next described her back wages calculations and argued that such 

calculations were “reasonable.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 68.  The Administrator relied on 

Respondent’s payroll records at PX 1 and PX 2, and noted that the undersigned admitted both 

exhibits as “summaries of voluminous records pursuant to Federal Rule of Evidence 1006 and 29 

C.F.R. § 18.1006.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 68 n.47 (citing Tr. at 584–85, 968). 

 

First, the Administrator determined the “total period,” § 655.122(i)(1), on which 

Respondent based its three-fourths guarantee.  The Administrator determined the start date of the 

first weekly pay period in which a worker was paid in 2015.  See Administrator’s Brief at 69 

(citing Tr. at 428; PX 1.)  The Administrator calculated the length of the workdays (seven hours 

on weekdays and five hours on weekends), and used the length of the workdays to determine the 

ending date of the guarantee period (October 10, 2015).  See Administrator’s Brief at 69 (citing 

Tr. 420, 523; see JX 1 at 1, 9 11; JX 3 at 42, 50).  The Administrator then found the number of 

weeks (expressed as hours) from the start of the first pay period to the end of the guarantee 

period.  See Administrator’s Brief at 69 (citing Tr. at 428; PX 1). 

 

To yield the data contained in the “total workday hours between first pay period and 

contract end” column of PX 1, the Administrator multiplied the “weeks” column and the “job 

offer hours per week” column; the Administrator then subtracted the “federal holiday(s) hours” 

column from this product.  See Administrator’s Brief at 70.  The Administrator created the three-

fourths guarantee column by multiplying the “total workday hours between first pay period and 

contract end” column by three-fourths.  Id.  The “variance” column shows the difference 

between the “3/4 guarantee” column and the “hrs wrked” column.  Id.  To determine the amount 

of back pay owed, the Administrator multiplied the figure in the “variance” column by $11.29, 

the minimum hourly wage the Respondent pledged to pay its farmworkers in 2015.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 70.  In this way, the Administrator calculated both the number of hours 

for each worker that Respondent violated the three-fourths guarantee and the back pay due.  See 

id.  Because Respondent did not keep any records of hours offered to the employees, in violation 

of § 655.122(j), the Administrator argued that the undersigned should not use hours offered as a 

relevant factor.  See Administrator’s Brief at 71–72 (citing In re: Global Horizons, Inc., No. 

2005-TAE-00001 slip op. at 40–41, 63, 77, 88–92) (“Global Horizons III”). 

 

The Administrator also assessed a $1,350 CMP for Respondent’s alleged violation of the 

three-fourths guarantee concerning twenty-four of the affected farmworkers.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 74–75 (citing Tr. at 856–57 (allowing a ten percent reduction for 

Respondent’s lack of H-2A history, but finding that reductions were not warranted for the 

number of workers involved, the gravity of the situation, the commitment for future compliance, 

or financial gain to the Respondent), 935–37).  Mitigation factors four and five do not apply, 

because Respondent’s hours tracking program did not track hours offered and because 

Respondent continues to deny liability for some of the three-fourths guarantee issues.  Id.   

 

The Administrator assessed an additional $1,350 CMP for Respondent’s alleged violation 

of 29 C.F.R. § 501.5, which “prohibits any ‘person’ from ‘seek[ing] to have’ any H-2A worker 

waive rights pursuant to 20 C.F.R. part 655, subpart B,” including the three-fourths guarantee at 

§ 655.122(i).  See Administrator’s Brief at 75–78.  The Administrator referred to this as a 

“coercion violation.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 78.  Respondent provided the workers who 
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left in May and August worker departure forms stating that the workers “resign[ed]” their jobs.  

See Administrator’s Brief at 76 (citing Tr. 83, 108–110, 149, 225, 274, 732, 768–69).  

Respondent allegedly violated 29 C.F.R. § 501.5 by first requiring the workers to sign worker 

departure forms stating that they resign; second, by having the workers falsely state that they 

have ill or deceased relatives.  See Administrator’s Brief at 76.  Russel Marino, Jr. stated at 

deposition that the purpose of the worker departure forms was to protect against litigation.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 77 (citing PX 15 at 475).  Respondent’s agent, National Agricultural 

Consultants, also sent false notifications to the Department.  See id. (citing PX 39 at 1191–95, 

1198–1200; Tr. 409, 748, 753–54). The Administrator stated that Respondent is responsible for 

its agent’s actions.  See Administrator’s Brief at 77 (citing JX 2 at 31, 39–41; JX 4 at 70; 20 

C.F.R. § 655.135).  On page 754 of the hearing transcript, the Respondent allegedly conceded 

the August workers were terminated without cause.  Id.  The Administrator considered all seven 

mitigation factors, and applied only the first one due to Respondent’s lack of past 

noncompliance.  See Administrator’s Brief at 77–78 (citing Tr. at 858–61.)    

 

The Administrator assessed $3,600 in CMPs for five alleged violations of 20 C.F.R. § 

655.122(d)(1)(i), which concerns housing violations.  See Administrator’s Brief at 78–86.  

Specifically, the Administrator assessed the following CMPs: 

 

$900 for the unscreened bathroom windows; $900 for the faulty dormitory screen 

windows and doors; $900 for the uncovered garbage cans; $450 for the hot water 

shortage; and $450 for the unclean mattresses on the floor. 

 

See Administrator’s Brief at 84 (citing JX 10 at 160; Tr. 861–63, 938–39). 

 

Because Respondent’s dormitories were built prior to 1980, the applicable regulations are 

the Employment and Training Administration Housing Standards codified at 20 C.F.R. §§ 

654.404–654.417.  Section 654.408(a) mandates that “all outside openings . . . be protected with 

screening of not less than [sixteen] mesh.”  See Administrator’s Brief at 78 (citing 20 C.F.R. § 

655.122(d)(l)(i)).  The Administrator argued that Respondent violated this requirement because 

its dormitory contained ripped or missing window screens.  See Administrator’s Brief at 78–79 

(citing Tr. at 202–03, 324, 330–31; PX 28 at 1046–47).  The ETA regulations require that “[a]ll 

screen doors . . . be tight fitting, in good repair, and equipped with self-closing devices.”  20 

C.F.R. § 654.408(b).  The Administrator averred that Respondent violated this requirement, as 

well; some screens were ripped and some doors did not close.  See Administrator’s Brief at 80–

82 (citing PX 28 at 1048–52; Tr. 324–28).  Respondent is obliged to maintain housing in 

compliance with federal standards throughout the growing season.  See Administrator’s Brief at 

81 (citing JX 2 at 30–31, 39; JX 4 at 69–70, 78). 

 

Concerning garbage receptacles, the ETA regulations require that Respondent maintain 

“fly-tight, clean containers in good condition” near the dormitory.  20 C.F.R. § 654.414(a).  The 

Administrator argued that the condition of Respondent’s refuse containers violated the 

regulations.  It even kept open piles of refuse near the dormitory.  See Administrator’s Brief at 

82 (citing Tr. at 324, 329, 332, 603–04; PX 28 at 1053–55; PX 33 at 1094). 
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Another alleged violation of 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(d)(1)(i) stemmed from Respondent’s 

failure to provide its workers with adequate hot water for bathing and handwashing.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 82–83.  Section 654.412(a) requires Respondent to provide its workers 

with bathing and hand washing facilities with both hot and cold water.  Two of the sinks in the 

bathroom were broken and workers went without hot water at times.  See Administrator’s Brief 

at 83 (citing Tr. 30, 103–04, 199–201, 330; PX 7 at 189; PX 11 at 288). 

 

Finally, the Administrator alleged that Respondent failed to provide certain farmworkers 

with clean mattresses.  See Administrator’s Brief at 83–84 (citing 20 C.F.R. § 654.416(a)–(b)).  

The Administrator found that two workers were sleeping on mattresses on the ground in an 

unsanitary location.  See id. (Tr. 324, 329–30; PX 7 at 187–88; PX 28 at 1056). 

 

For each of the five housing violations, the Administrator considered all of the mitigation 

factors enumerated at § 501.19(b) to reduce the penalty below the $1,500 maximum.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 84–86 (citing Tr. at 862–66, 937–45).  The Administrator applied the 

first, sixth, and seventh mitigating factors.  See Administrator’s Brief at 84–85.  Specific to the 

bathroom, dormitory screen, and garbage violations, the Administrator further reduced the CMP 

because there was no evidence that any worker contracted a communicable disease due to the 

cited issues.  See Administrator’s Brief at 85 (citing Tr. at 864).  For the hot water and mattress 

violations, the Administrator also applied mitigation factors three, four and the final factor.  Id. 

(citing Tr. at 865–66, 941).  Additionally, mitigation factor two applied to the mattress violation, 

and mitigation factor five applied to the hot water violation.  Id. (citing Tr. at 456, 865, 937, 

941). 

 

The Administrator assessed a $7,500 CMP for Respondent’s alleged unsafe 

transportation of farmworkers in violation of § 655.122(h)(4).  See Administrator’s Brief at 86–

90.  Twenty C.F.R. § 655.122(h)(4) requires “[a]ll employer-provided transportation” to “comply 

with all applicable Federal, State or local laws and regulations.”  The Administrator first cited 

Respondent for the use of unlicensed drivers.  The laws of the State of New Jersey prohibit 

driving on “public highways” without a driver’s license.  See Administrator’s Brief at 86 (citing 

N.J. Stat. Ann. § 39:3-10).  Additionally, the H-2A regulations require drivers to hold a “valid 

permit qualifying the driver to operate the type of vehicle driven by him in the jurisdiction by 

which the permit is issued.”  Id. (citing 29 C.F.R. § 500.105(b)(1)(iii) (incorporated by reference 

in 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(h)(4)).  New Jersey also prohibits the transportation of migrant 

farmworkers by drivers who are not licensed in the United States or Canada.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 86–87 (citing N.J. Admin. Code § 13:21-13.2).  Here, the Administrator 

avers that of the five drivers interviewed by WHI Perez, two had Mexican driver’s licenses, one 

had an expired Mexican driver’s license, and two had no licenses, whatsoever.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 87 (citing 383–400; PX 30 at 1064–66, 1070–71). 

 

In addition to the purported driver’s license issue, the Administrator alleged that CMPs 

are due because Respondent operated vehicles with worn tires and one vehicle had a broken rear 

tail light.  See Administrator’s Brief at 88–89 (citing Tr. 404–06; PX 29 at 1057).  This broken 

tail light showed that Respondent was in violation of both federal laws and state laws.  See id. 

(citing 29 C.F.R. § 500.105(b)(3)(ii); 49 C.F.R. § 393.11; N.J. Stat. Ann. § 39:3-61(a)).  Three of 

the buses had worn tires.  See Administrator’s Brief at 88–89.  The Administrator argued that the 
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tires fell below minimum federal and state standards.  Such standards prohibits the operation of 

vehicles with “tires which have been worn so smooth as to expose any tread fabric or which have 

any other defect likely to cause failure.”  Id. (citing 29 C.F.R. § 500.105(b)(3)(v); N.J. Admin. 

Code § 13:21-13.11(b)).  The Administrator said that the investigator used “a common sense 

instrument,” a pen, to illustrate the depth of the tread.  See Administrator’s Brief at 89. 

 

The Administrator argued that it was reasonable for the Administrator to impose CMPs, 

as follows:  $750 for each of three bald tires, $900 for each of five unlicensed drivers, and $750 

for the broken rear turn signal.  See Administrator’s Brief at 89–90 (citing JX 10 at 160; Tr. 867, 

870–72).  The Administrator reduced the CMPs in light of the seven mitigation factors at 

§ 501.19(b).  See id.  The Administrator applied the first, second, sixth, and seventh mitigation 

factors to each of the transportation violations; it did not apply the fourth or fifth factors.  Id.  

The Administrator found the third mitigation factor applicable to the tire and rear turn signal 

issues, but not to the unlicensed drivers.  Id.   

 

The Respondent’s Brief 

 

 In its “statement of the case,” Respondent recognized that the Administrator assessed 

“nearly $600,000” in back wages and CMPs for the 2015 growing season.  See Respondent’s 

Brief at 4.  Three-fourths of the back wages relate to allegations of Employer’s failure to comply 

with the requirements at 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(g) (i.e., meal charges); $135,000 in back wages 

relates to the allegations of Employer’s violations of the three-fourths guarantee.  The remaining 

assessment involves various CMPs.  Id.  Respondent professed its “innocence” to such “charges” 

and asked the undersigned “to dismiss the claims outright or, at the very least, significantly 

reduce the amounts requested.”  Id.  Respondent noted that the penalties “dwarf those” assessed 

in the Global Horizons cases, 2005-TAE-0001 and 2010-TAE-0002, which involved “rampant 

wage theft” and employers receiving kickbacks from the workers.  Id.  Respondent asked the 

undersigned to “look past the overheated and intentionally outrageous rhetoric from the 

Administrator and consider the testimony of the workers themselves and the pure facts of the 

case, and then to dismiss these claims and allow this farm to put this nightmare behind it and go 

back to producing food.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 7. 

 

 Concerning meals, Respondent argued that many of the farmworkers never asked to use 

the kitchen facilities, and Respondent never denied them permission.  See Respondent’s Brief at 

7–8 (citing 50–51, 176, 213–14).  Respondent argued that the hearing testimony was 

“inconsistent” as to the number of workers who could cook at once or whether it was feasible to 

cook in shifts.  Id. 

 

 Respondent’s farmworkers paid Hernandez, not Respondent.  Hernandez took a loss on 

the meal plans early in the season and recouped it later.  See Respondent’s Brief at 8 (citing Tr. 

at 234–37).  Hernandez used any surplus from the meal plan to purchase food, pay the kitchen 

staff, and to buy additional appliances for the kitchen.  Id.  Respondent did not “profit based on 

what the workers did or did not pay [Hernandez].”  Id. 

 

 Respondent continued that the Administrator’s case relies on the position that the 

inaccurate job order misled Respondent’s farmworkers.  See Respondent’s Brief at 9–12.  
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Respondent countered that some of the workers still would have worked if the job order had 

described the meal charge and otherwise did not object to the meal plan.  See Respondent’s Brief 

at 9 (citing Tr. at 62).  The Administrator allegedly failed to show that “all” of the farmworkers 

would have made a different decision if Respondent had disclosed the meal plan in the job order.  

See Respondent’s Brief at 10 (emphasis in the original). 

 

Respondent argued that the regulations do not disclose a remedy for “non-disclosure of 

meal charges.”  Id.  Respondent attempted to distinguish the current case from the Global 

Horizons case, where “the employer itself collected the meal charge, purchased the food, and 

provided the meals to the [farmworkers].”  See Respondent’s Brief at 10 (citing 2010-TAE-

00002 (Dec. 17, 2010) (Order on Part. Summ. Dec. at 8)).  Respondent quoted from Global 

Horizons for the principle that an employer profiting from meal charges is equivalent to paying 

the employees below-market wages.  Id.  Because Respondent did not profit from the meal 

charges, and Respondent did not reduce the farmworkers’ wages below market level, the 

rationale applied in Global Horizons does not control.  See Respondent’s Brief at 10–11.  Here, 

Respondent neither deducted money from the farmworkers’ paychecks, nor did the farmworkers 

pay Respondent for meals.  See Respondent’s Brief at 11.  Thus, “the integrity of the wage 

setting process remain[ed] perfectly intact.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 12.  Respondent again 

compared the current case to Global Horizons, where the administrative law judge granted 

summary decision in favor of the employer because “there [was] no indication that the Company 

in fact exploited the workers . . . by overcharging for meals.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 12–13 

(citing Global Horizons, at 9).  Because Respondent “had nothing at all to do with the 

preparation and sale of the food,” and because Respondent did not profit from the meal plan, 

Respondent argued that Global Horizons did not provide controlling authority.  See 

Respondent’s Brief at 13. 

 

The Administrator’s argument that Hernandez acted as Respondent’s agent “makes no 

sense,” according to Respondent.  See Respondent’s Brief at 13–16.  Agency theory does not 

apply to a breach of Respondent’s contract with the government and the farmworkers.  See 

Respondent’s Brief at 13 (citing Young v. Bethlehem Area Vo-Tech Sch., 2007 U.S. Dist. 

LEXIS 13531, *39 (E.D. Pa. Feb. 28, 2007) for the principle that respondeat superior does not 

apply in breach of contract claims)).  Hernandez and Respondent were not the farmworkers’ joint 

employers, either.  See Respondent’s Brief at 14–15 (discussing Ramos Ortiz v. Paramo, Civ. 

Action 06-3062, 2008 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 72387 (D.N.J. Sept. 19, 2008).  Because Hernandez did 

not fit under the regulatory definition of the term “employer,” 20 C.F.R. § 655.103(b), the 

Administrator allegedly could not show that Respondent “received any payments from workers 

for meals nor for anything else.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 16.  Such payments went to 

Hernandez “in his individual capacity.”  Id.  Respondent did not direct Hernandez to collect the 

money, did not approve of Hernandez’s actions, and Respondent did not “even [know] that this 

was happening.”  Id.  Thus, the Administrator is unable to attribute any “employer-agent theory” 

of liability to Hernandez. 

 

Respondent continued that Hernandez’s meal plan was “reasonable.”  See Respondent’s 

Brief at 16–18 (citing 80 FED. REG. 9482 (Feb. 23, 2015)) for the principle that the “DOL-

allowed daily meal charge for H-2A workers is $83.02 per week).  Repayment of “100% of the 

meal charges is not warranted” here because it “vastly overstates any claimed ‘harm’ to the 
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workers in 2015.”
146

  See Respondent’s Brief at 16.  Additionally, Respondent argued that but 

for the meal plan, the workers would still have to pay their own money and spend their own time 

preparing their food.  Id.  According to the U.S. Department of Agriculture, the weekly cost of 

food ranges from $43.10 to $86.30.  Id.  Respondent requested “credit for the full amount” of 

what the workers would have paid if they prepared their own food.  See Respondent’s Brief at 

17–18. 

 

Respondent continued that “absolutely nothing in the H-2A regulations” supports the 

Administrator’s decision to charge CMPs and back pay concerning the drinks and beer sold to 

the farmworkers.  See Respondent’s Brief at 19.  Respondent said that water was available “at all 

times” in the fields.  Id. (citing Tr. at 236–37, 265).  The water was tested for potability early in 

2015 and passed inspection.  Id. (citing Tr. at 717–18).  Hernandez sold soft drinks and beer to 

the farmworkers, but no money transferred to Respondent; Respondent did not run a company 

store.  See Respondent’s Brief at 19–20 (citing Tr. at 162, 561).  “Nothing about [Hernandez’s] 

drink sales had any impact on [Respondent’s] bottom-line, either profit or loss.”  See 

Respondent’s Brief at 20.  Respondent emphasized that WHI Perez said that “the workers 

weren’t purchasing the drinks from [Respondent].”  Id. (citing Tr. at 561.)  WHI Perez, 

according to Respondent, was unable to explain why the Administrator required Respondent to 

remit the full costs of non-alcoholic drinks, but only Hernandez’s profit from the beer.  Id. (citing 

Tr. at 566.)  Respondent reiterated that the H-2A regulations do not require free soft drinks and 

asked the undersigned to dismiss all back pay and CMPs based on the drinks Hernandez sold to 

the farmworkers.  See Respondent’s Brief at 21. 

 

Respondent called WHI Perez’s back wage calculations “creative.”  See Respondent’s 

Brief at 21–22.  The Administrator allegedly had an “unreliable estimate” of the amount paid to 

Hernandez for the drinks, because the estimate relied on “post hoc recollections.”  Id.; see 

Respondent’s Brief at 22 n.6 (“Investigator Perez’s use of spreadsheets and calculations implies 

a degree of precision that is not supported by the underlying information on which his 

calculations rest.”).  The Administrator also relied on prices obtained from Costco, even though 

the record establishes that Hernandez shopped at Sam’s Club.  See Respondent’s Brief at 22 

(citing Tr. at 430, 508–09, 627).  Additionally, the Administrator used prices for Coors Light 

when “nobody bought” it.  See Respondent’s Brief at 22–23. 

 

The Respondent recognized that the Administrator assessed two separate three-fourths 

guarantee violations against Respondent.  One violation involved the group of nineteen workers 

who left in May 2015; one involved a group who Respondent “let go in August after wet weather 

and bacteria ruined the pepper harvest.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 23. 

 

Concerning the former group, Respondent argued that voluntary abandonment of work 

voids the three-fourths guarantee.  See Respondent’s Brief at 23–28.  As Respondent put it, the 

workers decided together that harvesting asparagus was “more difficult than they wished, [and] 

stopped working en masse.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 23.  Because the asparagus harvest 

                                                 
146

  Respondent further requested application of the doctrines of estoppel and laches, because the Administrator 

knew of the meals situation on July 21, 2015, but did not “raise any concerns” until early 2016.  See Respondent’s 

Brief at 18–19.        
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would otherwise be ruined, Joseph Marino and Russel Marino, Jr. pleaded for the workers to 

stay.  Id.  Respondent noted witness testimony that the asparagus crop was difficult to harvest.  

See Respondent’s Brief at 24–25 (citing Tr. at 49, 50, 122–16, 723–27, 809–12).  Additionally, 

Respondent never told the nineteen workers they “must” leave work and that the workers were 

terminated without cause.  See Respondent’s Brief at 25–26 (citing Tr. at 66–67) (emphasis in 

the original).  For purposes of calculating the three-fourths guarantee, the regulations “draw[] a 

crucial distinction between a worker terminated without cause and a worker voluntarily 

abandoning employment.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 26.  The latter employee does not deserve 

back pay for violations of the three-fourths guarantee.  Id.  Respondent argued that the workers 

in question voluntarily abandoned their employment.   Id.  It was “simply preposterous” that 

Respondent would fire the workers, since asparagus requires such a quick harvest.  Id.   

 

Additionally, the Administrator is allegedly unable to establish the objective standard 

constituting constructive discharge.  See Respondent’s Brief at 26–27 (citing Stucke v. City of 

Philadelphia, 685 Fed. Appx. 150, 155 (3d Cir. Apr. 12, 2017); Duffy v. Paper Magic Group, 

265 F.3d 163, 169 (3d Cir. 2001)).  Because a “reasonable person” would not have felt 

compelled to resign, the Respondent argued that Respondent did not constructively discharge the 

nineteen-workers.  See Respondent’s Brief at 27.  As proof, Respondent asserted that the “vast 

majority” of farmworkers that worked under the same conditions did not feel “so compelled to 

walk off the job.”  Id. (citing Tr. at 65, 817–18). 

 

Concerning the group that left Respondent’s employ in August 2015, Respondent said 

that the Administrator did not account for the hours Respondent offered this cohort.  See 

Respondent’s Brief at 28–30.  Twenty C.F.R. § 655.122(i) requires only that an employer offer 

the worker employment; it does not require the employee to have actually worked to meet the 

three-fourths guarantee.  See Respondent’s Brief at 28.  The P.E.T. Tiger technology Respondent 

used to track the farmworkers’ work would not capture if a worker were sick, injured, or 

otherwise declined work because the worker was not “scanned in” to start the day.  See 

Respondent’s Brief at 29 (citing Tr. at 683–84, 833–34).  WHI Perez allegedly did not ask 

Respondent about hours that it offered the farmworkers.  Id. (citing Tr. at 554–58, 649). 

Respondent argued that the three-fourths guarantee did not apply to Islas Larraga because he had 

“absconded” from the job mid-season, and so voluntarily quit.  See Respondent’s Brief at 29–30. 

 

Respondent next discussed the $1,350 CMP for Respondent’s alleged attempt to have the 

workers waive their rights on the worker departure forms.  See Respondent’s Brief at 30–31.  

Respondent explained that Theresa Ward of National Agriculture Consultants told Russel 

Marino, Jr. that workers were concerned that if they could not perform a job and abandoned 

employment, it would reflect badly on their ability to secure future employment.  See 

Respondent’s Brief at 30 (citing Tr. at 731–33, 812).  Hernandez provided the blank worker 

departure forms to the workers.  Id. (citing Tr. at 225, 227).  Respondent conceded that the 

workers did not have sick or deceased family members, as the form indicates, but said, “that 

decision was between the group of workers and between the workers and their contact back in 

Mexico.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 31.  Respondent did not coerce the workers to give up any 

right, because “none of the forms purport to surrender a right held by any of the workers.”  See 

id. 
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Respondent continued that the undersigned should reduce the $3,600 CMP for the 

housing violations.  See Respondent’s Brief at 31–33.  Respondent allegedly made “immediate 

repairs and corrections,” but WHI never followed up to account for those remedies.  See 

Respondent’s Brief at 32 (citing Tr. at 497–99).  Hernandez inspected housing conditions twice 

per week and Russel Marino, Jr. said that workers could raise concerns about housing and then 

Respondent would make the necessary repairs.  Id. (citing Tr. at 176, 782).  As to the $450 

mattress violation, District Director Rachor allegedly “conceded” that the requirement was to 

provide a bed, “not to prevent workers from moving mattresses from a provided bed onto the 

floor.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 33 (citing Tr. at 923; 20 C.F.R. § 654.416(a)).  Respondent 

emphasized that the New Jersey Department of Labor certified the dormitory for 136 workers 

and the housing population never exceed 118 during the 2015 season.  Id. (citing Tr. at 803–04; 

RX 2 at 13). 

 

Respondent further stated that the alleged transportation violations do “not support the 

full CMP assessment pursued by the Administrator in this case.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 33–

34.  Respondent allegedly “resolved” the driver’s license issue through the addition of internal 

protocols.  See id.  Concerning the tire tread, Respondent argued that the Administrator merely 

used “eyeball measurement” to determine that the tire was “bald.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 34.  

WHI Perez reviewed the pictures he took and purportedly “admitted that there were ‘tread 

marks’ on the tires in question.”  See Respondent’s Brief at 34 (citing Tr. at 533–36).  Because 

Respondent has generally addressed and remediated the issues for which the Administrator seeks 

CMPs, Respondent requested the undersigned to “set[] any remaining CMPs at a reasonable 

level commensurate with the facts of the case.”  Id. 

 

DISCUSSION 
 

 The modern H-2A visa program arose out the 1986 amendment to the INA.  See 

generally Staff of House Comm. On Education and Labor, 102d Cong., 1st Sess., Report on the 

Use of Temporary Foreign Workers in the Florida Sugar Cane Industry 3-4 (Comm. Print 1991).   

The Administrator enforces the attestations an employer makes in a temporary agricultural labor 

certification application, as well as the regulations that implement the H-2A program.  See 29 

C.F.R. §§ 501.1, 501.5, 501.16, 501.17.  An “employer’s job offer must offer to U.S. workers no 

less than the same benefits, wages, and working conditions that the employer is offering, intends 

to offer, or will provide to H-2A workers.”  20 C.F.R. § 655.122(a).  Thus, the H-2A regulations 

prohibit any discrimination between H-2A workers and domestic workers.  Id.  The 

Administrator may penalize an employer who fails to abide by the governing H-2A regulations 

through the imposition of monetary penalties, debarment from filing other H-2A certification 

applications, and instituting proceedings for specific performance, injunctive, or other equitable 

relief.  See In re: Global Horizons, Inc., 2006-TLC-00013, slip op. at 4 (ALJ Nov. 30, 2006). 

 

 The Administrator may assess CMPs against a violating employer for each violation of 

the work contract or the governing regulations.  29 C.F.R. § 501.19(a) (2010).  In determining 

the amount of such penalty, “the WHD Administrator considers the type of violation committed 

and other relevant factors[,]” including: 
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1.  Previous history of violation or violations of the H-2A provisions of the 

Act and these regulations; 

2.  The number of workers affected by the violation or violations; 

3.  The gravity of the violation or violations; 

4.  Efforts made in good faith to comply with the H-2A provisions of the Act 

and these regulations; 

5.  Explanation of person charged with the violation or violations; 

6.  Commitment to future compliance, taking into account the public health, 

interest or safety, and whether the person has previously violated the H-2A 

provision of the Act; and 

7.  The extent to which the violator achieved a financial gain due to the 

violation, or the potential financial loss or potential injury to the workers. 

 

29 C.F.R. §501.19(b).   

 

 A party has a right to a de novo hearing before an administrative law judge, who may 

affirm, deny, reverse, or modify in whole or in part the decision of the Administrator.  See, e.g., 

Three D. Farms, LLC d/b/a Three D Farms, 2016-TAE-00003 (Aug. 18, 2016); Seasonal Ag 

Services, Inc., 2014-TAE-00006, slip op. at 12 (Dec. 5, 2014). 

 

I. The Administrator properly found violations of 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(g), (p), and (q) 

concerning improper deductions Respondent’s agent, Hernandez, made concerning 

meals, non-alcoholic beverages, and alcoholic beverages.  Back pay and the imposition of 

CMPs, therefore, are warranted. 

 

 Twenty C.F.R. § 655.122(g) requires an employer to provide H-2A workers either “three 

meals a day or [to] furnish free and convenient cooking and kitchen facilities.”  If the employer 

requires workers to pay for their meals, the employer must state the charge on the job offer.  (Id.)  

The regulations also require the employer to provide a prospective H-2A worker a copy of the 

work contract prior to the worker’s application for a visa.  § 655.122(q).  The work contract must 

contain, inter alia, terms concerning whether the employer will provide meals or kitchen access, 

as stated in § 655.122(g).  Here, Respondent filed two job orders.  The first concerned the period 

April 13, 2015 to October 10, 2015; the second concerned June 1, 2015 to October 10, 2015.  

See JX 1; JX 3 (respectively).  Section 14 of the job order requires the employer to “describe 

how [it] intends to provide either [three] meals to each worker or furnish free and convenient 

cooking and kitchen facilities.”  In both JX 1 and JX 3, Respondent informed the Department—

as well as prospective H-2A workers—that it “will furnish free cooking and kitchen facilities . . .  

so that workers may prepare their own meals.”  Russel Marino, Jr. signed both forms in his role 

as Respondent’s “owner/manager.”  (Id.)  Despite Respondent’s assurances, however, the 

workers who arrived at Respondent’s New Jersey dormitory were greeted with news that 

Respondent planned to feed them not with free kitchen access, but through a meal plan costing 

each worker $75 to $80 per week.
147

  In this way, Respondent immediately breached a material 

                                                 
147

  See Tr. at 20 (Maldonado’s testimony), 92, 140–41 (Gustavo Perez saying that he had no choice but to pay 

Hernandez for the meal plan, even though he would have rather prepared his own food ), 176 (Hernandez stating 

that workers who did not wish to participate in the meal plan had to “eat outside or to order a delivery meal”), 178–

80 (discussing PX 17-1 and PX 17-2, where Hernandez tracked the workers who participated in the meal plans), 262 
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term of the job order; the contract that cemented the working relationship between Respondent 

and farmworkers who traveled often thousands of miles to work in Respondent’s fields.   

 

 Respondent’s counterargument that none of the workers requested access to 

Respondent’s kitchen facilities and some did not object to the meal plan, see Respondent’s Brief 

at 7–9, is unavailing.  The express terms of the job orders at JX 1 and JX 3—the employment 

contracts between the farmworkers and Respondent—were clearly not in line with the realities 

facing the farmworkers upon arrival at Respondent’s dormitory.  Respondent, therefore, violated 

20 C.F.R. §§ 655.122(g), and (q). 

 

 Respondent also attempts to deflect liability concerning its violation of the regulations 

concerning proper deductions from the farmworkers’ pay.  See 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p) (“The job 

offer must specify all deductions not required by law which the employer will make from the 

worker's paycheck . . . . A deduction is not reasonable if it includes a profit to the employer or to 

any affiliated person.”).  Respondent argues that all deductions from pay, if any, occurred due to 

the actions of Hernandez, not Respondent.  Therefore, to the undersigned must first determine 

whether Hernandez acted as Respondent’s agent, and second if any deductions occurred. 

 

A. At all relevant times, Hernandez acted as Respondent’s agent. 

 

 Hernandez held both actual authority and apparent authority over the farmworkers.  The 

actions of Hernandez, therefore, are legally equivalent to the actions of Respondent.  See 

Restatement (Third) Of Agency Intro. (2006).  Contrary to Respondent’s assertion, see 

Respondent’s Brief at 13–16, common law agency principles do apply to violations arising under 

the INA.  See Castillo v. Case Farms of Ohio, Inc., 96 F. Supp. 2d 578, 593 (W.D. Tex. 1999) 

(citing Montelongo v. Meese, 803 F.2d 1341, 1349 (5th Cir.1986)); Escobar v. Baker, 814 F. 

Supp. 1491, 1503–04 (W.D. Wash. 1993); Bueno v. Mattner, 829 F.2d 1380, 1384 (6th Cir. 

1987).  The Restatement (Third) of Agency, therefore, is instructive as to the definitions of actual 

authority and apparent authority. 

 

 Hernandez acted with Respondent’s actual authority.  “An agent acts with actual 

authority when, at the time of taking action that has legal consequences for the principal, the 

agent reasonably believes, in accordance with the principal’s manifestations to the agent, that the 

principal wishes the agent so to act.”  Restatement (Third) Of Agency § 2.01 (2006).  An agent’s 

belief is reasonable where it is “grounded in a manifestation of the principal.”  Restatement 

(Third) Of Agency § 2.02 cmt. c (2006). 

 

 Here, Respondent had a legal duty to feed the farmworkers it hired and housed in its 

dormitory.  Although Respondent promised kitchen access to the farmworkers, see JX 1 and JX 

3, it tasked Hernandez with operation of the meal plan that ultimately fed the farmworkers.  

Although Hernandez utilized Respondent’s kitchen to do so, he paid the cooks, bought the 

groceries, and appliances as needed to cook the meals.  See Tr. at 177–78, 229, 244, 252, and 

793.  For its part, Respondent owned the kitchen, all of the major appliances therein, and paid for 

                                                                                                                                                             
(Almanza’s testimony), 334 (WHI Perez’s testimony).  Respondent never explained to WHI Perez why the meal 

plan cost $75 some weeks and other weeks cost $80.  See Tr. at 600. 
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the kitchen’s utilities.  See ALJX 1 at ¶ 21.  After Respondent decided to utilize the H-2A 

program in 2015, Respondent told Hernandez that he could keep charging for meals but that 

Hernandez—not Respondent—would be responsible for paying the cooks’ wages.  See Tr. at 

177.  Respondent spoke with Hernandez concerning the amount he intended to charge the 

farmworkers for meals, and Respondent took Hernandez to a meeting with the Department to 

ensure he understood the regulatory limits of the meal plan.  See Tr. at 187–88, 738, and 742–43.  

Russel Marino, Jr. told Hernandez “for years” to keep his food and beverage receipts, “because 

you cannot make a profit on the men.”  See Tr. at 808.  Russel Marino, Jr. told Hernandez to 

keep track of the farmworkers’ payments through deductions of their pay.  Respondent also 

allowed Hernandez to choose the drivers that operated Respondent’s busses, which transported 

the farmworkers from the dormitory to the fields.  See Tr. at 205, 390–401.  Hernandez has 

worked for Respondent for twenty-seven years, and receives an hourly rate plus commission 

based on the amount of crops harvested.  See Tr. at 171, 230.  Finally, the parties stipulated that 

during the 2015 growing season, Hernandez supervised the farmworkers.  See ALJX 1 at ¶ 18.  

The preponderant evidence establishes, therefore, that, in all of his duties—and especially 

concerning the operation of the meal plan—Hernandez acted with Respondent’s actual authority.  

Hernandez also reasonably believed that the Respondent wished him to operate the meal plan; 

Respondent’s statements to Hernandez and actions in taking him to a meeting with the 

Department demonstrate that Hernandez’s belief was reasonable.  Hernandez, therefore, acted 

with the actual authority of the Respondent, and served as Respondent’s agent at all relevant 

times. 

 

 Assuming, arguendo, Hernandez did not act under Respondent’s actual authority, he 

acted with Respondent’s apparent authority.  Put another way, the farmworkers reasonably 

believed that Hernandez was Respondent’s agent.  Therefore, his actions are imputed to 

Respondent.  See Restatement (Third) Of Agency § 2.03 cmt. c.  Restatement (Third) Of Agency 

§ 2.03 defines apparent authority as, “the power held by an agent or other actor to affect a 

principal’s legal relations with third parties when a third party reasonably believes the actor has 

authority to act on behalf of the principal and that belief is traceable to the principal’s 

manifestations.”  At all relevant times, Hernandez supervised the farmworkers.  See ALJX 1 at ¶ 

18.  When workers arrived at the camp, Hernandez said that he would orient them about housing, 

the “rules of the camp,” keeping the bathrooms clean, hours of work, pay, kitchen access, and 

cost of meals.
148

  When the farmworkers paid Hernandez, the workers signed a form to indicate 

they “agreed that they received the meal and” paid for the meal plan; Respondent’s name appears 

on the top of the form.
149

  Russel Marino, Jr. only “sometimes” attended the workers’ 

orientation.  (PX 15 at 401.)  “Several times a day” Russel Marino, Jr. would check in with 

Hernandez—not the workers—concerning the operation of the farm.  (Tr. at 719.)  If workers 

                                                 
148

  See Tr. at 61 (Maldonado stating that Hernandez was “in charge” and he never spoke with anyone from the 

Marino family); 174–175 (Hernandez’s testimony); 773 (Russel Marino, Jr. stating that Hernandez “primarily” 

oriented the workers); 825 (Russel Marino, Jr. stating that the workers complained to Hernandez because Russel 

Marino, Jr. does not speak Spanish and “that’s the chain of command”); PX 3 at 101 (Cervantes Ramirez stating on 

deposition that Hernandez was “in charge”).     

 
149

  PX 17 at 764 (Hernandez’s deposition testimony, discussing PX 17-2 at 799 (the meal payment form); Tr. 

at 182–86 (Hernandez testifying he would use the form at PX 17-2—a document Respondent created in its office—

to keep track of the workers who paid for meals).   
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had problems, they would tell Hernandez because, according to Russel Marino, Jr., that was the 

“chain of command.”  (Tr. at 825.)  Hernandez told the workers when to work; the workers did 

not have a choice as to their hours.  (Tr. at 17, 90–91, 139, 257; PX 3 at 68–69.)  Hernandez also 

chose the drivers who transported the workers from the dormitory to the fields.  See Tr. at 205, 

390–401.  When work slowed, Hernandez chose the “troublemakers” in determining which 

workers to lay off.  (Tr. at 208.)  Finally, Hernandez maintained the sleeping quarters and 

bathroom facilities at Respondent’s dormitory site.  (Tr. at 199–205.)  In all of these aspects, the 

farmworkers held reasonable beliefs that Hernandez had authority to act on Respondent’s behalf.  

Because Hernandez acted under Hernandez’s apparently authority, he worked as Respondent’s 

agent, and any legal effect of his actions are imputed to Respondent. 

 

B. Respondent unlawfully deducted or otherwise profited from the farmworkers’ 

payments for meal and beverage costs; its agent, Hernandez, also sold beer in 

violation of state law.  Back pay, therefore, is required for the meals, non-

alcoholic drinks, and beer the farmworkers purchased. 

 

 As Respondent’s agent, Hernandez was an “affiliated person.”  See WHD Bulletin No. 

2012-3 (“The term ‘affiliated person’ includes but is not limited to agents. . . . any person acting 

in the employer’s behalf or interest (directly or indirectly), or who has an interest in the 

employment relationship.”).  The regulations therefore prohibit Hernandez from charging any 

deduction not listed on Respondent’s job order.  See 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p)(2).  The regulations 

separately prohibited Hernandez from profiting off any items sold in violation of any law.  See 

id. (specifically incorporating the FLSA regulations at 29 C.F.R. Part 531).  To determine 

whether an employer has met the FLSA’s minimum wage requirements, 29 C.F.R. § 531.27 

credits an employer for “the reasonable cost . . . of board, lodging, or other facilities customarily 

furnished . . . to his employees when the cost of such board, lodging, or other facilities is not 

excluded from wages paid to such employees.”  The regulations define the term “facilities 

customarily furnished” and exclude from that definition “[f]acilities furnished in violation of any 

Federal, State or local law.”  § 531.31.  “Items such as alcohol and cigarettes constitute ‘other 

facilities’ under the law.”  Ortiz v. Paramo, No. CIV. 06-3062 RBK/AMD, 2009 WL 4575618, at 

*3 (D.N.J. Dec. 1, 2009) (citing Leach v. Johnston, 812 F. Supp. 1198, 1204 (M.D. Fla. 1992), 

disapproved of on other grounds by Aimable v. Long and Scott Farms, 20 F.3d 434, 441 (11th 

Cir.1994)).  Therefore, Hernandez and Respondent were unable to make deductions not 

contemplated by the job order; they were also unable to profit from the selling of any illegal 

facilities.  Concerning the latter prohibition, the parties stipulate that Hernandez sold beer to the 

farmworkers without a license to do so in violation of New Jersey law.  See ALJX 1 at ¶ 26; N.J. 

Stat. Ann. § 33:1-2(a) (mandating that a license is required to sell beer)).  Thus, Respondent was 

unable to profit from the sale of beer, an illegal activity, warranting the remittal of back pay in 

the amount of Hernandez’s profit. 

 

 The undersigned must also determine whether Respondent made impermissible 

deductions when it collected money for the meal plan and non-alcoholic beverages, which were 

not included in the job order. 

 

1. Respondent’s failure to provide kitchen access or otherwise to disclose 

meal charges constituted violations of 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(g), (p), and (q). 
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The Administrator properly assessed $128,285 in back wages for the 

meals the farmworkers purchased. 

 

 Because Respondent made deductions of the farmworkers’ pay for the meals and non-

alcoholic beverages, Respondent is required to provide back pay to the effected farmworkers.  

See § 655.122(p)(1) (requiring the job offer to include any deduction “not required by law which 

the employer will make form the worker’s paycheck); Global Horizons, Inc., OALJ Case No.:  

2010-TAE-00002, slip op. at 2 n.7 (ALJ Dec. 13, 2011) (recognizing that, although the meals 

deduction of $6.00 per day was a “favorable rate[],” it does not “negate the violation, as the 

deductions thwarted the regulatory scheme.”).  That Hernandez did not allow the farmworkers to 

pay him in cash, but took money out of their pay, does not establish that a deduction did not 

occur.  Regardless of the mechanism by which Hernandez deducted the meal and drink 

purchases, deductions of the farmworkers’ pay—constructive or actual—still occurred, and so 

Respondent is required to reimburse the farmworkers.  See In re: Weeks Marine, Inc., ARB No. 

12-093, 2015 WL 2172482, at *4 (Apr. 29, 2015) (citing Arriaga v. Fl. Pacific Farms, 305 F.3d 

1228, 1236 (11th Cir. 2002); Salazar-Martinez v. Fowler Bros., 781 F. Supp. 2d 183, 191 n.5 

(W.D.N.Y. 2011)).   

 

 A less severe consequence would deny the farmworkers their contractual right to the 

$11.29 per hour minimum wage promised on the job order.  See JX 1; JX 3; 20 C.F.R. 

§§ 655.120, 122(l), (p)(2).  A less severe consequence, furthermore, would provide a decreased 

deterrent effect to future employers who may also attempt to alter the terms of the job order upon 

the workers’ arrival.  The violation consists of the deduction itself—not the purported 

reasonableness of the deduction—so Respondent’s argument concerning the “reasonable” price 

of meals, see Respondent’s Brief at 16–18; RX 5; RX 7; RX 8, is inapposite.   

 

 Respondent’s argument that some of the workers approved of the meal plan, see 

Respondent’s Brief at 9–12, is also unavailing; the operative job orders—the contracts between 

Respondent and its workers—allow for kitchen access only.  See JX 1, JX 3.  The governing 

regulations require the “job offer [to] specify all deductions not required by law which the 

employer will make from the worker’s paycheck.”  20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p), (g), (q).  

Respondent’s unilateral substitution of the meal plan for the agreed upon kitchen access is in 

violation of the regulations, per se.  Respondent’s reliance on Global Horizon as negative 

authority is not compelling, because, contrary to Respondent’s assertion, Hernandez acted as 

Respondent’s agent.  The practical effect of this agency relationship is that when the workers 

paid Hernandez for the meal plan, it was as if they paid Respondent.  See Respondent’s Brief at 

11.  In other words, “the integrity of the wage setting process” in fact, did not remain “perfect 

intact.”  Id. at 12.  Respondent’s additional argument that, unlike the employer in Global 

Horizons, Respondent did not profit from the meal plan is also unavailing.  See id. at 13.  Profit 

can take many forms.  Although some profit was certainly quantifiable—like the profit 

Hernandez made for the beers and non-alcoholic beverages he sold, and the fact that Pinon, 

Hernandez’s wife, received employment in Respondent’s kitchen—some forms of profit are less 

quantifiable.  For example, Hernandez’s meal plan made unnecessary any costly expansion of 

Respondent’s kitchen facilities, which Respondent would have had to undertake to fulfill the 

terms the job orders at JX 1 and JX 3.  See Tr. at 175–76 (Hernandez testifying that the kitchen 

was not large enough “for everyone to cook”).  To argue, therefore, as Respondent does, that it 
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did not profit from the meal plan because no ready financial gain is apparent is not persuasive.  

Respondent did in fact profit from the sale of meals, so back pay is required.  See Admin. v. 

Global Horizons, 2010-TAE-00002, slip op. at 9 (ALJ Dec. 17, 2010); see also PROFIT, Black’s 

Law Dictionary (11th ed. 2019) (“The excess of revenues over expenditures in a business 

transaction.”) 

 

 Finally, Respondent’s argument that the Administrator’s back pay award “overstates any 

claimed ‘harm’” misses the point.  See Respondent’s Brief at 16.  When Respondent provided a 

meal plan to its workers, rather than kitchen access, Respondent changed a material term of the 

job order.  This contractual agreement codified a working relationship, which involves one party 

traveling sometimes thousands of miles from home, often with limited language skills.  See 

“Temporary Agricultural Employment of H-2A Aliens in the United States,” 29 FED. REG. 6884, 

6894 (Feb. 12, 2010) (“There is ample evidence that agricultural workers are a particularly 

vulnerable population.”)  A material change to the terms of that contract necessarily provides 

“harm” to both the workers’ reliance on the H-2A program to ensure that their rights are 

protected, as well as the overall integrity of the program itself.  To deter such harm from 

occurring in the future, the equities of the case require back pay at the meal plan’s full amount. 

 

 The Administrator, therefore, reasonably imposed a $128,285 back pay requirement, see 

PX 2, for the meal plan violations outlined above.  WHI Perez authored the back wage 

assessment in PX 2; he is highly qualified to do so and credibly testified to the methodology he 

used in arriving at the $128,285 back pay figure.  See Tr. at 305–08, 439–61.  Respondent 

improperly deducted meals concerning ninety-six of its H-2A workers and fifty-one of its 

domestic workers.
150

  For each worker, PX 2 lists the week worked (“payroll week ending” date) 

and how much the worker paid for, inter alia, meals.  The parties stipulated that Hernandez 

charged between $75 and $80 per week; the Administrator accounted for this variance in her 

calculations in PX 2.  The Administrator also subtracted those workers that did not engage in the 

meal plan from the back wage calculation.  The Administrator’s calculations, as expressed in PX 

2, are reasonable and support her requirement for Respondent to provide back pay in the amount 

of $128,285. 

 

2. Although back pay is required, the Administrator did not reasonably 

calculate the back pay owed to Respondent’s workers for non-alcoholic 

drinks purchased during the summer of 2015.  Respondent is liable to pay 

$64,960 in back wages for the non-alcoholic drinks the farmworkers 

purchased.   

 

 Hernandez—Respondent’s agent—sold workers non-alcoholic drinks throughout the day; 

either in the fields or at the company store.  See ALJX 1 at ¶ 23; Tr. at 22–23, 24–27, 96–97, 

189–90, 193–97, 266–67, 360, 502.  The money paid for the non-alcoholic drinks was an 

                                                 
150

  WHI Perez reasonably testified that the H-2A regulations do not allow an employer to discriminate 

between the treatment of H-2A workers and domestic workers.  This explains why the Administrator charged 

Respondent for any meal plan violations concerning both the domestic and H-2A workers Respondent employed 

during the summer of 2015.  See 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(a) (“The employer’s job offer must offer to U.S. workers no 

less than the same benefits, wages, and working conditions that the employer is offering, intends to offer, or will 

provide to H-2A workers.”). 
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unlawful deduction, because it reduced the workers’ pay below the required $11.29 per hour 

threshold.  ALJX 1 at ¶ 16; 20 C.F.R. §§ 655.120, 122(l), (p)(2).  Because the farmworkers’ 

access to clean water was sporadic—and the farmworkers had no other access to drinks aside 

from Respondent—it is appropriate to calculate back wages for the various drinks Hernandez 

sold.   

 

 Contrary to Respondent’s argument, see Respondent’s Brief at 20, allowing Hernandez to 

profit from non-alcoholic drink sales, indeed, would affect Respondent’s “bottom-line,” since 

such profit is reasonably viewed as a fringe benefit for Hernandez’s continued employment.  In 

other words, Respondent may have had to pay more to Hernandez absent the profits accrued 

from the non-alcoholic drinks he sold, thereby affecting Respondent’s “bottom-line.”   

 

 The Administrator attempted to reconstruct the amount of non-alcoholic drinks sold; 

Hernandez either destroyed or otherwise could not produce his records as to the workers’ 

purchase of drinks in the summer of 2015.  See Tr. at 209 (Hernandez’s testimony), 361 (WHI 

Perez stating that Hernandez “did not have purchase receipts for drinks,” even though he had 

such receipts for meals).  In doing so, the Administrator reasonably followed the standard 

propounded in Anderson v. Mt. Clemens Pottery Co., where the Supreme Court determined that, 

in an action to recover unpaid wages under the FLSA, an employee is required to provide exact 

evidence of unpaid wages.  328 U.S. 680, 686–89 (1946); see Administrator v. Fernandez Farms, 

Inc., 2014-TAE-00008, slip op. at 35 (ALJ Aug. 25, 2016) (applying the Mt. Clemens standard 

within a TAE context)).  Rather, where an employer fails to keep records documenting unpaid 

wages, the Supreme Court applies a burden-shifting standard, which first requires the employer 

to account for the charges.  Id. at 687.  If an employer does not provide accurate records, the 

burden shifts to the employee to provide “sufficient evidence to show the amount and extent of 

that work as a matter of just and reasonable inference.”  Id.  At that point, the burden shifts back 

to the employer to rebut the scope and size of the alleged violations.  Id. at 687–88. 

 

 The Mt. Clemens standard applies here, as the FLSA has similar records retention 

requirements as the H-2A program.  Twenty C.F.R. § 655.122(j), titled “Earnings Records,” 

requires employers under the Act “to keep accurate and adequate records with respect to the 

workers’ earnings, including but not limited to . . . records showing . . . the rate of pay (both 

piece rate and hourly, if applicable); the workers’ earnings per pay period . . . .”  Cf. 29 U.S.C.A. 

§ 211 (c); 29 C.F.R. Part 516 (providing similar requirements under the FLSA).  From a 

prudential standpoint, application of the Mt. Clemens test is reasonable here because, in both the 

FLSA and H-2A contexts, “[e]mployees seldom keep such records themselves; even if they do, 

the records may be and frequently are untrustworthy.”  328 U.S. at 687.  Accordingly, the Mt. 

Clemens burden-shifting construct applies to determine the amount of back pay owed to 

Respondent’s workers for the sale of non-alcoholic drinks. 

 

 Here, the Administrator reviewed the entirety of the record and concluded that each of 

Respondent’s workers purchased, on average, 4.42 drinks per day.  The preponderant evidence 

of record, however, establishes that the workers purchased an average of only four, not 4.42, 

non-alcoholic drinks per day.  It was reasonable, however, and likely in Employer’s favor, to 

Case 1:21-cv-16625-JHR-MJS   Document 1-3   Filed 09/08/21   Page 42 of 56 PageID: 85

Appx089

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-1     Page: 91      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



- 42 - 

assume that Respondent sold the drinks for an average of $1.25 per can.
151

  The weekly cost to 

an average worker for drink purchases in the summer of 2015 was $35.00.
152

  The Administrator 

considered 1,856 separate weeks
153

 in finding the total amount of non-alcoholic drinks consumed 

in the summer of 2015.  Thus, Respondent owes $64,960—not $71,790.08, as the Administrator 

recommended—in back pay for non-alcoholic drinks.
154

 

 

3. The Administrator reasonably calculated the back pay owed to the 

farmworkers for beer purchased during the summer of 2015.  Respondent, 

therefore, owes $8,972.61 in back pay for the profit Hernandez made on 

beer.   

 

 Similar to the non-alcoholic drinks issue, Hernandez did not keep accurate records as to 

the amount of beer sold to Respondent’s workers.  Therefore, the Mt. Clemens burden-shifting 

standard, again, applies.  Appendix C to the Administrator’s brief titled “Revised Back Wage 

Computations as to Illegal Beer Sales at a Profit.”  The Administrator revised her initial back pay 

assessment for the illicit beer purchases, see JX 10 (Order of Reference), after taking witness 

testimony at the hearing.  Appendix C lists the worker’s name, the number of weeks they were 

on Respondent’s payroll during the summer of 2015, as well as the total profit Respondent 

obtained from selling the worker beer.  For most workers (some did not imbibe), the 

Administrator utilized a profit per week of $4.87, based on its conclusion that the workers drank 

3.75 beers per week and Hernandez made $1.30 profit per can.  Because Hernandez unlawfully 

sold alcohol without a license, ALJX 1 at ¶ 26, the regulations do not permit him to make a profit 

off such sales.  See 29 C.F.R. § 531.31.  Therefore, the Administrator reasonably charged 

Respondent for Hernandez’s profit.  Respondent is unable to rebut the Administrator’s 

calculations as unreasonable.  As discussed, supra, the Administrator’s estimates as to the 

number of beers consumed per week and Hernandez’s profits were reasonable. 

 

4. The Administrator reasonably assessed $198,450 in CMPs concerning 

Respondent’s violations of 20 C.F.R. §§ 655.122(g), (p), and (q). 

 

 Although it was likely within the Administrator’s reasonable discretion to assess separate 

CMPs for each violation of 20 C.F.R. §§ 655.122(g), (p), and (q), the Administrator decided to 

assess one $1,350 CMP for the entirety of the violations of § 655.122.  The Administrator 

reasonably assessed the $1,350 CMP for each of the 147 effected workers, which amounts to a 

$198,450 CMP.  District Director Rachor explained that the Administrator assessed the CMP in 

                                                 
151

  Because the Mt. Clemens standard only requires estimates, it is irrelevant whether the Administrator 

calculated prices using numbers derived from Costco rather than Sam’s Club, where Hernandez shopped.  See 

Respondent’s Brief at 22.  Both are wholesale clubs and likely sell products at similar prices; precision is not 

required.   

 
152

  Four drinks per day bought at $1.25 per drink over a weekly period of seven days.   

 
153

  The total amount of non-alcoholic drinks the Administrator found was $71,790.08.  That figure divided by 

the weekly amount it considered ($38.68) shows the total number of weeks (1,856 weeks) the Administrator 

considered.   See PX 2.   

 
154

  $35.00 per week multiplied by 1,856 separate weeks.  
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this way due to the seriousness of the violation and the “large amount of workers affected.”  (Tr. 

at 849.)  The Administrator’s assessment of a $1,350 CMP for each worker was reasonable, 

because she reviewed each of the mitigation criteria at 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(b).  (Tr. at 849–54)  

The Administrator allowed a ten percent reduction in the CMP, due to the fact that Respondent 

had no prior history with the H-2A program.  (Tr. at 852.)  That assessment is accurate and 

reasonable.  Because of the large amount of workers affected, the Administrator reasonably did 

not allow a reduction for the second mitigation factor.  The Administrator rationally viewed the 

violation as serious, and so appropriately did not provide a reduction for the third factor.  

Concerning the fourth factor, whether Respondent made good faith efforts to comply, the 

Administrator reasonably did not make a reduction; even throughout the hearing, Russel Marino, 

Jr. continued to argue that Respondent complied with its requirement to provide the workers with 

kitchen access.  See Tr. at 772.  The Administrator did not allow for a reduction for factor five 

because Respondent never provided a good explanation for not abiding by the job order.  That 

consideration was rational.  Because Respondent did not commit to future compliance, the 

Administrator reasonably did not apply the sixth factor.  Finally, the Administrator appropriately 

recognized the financial gain to Respondent from the meal plan and other items sold to the 

farmworkers and declined to apply the final mitigation factor.  Because the Administrator 

rationally considered all of the § 501.19(b) mitigation factors, the $198,450 CMP for violations 

of 20 C.F.R. §§ 655.122(g), (p), and (q) is appropriate.   

 

II. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i)(1) in discharging twenty-four total workers 

before they had worked for at least three-fourths of the workdays of the total period 

specified in the work contract.  The Administrator properly found that $142,728.22 in 

total back wages are due and reasonably assessed $1,350 in CMPs. 

 

 The H-2A regulations require employers “to offer the worker employment for a total 

number of work hours equal to at least three-fourths of the workdays of the total period . . . 

specified in the work contract.”  20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i)(1).  The Administrator assessed back 

wages and CMPs concerning Respondent’s violation of the three-fourths requirement to three 

discrete groups of workers.  The first set involves the nineteen workers that Respondent 

terminated after the May 2015 argument.  See Administrator’s Brief at 63–73.  The second set 

concerns four workers—Luna Gonzales, Elizondo Soto, Raya Tapia, and Morales Acosta—

whom Respondent laid off in August 2019.  See Administrator’s Brief at 63.  The final set 

concerns a single worker, Islas Larraga, who last worked for Respondent on June 9, 2015.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 73.  Application of the governing law establishes that Respondent 

terminated or otherwise constructively discharged each of the twenty-four workers, and that the 

Administrator reasonably assessed back wages and CMPs for violation of the § 655.122(i) three-

fourths requirement.   

 

A. After the May 2015 argument, Respondent terminated nineteen workers without 

cause.  Back pay is therefore due.   

 

 Upon arrival at the camp, Hernandez was openly hostile to the workers.  Cheguez 

testified that Hernandez was a “bad” supervisor and threatened the workers with deportation if 

they did not work faster.  (Tr. at 138–39.)  Elizondo Soto’s deposition testimony supports 

Cheguez’s recollection.  See PX 5 at 125.  Additionally, the workers arrived at the camp and 
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encountered the working and housing conditions from which the current litigation arises.  As 

discussed throughout this Decision and Order, those conditions were oftentimes in violation of 

the governing federal regulations, state law, or both.  It was within this context that the nineteen 

workers engaged with Hernandez and Russel Marino, Jr., which lead to the May 2015 argument 

that ended in their termination.  Cf. Tr. at 106–7 (Gustavo Perez stating that the argument 

represented the workers’ attempt at fixing the foregoing problems with Respondent).  During the 

conversation, Russel Marino, Jr. became upset and became verbally and, perhaps even, 

physically abusive.  See Tr. at 107–08 (Gustavo Perez stating that Russel Marino, Jr. was very 

upset and cursed at the farmworkers, and feeling like he could not continue working), 147 

(Cheguez remembering that Russel Marino, Jr. “scream[ed] and yell[ed] in an arrogant way”), 

222 (Hernandez stating that Russel Marino, Jr. “was a little bit upset”); PX 9 at 232, 258 (Hugo 

Leonel Cinta Tegoma recalling during deposition that Russel Marino, Jr. tried to hit him).  In his 

anger, Russel Marino, Jr. terminated the nineteen workers.  See Tr. at 39–40, 65 (Maldonado 

stating that Russel Marino, Jr. had “practically fired us”), 80–83 (Maldonado recalling that 

Russel Marino, Jr. said that the workers “could leave” if they did not like the conditions and that 

Russel Marino, Jr. “practically fired [the farmworkers]” during the argument, and that he felt like 

he “needed to leave”; he left due to problems “with my boss”), 107–08, 125–29 (Gustavo Perez 

recalling that Russel Marino, Jr. was upset at the farmworkers and said “we weren’t necessary” 

during the argument, that he did not have the opportunity to continue working for Respondent 

due to the conversation, and that Hernandez told him he “must leave”).  Respondent argues that, 

given the status of the asparagus crop as ripe for harvesting, it makes no logical sense for Russel 

Marino, Jr. to fire the nineteen workers.  See Respondent’s Brief at 24–26.   

 

 However, the employee witnesses were consistent in describing the heated events at the 

meeting while Joseph Marino was unable to remember specifically what was said.  During his 

deposition, Joseph Marino testified that he that he did not recall what was said at the argument; 

at the hearing, Joseph Marino said he recalled “part of what [Russel Marino, Jr.] said.”  (Tr. at 

825–29.)  Joseph Marino’s testimony, compared to the employees, lacks credibility.  The facts, 

as presented at the hearing, are that the employees arrived at the worksite to find a difficult 

supervisor in Hernandez, grueling work picking asparagus, and living conditions that were not as 

promised in their contract.  They asked for a meeting to try to address the issues with 

management; this angered management, who felt pressure to get their crop harvested.  

Management made a decision, albeit a rash, and perhaps illogical, decision, to terminate this 

group of workers and then quickly replace the terminated workers.  See JX 2, JX 6 (showing a 

number of H-2A workers hired at the end of May 2015).  Considering the entirety of the 

evidence, Respondent terminated the nineteen workers that left in May 2015 before they worked 

the guaranteed three-fourths of the hours promised in their contracts, and is liable for any back 

pay due because of such termination. 

 

1. Assuming, arguendo, Respondent did not terminate the workers in May 

2015; it constructively discharged such workers.  Back pay, therefore, is 

due.   

 

 To find constructive discharge, a plaintiff must “show working conditions so intolerable 

that a reasonable person would have felt compelled to resign.”  Pennsylvania State Police v. 

Suders, 542 U.S. 129, 147 (2004); WHD Bulletin No. 2012-1 (Feb. 28, 2012) (“If a worker 
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departs employment because working conditions have become so intolerable that a reasonable 

person in the worker’s position would not stay, the worker’s departure may constitute a 

constructive discharge and not abandonment”).  The Administrative Review Board emphasizes 

that the analysis turns on the employee’s “reasonable inferences” drawn from the statements and 

conduct of the employer.  Jackson v. Protein Express, 95-STA-38 (Jan. 9, 1997).  The Third 

Circuit
155

 instructs finders of fact to review the following nonexclusive factors:  “(1) a threat of 

discharge; (2) suggestions or encouragement of resignation; (3) a demotion or reduction of pay 

or benefits; (4) involuntary transfer to a less desirable position; (5) alteration of job 

responsibilities; (6) unsatisfactory job evaluations.”  Nuness v. Simon & Schuster, Inc., 325 F. 

Supp. 3d 535, 560 (D.N.J. 2018) (summarizing Clowes v. Allegheny Valley Hosp., 991 F.2d 

1159, 1161 (3d Cir. 1993)); WHD Bulletin No. 2012-1 (“the terms and conditions of the 

worker’s employment must have been effectively altered by the employer’s conduct,” and 

intolerable housing and working conditions can demonstrate a constructive discharge claim).  In 

Clowes, the Third Circuit reversed a finding of constructive discharge, in part, when the plaintiff 

“was never threatened with discharge; nor did her employer ever urge or suggest that she resign 

or retire.”  991 F.2d at 1161.  The Wage and Hour Division advises that a worker who quits 

because the worker is “unhappy with the general nature of work assignments” is not 

constructively discharged. 

 

 Assuming it did not fire the workers outright, the preponderant evidence demonstrates 

that Respondent constructively discharged the nineteen workers who left in May 2015.  The first 

Clowes factor is satisfied.  Hernandez threatened the workers with discharge, and Russel Marino, 

Jr. likely fired the workers during the May 2019 argument.  See supra.  Therefore, unlike the 

plaintiff in Clowes, here Respondent actually threatened the workers with discharge, or the 

workers reasonably inferred such a threat, or both.  991 F.2d at 1161.  Indeed, Respondent likely 

outright fired the nineteen farmworkers.  The first Clowes factor weighs considerably toward a 

finding of a constructive discharge; the deplorable situation in which the workers found 

themselves upon arrival at Respondent’s farm compounds the significance of this consideration. 

 

 Another Clowes factor fulfilled here is that Respondent’s actions materially reduced the 

workers’ benefits.  Despite the assurances Respondent made on the job order—the employment 

agreement both sides agreed upon prior to the summer 2015 growing season—the workers 

arrived at Respondent’s camp to learn not only that they did not have kitchen access, but also 

that Employer expected them to pay for a meal plan costing between seventy-five and eighty-

dollars per week.  This arrangement caused a quantifiable reduction in the benefits the workers 

reasonably relied upon when agreeing to travel to the United States to work in Respondent’s 

fields. 

 

                                                 
155

  As this case arose in New Jersey, the undersigned will apply the law of the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 

Third Circuit.  In a case arising within the State of California, an administrative law judge applied Ninth Circuit law.  

Without passing specific judgment on the ALJ’s decision to do so, the Administrative Review Board affirmed in full 

the administrative law judge’s Decision and Order.  See Global Horizons, ARB Case No. 09-016, ALJ Case No. 

2008-TAE-00003, 11 (Dec. 21, 2010); Delegation of Authority and Assignment of Responsibility to the 

Administrative Review Board, 77 FED. REG. 69378, 69378–80 (Nov. 16, 2012) (declining to provide any discussion 

as to which circuit law applies to the Administrative Review Board’s review of an administrative law judge’s 

decision and order in a TAE matter).   
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 Finally, Hernandez changed the terms and conditions of the workers’ responsibilities.  

Contrary to the job order, the workers regularly worked twelve-hour days in extreme weather 

conditions.  The job order stated that they would work between five and seven hours per day 

(except one day per week), see JX 1 and JX 3; however, the workers testified to regularly 

working twelve-hour days.  Although the job orders stated that workers “may be requested” to 

work additional hours, see id., the corroborative testimony of numerous workers establishes that 

Hernandez told the workers where, when, and how long to work and that he often directed them 

to work twelve hour days.  This was a material change to the workers’ responsibilities as listed 

on the job orders, and so the fifth Clowes factor applies. 

 

 Thus, the evidence of record establishes many of the Clowes factors, including threat of 

discharge, reduction of benefits, and alteration of job responsibilities.  Although the other 

factors—suggestions or encouragement of resignation, involuntary transfer, and unsatisfactory 

job evaluations—are not satisfied, those factors do not necessary apply to the exigencies of the 

working situation at Respondent’s farm.  Weighing the Clowes factors in the totality, the 

Administrator has preponderantly established that Respondent constructively discharged 

nineteen farmworkers after the May 2015 argument. 

 

 Aside from the Clowes factors, the WHD Bulletin provides additional guidance that 

compels a finding that Respondent constructively discharged the workers who left in May 2015.  

See WHD Bulletin No. 2012-1 (“Constructive discharge may exist when a worker leaves the job 

because the housing conditions in which the worker is required to live are intolerable and violate 

applicable safety and health standards (i.e., grossly inadequate heating during the winter, lack of 

running water, exposure of bare electrical wires).”  As demonstrated, infra, Respondent is liable 

for numerous violations of the regulations concerning the proper housing and transportation of 

H-2A workers.  The workers’ housing conditions involved broken screens, which allowed in 

flies and other pests.  The dormitory area also had litter strewn on the ground and trashcans 

without lids; the bathrooms lacked sufficient hot water.  Respondent also provided unsafe 

transportation to its workers.  When the workers initially arrived, the fields lacked bathrooms and 

access to water.  All of these violations further demonstrate that Respondent committed a 

constructive discharge of the nineteen workers who left after the May 2015 argument.   

 

 The nineteen terminated or otherwise constructively discharged workers, therefore, did 

not abandon their positions.  See 655.122(n) (providing that the three-fourths guarantee does not 

apply to workers who voluntarily abandon their jobs); WHD Bulletin No. 2012-1 (stating that a 

constructively discharged worker does not commit the act of abandonment).  Although the WHD 

Bulletin states that constructive discharge does not apply to workers who are merely unhappy 

with their work assignment; that provision does not apply here.  The facts establish that the 

workers engaged with Hernandez and Russel Marino, Jr., because the workers wanted to work 

but were unhappy with the working and living conditions.  The workers’ concerns were not 

subjective; they related to the actual living and working conditions they faced while working for 

Respondent.  The fact that other workers stayed while the nineteen workers left, see 

Respondent’s Brief at 27, does nothing to dispel the unacceptable—and at times unlawful—

conditions to which Respondent subjected the farmworkers.  Because Respondent terminated or 

otherwise constructively discharged the nineteen workers after the May 2015 argument, the 

Administrator has established a three-fourths violation concerning such workers. 
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2. Respondent violated the three-fourths guarantee concerning four of the 

forty-four workers it laid off in August 2015. Therefore, back pay is 

warranted.   

 

 Respondent laid off forty-four workers in August 2015 due to inclement weather and lack 

of work.  Respondent did not meet the three-fourths guarantee for four such workers:  Luna 

Gonzalez, Elizondo Soto, Raya Tapia, and Morales Acosta.  See PX 1; Tr. at 702–04.  At the 

hearing, Respondent withdrew RX 4, which—according to “Respondent’s Exhibit List”—

contained a “calculation of hours worked for [six] workers.”  See “Respondent’s Exhibit List; 

see also Tr. at 702–04.  Respondent’s counsel stated “I was wrong” about the contents of RX 4, 

and agreed that the Administrator provided accurate calculations as to Respondent’s three-

fourths violations concerning Luna Gonzalez, Elizondo Soto, Raya Tapia, and Morales Acosta.  

(Tr. at 704.)  In its brief, Respondent did not discuss or otherwise defend against the alleged 

three-fourths guarantee violation concerning these four workers.  Accordingly, the undersigned 

finds that Respondent does not controvert the violation of the three-fourths guarantee concerning 

Luna Gonzalez, Elizondo Soto, Raya Tapia, and Morales Acosta.  Review of the evidence of 

record further establishes that fact. 

 

3. Respondent violated the three-fourths guarantee concerning Jose Islas 

Larraga, and he deserves back pay.   

 

 According to the information Respondent provided to the Administrator, Islas Larraga 

last worked for Respondent on June 9, 2015.  See PX 1.  The regulations only absolve an 

employer from liability for a worker’s three-fourths guarantee when the worker abandons the job 

or is otherwise terminated for cause.  20 C.F.R. § 655.122(n).  The record contains no evidence 

to establish that Islas Larraga abandoned his job.  Assuming, arguendo, he did abandon his job, 

the regulations would only relieve Respondent of three-fourths guarantee liability if it provided 

timely notice to the Department.  See id. (referring to the DOL Notification Process at 76 FED. 

REG. 21,041).  Respondent provided no notice to the Department concerning the end of Islas 

Larraga’s employment.  Therefore, Respondent violated the three-fourths guarantee concerning 

Islas Larraga, as well. 

 

4. The Administrator reasonably computed back wages for the twenty-four 

workers discussed in this section. 

 

 WHI Perez has worked as an investigator for U.S. Department of Labor, the Wage and 

Hour Division for six years.  (Tr. at 305–06.)  Of the 200 cases he has helped investigate during 

his tenure with the Department, WHI Perez has worked on between five and ten cases 

concerning violations of the H-2A regulations.  (Tr. at 306.)  WHI Perez created the table at PX 

1, which calculated the three-fourths guarantee for the twenty-four workers for whom 

Respondent is required to remit back pay.  The undersigned admitted PX 1 as a summary of 

voluminous records under 29 C.F.R. § 18.1006.  The voluminous records that PX 1 summarizes 

are Respondent’s weekly payroll records, which are contained in the record at PX 23.  See Tr. at 

420–21.  Charlene Rachor is the “District Director of the Southern New Jersey District Office for 

the Wage and Hour Division.”  (Tr. at 845.)  In that capacity, District Director Rachor oversees 
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investigations, supervises investigators, and issues letters regarding findings of investigations 

including H-2A determination letters.  (Id.)  Although District Director Rachor was not WHI 

Perez’s supervisor, she supported the quality of WHI Perez’s work product and stated that “he 

would do the back wages as accurately as possible.”  (Tr. at 897–98.)  District Director Rachor 

said that WHI Perez’s supervisor would have reviewed his back wages calculations.  (Tr. at 898.)  

WHI Perez described the methodology he employed to determine back wages due, (Tr. at 420–

30); his testimony was reasonable based on the evidence of record.  Aside from arguing that 

voluntary abandonment voids the three-fourth guarantee, Respondent did not criticize WHI 

Perez’s calculations or the methodology he applied in PX 1 concerning either the nineteen 

workers terminated in May 2015 or Islas Larraga.  See Respondent’s Brief at 23–28.  Review of 

PX 1 shows that WHI Perez reasonably determined not only that a three-fourths violation 

occurred, but also the back wages Respondent owes, because of such underpayment. 

 

 Respondent, however, alleged that WHI Perez failed to account for the hours Respondent 

offered to the four workers whom it laid off in August 2015, and for whom the Administrator 

asserted violations of the three-fourths guarantee.  See Respondent’s Brief at 28–30.  Respondent 

noted that its tracking system was incapable of capturing any time, for example, where 

Respondent offered hours to a worker, but the worker was sick or otherwise unable to take the 

hours.  Id.  Respondent’s argument is unpersuasive, as the governing regulations require it to 

“keep accurate and adequate records with respect to the workers earnings, including but not 

limited to . . . records showing . . . the number of hours of work offered each day . . . .”  20 

C.F.R. § 655.122(j)(1) (emphasis added); see § 655.122(j)(3).  Although Respondent took ample 

testimony about the immoderate costs and general capabilities concerning its record keeping 

system, see Tr. at 682–86, 706, 798, Respondent is unable to argue persuasively that the 

Administrator’s calculations are unreasonable when Respondent’s tracking system does not 

comport with the regulatory requirements.  The Administrator, therefore, reasonably calculated 

the back wages owed to the four workers laid off in August 2015. 

 

 In sum, the Administrator reasonably assessed a combined $142,728.22 in back wages 

for Respondent’s three-fourths guarantee violations concerning the nineteen farmworkers 

terminated in May 2015, the four farmworkers laid off in August 2015, and Islas Larraga.   

 

5. The Administrator reasonably assessed a single $1,350 CMP for the 

violations discussed in this section. 

 

Additionally, the Administrator assessed a reasonable CMP of $1,350,
156

 total, for 

Respondent’s various three-fourths guarantee violations.  The Administrator reasonably 

considered all of the mitigation factors.  See Tr. at 856–58, 935–37.  District Director Rachor 

explained the importance of the three-fourths guarantee: 

 

Well, as I said, we have a situation where, you know, workers are -- H-2A allows 

an employer to bring over farmer workers, non-immigrant workers by laying out 

                                                 
156

  At the time of the assessment, the governing regulations allowed the Administrator to assess $1,500 in civil 

money penalties for “[e]ach failure to pay an individual worker properly or to honor the terms or conditions of a 

worker’s employment.”  29 C.F.R. § 501.19(a), (c) (2016). 
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terms and conditions of employment basically in the form of a contract.  The 

workers are provided a copy of that so they can see, okay, this is the money I'm 

going to earn.  If they come here and they are terminated, forced to resign, and 

they don't receive that three-[fourths] guarantee, now that’s wages that they’ve 

lost and perhaps they wouldn’t have come. 

 

(Tr. at 858.)  The undersigned finds compelling District Director Rachor’s explanation of the 

rationale behind the Administrator’s decision to apply CMPs for the three-fourths guarantee 

violations.  District Director Rachor also rationally explained the Administrator’s decision to 

apply only the mitigation factor concerning Respondent’s lack of a history of violations.  See Tr. 

at 856–57.  The undersigned agrees with the Administrator’s decision not to apply the remaining 

mitigation factors.  The Administrator, therefore, reasonably assessed one $1,350 CMP for 

Respondent’s twenty-four three-fourths guarantee violations. 

 

III. The Administrator reasonably decided to assess a $1,350 CMP for Respondent’s 

attempt to cause its workers to waive the three-fourths guarantee. 

 

A $1,350 CMP for Employer’s attempt to cause its workers to waive the three-fourths 

guarantee is reasonable.  Twenty-nine C.F.R. § 501.5 mandates, “[a] person may not seek to 

have an H-2A worker . . . or a U.S. worker . . . waive any rights conferred under 8 U.S.C. 1188, 

20 C.F.R. part 655, subpart B.”  Under 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i), employers are required “to offer 

the worker employment for a total number of work hours equal to at least three-fourths of the 

workdays of the total period . . . .”  Here, Employer provided worker departure forms to the 

nineteen farmworkers that left in May 2015.  The worker departure forms stated that the 

farmworkers voluntarily left their jobs due to personal issues.
157

  The regulations consider such 

an act “abandonment,” the practical effect of which is to forego a farmworker’s three-fourths 

guarantee.”  See § 655.122(n).  The worker departure forms Respondent provided did not allow 

the farmworkers to state the true reasons they left.  Respondent affirmatively provided the 

worker departure forms to the Department and other government agencies.  This was a 

misrepresentation, as Respondent terminated or otherwise constructively discharged the workers.  

Further, Respondent admitted in its brief that the workers had no sick or deceased family 

members.  See Respondent’s Brief at 31; PX 15 at 475 (Russel Marino, Jr. stating that the 

purpose of the worker departure forms was to “protect against . . . this lawsuit”).  That a third 

party may have advised the workers to sign the form as written does not absolve Respondent’s 

liability from first, affirmatively providing forms with false information to the workers and 

second providing such documents to the Department. 

 

Although the worker departure forms do not specifically state that the workers would 

give up their three-fourths guarantee, a proximate result of the misrepresentation is that the 

workers would forfeit their right to the three-fourths guarantee.  The forms averred that 

                                                 
157

  See Tr. at 37 (Maldonado’s testimony), 108–110, 149–50 (Cheguez’s testimony), 225 (Hernandez’s 

testimony), 272–74 (Almanza testifying that Hernandez gave the workers a form “and asked us to sign the paper 

because ‘there was no other choice’” and “we couldn’t do anything about it”), 409–10 (WHI Perez’s testimony), 

732–34 (Russel Marino, Jr. saying that he gave the worker “the option to check off the box that said they were 

returning home because of personal reasons”), 769 (Russel Marino, Jr. recalling that he brought forms for the 

workers to sign stating that they were “resigning”).   
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Respondent offered the worker additional work sufficient to complete the three-fourths 

guarantee; however, Respondent never made such a representation to the workers.  Russel 

Marino, Jr. said that he did not want to have the workers sign a form saying that they were 

terminated, so he “gave them the option” to say that they quit for personal reasons.  (Tr. at 733.)  

The fact that Respondent did not allow the workers to attest to the exact reason they left 

Respondent’s employ renders moot Respondent’s argument that it did not seek to have the 

employees waive any right.  See Respondent’s Brief at 31.  Here, the worker departure forms 

effectively waived the farmworkers’ right to the three-fourths guarantee; Respondent coerced the 

farmworkers into doing so.   

 

To arrive at the $1,350 CMP, the Administrator decided against instituting the penalty 

per violation; rather the Administrator applied one $1,500 CMP, which included a $150 

deduction because Respondent had no prior violations.  See Tr. at 856–58.  The Administrator 

made the $150 deduction after reviewing all mitigation factors.  (Id.)  Based on review of the 

record and the findings of fact made herein—including Respondent’s limited experience with the 

H-2A program—the Administrator’s decision to impose a $1,350 CMP for Respondent’s 

violation of 29 C.F.R. 501.5 is reasonable. 

 

IV. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(d)(1) by providing inadequate housing, but the 

Administrator did not impose a reasonable $3,600 CMP.  Rather, a $3,150 CMP is 

reasonable to assess.   

 

 As discussed below, the Administrator has successfully established violations for the 

bathroom windows with missing or broken screens, dormitory windows with missing or broken 

screens, uncovered garbage cans, and a shortage of hot water.  However, the Administrator is 

unable to demonstrate that Employer committed a violation due to the provision of any unclean 

mattresses.  A separate CMP for any mattress violation, therefore, is not warranted.   

 

A. The Administrator assessed a reasonable $3,150 CMP resulting from 

Respondent’s housing violations concerning missing or broken screens, 

uncovered garbage cans, and a shortage of hot water 

 

The Administrator assessed $3,150 in CMPs for four violations of 20 C.F.R. 

§ 655.122(d)(1), as follows: $900 for the unscreened bathroom windows; $900 for the faulty 

dormitory screen windows and doors; $900 for the uncovered garbage cans; and $450 for the hot 

water shortage.  See Administrator’s Brief at 84 (citing JX 10 at 160; Tr. 861–65, 938–39).  

Because Respondent’s dormitories were built prior to 1980, the applicable regulations are the 

Employment and Training Administration Housing Standards codified at 20 C.F.R. §§ 654.404 

through 654.417.  The Administrator assessed reasonable CMPs because of Respondent’s four 

discrete violations of § 655.122(d)(1).  First, the record clearly shows unscreened bathroom 

windows.  See Tr. at 331; PX 28, pages 1046–47.  Section 654.408(a) mandates that “all outside 

opening . . . be protected with screening of not less than [sixteen] mesh.”  The Administrator, 

therefore, has successfully established a violation of § 655.122(d)(1).  Second, the record shows 

obviously broken screens on the windows and doors of the dormitory in violation of 

§ 654.408(a).  See Tr. at 201–03 (Hernandez’s testimony); PX 28, pages 1049–55.  WHI Perez 

recalled the presence of flies in the dormitory.  (Tr. at 323–28.)  Third, the grounds surrounding 
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Respondent’s dormitory also contained uncovered trash cans.  Section 654.414 requires 

employers to provide “fly tight, clean containers . . . adjacent to each housing unit for the storage 

of garbage or other refuse.”  Here, some of the garbage cans surrounding the dormitory did not 

have lids and WHI Perez noted the presence of flies around such lidless garbage cans.  See Tr. at 

324, 332.  PX 33, page 1094, is a photograph of an open pile of discarded cans of soda and beer.  

See Tr. at 374–75, 603–04.  The pile of discarded cans is located “directly across from the 

dormitory housing.”  (Tr. at 375.)  PX 33, pages 1095 through 1102, are more photographs of the 

discarded cans.
  

(Id.)  The Administrator, therefore, has established a violation of § 654.414.  

Fourth, the Administrator reasonably assessed $450 in CMPs for the shortage of hot water.  

According to § 654.412, “[b]athing and hand washing facilities, supplied with hot and cold water 

under pressure, must be provided for the use of all occupants.”  Here, the bathrooms at 

Respondent’s dormitory lacked sufficient hot water.  See Tr. at 30, 59–60 (Maldonado’s 

testimony), 103–04 (Gustavo Perez’s testimony), 330 (WHI Perez’s testimony that he had to 

wait two to three minutes “to determine that there was no hot water present”); PX 7 at 189 (Silva 

Lopez recalling that, at times, he took cold showers); PX 11 at 288 (Hector Mishel Garcia 

Dominguez stating in his deposition that there was only enough hot water for ten people to 

shower before it ran out).  Cf.  203, 215 (Hernandez’s testimony that workers had to “wait a little 

bit” for hot water).  Respondent, therefore, violated the hot water requirement at § 654.412.  The 

Administrator reviewed and applied the various mitigation factors at 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(b) to the 

facts surrounding the violation and reasonably reduced the CMPs to $3,150.
158

  See Tr. at 862–

66.   

 

 Finally, Respondent argued that the Administrator did not attempt to determine whether 

Respondent addressed the housing violations WHI Perez observed.  See Respondent’s Brief at 

31–33.  This argument is unavailing, because the record does not establish that Respondent ever 

contacted the Administrator to inform her that it made such repairs.  Therefore, the Administrator 

reasonably reviewed the mitigating factors at 29 C.F.R. §501.19(b), and rationally assessed 

CMPs for the foregoing housing violations.   

   

B. The CMP assessed for the unclean mattress violation is unreasonable. 

                                                 
158

  Concerning the bathroom screens, screen doors, and garbage cans, the Administrator applied the same 

mitigation factors and for the same reasons.  The Administrator allowed a ten percent reduction because Respondent 

lacked a history of violations.  However, the Administrator did not allow a reduction due to the number of workers 

affected, because of the gravity of the violation, because Respondent did not correct the violations immediately, and 

because Respondent provided no good explanation for the violations.  See Tr. at 863–64.  The Administrator applied 

the various mitigation factors at 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(b) to the facts surrounding the violation and reasonably reduced 

the CMP from a base penalty of $1,500 to $450.  See Tr. at 865–66.  The Administrator applied a ten percent 

deduction due to Respondent’s commitment to future compliance and another ten percent deduction because the 

profit and loss component did not apply.  Id.  

 

 Concerning the hot water violation, the Administrator did not apply mitigation factor number two, because 

the lack of hot water affected a large number of workers.  The Administrator applied the mitigation factors for the 

gravity of the violation, because nobody was injured; she applied mitigation factor number five because Respondent 

provided a good explanation in that it did not know of the violation.  The Administrator also applied mitigation 

factor six for a commitment to future compliance and another ten percent reduction because the Respondent did not 

stand to make any financial gain.  Tr. at 865–66; see also Tr. at 937 (stating that the Administrator applied the same 

mitigation factors for the hot water and purported mattress violations, except the Administrator did not apply 

mitigation factor two).  All of the Administrator’s decision are reasonable based on the factual record.   
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The Administrator assessed a $450 CMP for unclean mattresses, which WHI Perez 

observed and photographed.  See Administrator’s Brief at 84 (citing JX 10 at 160; Tr. 862–66, 

938–39).  The CMP is unreasonable.  The Administrator assessed the CMP due to a purported 

violation of 20 C.F.R. § 654.416, which requires an employer to “provide[]” H-2A workers with 

facilities consisting of, inter alia, “bunks, provided with clean mattresses.”  Here, WHI Perez 

assessed the violation, even though he “assumed” each worker had a mattress, and he could not 

recall if he observed any bunkbeds that were missing mattresses.  See Tr. at 599; see also Tr. at 

493.  WHI Perez observed and photographed mattresses on the floor.  See Tr. at 329; PX 28 at 

1056.  However, the photograph and WHI Perez’s testimony does not preponderantly establish 

that Employer was in violation of § 654.416.  The mattresses in the photograph are covered in 

bedsheets and other belongings, and so do not reasonably show the cleanliness of the employer-

provided mattress.  Although it is possible that the floor is unclean, thereby making the mattress 

unclean, neither the photographic nor the testimonial evidence proves this point.  The 

Administrator did not successfully establish that Respondent did not “provide[]” its workers with 

“clean mattresses.”  § 654.416.  Accordingly, the $450 CMP for unclean mattresses is not a 

reasonable penalty. 

 

V. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(h)(4) through its use of substandard 

transportation and use of unlicensed drivers.  The Administrator imposed a reasonable 

$7,500 in CMPs. 

 

 Twenty C.F.R. § 655.122(h)(4) requires “[a]ll employer-provided transportation” to 

“comply with all applicable Federal, State or local laws and regulations.”  The Administrator 

reasonably assessed CMPs against Respondent because it used drivers without proper licenses, 

and because it transported its farmworkers using buses that fell below state and federal safety 

standards. 

 

A. The $7,500 total CMP the Administrator imposed for transportation violations (20 

C.F.R. § 655.122(h)(4)) was reasonable considering Respondent’s violation for 

using unlicensed bus drivers. 

 

 The laws of the State of New Jersey prohibit driving on “public highways” without a 

driver’s license.  See N.J. Stat. Ann. § 39:3-10).  New Jersey also prohibits the transportation of 

migrant farmworkers by drivers who are not licensed in the United States or Canada.  See 

Administrator’s Brief at 86–87 (citing N.J. Admin. Code § 13:21-13.2).  Additionally, the H-2A 

regulations require drivers to possess a “valid permit qualifying the driver to operate the type of 

vehicle driven by him in the jurisdiction by which the permit is issued.”  29 C.F.R. § 

500.105(b)(1)(iii) (incorporated by reference in 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(h)(4)). 

 

 Here, in response to WHI Perez’s request, none of the five workers WHI Perez observed 

driving the buses provided him with acceptable driver’s licenses.
 
  See Tr. at 393, 399–400.  

Hernandez only provided driver’s licenses to WHI Perez for three of the five drivers WHI Perez 

observed.  (Tr. at 400.)  Two had Mexican driver’s licenses and one had an expired Mexican 

driver’s license; the other two drivers had no licenses.  See 390–401; PX 30 at 1064–72.  The 

Administrator, therefore, has reasonably proven a violation of § 655.122(h)(4).  The 
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Administrator reviewed the mitigation factors at 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(b), and reasonably assessed 

reductions of the CMPs.  See Tr. at 868–70.
159

 

 

B. The $7,500 total CMP the Administrator imposed for transportation violations (20 

C.F.R. § 655.122(h)(4)) was also reasonable considering Respondent’s violation 

for using unsafe vehicles. 

 

 The Administrator reasonably found two violations concerning the vehicles Respondent 

used to transport its farmworkers.  One of the buses Respondent used to transport its 

farmworkers had a broken rear tail light.  See Tr. at 405; PX 29 at 1057 (showing that bus 

number 205 has a broken right rear turn signal).  The obviously broken tail light put Respondent 

in violation of federal and state motor vehicle laws.  See, e.g., 29 C.F.R. § 500.105(b)(3)(ii) 

(incorporating the lighting devices required under 49 U.S.C. 3102(c)); 49 C.F.R. § 393.11 (titled 

“Parts and Accessories Necessary For Safe Operation,” specifically concerning commercial 

vehicles); N.J. Stat. Ann. § 39:3-61(a) (titled “Lamps and Reflectors Required on Particular 

Vehicles.”).  The CMP was reasonable, as it took into account the violation and the 

Administrator’s review of the mitigation factors at 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(b).   

 

 The Administrator also rationally proved that the Respondent committed a violation by 

operating three buses with worn tires.  Regardless of the instrument by which the investigator 

measured the tread on the tires, it is plainly evident that the Respondent operated buses with 

bald, unsafe tires.  See Tr. at 402–06, 607–08; PX 29, pages 1058–63 (showing three tires that 

are clearly unsafe for road use due to the condition of the tire as worn, cracked, or both).  

Respondent did so in violation of federal and state laws.  See 29 C.F.R. § 500.105(b)(3)(v); N.J. 

Admin. Code § 13:21-13.11(b) (prohibiting motor vehicles from transferring migrant workers 

with “tires which have been worn so smooth as to expose the tire fabric or which shall have any 

other defect likely to cause failure of the tire.”).  Respondent’s actions also put lives at risk.  The 

Administrator reviewed the mitigation factors at 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(b) and reasonably assessed a 

CMP of $750 per vehicle.  See Tr. at 870–71.  The gravity of the violation—involving a threat to 

the health and safety of Respondent’s workers—is such that the Administrator’s decision to 

apply any of the mitigation factors whatsoever represents a lenient decision.  See Tr. at 868–74. 

 

VI. Conclusion 

 

 This Decision modifies, in part, the Administrator’s findings.  Nevertheless, the 

preponderant evidence of record establishes that Respondent must remit $344,945.80
160

 in back 

                                                 
159

  The Administrator reasonably allowed a ten percent reduction due to Respondent’s lack of history with the 

H-2A program; her decisions to allow additional ten percent reductions due to the number of workers involved, and 

Respondent’s commitment to future compliance, financial gain to the Respondent, and the catch all factor were also 

correct based on the record.  (Tr. at 868–69.)  The Administrator reasonably explained why it did not provide 

reductions for the gravity of the violation—unlicensed drivers are a safety hazard—as well as Respondent’s efforts 

to comply in good faith and its explanation for the violation.  (Id.)  Respondent’s practice of using unlicensed drivers 

demonstrates its general disregard for the safety and wellbeing of not only the guest farmworkers in its employ, but 

also for other motorists.      

    
160

  $128,285 in back wages for meals; $64,960 in back wages for non-alcoholic drinks; $8,972.61 for beer; 

$142,728.22 for the various three-fourths guarantee violations.  
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wages and $211,800
161

 in civil money penalties.  The undersigned found the Administrator’s 

assessments to be reasonable and accurate, except for the back wages owed for non-alcoholic 

drinks, and the CMP assessed for the non-existent mattress violation.   

 

 In its brief, Respondent noted that the penalties “dwarf those”
162

 assessed in the Global 

Horizons cases, 2005-TAE-0001 and 2010-TAE-0002, which involved “rampant wage theft” and 

employers being paid kickbacks from the workers.  Respondent’s Brief at 4.   There, the 

Administrator sought $350,000 in civil money penalties.  Here, the Administrator has established 

$212,250.00 in CMPs.  The scale of the CMPs is due to no reason aside from the sheer numbers 

of farmworkers affected by Respondent’s violations.  Additionally, the Administrator utilized 

conservative estimates to calculate the required back pay.  The Administrator showed further 

restraint when deciding to apply one CMP for all of the violations of §§ 655.122(g), (p), and (q); 

she was well within her rights to have required Respondent to pay for each violation separately.  

Moreover, the governing regulations allow the Administrator to debar the Respondent from 

further certification, among other penalties.  The Administrator showed further restraint in her 

decision not to apply those remedies, as well.   

 

 The Administrator’s findings, modified in part herein, illustrate the truism that serious 

violations call for serious penalties.  Respondent engaged in serious violations of the Act, and 

committed such violations against 147 farmworkers who in good faith engaged with the H-2A 

program.   

 

THEREFORE, the undersigned finds:   

 

1. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(g), (p), and (q) by making false promises 

about kitchen access and failing to disclose meal charges.  As a result, it owes 

$128,285 in back wages, and $198,450 in CMPs. 

2. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(p) through the sale of drinks and other 

items at a profit or in violation of state law.  As a result, it owes $64,960 in back 

wages for non-alcoholic drinks sold and $8,972.61 for the profit it made from the beer 

it sold.   

3. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i) in discharging certain workers prior to 

such workers meeting the three-fourths guarantee.  As a result, it owes $142,728.22 in 

back wages, and $1,350 in CMPs. 

                                                                                                                                                             
 
161

  $198,450 for violations of 20 C.F.R. §§ 655.122(g), (p), (q); $1,350 for the three-fourths guarantee 

violations; $1,350 for coercing the waiver of the three-fourths guarantee; $3,150 for the various housing violations; 

and $7,500 for violations concerning the use of unsafe vehicles.    

 
162

  Respondent’s laches and estoppel arguments, see Respondent’s Brief at 18–19, are also denied as there is 

no indication that the Administrator engaged in a prolonged delay in enforcement.  WHI Perez arrived at 

Respondent’s dormitory in July 2015 in an investigatory capacity, only.  ALJX 1 ¶ 36.  The Administrator did not 

make a formal conclusion as to whether Respondent committed any violations until the June 22, 2016 determination 

letter.  See ALJX 1 at ¶ 38.  Because any delay was not unreasonable, the undersigned denies Respondent’s estoppel 

and laches arguments.   
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4. Respondent violated 29 C.F.R. § 501.5 by attempting to cause workers to waive the 

three-fourths guarantee at 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i).  As a result, it owes $1,350 in 

CMPs 

5. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(d) through the provision of inadequate 

housing.  As a result, it owes $3,150 in CMPs. 

6. Respondent violated 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(h)(4) through substandard transportation 

and unlicensed drivers.  As a result, it owes $7,500 in CMPs. 

 

SO ORDERED.   

 

 

 

 

       

      THERESA C. TIMLIN 

      Administrative Law Judge 

Cherry Hill, New Jersey 

 

NOTICE OF APPEAL RIGHTS: Any party seeking review of this decision, including judicial 

review, shall file a Petition for Review (§Petition§) with the Administrative Review Board 

(§ARB§) within 30 days of the date of this decision. 29 C.F.R. § 501.42. The Board's address is: 

Administrative Review Board, U.S. Department of Labor, Suite S-5220, 200 Constitution 

Avenue, NW, Washington DC 20210, for traditional paper filing. Alternatively, the Board offers 

an Electronic File and Service Request (EFSR) system. The EFSR for electronic filing (eFile) 

permits the submission of forms and documents to the Board through the Internet instead of 

using postal mail and fax. The EFSR portal allows parties to file new appeals electronically, 

receive electronic service of Board issuances, file briefs and motions electronically, and check 

the status of existing appeals via a web-based interface accessible 24 hours every day. No paper 

copies need be filed. An e-Filer must register as a user, by filing an online registration form. To 

register, the e-Filer must have a valid e-mail address. The Board must validate the e-Filer before 

he or she may file any e-Filed document. After the Board has accepted an e-Filing, it is handled 

just as it would be had it been filed in a more traditional manner. e-Filers will also have access to 

electronic service (eService), which is simply a way to receive documents, issued by the Board, 

through the Internet instead of mailing paper notices/documents. Information regarding 

registration for access to the EFSR system, as well as a step by step user guide and FAQs can be 

found at: https://dol-appeals.entellitrak.com. If you have any questions or comments, please 

contact: Boards-EFSR-Help@dol.gov 

If filing paper copies, you must file an original and four copies of the petition for review with the 

Board, together with one copy of this decision. If you e-File your petition, only one copy need be 

uploaded. Copies of the Petition should be served on all parties and on the undersigned 

Administrative Law Judge. If the ARB does not receive the Petition within 30 days of the date of 

this decision, or if the ARB does not issue a notice accepting a timely filed Petition within 30 

days of its receipt of the Petition, this decision shall be deemed the final agency action. 29 C.F.R. 

§501.42(a). 

Case 1:21-cv-16625-JHR-MJS   Document 1-3   Filed 09/08/21   Page 56 of 56 PageID: 99

Appx103

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-1     Page: 105      Date Filed: 09/06/2024

mailto:Boards-EFSR-Help@dol.gov


Record No. 23-2608 
 
 

UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS 
FOR THE THIRD CIRCUIT 

 
 

SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC, 
 

Appellant, 
v. 
 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR; UNITED 
STATES SECRETARY OF LABOR 

 
Appellees. 

 
On Appeal from an Order of the United States District Court  

for the District of New Jersey in Case No. 21-cv-16625 
Honorable Joseph H. Rodriguez 

 
 

JOINT APPENDIX 
VOLUME 2 OF 2, pp. 104 – 356 

 
 

Robert M. Belden 
INSTITUTE FOR JUSTICE 
901 N. Glebe Rd., Ste. 900 
Arlington, VA 22203 
Tel: (703) 682-9320 
Fax: (703) 682-9321 

Robert E. Johnson 
INSTITUTE FOR JUSTICE 
16781 Chagrin Blvd. #256 
Shaker Heights, OH 44120 
Tel: (703) 682-9320 
Fax: (703) 682-9321 

 
Counsel for Appellant 

 
  

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 1      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



Appendix Page 
VOLUME 2 

 
District Court Docket Report .............................................................. Appx104 
 
Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief  

dated Sept. 8, 2021 ............................................................................. Appx110 
 
Notice and Certification of Administrative Record 

dated Dec. 15, 2021 ........................................................................... Appx142 
 
Letter from U.S. Department of Labor to Sun Valley Orchards, LLC  

dated Jun. 22, 2016 ............................................................................. Appx149 
 
Order of Reference for 2017-TAE-00003 

dated Dec. 23, 2016 ............................................................................ Appx157 
 
Order of Reference for 2017-MSP-00002 

dated Dec. 23, 2016 ............................................................................ Appx159 
 
ALJ Initial Notice of Hearing and Prehearing Order  

dated Feb. 7, 2017 ............................................................................... Appx161 
 
Letter Enclosing Stipulation of Dismissal and Order  

for 2017-MSP-00002  
dated May 8, 2017 .............................................................................. Appx170 

 
ALJ Order Approving Stipulation of Dismissal of 2017-MSP-00002 

dated May 15, 2017 ............................................................................. Appx174 
 
Joint Stipulation of Agreed Facts and Joint Exhibits  

dated Jun. 15, 2017 .............................................................................. Appx178 
  
 

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 2      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



Query Reports Utilities Help Log Out

APPEAL,CLOSED

U.S. District Court
District of New Jersey [LIVE] (Camden)
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Date Filed # Docket Text

09/08/2021 1  COMPLAINT against U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, MARTIN J WALSH ( Filing and
Admin fee $ 402 receipt number ANJDC-12781662), filed by SUN VALLEY
ORCHARDS, LLC. (Attachments: # 1 Civil Cover Sheet, # 2 Exhibit A, # 3 Exhibit B, # 4
Exhibit C, # 5 Exhibit D)(WILHELM, SCOTT) (Entered: 09/08/2021)

09/08/2021 2  Corporate Disclosure Statement by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC. (WILHELM,
SCOTT) (Entered: 09/08/2021)

09/08/2021   Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez and Magistrate Judge Matthew J. Skahill added. (dd, )
(Entered: 09/08/2021)

09/08/2021 3  SUMMONS ISSUED as to U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, MARTIN J WALSH.
Attached is the official court Summons, please fill out Defendant and Plaintiffs attorney
information and serve. (pr, ) (Entered: 09/08/2021)

09/08/2021 4  MOTION for Leave to Appear Pro Hac Vice by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC.
(Attachments: # 1 Certification of Scott M. Wilhelm, Esq., # 2 Certification of Robert E.
Johnson, Esq., # 3 Text of Proposed Order)(WILHELM, SCOTT) (Entered: 09/08/2021)

09/08/2021   Set/Reset Deadlines as to 4 MOTION for Leave to Appear Pro Hac Vice . Motion set for
10/4/2021 before Magistrate Judge Matthew J. Skahill. Unless otherwise directed by the
Court, this motion will be decided on the papers and no appearances are required. Note that
this is an automatically generated message from the Clerk`s Office and does not supersede
any previous or subsequent orders from the Court. (tf, ) (Entered: 09/08/2021)

09/20/2021 5  SUMMONS Returned Executed by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC. U.S.
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR served on 9/13/2021, answer due 11/12/2021. (WILHELM,
SCOTT) (Entered: 09/20/2021)

09/20/2021 6  SUMMONS Returned Executed by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC. MARTIN J
WALSH served on 9/13/2021, answer due 11/12/2021. (WILHELM, SCOTT) (Entered:
09/20/2021)

09/20/2021 7  SUMMONS Returned Executed by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC. (WILHELM,
SCOTT) (Entered: 09/20/2021)

09/29/2021 8  SUMMONS Returned Executed by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC. (WILHELM,
SCOTT) (Entered: 09/29/2021)

10/13/2021 9  ORDER granting 4 Motion for Leave to Appear Pro Hac Vice as to Robert E. Johnson,
Esquire. Signed by Magistrate Judge Matthew J. Skahill on 10/13/2021. (dmr) (Entered:
10/13/2021)

10/18/2021 10  MOTION for Leave to Appear Pro Hac Vice by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC.
(Attachments: # 1 Certification of Scott M Wilhelm Esq, # 2 Certification of Robert M
Belden Esq, # 3 Certificate of Service, # 4 Text of Proposed Order)(WILHELM, SCOTT)
(Entered: 10/18/2021)

10/19/2021   Set/Reset Deadlines as to 10 MOTION for Leave to Appear Pro Hac Vice . Motion set for
11/15/2021 before Magistrate Judge Matthew J. Skahill. Unless otherwise directed by the
Court, this motion will be decided on the papers and no appearances are required. Note that
this is an automatically generated message from the Clerk`s Office and does not supersede
any previous or subsequent orders from the Court. (dmr) (Entered: 10/19/2021)

10/19/2021 11  Amended MOTION to Amend/Correct 10 MOTION for Leave to Appear Pro Hac Vice to
Correct Certification of Scott M. Wilhelm, Esq. by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC.
(WILHELM, SCOTT) (Entered: 10/19/2021)
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https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119017870878
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117870879
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117870880
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117870881
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117870882
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117870883
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117871024
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117871788
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119017871857
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117871859
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117871860
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117871861
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119017871857
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117922398
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117922401
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117922455
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119117964762
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118032383
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119017871857
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119018051016
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118051017
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118051018
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118051019
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118051020
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119018051016
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118053847
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119018051016


10/20/2021   CLERK'S QUALITY CONTROL MESSAGE - The Certification 11 filed by Scott
Wilhelm on 10/19/2021 was submitted incorrectly using the Motion to Amend event. In the
future please use the Certification or Amended Document event. This submission will
remain on the docket unless otherwise ordered by the court. (dmr) (Entered: 10/20/2021)

10/25/2021   Pro Hac Vice fee as to Robert E Johnson: $ 150, receipt number CAM013368 (dmr)
(Entered: 10/25/2021)

10/29/2021 12  Text Order: The motion for pro hac vice admission [Doc. No. 10] is DENIED WITHOUT
PREJUDICE. Counsel is kindly asked to update his certification in support of the motion
by certifying for Mr. Belden and extracting the inadvertent reference to Mr. Johnson. Upon
receipt, the Court will be in a position to promptly grant the motion. So Ordered by
Magistrate Judge Matthew J. Skahill on 10/29/21. (Entered: 10/29/2021)

11/02/2021 13  ORDER granting 10 Motion for Leave to Appear Pro Hac Vice as to Robert M. Belden,
Esquire. Signed by Magistrate Judge Matthew J. Skahill on 11/2/2021. (dmr) (Entered:
11/02/2021)

11/04/2021 14  Notice of Request by Pro Hac Vice Robert E. Johnson, Esq. to receive Notices of
Electronic Filings. (WILHELM, SCOTT) (Entered: 11/04/2021)

11/04/2021   Pro Hac Vice fee as to Robert M. Belden,: $ 150, receipt number CAM013417 (dmr)
(Entered: 11/04/2021)

11/04/2021   Pro Hac Vice counsel, ROBERT E. JOHNSON, has been added to receive Notices of
Electronic Filing. Pursuant to L.Civ.R. 101.1, only local counsel are entitled to sign and
file papers, enter appearances and receive payments on judgments, decrees or orders. (dmr)
(Entered: 11/04/2021)

11/09/2021 15  NOTICE of Appearance by STEPHEN EHRLICH on behalf of All Defendants
(EHRLICH, STEPHEN) (Entered: 11/09/2021)

11/09/2021 16  Joint MOTION for Extension of Time to File Answer , Set Briefing Schedule, and Waive
Local Rule 56.1 by All Defendants. (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(EHRLICH,
STEPHEN) (Entered: 11/09/2021)

11/10/2021   Set/Reset Deadlines as to 16 Joint MOTION for Extension of Time to File Answer , Set
Briefing Schedule, and Waive Local Rule 56.1. Motion set for 12/6/2021 before Magistrate
Judge Matthew J. Skahill. Unless otherwise directed by the Court, this motion will be
decided on the papers and no appearances are required. Note that this is an automatically
generated message from the Clerk`s Office and does not supersede any previous or
subsequent orders from the Court. (dmr) (Entered: 11/10/2021)

11/10/2021 17  ORDER granting 16 Joint MOTION for Extension of Time to File Answer , Set Briefing
Schedule, and Waive Local Rule 56.1. Signed by Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez on
11/10/2021. (dmr) (Entered: 11/10/2021)

12/15/2021 18  NOTICE by All Defendants of Administrative Record (EHRLICH, STEPHEN) (Entered:
12/15/2021)

02/02/2022 19  MOTION for Summary Judgment by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC. Responses due
by 3/16/2022 (Attachments: # 1 Brief, # 2 Text of Proposed Order)(WILHELM, SCOTT)
(Entered: 02/02/2022)
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https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118053847
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118104416
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119018051016
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118112829
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118128569
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119018135611
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118135612
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119018135611
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118139762
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119018135611
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118241438
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119018383204
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118383205
https://ecf.njd.uscourts.gov/doc1/119118383206


02/03/2022   Set/Reset Deadlines as to 19 MOTION for Summary Judgment . Motion set for 3/7/2022
before Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez. Unless otherwise directed by the Court, this motion
will be decided on the papers and no appearances are required. Note that this is an
automatically generated message from the Clerk`s Office and does not supersede any
previous or subsequent orders from the Court. (dmr) (Entered: 02/03/2022)

03/08/2022 20  Consent MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply by All Defendants.
(Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(EHRLICH, STEPHEN) (Entered: 03/08/2022)

03/09/2022   Set/Reset Deadlines as to 20 Consent MOTION for Extension of Time to File
Response/Reply . Motion set for 4/4/2022 before Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez. Unless
otherwise directed by the Court, this motion will be decided on the papers and no
appearances are required. Note that this is an automatically generated message from the
Clerk`s Office and does not supersede any previous or subsequent orders from the Court.
(dmr) (Entered: 03/09/2022)

03/09/2022 21  ORDER granting 20 Motion for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply. Defendants'
combined opposition to Plaintiff's partial motion for summary judgment and motion to
dismiss/cross-motion for summary judgment shall be due by 4/13/2022. Plaintiff's
combined reply due 5/18/2022. Defendants' reply in support is due by 6/15/2022, etc.
Signed by Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez on 3/9/2022. (dmr) (Entered: 03/09/2022)

04/13/2022 22  MOTION to Dismiss , Cross MOTION for Summary Judgment and Opposition to
Plaintiff's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment by All Defendants. (Attachments: # 1
Brief, # 2 Text of Proposed Order)(EHRLICH, STEPHEN) (Entered: 04/13/2022)

04/14/2022   Set/Reset Deadlines as to 22 MOTION to Dismiss Cross MOTION for Summary
Judgment and Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment. Motion set
for 5/2/2022 before Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez. Unless otherwise directed by the Court,
this motion will be decided on the papers and no appearances are required. Note that this is
an automatically generated message from the Clerk`s Office and does not supersede any
previous or subsequent orders from the Court. (dmr) (Entered: 04/14/2022)

04/14/2022   Amended Set/Reset Deadlines as to 22 MOTION to Dismiss Cross MOTION for
Summary Judgment and Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment.
Motion set for 5/16/2022 before Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez. Unless otherwise directed by
the Court, this motion will be decided on the papers and no appearances are required. Note
that this is an automatically generated message from the Clerk`s Office and does not
supersede any previous or subsequent orders from the Court. (dmr) (Entered: 04/14/2022)

05/18/2022 23  BRIEF in Support filed by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC re 19 MOTION for
Summary Judgment , 22 MOTION to Dismiss Cross MOTION for Summary Judgment
and Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment (WILHELM, SCOTT)
(Entered: 05/18/2022)

05/20/2022 24  BRIEF in Support filed by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC re 19 MOTION for
Summary Judgment , 22 MOTION to Dismiss Cross MOTION for Summary Judgment
and Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment as Supplemented
(WILHELM, SCOTT) (Entered: 05/20/2022)

06/10/2022 25  Consent MOTION for Leave to File Excess Pages by All Defendants. (Attachments: # 1
Text of Proposed Order)(EHRLICH, STEPHEN) (Entered: 06/10/2022)
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06/10/2022   Set/Reset Deadlines as to 25 Consent MOTION for Leave to File Excess Pages . Motion
set for 7/5/2022 before Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez. Unless otherwise directed by the
Court, this motion will be decided on the papers and no appearances are required. Note that
this is an automatically generated message from the Clerk`s Office and does not supersede
any previous or subsequent orders from the Court. (dmr) (Entered: 06/10/2022)

06/14/2022 26  ORDER granting 25 Motion for Leave to File Excess Pages. ORDERED that Defendants'
reply in support of their motion to dismiss/cross-motion for summary judgment shall be
due by 6/15/2022 and shall be no longer than 25 pages using 12-point proportional font..
Signed by Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez on 6/14/2022. (dmr) (Entered: 06/14/2022)

06/15/2022 27  REPLY to Response to Motion filed by All Defendants re 22 MOTION to Dismiss Cross
MOTION for Summary Judgment and Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (EHRLICH, STEPHEN) (Entered: 06/15/2022)

07/12/2022 28  BRIEF in Support filed by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC re 19 MOTION for
Summary Judgment , 22 MOTION to Dismiss Cross MOTION for Summary Judgment
and Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit)(WILHELM, SCOTT) (Entered: 07/12/2022)

07/22/2022 29  RESPONSE re 28 Brief in Support of Motion,. (EHRLICH, STEPHEN) (Entered:
07/22/2022)

03/09/2023 30  LETTER ORDER scheduling oral argument re 22 MOTION to Dismiss and Cross Motion
for Summary Judgment and 19 MOTION for Summary Judgment on 4/20/2023 at 10:00
AM in Camden - Courtroom 5D before Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez. Signed by Judge
Joseph H. Rodriguez on 3/8/2023. (dmr) (Entered: 03/09/2023)

03/16/2023 31  NOTICE of Appearance by SCOTT M. WILHELM on behalf of SUN VALLEY
ORCHARDS, LLC (WILHELM, SCOTT) (Entered: 03/16/2023)

03/17/2023   CLERK'S QUALITY CONTROL MESSAGE - The Notice of Appearance 31 submitted by
Scott Wilheim on 3/16/2023 contains a signature of an attorney who does not appear to be
admitted to this Court. Only Registered Users are permitted to sign electronically filed
documents with an s/. This submission will remain on the docket unless otherwise ordered
by the court. (dmr) (Entered: 03/17/2023)

04/18/2023 32  BRIEF in Support filed by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC re 19 MOTION for
Summary Judgment Plaintiff's Third Notice of Supplemental Authority (WILHELM,
SCOTT) (Entered: 04/18/2023)

04/19/2023 33  BRIEF in Support filed by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC re 19 MOTION for
Summary Judgment Plaintiff's Third Notice of Supplemental Authority with Exhibit
(WILHELM, SCOTT) (Entered: 04/19/2023)

04/20/2023 34  Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez: Motion Hearing
held on 4/20/2023 re Plaintiff's 19 MOTION for Summary Judgment, Defendant's 22
MOTION to Dismiss Cross MOTION for Summary Judgment. Decision Reserved. (Court
Reporter, Sharon Ricci (267-249-8780)) (dmr) (Entered: 04/20/2023)

05/31/2023 35  Transcript of Motion Hearing held on 4/20/2023, before Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez. Court
Reporter/Transcriber Sharon Ricci (267-249-8780). NOTICE REGARDING (1)
REDACTION OF PERSONAL IDENTIFIERS IN TRANSCRIPTS AND (2)
MOTION TO REDACT AND SEAL: The parties have seven (7) calendar days to file
with the Court a Notice of Intent to Request Redaction of this Transcript to comply with
Fed.R.Civ.P.5.2(a) (personal identifiers). Parties seeking to redact and seal this Transcript,
or portions thereof, pursuant to L.Civ.R. 5.3(g) must e-file a Motion to Redact and Seal
utilizing the event `Redact and Seal Transcript/Digital Recording`. Redaction Request to
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Court Reporter/Transcription Agency due, but not filed, by 6/21/2023. Redacted Transcript
Deadline set for 7/3/2023. Release of Transcript Restriction set for 8/29/2023. (mag)
(Entered: 05/31/2023)

07/27/2023 36  OPINION. Signed by Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez on 7/27/2023. (dmr) (Entered:
07/27/2023)

07/27/2023 37  ORDER Granting DOL's 22 Motion to Dismiss; Denying as moot Sun Valley's 19 Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment and DOL's 22 Cross Motion for Summary Judgment.
***CIVIL CASE TERMINATED. Signed by Judge Joseph H. Rodriguez on 7/27/2023.
(dmr) (Entered: 07/27/2023)

09/01/2023 38  NOTICE OF APPEAL as to 37 Order on Motion for Summary Judgment,, Order on
Motion to Dismiss,,, 36 Opinion by SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC. Filing fee $ 505,
receipt number ANJDC-14624788. The Clerk's Office hereby certifies the record and the
docket sheet available through ECF to be the certified list in lieu of the record and/or the
certified copy of the docket entries. (WILHELM, SCOTT) (Entered: 09/01/2023)

09/05/2023 39  USCA Case Number 23-2608 for 38 Notice of Appeal (USCA), filed by SUN VALLEY
ORCHARDS, LLC. USCA Case Manager Tim McIntyre (Document Restricted - Court
Only) (ca3tmm, ) (Entered: 09/05/2023)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

 
      )     
SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC,  ) 
      ) 
   Plaintiff,  ) 
      ) 
 v.     ) Case No. _________________ 
      ) 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR,  ) 
and MARTIN J. WALSH, in his   ) 
official capacity as United States   ) 
Secretary of Labor,    ) 
      ) 
   Defendants.  ) 
____________________________________) 

_______________________________________________________ 
 

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

_______________________________________________________ 
 

Robert E. Johnson*  
INSTITUTE FOR JUSTICE 
16781 Chagrin Blvd. #256 
Shaker Heights, OH 44120 
Tel: (703) 682-9320  
Fax: (703) 682-9321 
Email: rjohnson@ij.org  
 
       * Pro hac motion to be filed 
 
Scott Wilhelm 
WINEGAR, WILHELM, GLYNN & ROEMERSMA, P.C. 
305 Roseberry Street, P.O. Box 800 
Phillipsburg, NJ  08865 
Tel: (908) 454-3200 
Fax: (908) 454-3322 
Email: wilhelms@wwgrlaw.com 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff Sun Valley Orchards, LLC 
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 1 

LOCAL RULE 10.1 STATEMENT 
 

1. The mailing addresses of the parties to this action are:  

Sun Valley Orchards, LLC 
29 Vestry Road 
Swedesboro, NJ 08085 
 
Department of Labor 
200 Constitution Avenue N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20001 
 
Martin J. Walsh, U.S. Secretary of Labor 
200 Constitution Avenue N.W.  
Washington, D.C. 20001 

INTRODUCTION 

2. Sun Valley Orchards, a family farm in New Jersey, has spent nearly five years in 

proceedings before agency judges, attempting to contest the U.S. Department of Labor’s decision 

to subject the farm to over half a million dollars in liability. The bulk of that assessment—over 

$320,000—is related to a paperwork violation: When filling out paperwork to participate in a 

DOL visa program for migrant farm workers, the farm indicated that it would give workers 

access to a kitchen when, in fact, it offered a meal plan under which workers could purchase 

food at a cost of approximately $3.75 per meal. The farm was in its first year participating in the 

H-2A visa program when it made that mistake, and DOL’s only complaint about the meal plan 

was that it was not accurately described in the farm’s paperwork; in subsequent years, the farm 

has offered the same meal plan without DOL raising any objections.    

3. DOL in this case has appointed itself prosecutor, judge, and jury. The monetary 

award was first assessed by DOL inspectors, was then affirmed by a DOL administrative law 

judge after an administrative hearing, and was finally affirmed by an appellate panel of DOL 

judges. DOL wrote the governing regulations with only minimal congressional guidance, and 
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 2 

DOL invented an agency adjudicatory process with no congressional authorization. The agency 

made the law and found the facts, and then the agency decided the penalty. 

4. The Complaint in this case raises a claim under Article III of the U.S. 

Constitution. If an agency wants to impose this kind of financial liability, then the agency should 

be required to proceed before a real federal judge in a real federal court. At a minimum, an 

agency should not be able to take over the judicial function without a clear direction from 

Congress providing for adjudication in an agency court.  

5. The Complaint raises other claims as well. The award was imposed by agency 

judges who were appointed in violation of the Appointments Clause. And the imposition of 

hundreds of thousands of dollars in liability for a paperwork violation also separately violates the 

Excessive Fines Clause. Indeed, even under the Administrative Procedure Act’s deferential 

standard of review, the DOL’s award is unsupported by substantial evidence, an abuse of 

discretion, and not in accordance with law. Five years after this administrative odyssey began, 

the DOL’s unconstitutional award should be set aside.   

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

6. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 2201, 

2202 and 5 U.S.C. § 702.  

7. Venue lies in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e). Sun Valley Orchards is 

located at 29 Vestry Road, Swedesboro, NJ 08085, which is within Gloucester County and the 

Camden vicinage of the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey. Plaintiff Sun 

Valley Orchards resides at that address, and a substantial part of the events giving rise to the 

governmental enforcement action at issue in this case also occurred at those premises.   
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 3 

THE PARTIES 

8. Plaintiff Sun Valley Orchards, LLC is a family-owned limited liability company 

organized under the laws of New Jersey. Joseph Marino is the Managing Partner of Sun Valley 

Orchards, and he owns and operates the company together with his brother Russell Marino. Sun 

Valley Orchards operates a vegetable farm in southern New Jersey, growing crops including 

peppers, squash, eggplant, cucumbers, and asparagus. 

9. Defendant U.S. Department of Labor (“DOL”) is the federal administrative 

agency responsible for bringing enforcement actions against employers for alleged violations of 

the rules and regulations of the H-2A visa program. The enforcement proceeding at issue in this 

case was initiated by DOL personnel, tried by DOL attorneys, heard and decided by a DOL 

judge, and then affirmed by a panel of DOL appellate judges.  

10. Defendant Martin J. Walsh is sued in his official capacity as the U.S. Secretary of 

Labor. In that capacity, he is responsible for the oversight, administration, and enforcement of 

the H-2A visa program.  

REGULATORY BACKGROUND 

The Statutory Framework  

11. The H-2A visa program was created by Congress in 1986, as part of the 

Immigration Reform and Control Act, Pub. L. No. 99-603, 100 Stat 3359. The H-2A program 

allows for employment of foreign nationals as temporary agricultural workers in circumstances 

where an employer’s needs cannot be met out of the domestic labor pool. See 8 U.S.C. 

§§ 1101(a)(15)(H)(ii)(a); 1188(a).  

12. Congress has enacted express provisions to govern the debarment of H-2A 

employers who allegedly violate H-2A regulations. Under these provisions, DOL may debar an 
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employer for up to three years if the employer “substantially violated a material term or 

condition of the labor certification with respect to the employment of domestic or nonimmigrant 

workers.” 8 U.S.C. § 1188(b)(2). If an employer contests its debarment, the statute also expressly 

provides for “a de novo administrative hearing respecting the denial or revocation.” Id. 

§ 1188(e).  

13. By contrast, Congress has not authorized agency judges to impose monetary 

penalties for violations of the H-2A program through agency adjudication.  

14. DOL’s statutory authority to impose monetary penalties for H-2A violations is 

found in a single, vague provision: “The Secretary of Labor is authorized to take such actions, 

including imposing appropriate penalties and seeking appropriate injunctive relief and specific 

performance of contractual obligations, as may be necessary to assure employer compliance with 

terms and conditions of employment under this section.” 8 U.S.C. § 1188(g)(2).  

15. Notably, while Section 1188(g)(2) authorizes the Secretary of Labor to impose 

“appropriate penalties,” the statute says nothing at all about imposing such penalties in 

administrative proceedings before agency judges.     

16. To the contrary, Congress has specifically provided that “[w]henever a civil fine, 

penalty or pecuniary forfeiture is prescribed for the violation of an Act of Congress without 

specifying the mode of recovery or enforcement thereof, it may be recovered in a civil action.” 

28 U.S.C. § 2461(a). When Congress authorized the Secretary of Labor to impose penalties for 

violations of H-2A violations, Congress thus authorized the Secretary of Labor to impose those 

penalties “in a civil action”—not an administrative proceeding before an administrative judge.  
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DOL’s System of Administrative Adjudication 

17. Despite the above lack of congressional authorization, the Secretary of Labor has 

promulgated regulations providing for the imposition of civil monetary penalties and back wages 

in administrative courts. Based solely on the vague statutory grant of authority in Section 

1188(g)(2), DOL regulations subject employers to “appropriate administrative proceedings” to 

impose penalties including “recovery of unpaid wages” and “assessment of a civil money 

penalty.” 29 C.F.R. § 501.16. 

18. Under DOL’s regulations, the amount of a civil monetary penalty is determined in 

the first instance by the agency’s enforcement personnel in the Wage and Hour Division, who 

“shall consider the type of violation committed and other relevant factors.” 29 C.F.R. 

§ 501.19(b). These “relevant factors” include, but “are not limited to,” seven factors listed in the 

regulation: (1) the employer’s previous history of violations; (2) the number of workers affected; 

(3) the gravity of the violation; (4) good faith efforts to comply; (5) the employer’s explanation 

for the violation; (6) the employer’s commitment to future compliance; and (7) the extent of the 

employer’s financial gain or the worker’s financial loss or injury. Id.  

19. Under DOL’s regulations, a “civil money penalty for each violation of the work 

contract or a requirement of [the H-2A program] will not exceed $1,787 per violation.” 29 C.F.R. 

§ 501.19(c). In 2015, the time period at issue in this case, that amount was set at $1,500. See 81 

Fed. Reg. 43429, 43435 (July 1, 2016).  

20. Under DOL’s regulation, “[e]ach failure to pay an individual worker properly or 

to honor the terms or conditions of a worker’s employment . . . or the regulations in this part 

constitutes a separate violation.” 29 C.F.R. § 501.19(a).   
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21. Once a penalty is assessed by DOL’s enforcement personnel, that determination is 

reviewed at a hearing by DOL ALJs, who are employees of the agency.  

22. As DOL employees, ALJs are affected by the financial health of the agency as a 

whole. For instance, when DOL was forced to make budget cuts in 2013, the DOL’s Office of 

Administrative Law Judges was forced to cut its budget by five percent and, as a result, 

furloughed DOL ALJs for multiple days.  

23. In litigation, DOL has also taken the position that the Secretary of Labor has 

“broad authority to remove ALJs” from their positions and that “Article II’s mandate that inferior 

executive officers remain accountable to the President and their Department Heads through the 

removal power applies to ALJs.” Brief for Federal Respondent at 30, 35, K&R Contractors, LLC 

v. Keene, No. 20-2021 (4th Cir. Feb. 4, 2021). 

24. After an ALJ issues a decision, DOL regulations then allow an employer to appeal 

that decision to an internal agency appellate court called the Administrative Review Board 

(“ARB”). 29 C.F.R. § 501.42.  

25. The ARB is nowhere authorized by any statute. Rather, the Secretary of Labor 

created the ARB by executive order in 1996. See Secretary’s Order 02-96, 61 Fed. Reg. 19978 

(May 3, 1996); see also Secretary’s Order 02-2012, 77 Fed. Reg. 69378 (Nov. 16, 2012).  

26. The ARB consists of a maximum of five administrative judges appointed by the 

Secretary of Labor. 77 Fed. Reg. at 69379. The members of the ARB are appointed for a fixed 

term “of two years or less.” Id. 

27. The Secretary of Labor’s Orders creating the ARB direct that “[t]he Board shall 

not have jurisdiction to pass on the validity of any portion of the Code of Federal Regulations 
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which has been duly promulgated by the Department of Labor and shall observe the provisions 

thereof, where pertinent, in its decisions.” 61 Fed. Reg. at 19979; see also 77 Fed. Reg. at 69379. 

DOL’s H-2A Enforcement Activity 

28. As recently as 2006, annual civil monetary penalties imposed by DOL for 

violations of the H-2A program totaled just $57,900. See David J. Bier, Cato Institute, 

Immigration Research and Policy Brief No. 17, H-2A Visas for Agriculture: The Complex 

Process for Farmers to Hire Agricultural Guest Workers (Mar. 10, 2020) (Table B).1  

29. Annual civil monetary penalties for H-2A violations first crossed the million-

dollar mark in 2012 and reached as high as $5.9 million in 2013. Id.  

30. Data on DOL’s website shows that, from 2005 through August 2021, DOL has 

imposed three civil monetary penalties over $1 million; 52 penalties between $100,000 and $1 

million; 482 penalties between $10,000 and $100,000; and 1,850 penalties under $10,000 for 

alleged violations of the H-2A program. See U.S. Dep’t of Labor, Wage and Hour Compliance 

Action Data (hereinafter, “DOL Data”).2   

31. In addition to imposing civil monetary penalties for H-2A violations, DOL’s ALJs 

also assess back wages that are purportedly owed to employees of H-2A employers. Since 2005, 

DOL has assessed a total of $37.5 million in civil monetary penalties and $28.9 million in back 

wages in connection with the H-2A program. See DOL Data, supra ¶ 30. 

32. Back wages are technically owed to the employees, but in most cases involving 

the H-2A program they are collected by the agency. Employees must then claim the funds from 

the government. If the funds go unclaimed for three years, the government keeps the money.   

 
1 Available at https://www.cato.org/publications/immigration-research-policy-brief/h-2a-

visas-agriculture-complex-process-farmers-hire.  
2 Available at https://enforcedata.dol.gov/views/data_summary.php.  
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33. In 2015, the DOL’s Office of Inspector General found that DOL “made minimal 

efforts to locate” employees who it was supposed to pay back wages. U.S. Dep’t of Labor, Office 

of Inspector General, Wage and Hour Division Needs to Strengthen Management Controls for 

Back Wage Distributions (Mar. 2015).3 As a result, between 2010 and 2014, the government 

kept $60 million in back wages that were collected by DOL and never paid to workers. Id.  

34. While the amount of money collected for alleged H-2A violations in 

administrative proceedings has significantly increased, the number of employers who are 

debarred for violations has remained relatively small. The number of debarments each year 

ranges from zero (in 2010) to 31 (in 2018). See Bier, supra ¶ 28.  

35. In 2015, the agency imposed $3.9 million in civil monetary penalties in 207 cases 

involving alleged violations of the H-2A program. See Bier, supra ¶ 28. In that same year, the 

agency debarred 30 employers. Id.  

36. In other words, the agency subjects more employers to its unauthorized 

administrative procedures for monetary penalties than it does to its authorized administrative 

procedures for debarment.   

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

Sun Valley Orchards 

37. Sun Valley Orchards operates a family farm in southern New Jersey that grows a 

variety of vegetables, including peppers, squash, eggplant, cucumbers, and asparagus.  

38. Sun Valley Orchards is owned and operated by two brothers, Joseph and Russell 

Marino. They are fourth-generation farmers in New Jersey.  

 
3 Available at https://www.oig.dol.gov/public/reports/oa/2015/04-15-001-04-420.pdf.  
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39. Vegetable farming is a labor-intensive business. Because vegetables are easily 

bruised and damaged, they cannot be harvested by machine and must be picked by hand. Many 

vegetables also must be hand-planted, and, in some instances, must be tied up to stakes while in 

the process of growing.  

40. As a result, Sun Valley Orchards depends on seasonal labor to grow and harvest 

its crops. It would be impossible to run the farm without those workers.  

41. During the times relevant to this case, Sun Valley Orchards’ seasonal workers 

were supervised by Agustin Hernandez. Agustin’s father also previously worked at Sun Valley 

Orchards, and Agustin’s wife worked in the farm’s kitchen cooking meals for the workers.  

42. Seasonal workers at Sun Valley Orchards are paid above minimum wage: In 

2015, when the events at issue here occurred, the Marinos paid their workers $11.29 per hour, as 

compared to the then-prevailing state minimum wage of $8.38 per hour. Moreover, unlike for 

domestic workers, those wages are not subject to tax withholding.  

43. Seasonal workers at Sun Valley Orchards are also provided with free lodging at 

the farm in group dormitories with bunk beds.  

44. Working at a vegetable farm like Sun Valley Orchards is hard work, but it is also 

comparatively well paid. Given the wage rate and the provision of free lodging, workers can 

make a good amount of money over a season.  

The 2015 Growing Season 

45. During the 2015 season, Sun Valley Orchards participated for the first time in the 

H-2A visa program.  

46. Before the 2015 season, Sun Valley Orchards had relied on seasonal workers who 

primarily came from Florida and Puerto Rico; the Marino brothers had avoided the H-2A visa 

Case 1:21-cv-16625-JHR-MJS   Document 1   Filed 09/08/21   Page 10 of 32 PageID: 10

Appx119

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 18      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



 10 

program in part because they had heard horror stories about other farms’ regulatory tie-ups with 

DOL. But in 2015 the farm was increasingly unable to meet its needs out of the domestic labor 

pool, and the Marinos decided they had no real choice other than to enter the program.  

47. Because the H-2A program is complex and requires significant paperwork, the 

Marinos hired a contractor to help them navigate the program and fill out the necessary forms.  

48. Towards the beginning of the 2015 season, an inspector from DOL visited Sun 

Valley Orchards.  

49. When the inspector left, the Marinos asked if he had spotted any issues and if 

there were any changes the Marinos ought to make. The inspector assured the Marinos that 

everything was fine and did not suggest any changes. 

DOL’s Half-Million Dollar Assessment 

50. In early 2016, the DOL inspector returned—this time accompanied by officials 

from DOL’s headquarters in Washington, D.C. These DOL officials handed Joseph and Russell a 

letter stating that they were being assessed over $550,000 for alleged H-2A violations—

including a civil monetary penalty of over $200,000 and over $350,000 in back wages.  

51. In June 2016, DOL mailed a letter finalizing this assessment. A copy of that letter 

is attached as Exhibit A.  

The Meal Plan Paperwork 

52. The majority of this assessment was based on a paperwork violation: Over 

$326,000 of the over-$550,000 assessment was imposed because Sun Valley Orchards’ H-2A 

paperwork did not accurately describe the farm’s meal plan for its workers.   

53. On that basis alone, DOL enforcement personnel assessed $198,450 in monetary 

penalties and $128,285 in back wages. DOL enforcement personnel calculated the penalty by 
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assessing a $1,350 penalty for each worker who was eligible to participate in the farm’s meal 

plan (whether they were H-2A workers or not, and whether they actually chose to participate or 

not); and DOL enforcement personnel calculated the back wages by determining the full amount 

paid by all of Sun Valley Orchards’ workers for the meal plan during the 2015 season (whether 

those amounts were paid by H-2A workers or not).  

54. It is entirely legal for an H-2A employer to offer employees a meal plan, and, in 

fact, federal regulations expressly allow H-2A employers to charge workers for meals. See 20 

C.F.R. § 655.122(g).  

55. The amount that employers may charge for meals is set by regulation and is 

indexed to inflation. See id. § 655.173(a). In 2015, the agency set the maximum allowable meal 

charge at $11.86 per day, or $83.02 per week. See 80 Fed. Reg. 9482 (Feb. 23, 2015).  

56. The amount charged by Sun Valley Orchards was below the maximum allowable 

amount set by DOL’s own regulations. Sun Valley Orchards’ meal plan for 2015 charged 

workers $75 to $80 per week, or between $10.71 and $11.42 per day. 

57. DOL’s only concern with Sun Valley Orchards’ meal plan was that it was not 

accurately described on the farm’s paperwork. Instead, the contractor who filled out Sun Valley 

Orchards’ application erroneously stated that employees would have access to the kitchen so that 

they could cook their own meals.  

58. Even if employees had been given access to the kitchen, those employees still 

would have had to pay to purchase food. Indeed, given the cost of food in New Jersey, the high 

caloric needs of workers performing manual labor, and the fact that workers eating individually 

would not be able to buy in bulk, it would have been difficult for the workers to eat for much less 

than the cost of the meal plan even if the farm had provided them with kitchen access.  
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59. Nothing in the H-2A program regulations required Sun Valley Orchards to 

provide its workers with free food, and Sun Valley Orchards never stated that it would do so. 

Yet, under DOL’s assessment, Sun Valley Orchards was required to pay as “back wages” the full 

amount paid by all of its workers for its meal plan.  

60. In subsequent years, after the 2015 season, Sun Valley Orchards has continued to 

offer a meal plan for H-2A workers but has described the meal plan on its H-2A paperwork. 

DOL has not expressed any concern with Sun Valley Orchards’ meal plan in those later years, 

confirming that DOL’s sole concern with the meal plan in 2015 was that it was not fully 

described on the farm’s paperwork.   

The Early Departure Paperwork 

61. Most of the remainder of the assessment consisted of $142,728.20 in back wages 

(and $2,700 in penalties) related to the early departure of some of the farm’s workers.  

62. DOL regulations include a “three-fourths guarantee” for H-2A workers, under 

which employers must “guarantee to offer the worker employment for a total number of work 

hours equal to at least three-fourths of the workdays” of the period for which the worker is hired. 

20 C.F.R. § 655.122(i). A worker is not entitled to that guarantee, however, if the worker 

“voluntarily abandons employment before the end of the contract period” or if the worker “is 

terminated for cause.” Id. § 655.122(n).  

63. During the 2015 season, nineteen of the farm’s H-2A workers left early and, in 

doing so, signed paperwork stating that they were leaving voluntarily. The workers were asked to 

pick asparagus, which is particularly difficult physical work, and they left the farm after just a 

short time on the job because they did not like the work.  
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64. DOL, however, claimed that this paperwork was inaccurate and that these 

workers were fired.  

65. Even if the Marinos had fired the workers, the workers would not have been 

entitled to the benefit of the three-fourths guarantee so long as the farm had filed paperwork 

informing DOL that the workers were being terminated for cause.  

66. The applicable job order stated that “cause” to fire the workers would include if a 

worker “fails . . . to perform the work as specified,” “malingers or otherwise refuses without 

justified cause to perform as directed the work for which the Worker was recruited and hired,” or 

otherwise “fails to meet applicable production standards or keep up with fellow workers.”  

67. DOL’s complaint was therefore not that the farm allegedly fired the workers, but, 

rather, that the farm allegedly did so without filing the necessary paperwork to establish that the 

termination was for cause.  

68. Because DOL believed the workers were fired without the proper paperwork to 

establish that the termination was for cause, DOL assessed back wages equal to the amount the 

workers would have been paid under the three-quarters guarantee.    

The Remainder of the Assessment 

69. Beyond that, DOL assessed over $71,000 in back wages because Agustin 

Hernandez (the workers’ supervisor) sold non-alcoholic beverages to the workers. Agustin would 

sell sodas for $1, energy drinks for $1.50, and bottled water for $0.75.  

70. DOL assessed back wages because Agustin purchased the beverages and sold 

them at a small up-charge; DOL believed that it was unlawful for Agustin to profit off such sales. 

However, in calculating the amount of back wages, DOL awarded the full amount paid by the 

workers, and not just the amount of Agustin’s profit.  
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71.  It is not illegal to sell drinks to H-2A workers, and DOL would have had no 

problem if the farm had instead allowed an independent third party to come sell drinks to the 

workers (even if an independent vendor would have charged more for drinks). In fact, the farm 

has done just that in later years, and DOL has raised no objection.  

72. Similarly, DOL assessed $8,972.60 in back wages because Agustin sometimes 

bought beers in bulk and sold them to the workers at the dormitories. Again, it is not illegal to 

sell alcoholic beverages to H-2A workers, but DOL objected to these sales because they were 

made by the workers’ supervisor. DOL would have raised no objection if the farm had allowed 

an independent third party to come sell beers to the workers.  

73. Finally, less than two percent of DOL’s total assessment pertained to actual living 

and working conditions at the farm. DOL assessed $3,600 in civil monetary penalties related to 

living conditions, such as missing screens on some of the windows, as well as $7,500 in civil 

monetary penalties related to the provision of transportation to the fields.  

74. Since this fine was assessed, Sun Valley Orchards has continued to participate in 

the H-2A program. DOL has not sought to debar Sun Valley Orchards from the H-2A program, 

and DOL has not imposed any fines for later years.  

75. Sun Valley Orchards does not have $550,000 to pay to DOL, and if Sun Valley 

Orchards is forced to pay that amount it may very well destroy the business. 

AGENCY PROCEEDINGS 

Before The Administrative Law Judge 

The Assignment and Hearing 

76. As required by DOL regulations, Sun Valley Orchards contested the agency’s 

letter assessing penalties and back wages by requesting a hearing.  
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77. The Administrator of DOL’s Wage and Standards Division referred the case to 

the DOL’s Chief ALJ, who, in turn, referred the case to DOL ALJ Theresa C. Timlin.   

78. ALJ Timlin has been employed by the DOL for almost the entirety of her career. 

ALJ Timlin completed her education in 1990. From 1991-2005, she worked as an attorney in the 

DOL’s Office of the Regional Solicitor. From 2005-2008, she worked in the DOL’s Office of 

Federal Contract Compliance Programs. And—after a one-year period working as an ALJ at the 

Social Security Administration—she worked as a DOL ALJ from 2009 through the present.  

79. On information and belief, because ALJ Timlin was hired as a DOL ALJ via a 

transfer from the Social Security Administration, ALJ Timlin’s hiring as a DOL ALJ was 

effected without an appointment by the Secretary of Labor.   

80. ALJ Timlin held a four-day hearing for this case in July 2017. During the hearing, 

ALJ Timlin heard testimony from multiple witnesses, including Joseph Marino, Russell Marino, 

three former employees of Sun Valley Orchards, and a DOL inspector.  

81. On December 21, 2017, the Secretary of Labor ratified ALJ Timlin’s appointment 

as an ALJ. The Secretary’s letter stated that the ratification was “intended to address any claim 

that administrative proceedings pending before, or presided over by, administrative law judges of 

the U.S. Department of Labor violate the Appointments Clause.”  

82. ALJ Timlin issued her decision on October 28, 2019. ALJ Timlin based her 

decision on evidence and testimony presented at the July 2017 hearing, which occurred prior to 

the Secretary of Labor’s ratification of ALJ Timlin’s appointment.  

The ALJ’s Decision 

83. The ALJ’s decision affirmed the DOL’s initial assessment in almost all material 

respects. A copy of the ALJ’s decision is attached as Exhibit B. 
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84. The ALJ affirmed the $198,450 civil monetary penalty for the meal plan 

violation. In doing so, the ALJ did not attempt to decide the appropriate penalty for the meal plan 

violation. Instead, the ALJ merely concluded that the penalty assessment made by DOL’s 

enforcement personnel was “reasonable” and “rational.”  

85. The ALJ therefore concluded that “[t]he Administrator’s assessment of a $1,350 

CMP for each worker was reasonable, because she reviewed each of the mitigation criteria at 29 

C.F.R. § 501.19(b)” and “rationally considered all of the § 501.19(b) mitigation factors.” 

86. Among other things, although Sun Valley Orchards argued that the workers did 

not suffer any significant harm as a result of the farm’s paperwork error—as they would have 

had to pay for meals regardless, even if they had been afforded kitchen access—the ALJ found 

that DOL “rationally viewed the violation as serious.”  

87. The ALJ also held that DOL’s enforcement personnel “reasonably” multiplied the 

$1,350 monetary penalty by the number of workers eligible to participate in the meal plan. To 

justify this multiplier—which increased the penalty from $1,350 to $198,450—the ALJ stated 

simply: “District Director Rachor explained that the Administrator assessed the CMP in this way 

due to the seriousness of the violation and the ‘large amount of workers affected.’”  

88. The ALJ also affirmed the assessment of $128,285 in back wages for the meal 

plan violation. While Sun Valley Orchards had argued that this assessment of back wages vastly 

overstated any harm to the employees—who would have had to purchase food even if they had 

been granted kitchen access—the ALJ deemed that to be irrelevant. The ALJ reasoned that “[a] 

material change to the terms of [the] contract necessarily provides ‘harm’ to both the workers’ 

reliance on the H-2A program to ensure that their rights are protected, as well as the overall 

integrity of the program itself.”  
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89. The ALJ also affirmed the assessment of back wages for Agustin’s beverage 

sales. Although there is no requirement anywhere in DOL’s regulations for the H-2A program to 

provide free beverages to workers, the ALJ reasoned that the sales constituted an “unlawful 

deduction” from the workers’ pay because Agustin made a profit from the sales. 

90. Although there was no evidence that Sun Valley Orchards in any way authorized 

Agustin’s beverage sales, the ALJ held that Sun Valley Orchards could be held responsible for 

Agustin’s beverage sales because Agustin acted as Sun Valley Orchards’ agent.   

91. The ALJ, however, did reduce the award for the non-alcoholic beverage sales 

from $71,790.08 to $64,960 on the ground that the evidence did not support DOL enforcement 

personnel’s calculations regarding the number of drinks consumed by the workers.  

92. The ALJ separately affirmed the award of $142,728.20 in back wages related to 

the early departure of a portion of the farm’s employees. In doing so, the ALJ assessed the 

credibility of the witnesses and determined, on that basis, that the workers were fired: The ALJ 

found that “Joseph Marino’s testimony, compared to the employees, lacks credibility.”  

93. The ALJ made this decision even though none of the employees who testified at 

the hearing actually testified that they were fired. One worker was asked “[d]id anyone ever tell 

you [that] you were fired?” and answered “[n]o.” Another worker testified that Russell Marino 

“told us that he didn’t need us and that if we wanted to leave we could leave, so I decided to 

leave.” This testimony was consistent with Sun Valley Orchards’ position that the workers 

decided to quit because they did not like the work.  

94. The ALJ further affirmed the imposition of a $1,350 civil monetary penalty for 

the failure to pay these allegedly due back wages, as well as a $1,350 civil monetary penalty for 

the departure paperwork. The ALJ concluded that the DOL “reasonably considered all of the 
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mitigation factors.” And the ALJ concluded that it was reasonable to impose a single penalty for 

each of these violations—rather than multiplying the penalties by the number of employees—

based on Sun Valley Orchards’ “limited experience with the H-2A program.”  

95. Finally, the ALJ mostly affirmed the comparatively smaller assessment for the 

living conditions at the dormitory and the transportation to the fields. Here, however, the ALJ did 

modify the assessment in one small respect: The ALJ found that a $450 penalty for an unclean 

mattress was “not a reasonable penalty” because the record evidence did not actually support a 

finding that the mattress was unclean. 

Before the Administrative Review Board 

96. As required by DOL regulations, Sun Valley Orchards appealed the ALJ’s 

opinion to DOL’s Administrative Review Board (“ARB”).  

97. On May 27, 2021, the ARB issued a decision affirming the ALJ in all respects. A 

copy of the ARB’s decision is attached as Exhibit C.  

98. The ARB affirmed the $198,450 civil monetary penalty and $128,285 in back 

wages for the meal plan violation. The ARB found it irrelevant whether or not the failure to 

accurately describe the meal plan actually caused harm to the workers, as “[t]he deductions were 

unlawful because they were not disclosed, not because they provided a profit.” The ARB 

likewise concluded that “whether providing a meal plan instead of cooking facilities would affect 

any of the workers’ decisions to work for Respondent is irrelevant.”   

99. The ARB also affirmed the decision to multiply the $1,350 penalty for the meal 

plan violation by the total number of workers at the farm. The ARB reasoned that Sun Valley 

Orchards had “failed to honor the terms of each worker’s job contract,” with the result that it was 

reasonable to impose a separate penalty for each worker.   
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100. The ARB next affirmed the award of $64,960 in back wages for the sale of non-

alcoholic beverages. The ARB “agree[d] that the regulations generally do not require H-2A 

employers to provide soft drinks to its workers” but found that the sales constituted unlawful 

deductions from the workers’ wages because Agustin had “sold the beverages at a profit.”  

101. The ARB also affirmed the award of $8,972.60 in back wages for the sale of 

alcoholic beverages. The ARB found that the ALJ had correctly awarded “back wages that were 

an approximation of [Agustin’s] profits” under a burden shifting framework.  

102. Separately, the ARB affirmed the award of $142,728.20 in back wages and the 

$1,350 monetary penalty related to the early departure of some of the workers. The ARB 

explained that it “gives ALJ credibility determinations ‘great deference’ if they are not 

‘inherently incredible or patently unreasonable’” and found that the “ALJ’s credibility 

determination is substantial evidence that Respondent made ‘a rash, and perhaps illogical, 

decision’ to fire the workers.”  

103. The ALJ had separately adopted an alternative holding that, if the workers were 

not actually fired, then they were constructively discharged. But the ARB did not rely on—and 

did not review—that part of the ALJ’s reasoning. Instead, the ARB rested this $142,728.20 

award solely on the ALJ’s credibility determination.  

104. Finally, the ARB rejected the argument that agency enforcement personnel 

“improperly failed to raise concerns about the meal plan charges and bring an enforcement action 

in a timely manner,” explaining that there “is no case law that applies the doctrine of laches or 

estoppel to a government enforcement action” and “no regulatory requirement for the [agency’s 

inspectors] to notify an employer the instant a violation is suspected.”    
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105. On August 10, 2021, DOL sent a letter to the attorneys who represented Sun 

Valley Orchards in the administrative proceeding demanding “prompt payment” of the award 

and asserting that “interest is currently accruing.” The letter states that “[i]f Respondent does not 

make full payment by September 10, 2021, the Administrator [of DOL’s Wage and Hour 

Division] intends to take appropriate steps, including referral for debt collection or litigation.” A 

copy of this demand letter is attached as Exhibit D.  

CLAIMS 

Count I:  
DOL’s H-2A Enforcement Procedures Violate Article III 

(5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(B)) 
 

106. The allegations of ¶¶ 11-36 and 76-105 are incorporated here in full. 

107. Article III, Section 1 of the U.S. Constitution states that the “judicial power of the 

United States, shall be vested in one supreme Court, and in such inferior Courts as the Congress 

may from time to time ordain and establish.” Article III further provides for various protections 

for the judges of these Article III courts in order to guarantee judicial independence.  

108. Under Article III, this “judicial power shall extend to all cases, in Law and 

Equity, arising under . . . the Laws of the United States.”  

109. The Supreme Court has held that cases implicating an individual’s “private 

rights” must be tried before an Article III court. See Stern v. Marshall, 564 U.S. 462, 495 (2011). 

110. An order to pay money to the government—either in the form of a civil monetary 

penalty or in the form of back wages—affects a person’s private rights because it results in the 

confiscation of their private property.  

111. Furthermore, the decision below awarded over one hundred thousand dollars in 

back wages because the ALJ made a credibility determination and, based on that credibility 
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determination, found Sun Valley Orchards breached its contractual obligation by firing nineteen 

of its workers. That type of breach-of-contract claim is a prototypical case involving private 

rights, and, as such, must be tried in an Article III court.  

112. Because the proceeding here involved an attempt to force Sun Valley Orchards to 

pay money to the government, the proceeding implicated private rights and should have been 

brought before an Article III court.  

113. While the Supreme Court rejected a Seventh Amendment challenge to the 

imposition of monetary penalties by ALJs in Atlas Roofing Co. v. Occupational Safety & Health 

Review Commission, 430 U.S. 442 (1977), that case did not involve a claim under Article III. 

Atlas Roofing holds that if a case is properly tried before an agency judge, then a Seventh 

Amendment jury need not be provided, but it does not address the circumstances under which 

monetary penalties may appropriately be imposed by an agency court.  

114. Moreover, Atlas Roofing rested on the Supreme Court’s conclusion that, “when 

Congress creates new statutory ‘public rights,’ it may assign their adjudication to an 

administrative agency.” 430 U.S. at 455. That holding does not apply here, as Congress nowhere 

indicated that these types of violations of H-2A regulations should be adjudicated before ALJs.  

115. DOL’s procedures for agency adjudication of H-2A violations violate Article III 

insofar as the agency has assumed for itself the power to adjudicate cases affecting employers’ 

private rights. Even assuming that Congress could permissibly assign such cases to agency 

judges under Article III (and it cannot), an executive agency cannot assume that judicial power 

for itself without express and specific direction from Congress.  
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116. This violation is compounded by DOL’s position that interest begins to accrue on 

its award as soon as ARB issues its decision. It violates Article III for an agency court to issue a 

decision that is treated as if it were the equivalent of a final judgment of an Article III court.  

117. Because DOL’s adjudicatory procedures violate Article III, the decision below 

should be vacated and DOL should be enjoined from taking any action to enforce that decision.   

Count II: 
The Agency Judges In This Case Were Not Constitutionally Appointed And Enjoy 

Unconstitutional Protection Against Removal 
(5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(B)) 

 
118. The allegations of ¶¶ 17-27, 76-82, 96-97 and 105 are incorporated here in full. 

119. ALJ Timlin qualifies as an inferior officer of the United States under the 

Appointments Clause. See Lucia v. SEC, 138 S. Ct. 2044 (2018).  

120. As a result, for ALJ Timlin to be constitutionally appointed, she must have been 

appointed either by the President, the Courts, or the Head of the Department.  

121. At the time ALJ Timlin held the hearing in this case, none of those things were 

true. She had not been appointed by the President, by the Courts, or by the Secretary of Labor.  

122. While the Secretary confirmed ALJ Timlin’s appointment in December 2017, that 

re-appointment occurred after the hearing in this case. That post-hoc re-appointment does not 

change the fact that the hearing in this case was overseen by an improperly appointed official, as 

“the ‘appropriate’ remedy for an adjudication tainted with an appointments violation is a new 

‘hearing before a properly appointed’ official.” Lucia, 138 S. Ct. at 2055.  

123. To the extent that DOL does not enjoy “broad authority to remove ALJs,” as it 

has claimed, see supra ¶ 23, restrictions on DOL’s authority to remove ALJs also separately 

violate the requirement that executive officials be subject to removal under Myers v. United 

States, 272 U.S. 52 (1926). 
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124. In addition, the ALJs who make up the ARB qualify as principal officers of the 

Untied States under the Appointments Clause. See United States v. Arthrex, Inc., 141 S. Ct. 1970 

(2021). This is because the ARB’s decisions are the final decisions of the DOL and are not 

subject to “review by a superior executive officer.”  

125. Under the Appointments Clause, ARB judges must therefore be appointed by the 

President and confirmed by the Senate. However, ARB judges are not appointed by the President 

and are not confirmed by the Senate.  

126. The proper remedy for these Appointments Clause violations is to vacate the 

proceedings below and to remand to the agency for new proceedings before constitutionally 

appointed governmental officials.  

127. Notably, the remedy for an Appointments Clause violation (remand to the agency) 

is more limited than the remedy for a violation of Article III (a trial in an Article III court). If 

Sun Valley Orchards prevails on both the Appointments Clause claim and the Article III claim, 

then no remand to the agency would be necessary and instead Sun Valley Orchards would be 

entitled to a new trial in an Article III court.  

Count III:  
The Penalty Imposed In This Case Is An Excessive Fine 

(5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(B)) 
 

128. The allegations of ¶¶ 37-60, 84-88, and 98-99 are incorporated here in full.  

129. The DOL in the proceeding below imposed a $198,450 civil monetary penalty 

and $128,285 in back wages for a paperwork violation involving failure to properly describe the 

farm’s completely legal meal plan on the farm’s H-2A paperwork.  

130. The DOL imposed this monetary award without any consideration for the actual 

amount of harm incurred by the employees. Instead, the ALJ reasoned that any departure from an 
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employer’s H-2A paperwork constitutes “harm,” and the ARB concluded that these penalties 

were necessary to ensure compliance with the H-2A program.  

131. In fact, to the extent that employees were harmed at all by this violation, any 

harm was minimal. Even if employees had been provided with kitchen access as was stated in 

the H-2A application, the employees still would have had to pay for their own food. If the 

employees had purchased their own food, they would not have been able to eat for substantially 

less than the meal plan’s cost of approximately $3.75 per meal.  

132. Because the DOL justified the imposition of this monetary award on grounds of 

deterrence, this monetary award is punitive and therefore subject to review under the Excessive 

Fines Clause.  

133. The Supreme Court has held that monetary forfeitures are excessive if they are 

“grossly disproportional to the gravity of a defendant’s offense.” United States v. Bajakajian, 

524 U.S. 321, 334 (1998). Moreover, the Supreme Court has held that punitive damages awards 

are generally excessive if they exceed the amount of the actual damages incurred. Exxon 

Shipping Co. v. Baker, 554 U.S. 471, 497 (2008). In this case, the monetary award vastly exceeds 

any damages incurred by the workers and is, therefore, excessive. 

134. As a remedy for this violation of the Excessive Fines Clause, the Court should 

hold a hearing to determine the actual harm (if any) suffered by the employees and should reduce 

the size of the award to an amount no more than double the actual damages incurred as a result 

of the meal plan violation in this case.  

Count IV:  
DOL’s H-2A Enforcement Procedures Are Not Authorized By Statute  

(5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A), (C), (F)) 
 

135. The allegations of ¶¶ 11-36 and 45-105 are incorporated here in full. 
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136. Congress has not authorized DOL ALJs to adjudicate cases involving alleged 

violations of H-2A regulations. Congress provided that “[t]he Secretary of Labor is authorized to 

take such actions, including imposing appropriate penalties and seeking appropriate injunctive 

relief and specific performance of contractual obligations, as may be necessary to assure 

employer compliance with terms and conditions of employment under this section.” 8 U.S.C. 

§ 1188(g)(2). But that statute does not say that that the Secretary may assess penalties or secure 

such other relief in proceedings before agency judges.  

137. Congress has specifically provided that “[w]henever a civil fine, penalty or 

pecuniary forfeiture is prescribed for the violation of an Act of Congress without specifying the 

mode of recovery or enforcement thereof, it may be recovered in a civil action.” 28 U.S.C. 

§ 2461(a). Thus, because Congress has not expressly provided for agency adjudication of H-2A 

penalties, those penalties must be assessed in a civil action.  

138. The APA likewise contemplates that agency adjudication must be authorized by 

statute. The APA provides for “substantial evidence” review of agency decisions only if those 

decisions were made at “an agency hearing provided by statute.” 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(E). 

Otherwise, the APA provides for “trial de novo by the reviewing court.” Id. § 706(2)(F).  

139. Because Congress has not authorized adjudication of alleged H-2A violations by 

agency judges, Plaintiff is entitled to “trial de novo by the reviewing court.” Id.  

140. As a remedy for this violation, Defendants should be enjoined from enforcing the 

agency decision below. If Defendants wish to impose this penalty on Sun Valley Orchards, they 

should be required to affirmatively press their claims in an Article III court. And if Defendants 

do choose to affirmatively press their claims, the case should be set for trial where the issues can 

be decided under a de novo standard of review.  
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141. At the required de novo trial, Plaintiff would litigate all of the factual and legal 

issues decided by the agency courts in this case. Among other things, Sun Valley Orchards 

would seek a de novo determination of the appropriate penalty for the various meal plan and 

beverage-related violations; would seek a de novo determination of whether Sun Valley Orchards 

can be held responsible for the sales of beverages by the workers’ supervisor; and would seek a 

de novo determination of whether the nineteen workers were fired or, instead, quit their jobs. 

142. If Defendants decide to press forward with the necessary de novo trial, Sun Valley 

Orchards also hereby invokes its right to trial by jury under the Seventh Amendment.  

Count V:  
The Agency’s Decision Is Not Supported By Substantial Evidence, Is An Abuse of 

Discretion, and Is Not In Accordance With Law 
(5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A), (E)) 

 
143. The allegations of ¶¶ 45-105 are incorporated here in full. 

144. Under the APA, agency action may be overturned if it is not supported by 

substantial evidence, if it is an abuse of discretion, or if it is otherwise not in accordance with 

law. As set forth above, Sun Valley Orchards disputes that any such standard should apply here. 

However, in the alternative, the agency decision in this case fails review even under that 

deferential standard.   

145. First, the award of $128,285 in back wages is not supported by substantial 

evidence, constitutes an abuse of discretion, and is not in accordance with law because the 

evidence did not support a finding that the employees were actually owed $128,285 in back 

wages. Even if the employees had been afforded kitchen access as the H-2A application stated, 

the employees would still have had to pay to purchase food, so the entire cost of the meal plan 

cannot be counted as a loss to the employees.  
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146. Second, the $198,450 civil monetary penalty is not supported by substantial 

evidence, constitutes an abuse of discretion, and is not in accordance with law insofar as the 

penalty vastly exceeds the amount of any harm to the workers and is also duplicative of the 

award of back wages. The ALJ, after hearing all the evidence, failed to determine an appropriate 

penalty under the regulations and instead upheld the penalty because the agency “considered” the 

relevant factors under the governing DOL regulation and because the agency’s analysis of those 

factors was “rational.” Such near-total deference to agency enforcement personnel is not an 

appropriate basis for a penalty decision.  

147. The $198,450 civil monetary penalty also is not supported by substantial 

evidence, is an abuse of discretion, and is not in accordance with law insofar as DOL failed to 

proffer any colorable basis to multiply the penalty by the number of employees. Both the ARB 

and the ALJ tried to justify that decision by noting the number of employees affected, but that 

rationale would apply for every case and every penalty. The ALJ also said that this multiplication 

was warranted given the seriousness of the violation, but neither the ALJ nor anyone at DOL has 

proffered a reasonable explanation why this paperwork violation should be considered so serious 

that it warrants imposing hundreds of thousands of dollars in liability.    

148. Third, DOL’s decision to impose $64,960 in back wages for the sale of non-

alcoholic drinks was not supported by substantial evidence, an abuse of discretion, and not in 

accordance with law insofar as the penalty vastly exceeds the amount of any harm to the 

workers. There is no requirement to provide free beverages for H-2A workers, and, even if the 

drinks had been sold by an independent third party rather than the workers’ supervisor, the 

workers still would not have obtained the drinks for free.  
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149. Fourth, DOL’s decision to impose $64,960 in back wages for the sale of non-

alcoholic drinks and $8,972.60 for the sale of beer was not supported by substantial evidence, an 

abuse of discretion, and not in accordance with law insofar as the evidence did not support a 

determination that the farm ratified or approved of the supervisor’s sale of those beverages.  

150. Fifth, DOL’s decision to impose $142,728.20 in back wages and $2,700 civil 

monetary penalties in connection with the early departure of a portion of the farm’s workers was 

not supported by substantial evidence, an abuse of discretion, and not in accordance with law, as 

the employees did not actually testify that they were fired. 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

 In light of the foregoing, Plaintiff Sun Valley Orchards respectfully requests the 

following relief: 

A. An injunction enjoining the Defendants from enforcing the decision of the 

Administrative Review Board or commencing any action to collect the amounts claimed in the 

Notice of Determination from Sun Valley Orchards; 

B. A declaration that the Department’s procedures for imposing civil monetary 

penalties and back wages for alleged violations of the H-2A program are not authorized by 

statute and also violate Article III;  

C. A declaration that the proceedings in this case violated the Appointments Clause 

insofar as the ALJ and the ARB were not appointed in a constitutionally adequate manner; 

D. A declaration that the monetary award in this case violated the Excessive Fines 

Clause of the U.S. Constitution;  

E. A declaration that the decision below was not supported by substantial evidence 

and was otherwise contrary to law;   
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F. An award of Plaintiff’s costs and expenses of this action, together with reasonable 

attorneys’ fees, under the Equal Access to Justice Act or otherwise; and  

G. Any other legal or equitable relief to which Plaintiff may show itself to be justly 

entitled. 

Dated: September 8, 2021  Respectfully submitted, 
 
  /s/ Scott M. Wilhelm  
 
Robert E. Johnson*  
INSTITUTE FOR JUSTICE 
16781 Chagrin Blvd. #256 
Shaker Heights, OH 44120 
Tel: (703) 682-9320  
Fax: (703) 682-9321 
Email: rjohnson@ij.org  
 
       * Pro hac motion to be filed 
 

  Scott Wilhelm 
  WINEGAR, WILHELM, GLYNN & ROEMERSMA, P.C. 

305 Roseberry Street, P.O. Box 800 
Phillipsburg, NJ  08865 
Tel: (908) 454-3200 
Fax:  (908) 454-3322 
Email: wilhelms@wwgrlaw.com 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff Sun Valley Orchards, LLC 
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LOCAL RULE 11.2 CERTIFICATION 
 

 Pursuant to Local Civil Rule 11.2, Plaintiff Sun Valley Orchards, LLC certifies that the 

matter in controversy in this action is not the subject of any other action pending in any court or 

of any pending arbitration or administrative proceeding.  

Dated: September 8, 2021  Respectfully submitted, 
 
  /s/ Scott M. Wilhelm  
 
Robert E. Johnson*  
INSTITUTE FOR JUSTICE 
16781 Chagrin Blvd. #256 
Shaker Heights, OH 44120 
Tel: (703) 682-9320  
Fax: (703) 682-9321 
Email: rjohnson@ij.org  
 
       * Pro hac motion to be filed 
 

  Scott Wilhelm 
  WINEGAR, WILHELM, GLYNN & ROEMERSMA, P.C. 

305 Roseberry Street, P.O. Box 800 
Phillipsburg, NJ  08865 
Tel: (908) 454-3200 
Fax:  (908) 454-3322 
Email: wilhelms@wwgrlaw.com 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff Sun Valley Orchards, LLC 
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VERIFICATION 
I, Joseph Marino hereby verify that I am the Managing Partner of Sun Valley 
Orchards, LLC. I have reviewed the foregoing Complaint and I verify under 
penalty of perjury that the facts set forth in the Complaint are true and correct to 
the best of my knowledge . 

. xecuted on September l_, 2021 in S 
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THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

 
   
SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC,   
   
                              Plaintiff,   
   
               v.  Case No. 1:21-cv-16625-JHR-MJS 
   
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, et al.,    
    
                              Defendants.   
   

 
NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE RECORD 

Defendants hereby file the attached certification and index of the administrative record 

in this case.  The full administrative record is publicly available on the Department of Labor’s 

website.  It can be found under the “Affirmative Disclosures” section in the Department of 

Labor’s FOIA Library (https://www.dol.gov/general/foia/readroom) or at the following di-

rect link: https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/SOL/FOIA/Final-Administrative-

Record-Sun-Valley-Orchards-v-DOL.pdf.   

DATED: December 15, 2021 Respectfully submitted, 
 

 BRIAN M. BOYNTON 
Acting Assistant Attorney General 
 
BRAD P. ROSENBERG 
Assistant Director, Federal Programs Branch 
 
/s/ Stephen Ehrlich            
STEPHEN EHRLICH 
Trial Attorney 
U.S. Department of Justice 
Civil Division, Federal Programs Branch 
1100 L Street, NW 
Washington, DC  20005 
Phone:  (202) 305-9803 
Email:  stephen.ehrlich@usdoj.gov 
 
Attorneys for Defendants 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

  

SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC, 

Plaintiffs, 

v. Case No. 1:21-CV-16625-JHR-MJS 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, etal, 

Defendants.   
  

CERTIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE RECORD 

I, Thomas O. Shepherd, Jr., Clerk of the Appellate Boards of the U.S. Department of 

Labor, certify, to the best of my knowledge, that the produced materials—described in the 

accompanying index—constitute the administrative record in the above-captioned case. It 

contains non-privileged materials that were considered by the U.S. Department of Labor, in- 

cluding the Administrative Review Board, in connection with the administrative proceedings 

in Administrator, Wage and Hour Division, U.S. Department of Labor v. Sun Valley Orchards, LLC. 

Executed: December 14, 2021. 

  

    
  

  

Thomas O. Shepherd, Jr. 
Clerk of the Appellate Boards 
U.S. Department of Labor 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

 
 
SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC, 
 

Plaintiffs, 

v. 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, et al., 
 
 

Defendants. 
 

 

      

 

          Case No. 1:21-CV-16625-JHR-MJS 
 
 

 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE RECORD INDEX 

 
Proceedings before the Administrative Law Judge (ALJ)  
(Case No. 2017-TAE-00003) (2017-MSPA-00002) 

Page 

 
Date Document Name 

 

1. June 22, 2016 Letter from Charlene Rachor, District Director, Wage 
and Hour Division, U.S. Department of Labor (“Wage 
and Hour Division”) to Sun Valley Orchards, LLC 
(“Sun Valley”) Regarding Notice of Determination of 
Wages Owed and Assessing Civil Money Penalties 

AR – 0001 

2. July 20, 2016 Letter from Christopher Schulte, Counsel for Sun 
Valley, to Wage and Hour Division Requesting a 
Hearing Regarding Assessment of Civil Money 
Penalties  

AR – 0009 

3. August 9, 2016 Letter from Charlene Rachor, District Director, Wage 
and Hour Division to Agustin Hernandez Regarding 
Assessment of Civil Money Penalty for Violations of the 
Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection 
Act (“MSPA”) 

AR – 0012 

4. September 2, 2016 Letter from Christopher Schulte, Counsel for Agustin 
Hernandez, to Wage and Hour Division Requesting a 
Hearing Regarding Assessment of Civil Money 
Penalties 

AR – 0018 
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5. December 23, 2016 Letter from Jason Glick, Counsel for the Administrator, 
Wage and Hour Division (“Administrator”), to Chief 
ALJ Henley, requesting consolidation of 2017-TAE-
00003 and 2017-MSPA-00002 and attaching: 

1. Order of Reference for 2017-TAE-00003 

2. Order of Reference for 2017-MSPA-00002  

3. Notice of Appearance of Jason Glick, as Counsel for   
Administrator in 2017-TAE-00003 

4. Notice of Appearance of Jason Glick, as Counsel for 
Administrator in 2017-MSPA-00002 

AR – 0021 

6. January 18, 2017 ALJ Initial Notice of Hearing and Pre-Hearing Order AR – 0030 

7. January 27, 2017 Notice of Appearance of Christopher Schulte, as 
Counsel for Sun Valley Orchards and Hernandez 
(collectively, “Respondents”) 

AR – 0039 

8. January 27, 2017 Joint Motion for Revised Schedule AR – 0042 

9. February 7, 2017 ALJ Order Granting the Parties Joint Motion for 
Revised Schedule 

AR – 0046 

10. April 13, 2017 Administrator’s Emergency Motion for Leave to 
Administer Oaths Remotely in De Bene Esse 
Depositions 

AR – 0051 

11. April 14, 2017 Respondent Sun Valley’s Opposition to Administrator’s 
“Emergency” Motion to Waive Rules 

AR – 0074 

12 April 21, 2017 ALJ Order Granting Motion for Leave to Administer 
Oaths Remotely in De Bene Esse Depositions 

AR – 0085 

13. April 24, 2017 Letter from Administrator to ALJ Timlin Regarding 
Court’s April 21, 2017 Order Granting Motion for 
Leave to Administer Oaths Remotely in De Bene Esse 
Depositions 

AR – 0090 

14. April 26, 2017 Letter from Respondent to ALJ Timlin Regarding De 
Bene Esse Depositions 

AR – 0093 

15. May 8, 2017 Letter from Administrator to ALJ Timlin Enclosing 
Stipulation of Dismissal and Order for 2017-MSP-00002 

AR – 0096 
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16. May 15, 2017 ALJ Order Approving Stipulation of Dismissal of 2017-
MSP-00002 

AR – 0100 

 
Proceedings before the Administrative Law Judge (ALJ)  
(Case No. 2017-TAE-00003) 

 

17. May 17, 2017 Joint Motion for Revised Schedule AR – 0104 

18. May 22, 2017 ALJ Order Granting Joint Motion for Revised Schedule AR – 0107 

19. May 23, 2017 Sun Valley’s Emergency Motion for Revised Schedule AR – 0111 

20. May 24, 2017 Administrator’s Opposition to Respondent’s Motion for 
a Third Extension to the Summary Decision Deadline 

AR – 0117 

21. May 24, 2017  Sun Valley’s Reply in Further Support of Emergency 
Motion for Revised Schedule 

AR – 0124 

22. May 25, 2017 ALJ Order Granting Sun Valley’s Emergency Motion 
for Revised Schedule 

AR – 0129 

23. June 1, 2017 Administrator’s Motion for Partial Summary Decision 
and Memorandum of Law in Support of the 
Administrator’s Motion for Partial Summary Decision, 
with Enclosed Declarations and Exhibits 

AR – 0133 

24. June 1, 2017 Sun Valley’s Motion for Summary Decision and 
Memorandum of Law in Support of Sun Valley’s 
Motion for Summary Decision, with Enclosed 
Declaration and Exhibits 

AR – 0717 

25. June 5, 2017 Letter from Sun Valley to ALJ Timlin Submitting and 
Enclosing Replacement Pages for Sun Valley’s Motion 
for Summary Decision, Exhibit 12 

AR – 1169 

26. June 6, 2017 Joint Motion to Extend by One Week Certain Pre-
Hearing Deadlines 

AR – 1170 

27. June 8, 2017 ALJ Order Granting the Parties Joint Motion to Extend 
by One Week Certain Pre-Hearing Deadlines 

AR – 1173 

28. June 8, 2017 Letter from Legal Assistant to the ALJ to Counsel for 
Sun Valley Confirming Receipt of Replacement Pages 
for Sun Valley’s Motion for Summary Decision, Exhibit 
12 and Returning the Originally Submitted Exhibit 12 

AR – 1177 
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29. June 15, 2017 Administrator’s Memorandum of Law in Opposition to 
Sun Valley’s Motion for Summary Decision, with 
Enclosed Declarations and Exhibits  

AR – 1178 

30. June 15, 2017 Joint Stipulation of Agreed Facts and Joint Exhibits  AR – 1489 

31. June 15, 2017 Sun Valley’s Memorandum of Law in Opposition to the 
Administrator’s Motion for Partial Summary Decision, 
with Enclosed Exhibits 

AR – 1668 

32. June 22, 2017 Administrator’s Pre-Hearing Statement and Objections 
to Sun Valley’s Preliminary Exhibit List 

AR – 1692 

33. June 22, 2017 Sun Valley’s Pre-Hearing Statement and Objections to 
the Administrator’s Preliminary Exhibit List 

AR – 1705 

34. June 27, 2017 Administrator’s Pre-Hearing Motion for an Order to 
Compel the Hearing Appearance of Sun Valley’s 
Employee, Agustin Hernandez 

AR – 1717 

35. June 30, 2017 Parties’ Stipulation Regarding Agustin Hernandez’s 
Appearance at Trial 

AR – 1725 

36. July 7, 2017 ALJ Order Denying Parties’ Motions for Summary 
Decision 

AR – 1729 

37. July 18, 2017 Hearing Transcript, Pages 1 – 165 AR – 1733 

38. July 19, 2017 Hearing Transcript, Pages 166 – 344 AR – 1899 

39. July 20, 2017 Hearing Transcript, Pages 345 – 652 AR – 2079 

40. July 21, 2017 Hearing Transcript, Pages 653 – 976 AR – 2388 

41. July 21, 2017 Administrator’s Exhibits AR – 2713 

42. July 21, 2017 Respondent’s Exhibits AR – 3906 

43. July 27, 2017 Letter from Administrator Submitting Password for 
Two Encrypted DVDs Provided to the Court During 
Hearing 

AR – 4143 

44. September 25, 2017 Joint Motion to Set Post-Hearing Briefing Schedule AR – 4144 

45. October 5, 2017 ALJ Order Granting Joint Motion to Set Post-Hearing 
Briefing Schedule 

AR – 4147 
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46. December 15, 2017 Administrator’s Post-Hearing Brief AR – 4151 

47. December 15, 2017 Sun Valley’s Post-Hearing Brief AR – 4260 

48. October 28, 2019 ALJ Decision and Order Affirming In Part and 
Modifying In Part the Administrator’s Findings 

AR – 4300 

Proceedings before the Administrative Review Board (ARB)  
(Case No. 2019-0018) 

 

49. November 27, 2019 Sun Valley’s Petition for Review of a Decision and 
Order Affirming in Part and Modifying In Part the 
Administrator’s Findings 

AR – 4357 

50. December 6, 2019 Notice of Appeal and Order Establishing Brief Schedule AR – 4372 

51. December 11, 2019 Sun Valley’s Consent Motion to Extend Briefing 
Scheduling 

AR – 4379 

52. December 19, 2019
  

ARB Order Granting Motion for Extension of Time to 
File Opening Brief 

AR – 4381 

53. January 31, 2020 Sun Valley’s Supporting Brief of Points and Authorities 
In Support of Reversal of a Decision and Order 
Affirming In Part and Modifying In Part the 
Administrator’s Findings 

AR – 4384 

54. February 5, 2020 Administrator’s Motion for Extension of Time AR – 4410 

55. February 14, 2020 ARB Order Granting Administrator’s Motion for 
Extension of Time to File a Response Brief 

AR – 4414 

56. March 20, 2020 Administrator’s Response Brief AR – 4417 

57. May 27, 2021 ARB Decision and Order AR – 4488 
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United States Department of Labor
Wage and Hour Division
3131 Princeton Pike

Building 5, Room 216

Lawrcncevilic, New Jersey 08648
Tel. (609) 53&-8310
Fax (609) 538-6314

Date: June 22, 2016

CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED: 7013 1710 0001 5882 0376

Sun Valley Orchards, LLC
Attn: Mr. Russell J. Marino, Jr.
29 Vestry Road
.Salem, New Jersey 0808S

To;

Subject: Notice of Determinalion of Wages Owed and Assessing (j ivil Money
Penallie.s

Case Reference Number; 176.53.59

Dear Sit(s);

An invcsligalion conduclcd by ihis office of Sun Valley Orchards, LLC d/b/a Sun Valley

Orchards, relating lo the requirements applicable to the employment of H-2A and other workcr.s
under the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) as amended by (he Immigration Reform and
Control Act (IRCA) (8 U.S.C. ll()l(a)(15)(H)(ii)(a),1184(c) and 1186) in Flcniiiigton, New
Jersey, covering the period from April 13, 2015 through October 10, 2015, disclosed that Sun
Valley Orchards, LLC laiied to comply with Section 218 of the INA and applicahlt; regulations at
20 C.F.R. Part 655 and 29 C.F.R. Part 501.

■As a consequence of thc.se H-2A violation.s, $369,703.22 in unpaid wages are owed to one
hundred and forty seven workers. The .specific violations and llie wages owed associated with
them are set forth in tlic attached matrix entitled Summary ofViolaiions.

In addition, pursuant lo Section 218(g)(2) of the INA and its implementing regulalions at 29
C.F.R. Part .501, civil money penalties are hereby assessed in the amount of .$212,250.00. The
specific violations and the civil money penalties a.ssocialcd with ihcin arc set forth in the allached
matrix entitled Summary of Violations.
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The full amouiU(s) reflected above $581,953.22 is due and payable within 30 day.s to “Wage and
Hour Division, U.S. Department of Labor,” Payments by certified check or money order
should be delivered or mailed to;

U.S. Deptiitmenl of labor
Wage and Hour Division
The Curtis Center, Suite 850 W'est

170 S. Independence Mall West

Philadelphia, FA 19106-3317

The fact that the above .sanctions/remedie.s are being imposed for the H-2A viohttions found at
this time docs not preclude the taking of other enforcement action as is deemed appropriate by
the Department of Labor, or ibe additional assessments of back wages or civil money penalties
for violations of the H-2A provisions found at some future time. Such other cnioi cement action

may include the pursuit of unpaid wages, injunctive action, specific performance of the work
contract, and denial or revocation of temporary alien agricultural labor certification.

The doilar aniounl(s) rellecled above constitute  a debt owed to the Federal go\ einrnent. This
debt is subject to the as.sessment of interest, admini.slrativc cost chaige,s and penalties in
accordance with the Debt Collection Act of 1982, and departmental policies. Inicrc.sl will be
a.sscssed al the Treasury Tax and Ixran Account Rale on any balance outstanding from the dale of
tliis notice, acciuing from the notice date. Administrative cost charges will be asses.sed to help
defray the Government's cost of collecting this debt. A penalty at the rale of 6% will be asse.ssed
on any portion of the debt remaining delinquent for more than 90 days. In order to avoid these
charges, forward payments to the office listed above by the indicated due date.

You have the right to request a hearing on the determination that any or all of the violations
occurred. Such request must be dated and in writing; mu.$l contain specific reasons why you
believe that the violations for which vou have been charged did not occur; and must be received
within 30 days from the date of this letter by the Administrator, Wage and Hour Division, U.S.
Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Room S'3502, Washtngl.i:in, D.C. 202J0,
with a copy to this office. The procedure for requesting a hearing is provided in Section 501.33
of Regulations, 29 CFR 501. If a request for a Jicaring is not received within Lite tunc specified,
the delcrniination of the Administrator shall become the final and unappealable Order of the
Secretary.

We would like to call to your attention that when  a reque.st for n hearing is filed with the Wage
and Hour Administrator, the matter is rcfcired to the Chief Administrative Law Judge. A formal
heaving is then scheduled for a final determination with respect to the alleged violations. At Such
hearing you may, by your.sclf or through an allorney retained by you, present .such witnesses,
introduce such evidence and establish such facts as you believe wit! support your po.sition.

Copies of Section 218 of INA and Regulations, 20 CFR Pari 655 and 29 CFR Part 501 can be

viewed at www,doi.gov.

2
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hinaily, we wisli lo poinl out that there may be  a question as to the deduclibilily ol civil money
penalties paid as a business cx|)Cnsc under the Internal Revenue Code. In this regard, you may
wish to contact the Internal Revenue Service.

Sincerely,

Charlene Rachor

District Director

Regional Administrator, Mark Watson, Jr.cc:

Enclosures; Summary of Violations

3
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U.S, Department of Labor
Wage and Hour Division

Case ID: 1765359

ACT:

EIN:

Name;

H-2A

46-0542793

Sun Valley Orchards, LLC

ER Address: 29 Vestry Road
Salem, NJ 08085

Unpaid Wages
Amount Due. $369,703.22

THIS SHEET MUST BE INCLUDED WITH PAYMENT

YOU MUST WRITE YOUR TAX ID ON YOUR CHECK

MAIL TO:

U.S. Department of Labor
Wage and Hour Division
The Curtis Center, Suite 850 West

170 S. Independence Mall West
Philadelphia, PA 19106-3317

AMOUNT PAID; S

Regional Office Copy - -

4
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U.S. Departrnonl of Labor
Wage and Hour Division

Case ID: 1765359

ACT: H-2A

46-0542793

Sun Valley Orchards, LLC

EIN:

Name:

29 Vestry Road
Salem, NJ 08085

ER Address:

Amount Due

In Civil Money
Penally: $212,250.00

THIS SHEET MUST BE INCLUDED WITH PAYMENT

YOU MUST WRITE YOUR TAX ID ON YOUR CHECK

MAIL TO:

U.S, Department of Labor
Wage and Hour Division
The Curtis Center, Suite 850 West

170 S. Independence Mall West
Philadelphia, PA 19106-3317

AMOUNT PAID: S

DATE OF PMT;

CHECK NO.

SIGNATURE:

- • District Office Copy - -

.5
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Summary of Violations

Regulatory
,  Requirement

Violated
I

Unpaid Wages
Owed

CivilSummai y Description
Money

Penalty

$3,600.00 120 C.RR.

§655.122(d)(1)

$0.00Employer Tailed to provide for or secure
housing for those workers who are not

i reasonably able to return to their
permanent residence at the end of the work
day, without charge to the worker, that
complies with the applicable housing safety
ami health standards. Specifically, the.
investigation disclo.scd lliat the hou.sing facility
provided for workers was missing window
screens and had screen doors not in good repair

contributing to the insect infestation
throughout the camp. Several bathroom sinks
did not have hot water, refuse containers

throughout facility were missing fly tight lids
and multiple mattresses used by occupants for
sleeping purposes were directly on the floor
wiihoLil a bed frame.

I

I

$198,450.00$234,079.,28Failure to comply with ‘hncals
rcquirement(s). Specifically, the investigation
disclosed that the employer failed to provide
free and convenient cooking and kitchen
facilities to the workers that would enable

them to prepare their own meals. The job
offers for iliese contracts specifically stated
that these facilities would be provided to
workers. When the employer provides a meal
plan, the job offer for the contract must stale
the charge for such meals, including drinks.
The job offer for these contracts docs not
contain disclosure of meal charges and as such
all meal and drink charges must be returned to
the workers resulting in back wages being due
to 147 affected workers.

15

20 C.F.R.

§655.122(g)

I

$0.00 $7,.500.00Failure to provide transportation in
§655.122(h)(4) compliance with all applicable Federal,

State, or local laws and regulations between
the worker’s living quarters and the
employer’s worlcsite without cost to the
worker. Specifically, the investigation
disclosed that three of the five vehicles used to j

20 C.F.R.

I

6
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transport workers had insuliicienl tread on the
tires for safe operation and one had a non-
I'uncliomng rear directional. Additionally, the
five vehicles used to transport II-2A and
corresponding workers were operated by
drivers who failed to possess valid, unexpired
driver’s licen.ses recognized by the Slate of
New Jersey for operation of same.

Failure to comply with the three-fourths
guarantee. Specifically, the investigation
disclosed that J9 ot the H-2A workers on Ihe

first contract of 2015 did not meet the %

guarantee since they were constructively forced
to return home prior to the end of the contract
period due to the myriad of misrepresentations
on the contract, poor housing conditions, lack
of transportation and general mistreatment by
the employer and or his farm labor contractor.
Additionally, 6 other workers employed in
201.5 did not meet the % guarantee based on a
review of payroll records.

Failure to comply with requirement to
(Jisclos'e the work contract. Specifically, the

investigation disclosed that the employer
provided a copy of the worker contract tliat did
not contain the actual conditions of

employment. The contracts do not address the
“meal plan” charges and misrepresent that free
cooking facilities will be provided to the
workers along with free transportation to
purchase food. The kitchen facilities were
locked, workers had no access to the kitchen

for preparation of meals and transportation to
_pmchasc^food was_^ not pjov[dcd_^
Failure to comply with “deductions”
re(|uirement(s). Specifically, the investigation
disclosed that the job offer did not specify “all”
the deductions not required by law w'hjch Ihe
employer will make from workers’ pay checks.
The “meal plan” was not disclosed in the job
oiler or the contract. The back wages
associated with this violation and penalty for
same arc addressed above in 20 CFR

655.122(g).

Sf 35,623.94 | $1,350,0020 C.F.R.

§655.122(0

$0.00 I$0.0020 C.F.R.

§655.122(q)

I

!

I

$0.00$0.0020 C.F.R.

§655.122(p)
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$1,350.0029 C.F.R,

§501.5

$0.00The investigation disclosed that Russell J.
Marino sought to have covered workers
waive rights conferred under sec. 218 of the
INA, regulations at 20 C.F.R. § 655, or
regulations at 29 C.F.R. § SOL Specifically,
the investigation disclosed that the employer
and or his farm labor contractor coerced

workers leaving the contracts prior to the
ending date to .sign a form created by Sun
Valley Orchards, LLC staling that they were
leaving early for “personal reasons” in an
attempt to have them waive their 14 guarantee
rights as party to the contracts. Workers left the
job early due to the conditions stated above in
20 CFR 655.122(0 and/or because of
misrepresentations by the employer and/or his
farm labor contractor.

I

I

I

$369,703.22 I $21.2,250.00Total

s
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

NEW YORK, NY

IN THE MATTER OF: )

)

SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC, CASENO.2016-TAE-)
)

ORDER OF REFERENCERespondent. )
)

)

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE

Office of the Administrative Law Judges
United States Department of Labor

TO:

Pursuant to a timely request by Respondent for a hearing on the assessment of

$369,703,22 in unpaid wages and $212,250.00 in civil money penalties, a hearing has been duly

determined to be appropriate and pursuant to regulations is therefore required to be held to

inquire into matters arising under the provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA), 8

U.S.C. § 1101, e/ seq. as amended by the Immigration Reform Control Act of 1986, Pub. L. 99-

603, § 301, 100 Stat. 3359, 3411 and the implementing regulations.

The unpaid wages and civil money penalties were assessed on June 22, 2016, pursuant to

29 C.F.R. § 501.16(a)(1) as a result of alleged violations of regulations, as described in the June

22, 2016 Notice of Determination, including but not limited to 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(g) (failure to

comply with meals requirement), § 655.122(p) (failure to comply with requirements regarding

paycheck deductions), and § 655.122(i) (failure to comply with the tluee-fouilhs guarantee). The

Administrator hereby amends the June 22, 2016 Notice of Determination to allege that

Respondent also violated: (1) § 655.122(p) by making unreasonable deductions from workers’

paychecks, insofar as Respondent sold workers beverages and other goods at a profit and/or in

violation of state law; (2) § 655.122(1) by terminating workers without cause; and 3) 29 C.F.R. §
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501.5 insofar as Respondent improperly sought to have terminated workers waive their rights.

The Administrator also hereby amends the June 22, 2016 Notice of Determination to allege that

Respondent owes a total of $376,697.61 in unpaid wages and $212,250.00 in CMPs.

The matter is accordingly hereby referred to the Chief Administrative Law Judge for

designation and hearing in accordance with the INA, its implementing regulations, and 29 C.F.R.

§ 501.37(a).

Enclosed hereto for filing of record pursuant to 29 C.F.R. § 501.37(a) are copies of: (1)

the Notice of Determination issued to Sun Valley Orchards, LLC on June 22, 2016; and (2)

Respondent’s timely request for a hearing dated July 20, 2016.

Dated and signed at New York, New York, on this day of December 2016.

JENNIFER S. BRAND

Associate Solicitor of Labor for

Fair Labor Standards

Vl

Y S. ROGOFb

Regional Solicitor

JEF

JA^OB HEyf
Triaf Attorney

KANTOR

/

JA50N E. CLICK

Trial Attorney

Office of the Solicitor

201 Varick St, Room 983

New York, NY 10014

Attorneys for the Administrator
Wage and Hour Division
United States Department of Labor
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

NEW YORK, NY

)
IN THE MATTER OF: )

)

AGUSTIN HERNANDEZ,
dba AGUSTIN HERNANDEZ EEC

)
CASE NO. 2016-MSPA- -P)

ORDER OF REFERENCERespondent. )
)

)

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE

Office of the Administrative Law Judges
United States Department of Labor

TO:

Pursuant to a timely request by Respondent for a hearing on the assessment oi $1,000.00

in civil money penalties, a hearing has been duly determined to be appropriate and pursuant to

regulations is therefore required to be held to inquire into matters arising under the provisions of

the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker Protection Act of 1983 (MSPA), 29 U.S.C. §

1801, ei seq. and the applicable regulations thereunder, 29 C.F.R. Part 500. In particular, civil

money penalties were assessed against Respondent as a result of violations of 29 C.F.R, §

500.75.

The matter is accordingly hereby referred to the Chief Administrative Law Judge for

designation and hearing pursuant to Sections 503(b)(1) and 503(b)(2) of MSPA and

implementing regulations, including 29 C.F.R. §§ 500.212 and 500.224(a).
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Enclosed hereto for filing of record pursuant to 29 C.F.R. § 500.224(a) are: (1) an

authenticated copy of the Notice of Determination issued to Respondent on August 9, 2016; and

(2) a copy of Respondent’s timely request for a hearing dated September 2, 2016.

22
Dated and signed at New York, New York, on this day of December 2016.

JENNIFER S. BRAND

Associate Solicitor of Labor for

Fair Labor Standards

JEFFREY'S. ROObFP

Regional Solicitor

7

jaCob heyman-kantor

Tria Attorney
A

fUr;
J^^'ON E. CLICK
Trial Attorney

Office of the Solicitor

201 Varick St, Room 983

New York, NY 10014

Attorneys for the Administrator
Wage and Hour Division
United States Department of Labor
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I

U.S. Department of Labor Office of Administrative Law Judges
2 Executive Campus, Suite 450
Cherry Hill, NJ 08002

(856) 486-3800
(856) 486-3806 (FAX)

Issue Date: 18 January 2017
Case No.: 2017-TAE-00003

In the Matter of

ADMINISTRATOR, WAGE AND HOUR

DIVISION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Plaintiff

V.

SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC

Respondent

and

Case No.: 2017-MSP-00002

In the Matter of

SECRETARY OF LABOR

Plaintiff

V.

AGUSTIN HERNANDEZ, d/b/a
AGUSTIN HERNANDEZ FLC

Respondent

INITIAL NOTICE OF HEARING

AND PREHEARING ORDER

This matter involves two actions, one under the Immigration and Nationality Act C'lNA”)
Temporary Alien Employment H-2A visa program, 8 U.S.C. Sections 1 101(a)(15)(H)(ii)(a); 11 88(c),
as implemented by regulations at 29 C.F.R. Part 501; and the other under the safety and health and
contractor registration provisions of tlie Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Workers Protection Act,
29 U.S.C. § 1801 et seq., and implementing regulations at 29 C.F.R. Part 500. These matters were

consolidated for hearing.
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NOTICE OF HEARING

The matter will be scheduled for hearing as follows:

1
DATE: Thursday, February 16, 2017

TIME: 10:00 a.m.

Office of Administrative Law Judges
U.S. Department of Labor

2 Executive Campus
Suite 450

Cherry Hill, New Jersey

PLACE:

A request by a party to continue the hearing or to change the place of the hearing must be made
by motion. 29 C.F.R. § 18.41(b). 1 request that such motion be made as soon as possible and
that the party who submits the motion confer with the opposing party before submitting the
motion and indicate the opposing party’s position in the motion. See 29 C.F.R. § 18.33(c)(3).

PRE-HEARING CONFERENCE WITH THE PARTIES

Presuming that the hearing will be held as currently scheduled on Thursday,

February 16. 2017, a telephonic pre-hearing conference will be held on Thursday,
February 2, 2017 at 3:00 p.m. (EST). Each party must be present to participate at the pre-

hearing conference.^ The principal purposes for the pre-hearing conference are to discuss
settlement of this matter (see below); if settlement is not possible, the conference will discuss the
upcoming hearing. Instructions for the pre-hearing conference are as follows: At the appointed
time, phone 866-793-8793; when prompted, enter the following code: 47228682.

PREHEARING ORDER

This Initial Prehearing Order states the basic schedule for the proceeding and provides
notice of several procedural matters and requirements. This Initial Prehearing Order does not
purport to cover all applicable procedural rules and requirements, and therefore the parties must
become familiar with and adhere to the Rules of Practice and Procedure for Administrative

Hearings before the Office of Administrative Law Judges at 29 C.F.R. Part 18, Subpart A and
with the FRSA regulations at 29 C.F.R. Part 1982. These regulations, which were significantly
revised effective June 18, 2015, may be found at www.ecfr.gov and at

1

I presume that the hearing in this matter can be concluded in one day. Nevertheless, I
DIRECT the parties to keep the following business day Friday, February 17, 2017, free on
their calendars, so that if a second day of hearing is necessary it ean be held at that time.

2

If a party is represented by eounsel, counsel must attend the conference and the party may
(but is not required to) also attend.

-2 -
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www.oali.dol.gov/LIBRULES.HTM. See 80 Fed. Reg. 28,767 (May 18, 2015) (final rule); 80
Fed. Reg. 27539 (July 1,2015) (technical corrections).

NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT

This matter has been assigned to Theresa C. Timlin, Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) of
the U.S. Department of Labor, for hearing and decision. All filings in this matter should be
addressed to me at the address shown in the letterhead above. Telephone inquiries should be
directed to Jacqueline Kaczak, Legal Assistant, at 856-486-3800, Extension 122. When
contacting my office, please note that parties, their representatives, or other interested persons
must not engage in ex parte communications on the merits of a case with the judge. 29 C.F.R. §
18.14.

ENTRY OF APPEARANCE BY REPRESENTATIVES

When first making an appearance, each representative must file a notice of appearance
that indicates on whose behalf the appearance is made and the proceeding name and docket
number. Any attorney representative must include in the notice of appearance the license
registration number(s) assigned to the attorney. 29 C.F.R. § 18.22(a). An individual who is not
an attorney must obtain the presiding judge’s approval to serve as a representative by filing a
written request to serve as a non-attorney representative that sets forth the name of the party or
subpoenaed witness represented and certifies that the party or subpoenaed witness desires the
representation. 29 C.F.R. § 18.22(b)(2).

PRE-HEARING PROCEDURE

The following sets the schedule for the pre-hearing procedure:

DISCOVERY. A party may seek discovery immediately upon issuance of this

Initial Prehearing Order. 29 C.F.R. § 18.50(a)(1). The time for responding to any
discovery requests made prior to the initial conference may be extended by the parties in
the discovery plan agreed to during the initial conference referenced below. 29 C.F.R. §
18.50(a)(l)(i). Parties must complete all discovery at least 14 days prior the date of the
evidentiary hearing. Parties should note that most discovery requests and responses are
not filed with the presiding judge until they are used in the proceeding or the judge orders
filing. 29 C.F.R. § 18.30(b)(1).

a.

b. INITIAL CONFERENCE. Within 10 days from the date of this Initial

Prehearing Order, the parties must meet and confer regarding the matters set forth in 29
C.F.R. § 18.50(b)(2). The initial conference may be held in person, via telephone or
video conferenee, or other means mutually acceptable to the parties. The representatives
of record and any unrepresented parties that have appeared in the ease are jointly
responsible for arranging the conference. For the instant case, the parties will not be
required to submit a written discovery plan to the presiding judge.

-3 -
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INITIAL DISCLOSURES. Within 14 days from the date of this order, and
without awaiting a formal discovery request, the parties must provide to all other parties
the documents and information set forth in 29 C.F.R. § 18.50(c)(l)(i).

c.

All disclosures must be made in writing, signed, and served,

supplement the disclosures when required by 29 C.F.R. § 18.53(a). A party must make
its initial disclosures based on the information then reasonably available to it. A party is
not excused from making its disclosures because it has not fully investigated the case or
because it challenges the sufficiency of another party’s disclosures or because another

party has not made its disclosures. 29 C.F.R. § 18.50(c)(l)(vi).

The parties must

The initial disclosures are not filed with the presiding judge unless used in supporting a
motion or other request, or if the judge orders filing.

d. PRE-HEARING DISCLOSURES AND EXCHANGES. At least 21 days
before the date of the hearing the parties must;

(1) Pre-mark and exchange copies of exhibits, along with a preliminary exhibit list.
Each page of multi-page exhibits must be numbered. Exhibits must be offered at

the hearing. This evidence should not be submitted to the presiding judge before
trial. An extra set of exhibits for witnesses to use as they testify must be provided
at trial.

(2) Stipulate as to the authenticity and content of all documents which they agree
should be made a part of the record. Each of the stipulated documents must be

properly marked for identification at the bottom of each page as Joint Exhibit 1,2,
3, etc., paginated, and either placed in a three-ring binder or be bound together in
some other acceptable form. Stipulated joint exhibits are encouraged; such
exhibits are to be offered at the hearing unless the presiding judge directs earlier
submission.

(3) Exchange preliminary witness lists along with  a precise statement of what the
testimony of each will prove.

(4) Designate expert witnesses on the witness list, with a brief statement concerning
the field of expertise and proposed testimony. Any testifying expert must have
submitted a written report, which is to be marked and exchanged as indicated
above. 29 C.F.R. § 18.50(c)(2).

(5) Confer on agreed facts and execute “Joint Stipulation of Agreed Facts” as
appropriate. 29 C.F.R. § 18.83.

Objections to any of the proposed testimony or documentary evidence exchanged must be
filed within 7 days from the date of receipt of the pre-hearing exchange of materials.
Failure without good cause to file an objection within the prescribed period may
result in a waiver of all objections with respect to the introduction of the testimonial

or documentary evidence.

-4-
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PREHEARING STATEMENT. At least 21 days before the date of the hearing
each party must complete and deliver to the other parties and the presiding judge a
Prehearing Statement containing all the information and the signature required by 29
C.F.R. § 18.80.

e.

MOTIONS AND OTHER REQUESTS FOR RELIEF

All written motions and other requests for relief from the presiding judge, including
requests for extensions of time or continuances, must be submitted in motion form, with a

caption, and not by letter. The motion or other request must conform to the rules governing
captions and other matters of form. 29 C.F.R. §§ 18.33, 18.34 and 18.35.

If the motion is opposed, the motion must contain  a declaration that the parties have made
a good faith effort but were unable to resolve the dispute giving rise to the motion before filing
such motions with the presiding judge. Any motion failing to contain the required declaration
may be summarily denied. The declaration is not required for unrepresented parties and for
motions specified in 29 C.F.R. § 18.33(c)(3).

Motions for Summary Decision are required to be filed at least 21 days prior to the date
fixed for formal hearing. 29 C.F.R. § 18.72.

PUBLIC HEARING

OALJ conducts public hearings. 29 C.F.R. § 18.81.  A presumption of public access
applies to the entire hearing process. Transcripts and documents filed with OALJ are subject to
inspection under the Freedom of Infonnation Act regardless of whether those documents are

moved into evidence at the formal hearing. The judge’s final decision and selected orders are

published on the agency website. Parties are responsible for redacting filings and exhibits as
required under 29 C.F.R, § 18.31. Failure to redact or to obtain an order sealing a record prior
to filing with the judge may result in waiver of protection from disclosure of information

contained in those documents. For good eause, the judge may order protection of material
pursuant to 29 C.F.R. §§ 18.85 (privileged, sensitive or classified material) and 18.52 (protective
orders). In limited circumstances authorized by law, the judge may close a hearing. 29 C.F.R, §
18.81(a). See also 29 C.F.R. § 70.26(b) (designation of confidential business information at time

of submission or reasonable time thereafter).

SUBPOENAS

Requests for subpoenas must be in writing and comply with the provisions of 29 C.F.R. §
Information about obtaining subpoenas can be found at

Parties, and not OALJ, are responsible for preparing

18.56.

www.oalj.dol.gov/SUBPOENAS.HTM.
and serving subpoenas upon any witness and for tendering any required costs and expenses.

-5 -
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ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION

OALJ offers two forms of court-sponsored alternative dispute resolution: settlement
judges or mediation by a neutral. 29 C.F.R. § 18.13 (settlement Judge rule); Alternative
Dispute Resolution Act of 1996, 5 U.S.C. §§ 572 and 573 (agency may appoint employee as a
neutral mediation).
www.oalJ.dol.gov/SETTLEMENT_JUDGE.HTM. Any requests for appointment of a settlement
Judge or a mediator in this case must be a Joint request, submitted in writing to the District Chief
Judge at the address and fax number above.

conduct For additional informationto see

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENTS

Any settlement agreement must be filed with the presiding Judge for review and approval.
29 C.F.R. § 1982.1 11(d)(2).

TRANSLATORS AND INTERPRETERS: REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS

The parties must advise the undersigned promptly if a translator or an interpreter will be
needed at the hearing. Parties may provide their own translator or interpreter or may request
provision of a translator or an interpreter by the Department of Labor. Parties needing assistance
with translation or interpretation services, or a reasonable accommodation, must inform the
undersigned no less than 30 days before the date of the hearing.

LEGIBLE COPIES

The parties are directed to conduct a review of all documents which are to be made a part
of the formal record. Any documents received which are not clearly legible will have limited
evidentiary value, and may be given no weight.

HEARING EXHIBITS

All documentary evidence to be offered at the hearing shall be presented in a
bound volume, individually numbered by tab, and sequentially numbered overall

in the lower right corner of each page. Each volume shall be limited to

approximately 100 pages.

1.

Exhibits shall be paginated and marked appropriately as follows: Prosecuting
Party - “PX and Respondent - “RX

2.

The exhibits shall be accompanied by an exhibit index containing a description of
each exhibit by tab number/letter, date and author, immediately followed by a
statement of precisely (not generally) what the exhibit proves (if the exhibit
exceeds 5 pages, the page(s) on which such proof appears shall be specified, and
the relevant material highlighted).

3.

Attached to each exhibit containing handwritten or difficult to read entries shall4.

-6-
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be a typed version of any such entry. A party disagreeing with the interpretation
of the entry may submit its own typed version at the hearing.

A curriculum vitae or equivalent qualifications summary shall be submitted for

any expert witness as part of the documentary evidence. No oral direct evidence

on the expert’s qualifications will be permitted absent a showing of special need.

5.

6. The parties are encouraged to submit exhibits jointly to the greatest extent
possible. Exhibits submitted jointly shall be denominated “JX

by letter (not number). If the parties cannot agree on the content of the index,

each party may submit a separate index to the Joint Exhibits in which the party
describes each exhibit and states what the exhibit proves, as set forth in
subparagraph 3, above.

,” sequentially

No post-hearing deposition testimony or other evidence of any kind shall be
accepted, except for good cause shown and with my specific authorization.

7.

ELECTRONIC AND DIGITAL EVIDENCE

The parties are informed that the hearing room is not equipped for the viewing of
evidence in electronic or digital formats. A party who intends to submit evidence in any
electronic or digital form must submit three (3) copies to me (in addition to the copy exchanged
with opposing counsel) and must coordinate in advance with my office for guidance on readable
formats. A party who submits evidence in a non-paper format is also responsible for providing
me a means to refer to such evidence during the hearing (e.g., laptop computer).

CONSEQUENCES OF FAILURE TO COMPLY

Failure to comply with the provisions of this prehearing order may result in the
imposition of sanctions including, but not limited to, the following: the exclusion of evidence,
the dismissal of the claim, the entry of a default judgment, or the removal of the offending
representative from the case. 29 C.F.R. §§ 18.12(b), 18.35(c), 18.57 and 18.87.

SO ORDERED.

Digitally signed by THERESA TIMLIN
DN: CN=THERESA TIMLIN,

OU=JUDGE, 0=US DDL Office of
Administrative Law Judges, L=CHERRY

HILL. S=NJ. C=US
Location: CHERRY HILL NJ

THERESA C. TIMLIN

Administrative Law Judge

Cherry Hill, New Jersey

-7-
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SERVICE SHEET

Case Name; WAGE AND HOUR DIVISI v SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS

Case Numbers: 2017TAE00003, 2017MSP00002

Document Title: INITIAL NOTICE OF HEARING AND PREHEARING ORDER

1 hereby certify that a copy of the above-referenced document was sent to the following this 18th
day of January, 2017:

Digitally signed by JACQUELINE KACZAK
DN; CN=JACQUELINE KACZAK,

OU=LEGAL ASSISTANT, 0=US DOL Office

of Administralive Law Judges. L*CHERRY
HILL, S=NJ. C=US

Location: CHERRY HILL NJ

JACQUELINE KACZAK
LEGAL ASSISTANT

Administrator

Wage and Hour Division

U. S. Dept, of Labor

Room S-3502, FPB

200 Constitution Ave., N.W.

WASHINGTON DC 20210

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

Secretary of Labor

c/o Administrative Review Board

U. S. Department of Labor

Suite S-5220, FPB

200 Constitution Ave., N.W.

WASHINGTON DC 20210

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

District Director

U.S. Department of Labor

ESA Wage and Hour Division

3131 Princeton Pike

Building 5, Room 216

LAWRENCEVILLE NJ 08648

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

Regional Administrator

U. S. Department of Labor/ESA

Wage and Hour Division

The Curtis Center, Room 850 West

170 S. Independence Mall West

PHILADELPHIA PA 19106

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

Jacob Heyman-Kantor, Esq.

U.S. Department of Labor

Office of the Solicitor

201 Varick Street

Room 983

NEW YORK NY 10014

{Hard Copy - Express (UPS)}

Associate Solicitor

Division of Fair Labor Standards

U. S. Department of Labor

Room N-2716, FPB

200 Constitution Ave., N.W.

WASHINGTON DC 20210

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}
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SERVICE SHEET continued (2017TAE00003 Notice of Hearing) Page; 2

Jason Click, Esq.

U.S. Department of Labor

Office of the Solicitor

201 Varick Street

Room 983

NEW YORK NY 10014

{Hard Copy - Express (UPS)}

Sun Valley Orchards, LLC

Attn: Mr. Russell J. Marino, Jr.

29 Vestry Road

SALEM NJ 08085

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

Christopher Schulte, Esq.

CJ Lake, LLC

525 Ninth Street, N.W.

Suite 800

WASHINGTON DC 20004

{Hard Copy - Express (UPS)}

Agustin Hernandez

Agustin Hernandez FLC

744 Tomlin-Station Road

MULLICA HILL NJ 08062

{Hard Copy - Express (UPS)}

Free State Reporting Inc

1378 Cape St. Clair Road

ANNAPOLIS MD 21409

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}
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U.S. Department of Labor
Office of the Solicitor

201 Varick Street, Room 983

New York, NY 10014

(646) 264-3687
(646) 264-3660
glick.iason.e@dol.gov

Tel;

Fax:

Email:

Jason E. Click, Esq.Reply to the Attention of:

May 8, 2017

Via First Class Mail

Hon. Theresa C. Timlin, Administrative Law Judge
Office of Administrative Law Judges
2 Executive Campus, Suite 450
Cherry Hill, NJ 08002

Re: In reAgustin Hernandez d/b/a Agustin Hernandez FLC, 2017-MSP-00002

Dear Judge Timlin:

Counsel for the Secretary and for Respondent Agustin Hernandez have executed a

stipulation dismissing the above-captioned case with prejudice, on the terms set out fully in the
enclosed Stipulation of Dismissal and Order. This stipulation applies only to the above-captioned
case.

Respectfully submitted.

Jeffrey S. Rogoff
Regional Solicitor

/■

By:
Jason E. Glick

AttoVney

■R\:  1

n

f i —
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES

CHERRY HILL, NEW JERSEY

*

IN THE MATTER OF;

Secretary of Labor

♦

*

*

Plaintiff, *  CaseNo, 2017-MSP-00002
♦

V.

♦

Agustin Hernandez, d/b/a
Agustin Hernandez FLC

♦

*

*

Respondent. *

*

STIPULATION OF DISMISSAL AND ORDER

The parties. Respondent Agustin Hernandez, d/b/a Agustin Hernandez FLC

(“Respondent”) and the Secretary of Labor, U.S. Department of Labor (“Secretary”) hereby

stipulate and agree that:

On August 9, 2016, the U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division

issued a Notice of Determination alleging that Respondent violated 29 C.F.R. § 500.75 during

the period April 5, 2015 to October 11, 2015, and assessing a civil money penalty.

On September 2, 2016, Respondent filed a timely request for a hearing with

respect to the allegations of violations set forth in the August 9, 2016 Notice of Determination.

The U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division, by and through the
Secretary, hereby agrees to withdraw its August 9, 2016 Notice of Determination.

Respondent hereby agrees to withdraw its September 2, 2016 hearing request.
The parties hereby agree to dismiss this case. No. 2017-MSP-00002, with

The parties hereby waive any further procedural steps before an Administrative
Law Judge of the U.S. Department of Labor regarding this matter.

1.

2.

3.

4,

5.

prejudice.
6.
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Each party hereby agrees to bear its own fees and other expenses incurred by such7.

party in connection with any stage of this proceeding.

May 5,2017 DDATED: ATED: May 5^, 2017

For the Secretary:For the Respondent:

BY: JENNIFER BRAND
Associate Solicitor for Fair Labor

Standards

SchulteChn^l

CJ Lake, LLC

525 Ninth St.,NW, Suite 800

Washington, DC 20004 JEFFREY S. ROGOFF

Regional Solicitor
Tel. 202.465.3000

Fax 202.347.3664

Cschulte@cj-lake.corn
JACOB HEYM/^-KANTOR
Trial Attorney, // .

Attorney for Respondent Hernandez By:
JASON E. CLICK

Tri^ Attorney

Office o/the Solicitor
201 Varick St. Room 983

New York, NY 10014
Tel.: 646.264.3687

Fax: 646.264.3660

Glick.Jason.E@dol.gov

Attorneys for the Secretary
United States Department of Labor

SO ORDERED:

5 n ao IT-
honorable THERESA C. TIMLIN

Administrative Law Judge

Date

2
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Jason E. Glick, hereby certify that the foregoing letter and enclosed signed Stipulation of
Dismissal and Order were served this 8th day of May 2017 upon the person named below at the
e-mail address listed below:

Christopher J. Schulte
cschulte@cj -lake. com

CJ Lake, EEC
525 Ninth Street, NW
Suite 800

Washington, DC 20004

Mr. Schulte has consented in writing to service by e-mail in this case.

as(m E. Glick

kttomey

2
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U.S. Department of Labor Office of Administrative Law Judges
2 Executive Campus, Suite 450

Cherry Hill. NJ 08002

(856) 486-3800
(856) 486-3806 (FAX)

Issue Date: 15 May 2017
Case No.: 2017-MSP-00002

In the Matter of

SECRETARY OF LABOR

Plaintiff

V.

AGUSTIN HERNANDEZ, d/b/a
AGUSTIN HERNANDEZ FLC

Respondent

ORDER APPROVING STIPULATION OF DISMISSAL

This matter is an enforcement proceeding under the Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural
Worker Protection Act of 1983 (“MSPA”), 29 U.S.C. §1801, et seq., and the implementing
regulations at 29 C.F.R. Part 500. The matter was docketed by the U.S. Department of Labor, Office
of Administrative Law Judges on December 28, 2016. A hearing is scheduled for July 18, 2017 in
Cherry Hill, New Jersey.*

Under cover letter dated May 8, 2017, counsel for Plaintiff forwarded to the undersigned the
parties Stipulation of Dismissal and Order (“Stipulation”). The parties. Respondent Agustin
Hernandez, d/b/a Agustin Hernandez FLC (“Respondent”) and the Secretary of Labor, U.S.
Department of Labor (“Secretary”) hereby stipulate and agree that;

1. On August 9, 2016, the U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division
issued a Notice of Determination alleging that Respondent violated 29 C.F.R. §
500.75 during the period April 5, 2015 to October II, 2015, assessing a civil
money penalty.

2. On September 2, 2016 Respondent filed a timely request for hearing with respect
to the allegations of violations set forth in the Notice of Determination dated

August 9, 2016.

'  On December 23, 2016, pursuant to 29 C.F.R. § 18.43, the Administrator requested that this
proceeding be consolidated for hearing with Case No.: 2017-TAE-00003, Sun Valley Orchards, LLC.
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3. The U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division, by and through the

Secretary, hereby agree to withdraw its Notice of Determination dated August 9,
2016.

Respondent hereby agrees to withdraw its hearing request of September 2, 2016.4.

5. The parties hereby agree to dismiss this case, with prejudice.

6. The parties hereby waive any further procedural steps before an Administrative

Law Judge of the U.S. Department of Labor regarding this matter.

Each party hereby agrees to bear its own fees and other expenses incurred by
such party in connection with any stage of this proceeding.

7.

Based on the parties’ Stipulation, I hereby DISMISS this matter, with prejudice.

SO ORDERED.

Digitally signed by THERESA TIMLIN
DN: CN==THERESA TIMLIN.

OU=JUDGE, 0=US DOL Office of

Administrative Law Judges, L=CHERRY
HILL. S=NJ. C=US

Location: CHERRY HILL NJ

THERESA C. TIMLIN

Administrative Law Judge

Cherry Hill, New Jersey

-2-
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SERVICE SHEET

Case Name; WAGE AND HOUR DIVISION v. AGUSTIN HERNANDEZ EEC ET AL.

Case Number; 2017MSP00002

Document Title; ORDER APPROVING STIPULATION OF DISMISSAL

I hereby certify that a copy of the above-referenced document was sent to the following this 15th
day of May, 2017;

Digitally signed by JACQUELINE KACZAK
DN; CN=JACQUELiNE KACZAK,

OU=LEGAL ASSISTANT, 0=US DOL Office

ofAdministrative Law Judges, L=CHERRY
HILL, S=NJ. C=US

Location; CHERRY HILL NJ

JACQUELINE KACZAK
LEGAL ASSISTANT

Associate Solicitor

Division of Fair Labor Standards

U. S. Department of Labor

Room N-2716, FPB

200 Constitution Ave., N.W.

WASHINGTON DC 20210

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

Jacob Heyman-Kantor, Esq.

U.S. Department of Labor

Office of the Solicitor

201 Varick Street

Room 983

NEW YORK NY 10014

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

Jason E Click, Esq.

U.S. Department of Labor

Office of the Solicitor

201 Varick Street

Room 983

NEW YORK NY 10014

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

Administrator

Wage and Hour Division

U. S. Dept, of Labor

Room S-3502, FPB

200 Constitution Ave., N.W.

WASHINGTON DC 20210

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

District Director

U.S. Department of Labor

ESA Wage and Hour Division

3131 Princeton Pike

Building 5, Room 216

LAWRENCEVILLE NJ 08648

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

Regional Solicitor

U.S. Department of Labor

Room 983

201 Varick Street

NEW YORK NY 10014

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}
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SERVICE SHEET continued (2017MSP00002 Hearing Cancelled) Page: 2

Agustin Hernandez

Agustin Hernandez FLC

744 Tomlin-Station Road

MULLICA HILL NJ 08062

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

Christopher J Schulte, Esq.

CJ Lake, LLC

525 Ninth Street, N.W.

Suite 800

WASHINGTON DC 20004

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}

Free State Reporting Inc

1378 Cape St. Clair Road

ANNAPOLIS MD 21409

{Hard Copy - Regular Mail}
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES 

CHERRY HILL, NEW JERSEY 

In the Matter of 

ADMINISTRATOR, WAGE AND HOUR 
DIVISION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Plaintiff 

V. 

SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC 
Respondent. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No.: 2017-TAE-00003 

Joint Stipulation of Agreed Facts And Joint Exhibits 

The Administrator and Sun Valley Orchards, LLC ("Sun Valley") have conferred in a 

good faith effort to stipulate to the facts to the fullest extent possible. The following are the 

parties' stipulated facts: 

I. Sun Valley, a New Jersey farm, employs both foreign nationals working on H-2A visas 

("H-2A workers") as well as a number of non-H-2A employees, including non-H-2A employees 

engaged in corresponding employment ("domestic workers"). These workers' duties include 

picking asparagus, peppers, and other crops. 

2. Sun Valley was founded as a limited liability corporation in 20 12 and is owned by 

Russell Marino Jr. , Joe Marino, Harry Marino, and Russell Marino Sr. 

3. Sun Val ley took over the farming operation formerly known as Marino Brothers, Inc. 

4. Marino Brothers, Inc. did business under the trade name "Sun Valley Orchards." 

5. Marino Brothers, Inc. was owned by Russell Marino Sr., Sebastien Marino, and Harry 

Marino. [B) IECIE!VIE n 
lr\\ Jlfff , s M lY 
OFFICE Of ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES 
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6. Marino Brothers Inc. employed Agustin Hernandez and Russell Marino Jr. (among 

others). 

Sun Vallev applies to participare in the H-2A program for 2015 

7. To obtain workers for the period of Apri l 13, 2015 to October 10, 2015 (the "2015 

growing season"), Sun Valley filed two applications for Temporary Employment Certification 

ETA Form 9142 ("TEC") and two Agricultural and Food Processing Clearance Orders (ET A 

Form 790) ("job order"). 

8. Sun Val ley filed a job order for the period of April 13, 2015 to October 10, 20 15. The 

Department of Labor subsequently approved this job order. Attached hereto as Joint Exhibit 1 is 

a trne and accurate copy of that job order. 

9. Sun Valley also filed a TEC for this same time period. The Department of Labor 

subsequently approved this TEC. Attached hereto as Joint Exhibit 2 is a true and accurate copy 

of that TEC. 

10. Sun Valley also filed a job order for the period of June 1, 2015 to October 10, 2015. The 

Department of Labor subsequently approved this job order. Attached hereto as Joint Exhibit 3 is 

a true and accurate copy of that job order. 

11. Sun Valley also filed a TEC for the period of June 1, 20 15 to October 10, 2015. The 

Department of Labor subsequently approved this TEC. Attached hereto as Joint Exhibit 4 is a 

true and accurate copy of that TEC. 

12. After these TECs andjob orders were approved, Sun Valley hired H-2A workers. 

13. During 2015 Sun Valley qualified as an employer within the definition of 20 C.F.R. § 

655. l 03(b). 

2 
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14. During 2015, Agustin Hernandez was not an employer within the definition of 20 C.F.R. 

§ 655.103(b). 

The 2015 growing season at Sun Valley 

15. Attached hereto as Joint Exhibit 5 is a chart listing the 96 H-2A workers and 51 domestic 

workers that Sun Valley employed during the 20 I 5 growing season. 

16. In the job orders, Sun Valley promised to pay these employees $11.29 per hour or at a 

piece rate, whichever was higher. 

17. Attached as Joint Exhibit 6 is a true and accurate copy of Sun Valley's employee roster 

fo r the 2015 growing season. 

18. During the 2015 growing season, Agustin Hernandez supervised Sun Valley's H-2A and 

domestic workers and selected the drivers to transport Sun Valley's H-2A and domestic workers 

frorn the housing faci lity to the agricultural fields. 

19. During the 2015 growing season, Sun Valley's H-2A workers, and many of its domestic 

workers, lived at Sun Valley's housing fac ility, which is located at 1321 Route 45 South, 

Swedesboro, NJ 08085. 

20. This housing facility was built before April 3, 1980, and includes (among other things) 

bedrooms, a bathroom facility, and (in an adjacent building with a separate entrance) a kitchen. 

2 1. During the 2015 growing season, Sun Valley paid for the utilities for this kitchen 

(including gas, electricity, and water), and provided various appliances for the kitchen, including 

stoves, freezers, a microwave, and refrigerators. 

22. During the 20 15 growing season, 139 of Sun Valley's H-2A and domestic workers 

purchased meals prepared in Sun Valley's kitchen and paid Agustin Hernandez between $75 and 

$80 a week for these meals. 

3 
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23.During the 2015 growing season, many Sun Valley H-2A and domestic workers paid 

Agustin Hernandez for soft drinks, energy drinks, and snacks, among other things. 

2-L During the 2015 growing season, to the parties' knowledge no money was with.held from 

any H-2A or domestic worker's pay checks by Sun Valley for meals, drinks, or any other items. 

25. Other than payments to Hernandez, to the parties' knowledge none of the H-2A workers 

or domestic workers paid Sun Valley for meals, drinks, or any other items. 

26. During the 2015 growing season, Hernandez did not have a license to sell beer or 

cigarettes. 

f-l-2A emplovees whose work with Sun Valley ended mid-season 

27. Attached as Joint Exhibit 7 is a chart listing workers who last worked at Sun Valley on or 

before May 7, 2015. 1 

28. Jose D. Islas Larraga last worked at Sun Valley on June 9, 2015.2 

29. On or about August 8, 2015, Sun Valley terminated the employment of Miguel A. 

EliLonclo Soto; Luis A. Luna Gonzalez; Jose L. Silva Lopez; Dario Morales Acosta; and Rodrigo 

Raya Tapia. These workers' last day of work was on or before August 4, 20 15. 

30. Sun Valley asked workers whose work at Sun Valley ended before the end of the season 

to complete a worker departure form. 

3 1. The top half of this form was in English and the bottom half was in Spanish. 

32. The workers were instructed to retain the bottom half and return the top half. 

1 The parties dispute whether these workers employment ended because they were constructively 
discharged, terminated, or voluntarily quit. 

2 The parties also dispute the reasons that this worker stopped working at Sun Valley Orchards. 

4 
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33. Attached as Joint Exhibit 8 are true and accurate copies of the English portions of the 

worker departure forms signed by Sun Valley workers around the time that their work was 

ending. 

34. Attached as Joint Exhibit 9 is a true and accurate copy of a worker departure form, 

including English and Spanish portions, dated August 8, 2015. 

35. Worker departure forms were distributed to H-2A workers who departed before the end 

of the season around the time that these workers' work ended. 

Investigation by the Administrator and Subsequent Procedural History 

36. During the 2015 growing season, the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of 

Labor, including Wage Hour investigators John Crudup and Jose Perez, investigated Sun Valley 

to determine (among other things) whether the farm was in compliance with H-2A regulations. 

37. During their investigation, Wage Hour inspected the housing facility and five Sun Valley 

buses, interviewed Sun Valley workers and drivers, and met with Sun Valley owners and with 

Agustin Hernandez. 

38. On June 22, 2016, the Administrator issued a determination letter alleging that Sun 

Valley violated certain H-2A regulations and assessing $369,703.22 in back wages and 

$212,250.00 in civil money penalties ("CMPs") against Sun Valley. 

39. On July 20, 2016, Sun Valley filed a timely hearing request. 

40. On December 23, 2016, the Administrator filed an Order of Reference referring the 

matter to the Office of Administrative Law Judges. The Administrator also amended the 

determination letter by adjusting the amounts sought to $376,697.61 in back wages and 

$21 2,250.00 in CMPs, and added additional findings and bases for the Administrator' s back 

\\ age and CM P assessment. 

5 
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41. Attached as Joint Exhibit 10 is a true and accurate copy of the Order of Reference, which 

includes true and accurate copies of the underlying determination letter and hearing request 

referenced in paragraphs 38-40. 

42. During the course of discovery in this matter, the Administrator took depositions of six 

I l-2A workers. In accordance with 29 C.F.R. § l 8.55(a), the parties stipulate that true and 

accurate transcripts or videos of the depositions, or portions thereof, may be used at the hearing 

to the e\tent that do ing so would be admissible under the appl icable rules of evidence as if the 

deponent were present and testifying at the hearing 

6 
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Joint Exhibit 5 
H-2A and domestic workers employed by Sun Va lley during 2015 

Last Name First Name 
1 Agui tar Caldera Eliseo 
2 Aguilar Marques Irineo 
,., 
.) Aguilar Soto Trinidad 
4 Apo1ite Rodriguez Daniel 
) Aponte Rodriguez Johnny 
6 Arias Baltazar 
7 Arias Ricardo 
8 Arias Maya German 
9 Arroyo Alonso Nicolas 
10 Asencion Flores Eusebio 
11 Baltazar Cheguez J 
12 Blanco Agui lar Oscar J 
13 Carrera Cortez Maitin 
1--t Carrera Hernandez Camilo 
15 Castaneda David 
16 Cervantes Aguilar Griseldo 
17 Cervantes Cumplido Rafael 
I 8 Cervantes Ramirez Carlos 
19 Chargoy Escudero Pedro 
20 Cinta Tegoma Hugo L 
21 Cruz Delmar 
22 Cruz Lopez Javier 
?, 
_.) Cruz Perez Antonio 
24 Cruz Reyes Carlos 
") -_) ·Cruz Reyes Jose D 
26 Cue! lar Romero Gustavo 
27 Cumplido Agui lar Juan M 
28 De La Cruz Martinez Eduardo 
29 De La Cruz Morales Rogelio 
30 Del Angel Salas Geovani de Jesus 
31 Dominguez Cruz Humberto 
, ') 
.) _ Elizondo Soto Miguel A 
,,., 
.) .) Escovar Jorge 
34 Flores Flores David 
35 Flores Montero Gilberto 
36 Franco Varga Oscar R 
37 Galindo Cervantes Honorato 

7 
AR - 1495 Appx184

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 83      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



38 Galindo Cervantes Juan E 
39 Galindo Reyes Alfredo 
-W Garcia Cardos Erick G 
41 Garcia Cervantes Norberto 
42 Garcia Delgado Manuel 
-+3 Garcia Dominguez Hector M 
44 Garcia Ola11e Demetria 
45 Garcia Ramirez Omar 
-+6 Garcia Raya Jorge L 
-+ 7 Godinez Barcenas Adan 
48 Gomes Francisco J 
-t9 Gomez Lopez Fernando 
50 Gonzalez Jaimes Amadeo 
51 Gonzalez Jaimes Gaspar 
~') )_ Grijalva Ramos Celso 
53 Guillen Segovia Armando 
54 Hernandez Fabian 
55 Hernandez Francisco 
56 Hernandez Roberto 
57 Hernandez Hernandez Fel ix Arturo 
58 Hernandez Perez Herlinda 
59 Hernandez Perez Jeronimo 
60 Hernandez Perez Rufino 
61 Hernandez Sanchez Ines 
62 Hernandez Zavala Luis A 
63 Hurtado Olvera Martin 
6-t Ibanez Francisco A 
65 Islas Larraga Jose D 
66 Jacobo Ramirez Jose M 
67 Jimenez Raul 
68 Jimenez Osornio Jose Erick 
69 .Juarez Hernandez Javier 
70 Justiniano Soto Carlos R 
71 Lara Amador Reymundo 
72 Lara Amador Vicente 
73 Leon Hernandez Ruben 
74 Lopez Ranulfo 
75 Lopez Carrera Modesto E 
76 Lopez Carrera Yreneo C 
77 Lopez Cruz Ricardo 
78 Lopez Cruz Victor 
79 Lopez Lopez Conrado 
80 Lopez Lopez Domingo 
81 Lopez Mendez Jose 
82 Lugo Morales Gabriel 

8 
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83 Luna Gonzalez Luis A 
84 Magallanes Hernandez Carlos 
85 Maldonado Maldonado Marco G 
86 Marquez Perez Gustavo 
87 Martinez Antonio Valentin 
88 Martinez Areliano Efrain 
89 Martinez Arellano Cesar 
90 Martinez Cervantes Manuel 
91 Martinez Paulino Jose 
92 Mendez Hernandez Cristian 
93 Mendoza Soto Esteban 
9-t Morales Acosta Dario 
95 Ortega Vargas Marcelo 
96 Perez Ramiro 
97 Perez Tomas 
98 Perez Lopez Domingo 
99 Perez Vasquez Comado 
100 Pinon Jose L 
I 01 Pinon Rangel Francisco J 
102 Pinon Roque Omar 
103 Ramirez Lorenzo Domingo 
104 Ramirez Matias 
105 Ramirez Chavez Juan 
106 Raya Jose 
107 Raya Garcia Adan 
108 Raya Tapia Rodrigo 
109 Reyes Delfino Antonio 
110 Reynoso Adonias 0 
111 Reynoso Rodriguez El ias 
11 2 Reynoso Rodriguez Jose L 
11 J Rios Bautista Mateo 
11-t Rodriguez Jaimes Armando 
115 Rodriguez Velasquez Jeines 
II 6 Rodriguez Velasquez Salvador 
117 Romero Arrendondo Alejandro 
II 8 Rosales Lopez Lucio 
119 Sanchez Dolores Venustiano 
120 Sanchez Vi llasenor Alejandro 
121 Sanchez Villasenor Saul 
122 Santi Lopez Carmelina 
123 Santiago Mendoza l sau 

12-1 Santis Morales Francisco 
p-_ ) Santiz Perez Rogelio 
126 Santos Urquiza Juan 
127 Santoyo Castro Ricardo 

9 
AR - 1497 Appx186

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 85      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



128 Silva Alfredo L 
129 Silva Llaguno Andres 
130 Silva Llaguno Carlos 
131 Si lva Lopez Jose L 
132 Sonalo Guerrero Tomas 
1 "" J J Soto Gurrola J Santos 
134 Tapia Barbosa Armando 
135 Vallejo Rojas Nocolas 
136 Vargas Diego 
137 Vargas Juan 
138 Vargas Vargas Octavio 
139 Vargas Venegas Alvaro 
1-.J.O Vazquez Desion Adrian 
1-.J. I Velasquez Esdras 
14 2 Velasquez Leny 
1--13 Villasenor Frediberto 
1-.J.-.J. Villasenor Vargas Jose M 
145 Zavala Almanza Pedro 
146 Zavala Jaimes Humberto 
1-.J.7 Zeveleta Hernandez Marcos 

AR - 1498 Appx187

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 86      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



Joint Ex hibit 7 
H-2A employees w hose work with S un Valley ended by May 7. 2015 

Name 

2 Carlos Cervantes Ramirez 
3 
4 
5 Hector M . Garcia Domin ez 
6 Celso Gri · alva Ramos 
7 Ines Hernandez Sanchez 
8 Javier Juarez Hernandez 
9 Marco G. Maldonado 

10 Gustavo Mar uez Perez 
11 Cristian Mendez Hernandez 
12 
13 
14 
15 Venustiano Sanchez Dolores 
16 Isau Santia o Mendoza 
17 Tomas Sonalo Guerrero 
18 Adrian Vaz uez Desion 
19 Marcos Zaveleta 

11 
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Joint Exhibits 

JX Description 

I Job order for April 13, 2015 to October I 0, 2015 

2 TEC for April 13, 20 I 5 to October I 0, 20 I 5 (DOL 00271-288) 

3 Job order for June I , 20 15 to October I 0, 2015 

4 TEC for June I , 2015 to October I 0, 2015 (DOL 00289-304) 

5 List of Sun Valley H-2A and domestic workers 

6 Sun Valley 2015 emplovee roster (OOL O I 602 - l 604) 
7 List of H-2A emplovees wbose work at Sun Valley ended bv Mav 7, 20 I 5 

8 Completed Engli sh portions of worker departure fonns 

9 Worker departure fom1, including English ano Spanish portions, dated August 8, 2015 
(DOL 02363) 

10 Order of Reference 

) 

12 
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Dated: Ju ne lS, 2017 

!·or the Respondent: 

C 
C I 1.nke , L LC 

525 Ninth St., NW, Sui te 800 

w a~hington , DC 20004 
t )chul te (t·cj-lake.com 

Dated: June J_f, 20 I 7 

For the Administrator: 

JENNIFER S. BRAND 
Associate Solicitor for 
Fair Labor Standards 

JEFFREYS. ROGOFF 
Regional Solicitor 

Jacc,o Heyman­
Jason E. Glick 
Trial Attorneys 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Office of the Solicitor, Region II 
20 I Varick St. , Room 983 
New York, NY 100 14 
HeyrnanKantor.Jacob@dol.gov 
GI ick.Jason.E@dol.gov 

I 3 
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES 

CHERRY HILL, NEW JERSEY 

In the Matter of 

ADMINISTRATOR, WAGE AND HOUR 
DIVISION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Plaintiff 

V. 

SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC 
Respondent. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Binder A 

JX 1 to 10 

Case No.: 2017-TAE-00003 

Joint Exhibits 
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.... 

U.S. Department Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 

OM8 Ccnlrol No, 1205,0134 
ElplrtUcn 0.: Octolltr 31, 201S 

Agrlcuttural and Food Proussillg Clearance Order ETA Form 7$0 
Ordtn de Empleo pan Obreros/Trab,jtdores AgrlCOIH y Proees11111en10 de Allmentos 

(Prr1l o, l:,pt In each l1etd block • To Include ldditlonll lrlonna!lon, go 1.0 bloc;lt I 28 - Pllne lollOw Slep-8y,Siep lmtruclion1) (f,vor di uw ltlrl di moldttn II Sllllcilud • 1'111 lnclub'lnfonntcic)l ildicloMI 1111 II pun1D r 21 ~Fl'/Or da s.gur In ln""11tcionespaso~so) 

1. ffll)loytl'1 "1dl0r ,t,genl'a Nam. Ind Addrffl{Nun'btr, Shel, Cly, 
11'11 Zill Codi/ ~re y DllWCCllrn dtl Emp1ttd011P.Wn' y/o .AQan1t 
(NO,-o, C.llt, Cludad, EnldO y Codlgo Postal ):· 

S\IQ Y•ll.y or.:h•rcb L,L,C 

U Y••try Id 
S"'N••boro NJ OIOIS 

C/0 IJIAJ: 
US US Nvy U I01 
cu·t ha-9• . JtC n 11, 

•l F1C11rtl fll\i,joyw ldantwc.tiun Numbtr (FEN)/ ~ lodllw di 
tddtca:16n dll ~ -b) T~ NunlW / Nllllwo di T eUIDAO: 
~loyer 1150 ,u-suo 
NAC (9101 tn-,001 

c) Fai Humbor /...,,.., do Fu: 
&mfl..,..r, IIUJ 1U•S2ll 
NAC !'101 t11-,001 

d) E--~ / Oilecd6o di Comoo Ellldra)lcO: 
N/A 

2. Ad • •nd Dllecllona 10 Wont SIie I OcnldJo y ORa:kma al lugar di 
~ .. •)o: 

t Y••t ry Ad, Sw•d••boro, a.J 010,s 
H au.•chtd •P1'•ad•be•t tor &ddJ.tion.al wort1 i tH 
l I or •hleh art OWNld/louad t,y -,,1..,..,. 
1111>Loyer pro,vidu ~lly tr-,,1poruitlcn Cr"" uh loC41tlon 
o eaah ~rt. •u• . 

3. ~ reu W'ld Directions to HpusingJOomidloyDncdonn II lugor dt 
... ltnda: 

ll2t Rt 45 South, Herriaonville, NJ 08085 

•I °'"'7ip<icno1Houa,g/O~clela-

Codt / ~~-lndllllllll: 

NAICS 1U19 NJ0982922 
I , 800.(0HET/OES) Oca/lllllOIII! 

TIiie /"lllub Ocupldo,,al 

Farmworllers and la~r~. Crop [4HOll2.02)_ 
6. of Prati 0fflci ~ Tolephoa1 numbefl ,~Dl--,----.o--· n-d~, 

It Ollclnll dood• tt ~ .11 o"°"' ~• ot nOlriffl, dt teWono): 
Ono-Slopca ..... Cat\lU 
US Cn>wn ,otnt llo1d, Sulfe lOO 
Thoroflre, KI01081i 

a. Nlll\f OI L.ocal omca Re!)1,~• (\ll(;lud, dlr1cl dlll lel11>h0n■ 
IIUlll!a!') / llombll·dtl Rtpr•nfllWlte de II O&ellla LOQI (lro.y1 ,; 
nilmlto di 111,rorio di _Ill llnN d'recll). 

Mana'ger: 856-384-3700 
7. CINrlll(I rdor ltslle /fechl dt imlailn di le Ordende em-;.o: ·-· 

02/12/'lOl.S 
8. Job E.q)i!ltlOft 0111 / Ffl;III de V1iltJ!!lllftl0 o EJ!l)n(lln <It 18 Olden 

di Enlpllo: 
07 .27 2015 

I . Mldpl1fd PIIIOd d / Ptrlodo WllaplOO o P'fYll':o de CJ11)1co• 

F"""/o..dc:04/13/201S To/Hast.a: l0/lQ/2015 
10. Nillnlw 

.. - ·-1't Anl1d~·Hourt or Woll P" W91k / HctN ~IIS de 
111,ljo po, s-nt. Total: 4 0 

~ I OMnqo...,i,,_ Th\llldly IJ-..1_7 __ 
Moodl)' I lunia _:i,_ Friday IVlttnq_l_ 
TIINC!ry/"-a .,1__ Sll\Jldry./stbllclo_Q.__ 
WICl!Wldly / llltrai!es..,1__ 

12. ~11ng1cl.....,b'd&oNI-.IC6wles:/R,,,ool)r'l'Mlocle 
hcraJlll' ........ ~dala~ 

1100Ul•l100J111 hoou nry, see •ttac~at to •n " " for 
-=,re coeipl.•l• detaUs I l•• hf?n• '7100••"'J tOOpa V&rhn '-'•" 

U IH:ld.n a l'TA 7f0 ra detall•• ... c l•tnl 
1 . Cclocl Cits ~ "°'11: / AC8l)lln t.llmadla po,~ do: 

YN/S10 NoCI: 

DOL00271 
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14. Oesclibe how the employer rilends lo provide either 3 meals a day lo each wortter Of fumish ~ and amvenlenl cooking and kitchen laolUes lorworkeis lo prepare • meali / Oesaiba c:omo el empleador tiene la interid6n de olr&cer. ya sea 3 comidas al dia a cada lrabajador, o proporc:lonar·graluaamente lnslalildones para ax:iner. 

Employe rs will furnish Cree cooking and kitchen facilities to those workers who are encitled to live in the employers ' housing eo that workers may prepare their own meals . Workers will buy their own groceries. Once a week the employers will offer to provide Ion a voluntary basi• by the workers ) free tranoportation to assu re workers access to the c losest store where they can purchase groceries. 

Housing is provided at no cost to workers who are not reasonably able to r eturn the same day to their place of residence . This paragraph applies to such workers only . Housing is not provided to non -workers . Hous ing e•p~city ie strictly regulated by the US Department of Labor, and no person, other than the eligible employees authorized by the employer. may occupy or remain ove rnig ht in employer -provided housing Employer-provided housing ~ust meet the ful l s et of OOL Occupationel Safety and Health Admi nistration (OSHA) etandards eet forth at 29 CPR 1910.142, or t he full set of standards set at SS 654.404 t hrough 65i .417, whichever are applicable under§ 654.401 . The houoing is offered as t emporary in-season (during the emp l oyment pe riod only) housing provided for Migrant agricultura l workers while they are employed at !arms beyond normal commuting dist ance from t heir residence. Workers provided housing by the employer mus t promptly vacate the housing upon tenuination of employment. No charge will be made for bed• or cooking utensil• and similar items furnished to workers to whom houaing is provided. All housing is group housing in which all workers will share kitchens and com~on area• without regard to gender. Female workers, however, will be provided with sleeping facilit i es shared only with other family members or with other females. Sex-segr egated toile ts facilities will be p r ovided. Worker s who res ide in such housing ag ree to be respons ible for maintaining the housing in a neat =d clean manner. Workers residing in employer's housing may have mail di rected to them at t he employer's address on at tached addendum. Rental housing will comply with all applicable regulations. 
SU rrA 790 attachment• 

Los empleadores proporcionarAn facilidadee librea de cocina y cocina a eaos t rabajadores que tienen derech~ para vivir en los empleadores que albergan para que trabajadores puedan preparar sus propias comidas. Los trabajadorea compra r~n sus propios comestibles. Una vez a la semana l os empleadore1 ofrecer6n proporcionar (en una base voluntaria por las trabajadorea) liberta transporte para asegurnree de que trabajadores consegu l r acceso a a la tienda mA.s cercana donde pueden comprar comes~ible&. 

Albergar ea prcporcionad.o en ni ngl'.in cosco a trabaj·adores que no son ra-zonablemente c apaccs de regresar el mismo ·dia a su domicilio. Este parrafo aplica a tales trabajadores s6lo. Albergar no es proporcionado a no·traba jadores . La capacidad de l a envoltura es requlada es trictamente po r la Secretarl a de Trabajo de EE\/U, y per ninguna persona. de otra manera que l os empl ez,dos elegibles autorizado por el empleador, puede ocupar ni pueden quedarse por la noche en albergar de empleador•proporcion6 . Albergar de empleador­proporclon6 debe encontrar el conjunto lleno de OOL la Administraci6n Profesional de la Seguridad y la Salud {OSHA) est6nd.l res exponen en 29 CFR 1910,142, o el conjun to l l eno de estandares pone en§§ 654 , 404 per 654. 417, el que son apl icables abajo S 654 , 401. La envoltura es ofrecida come en-tempor ada temporaria (durante e l perlodo de empleo a6lo) albergando previo trabajadore s agrlcola migratories mientras son empleados en granjas m6• alli de conmuta r normal distancia de su reaidencia. Los trabajador es proporc1onaron albergar par el empleador debe desocupar inmediatamente la envoltura sobre la ce&antla . Ninguna carga ser4 causada camas ni Ot i l es de cocina y areiculos semeja.ncea proporcionaron a trabajadores a quien albergar es proporcionado. Toda la envoltura e s envoltura de grupo en la que todos los trabaj adores compartir~n cocinas y areas comunes cin con tideraci6n al g~nero. Los trabajadores .femeninos serin proporcionados sin embargo con facllidades durmientes compartidas a6lo con otros miembros de la fami lia o con otras hembras . La • fac1lidade5 de lavaboa de sexo-aegreg6 ser6n proporcionadas. Lo~ trabajadores que residen en tal envoltura concuer dan en ocr rcsponsablea de mantener la envoltura e n una manera ordenada y limpia . Los trabajadoree que re6iden en la envoltura de empleador pueden tener correo dirigido a elloe en la direcci6n del empleador en el aptndice conectado. Alquiler de viviendas va a cumplir con todaa las regulaciones aplicables VU. BTA 790 fijacionaa 

- 2 -
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.15. !!~le!fel lnslruclions and Hiri~g lnlormalion / lnslrucciones sobte'como Referir Candidalos/Solicilanles. (Explain hOw applicants are lo be hired 01 referTed, and lhe Emp~'s/Agent's available hour lo Interview worke<s / Expliq\Je c6mo tos canditlalos seran conlralados o referidos, y las horas dlsponlbles del 11f1'4)Ieador/agenle para entremtar a los ltabejadores). See lnslruclions ror more de!Ails / Vea las inslruQ:iones para mas delalles. 

Workus H• •crcencd tor COff,pl u nc:t with th• ! ollowing c r luru: .r,J contirra ati11Sty, avclhbility, qual1ticanon• ,nd v1lllngnen to pe1"!onn work dcacrlbtd aod cont i r• inc.uit1on to vork tht. entire. seae«m, l ) local wcrXera ccntiu availability 0! relhble dally tunsporLation to and from the Job eite for the e ntire a e uon. Hor. local vorkert ccnfin:1 anihbilit)' of tnnapott•tion to job dtc to begin tt0rk, )) conflflM!t!on of full dhelosurc !)f all CHffll, conditiot'I, and ~ture: of vork•job by local u,ploy.icnt ataU , 4) aftiw-t1ativt confirN ticn ot legAl qualHic:.ttlons to wor it in the Us u ducribed belo'III . The e1'ployer 11•y tcnainaLo the wrku (forhgn and/or domestic 1t1)th notlfJca tion to the cmployrn,ent aorvlct 1! Clllplo)'cr di■covu:11 a cr1"1nal conviction record or 1tuu.s u a regiatercd aex offender thA 111:1, ploycr ruaon&.bly believe•, conaiotent "1th current law, will i111:,a ir the aahty •nd 1 1.Vll\9 CO."ldltlon& of other worker• . Wor\c.ccs rccniitcd •CJ•lnat the .Job Offer fro• v1thln nor,.• l co,,.,,.ut.1ng dl•t.&ncc vill not be pro..,ided vith hoYs ln,g, •ub■ lat•nc. and : r..n:11portet Ion. 

Only vorkers lcg&Uy entitled to work in the Vnlt. • d Stat. 111 ■ • od -.iho pou• •• OC'iglnaJ. identity and urrpJ·oy.ent. •l1g1bll1ty doculft.Cnt• t\.lUJcicnt to cOt!lplec.e lNS Fom l·!, ae nquiud by the 1-igratiou a rui tutiond.ity Act, wi ll b■ puaittcd to coapleu the l:dr1ng procua Work.cu referred Aga i nst th.h order 3h0\lld be infomcd that they •ult have the• c• doc.,.n,cnu in tht.i r poHeu lon vhen they arrive at the pl•cc of et1ploy,rent. Provided that vorlteu comphte section l of for"' l-9. "'orke:e wil l have three b\lstnc11 day1 to produce the: requtnd docu•e:ntation to ca:i,plete aect1on 2 of tom I-9. u provided ln the Act . WoTket.i not. provl d1ng t hh document.•t.icr. ... u1 not. be 1110-.,ed co ;o to wcrk on the ! ourth bu■ :l.ne:H dAy of anplayncnt. or any aubacqucnt. d&y3 until t ho docu11en\1,t ion h provided, u pro~ided in th• Act . 
SIi '£Tl,, 1'0 A.TTAOO<EtrrS FOR O'll'AJLS. 

SM,r• Lo• trab1, jad0rc1 • on invuti91do1 p.ra la con(or1'1dad con los cdterios aiguientu : un) contlrn.a cap4c1dad, la dhp0nib1lldad, los requh itoa y cl coneentirsiento para rulh:•r e:l tnbajo ducdtos y contir1Un intuicidn trabajar la t.etwpOrad.a entcra, 2) t.ratajadotts loc&lH con!.ir,win la diapac1,b1lidade.e de t un1portt d1ado uguro • y dd. aitlo de tr.a,Njo p,au h u~ponda entera . Loe tnbajadoru no localu conf1tnan la disponib1l1dadet d• tunaporte a l otio dal tnbajo p11ra c1P1pu&r el tubajo, J) confhNcidn de revahc10n Uena de codoa 101 t,natnoa: , de la cond1cid11, y de h n.1t.Yraleu de tnb•jo•tnbajo por el peraonal loc:&1 de tfl'IPho , 4 ) confirrMcidn ati rl'\ltiv.1 de req"hito• h9alca tubajar en Eew cono de:acC'\ta ab• Jo. 11 eir1plud0r puedc t c rftin• r al t.r.1.baj•dor f•xt.renj•ro y/o d~•t.ico1 ccn not.iticaclOn a l •ervicio del u1.pleo 11 enplcador delc\lbC'c un re9istro criairwl d• COC\vicC'll>n o ut&lY■ cc~ un deUncu•nt.e se,cua l rcghtr■do que c;oq>leador c.ree ruonal:>lc.-.enu:, cohu-entc con la l ey actual. da.fiar.l la n9',lri~d y lu condlcSonca de vld• de otroe tnbaJadort• . Lo• t.rab1ijac.!orc• al 1.caron contu l• Ofcru, de t:"4'h0 de dentro de con111uu.r norru.1 que dinanch no e er, propon:ion.d• con llbergar, la •u.b.shtencia y cl traneport.e, 

5610 tnbajador u pcndtieron lc9aloente tubajar en totado1 Unid011 yen que e:lc9ibilidad original da ldenttd.ad y er,plco de fuerue •11lado docu.,"enta tuhcicntc p au conpleur EH rorr..a yo-9, camo ne.ceuoo per l• Jn•i9r.ac16n y lcto d e ~•eionalid•d, Hd pen,itido con.pleta, t l proce,o que cmpleA . Los trab11jad0C'ee rcfe r 1.dat contra eat• orden dcbe.n se. r J.ntorwado1 qua debcn u:ner eetoe docurt.ento:i; en au poacaiOn cuando llagan er, cl luger de ecr..pteo, Con ul de ciue tnba jedores ca .. pleten eeccidn l de form• yo•II, 1011 tubajador«-• t.~ndrin tua dha h.lbilea para producir la docur,,entaciOn n•cuaria para ccisphtar ••cc10n 2 de tom• yo~s. coro proporcianado en tl Acto. L.o• traba;idorta que no prcporcionan Ht..1 docuaent1.clOn no acr,n pemit 1dos tr a uabajar en c l cu.no dh h&bU de u 1plco. nt de nJngQ.n db su.baiguient.e hu1,ta que: h docuMntad6n u1 proporcionada, CMO proporcionedo el'\ el Ac to. 

Yf'-A ETA "190 FlJA.C'lO!US PARA DETA..LL.ES. 

16. Job de,criplion and requiremenls / 0escripcl6n y requlsilos del lrebajo: 
Wnrker, wlll h•rvc11t .l.•p•r•gue, Z.\lccbJn1 , Picklca, C'ucud>er•. eggplant, Pepper• and peec:hca . S0ffteti11e:1 thh v1ll oc;cut' at top• Ut la&S.r woz:ken lflYU. t•ke: cu• vhcn vorldng a top laddeu, 

, •• rt.\ no ATtAC1CKllftl 
t.01 trabajador•• • e coaacb.a- Eap l rragoa, c•l•b• c!n, •nauTt.idoa, p•ph10a, ber•nj anaa, pir.i•nto• y loa •■locoton■ , . A v , ca, • •to ocvrr• en la part• aupar i or u.n I p.i•• ••c •l•r• lo• ti-•baj~or•• dlll>an taner cuidado al tr• b •j•r una e■ca lara. rat r!'A 7,0 UOIVOI 1Jl,,J'UB'T()9 

1. Is previous work expenence preferred?/ Se prefiere previa experiencia? Yes/ Si ll!I No □ If ye,, number of monlhs preferred:/ SI es asi, numero de meses de experiencia: ....l.Y.!.!i!l&.bl~ ucper l er,ce h1rvutlng a pert ahable crop. · Appl icanta rau•t be ab l e to fvrnt,h atfi rmati ve job rfl!crcnc , s ro,. rcc~nt ClT.ploycra operat.ln9 COC'lpu,t.bh op~.-.i1t.1ona ea tablt.shlng acc:aptable prcvi.01.l.!I cxper·Lcncc. !ae •t.t&chncntu f0r 1110re detail•. Le o •ccha de \,11\A expericnci.e CCNnProb•blc de culti..,oa pcC'cc cdc ro• . Loe •olidt•nt.e• dc!:lcn eatar on c:ond1c1one, de proporcJonAr ,c.terenciaa dt: r&WJO poalli..,•s de lo& Oltir,o• lo• e mpl ~•doru C0fl'lpar•bles ■1ta'bl ec11r n ivclce acept•ble• de crpcr1cnc1a <pn.via . Conaulte lo• docu111~ntc• d)unto• para obtencr rr.&• dc:.al l ea . 
2. Check all requiremenlS that apply: 

0 Certificaijon/License· RequiremenlS I Certif1taci6Mlicencla Requisilos 
0 Driver RtquiramenlS / Requlsllos del conduclor 
0 Employer Will Train / Em plea dor enlrenar~ o edleslrar~ 
Kl Exlensivt Silllng I Eslar senlado largos ralos 
0 Exposure lo Exlreme Temp. I Expueslo a Temperaluras Exlremas 
Sl Lifling requiremenl / Levanlar o Cargar .. 1.2 .... .lbs.nibras 
la Repetitive Movements I Movimienlos repetillvos 

0 Criminal Background Check / Verificacl6n de enlecedenles penales 
xi Drug Screen / Delecci6n de Drogas (random) 
121 Extensive Pushing and Pulling/ Empu;ar y Jalar Exlensamenle 
® Extensive Walking / Camlnar por largos ralos 
31 Frequen1 S1ooplng / lnclin6ndose o agachindose con frecuencia 
xi OT/Holiday Is not mandelory / HOies Extres (sabre tiempo) / Dias Feriados no 

obligatono · 

• 3 • 
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\ 1. Waqe Rales, Soecial Pav Information and Deductions I Tarifa de Paqo, lnformacion Sobre Paaos Esoeciales v Deducclones (Rebaiasl 
Crop Activities Hourly Wage Piece Rate / Special Pay Oeduclions' Yes/Si No Pay Period I 

Unil(s} (bonus. etc.) Periodo de Pago 
Culti.os Salario por Hora Pago, Espedtlts Oa<iuctionu 

I (Bono. elc.) I Pago por Pleza I 
Unidad(esl vegecai:,.les s 11 , .!~ s Social Security/ Ill 0 Weekly I Semenal 

Seouro Social s $ Federal Tax/ t!!I □ CJ 
lmpuestos 
Federates 

$ $ Stale Tax ~ □ Bi-wokly/ 
llmpueslos Quincenal 
Es(atales s s Meals / Comldas 0 IS 0 

s $ Other (specify} I ~ □ Monlhly/Menaual 
Otro (espaclflca) 

Q 

see attachments Olher/Oiro 
vea fijaciones 

0 

18. More Details Aboul the Pay I Mas 0elalles Sobre el Pago: 

In the evont th.at the Depntecnt Of l..d>or pron.Jlg•tea • ne"' .U!Vl applicable to • ny pcrtion of the period of eN?lO)"Mnt cOYcre:d by chh )® order "'hich l.• higher or lovu than the: A.JWJl herein, the ei:.ployer will P•Y the higher AiWR', and aay nth• •a,ploy•r•• diacretion pay th• lover .UWR, beginning v.it.h th~ etfcC'tive dau of ~he ne.., A.WR, a)nploy~r will pay tho highut of the AlnfR, pr-cvoil1.ng wage, the piec• race. t.ht ague:d-upon c:ol l•c:c.Sve bugainJn9 wag• or the Federal or .Seate tdn111\uo 'f&9E .c. the u .. th• wot._ io pc:r!otined: In the t,ulca where l.hcre !~ no ptev&..iling practice t.o pay • piccc nee tt·.e e•ployer, u hu aolc dilc:-retlon, nay opt to p.y per hcrur t o •n•ure • good ~llHy product. At no t.htc vill the vorltcn be paid hu than the b i gh••t a vaU•blc "'•S• • ••• Attad1.aent.a tor can.pl•t• ~ v• i n.to.-.•tton, 
En caoo de quc la scC'u.t.ula de Trabajo proorulgue un nucvo .U\t'A apllcabh a cualquhr pcrc:J6n dcl 9cr1odo de e,-pleo cubr10 por uca order d• tnbajo quc •• 11b al t a 0 1111-h bajo qy• •l ABVJt en uto, e l u19hador pagarl • l AEWR IN• dt.o, y Nyo co la dJecrc,e1on dtl tl'l)ludor paga el ,._.,, D.19 ba jo, •~u:ando con h heh• de vigenda dtl nuc,vo ~1'1R. El e"'l)ln6or pagarA tl "'-• alto del ~ R. prevalcctendo c: ,<ueldo, el pre.eio • duta)o, t l accpt6 cl su.cldo de r.egoc:iaci6n cohctlva o e.l Pedcnl o ulario tdni.JaO de t■tado en 1quel 1n011ento el tr•b•jo ca r eal lt•do. 
£n las tauas donde no hay pr, ct1ca predowi1nante pagar un prec:10 a ducajo el •r:iplcador, en £u Unica diacrccl.6.n. puede cpt.ar 'por pagar po,- hou de ••cguor un prod1.1cto bueno de calid&d, Bo ningQ.:l :.h•po hAga • lo, tt".ab,,ajadores eon p,,agado.a IMrlOI quc el •u~ldo duponiblc II.la .alto . V•• Pij a eionH p.n·• h 11,toraec16o c:o..pht • 4el n■ldo. 

\9, Transportallon Arrangements I Arreglos de Transoortaelon 

The Ecnployer vill not advance tra.noporLatior-. and eu.b■.Utence coats to Workere f or t ranaporta.t ion to the pl.Jee of 
employment. This subparagrc1ph applies only to Worker a "'ho cannot reaaonabilicy rec urn .to thi!lir re:oidence the sar.,e day, 
After the work:era has complet.d ~o, of the. work contract. All e l igible appliconts v il l ha.ve thei r inbound reasonable 
transport.,tion expen,es re:imbur,cd, one time only. Ooneetic &pplica nts from outside of the nor.nal cofl:ffluting dietance th• volunta ry chose not to reside in th• u1ployer provided hou.s ing, the employer will pay for tbe initial inbound 
t.ran:1portt,t.ion reimbursement. , However, the employer will not reimburse any workero t or daily tr4naportation coat 
vhether C®fflUting trcm inside or outaide of the are1 o! intended employment. t"laployer vill not pay for volunt•ry trips 
back to the ir reaidenc e due to family ~mergen.cies. or vac•t ion!. SBB ATTACIOUNTQ TO ITA HO FOl NORI COIIPtBTI DITAILS, 

£1 £rnpleador no av41n-:zar.i t.riUlaporte y oubslstcncia costos a Trabajadoreo p.;u·• c l tt'an1porte al lugar de ell'pleo. Este 
subpArrato aplica s6lo a Trabajadore:• que pueden no reg re so de reaaonabi 11 ty a su r e.sidencia el mis~ d1a . Oespu~e de 
que loe trebajadoree hayan cornpletado SO\ del contra.to del trabajo . Todo, lo■ solicitantee elegibles tendrdn ous gastos 
ra"Zonable• de entrada de traneporte reemhol1ados, un tiempo 11610. Lo• soliciteintt-e dom~at i cos de fuera de de la diat■nci; 
nonna.1 quc comnutol que voluntario e1cogi6 no re:1idir en el e1t1pleador proporcionO alberg1r, el e.mpleador paga.r6 por el 
rc-etftbol.so de cnt.rode ln1cial de tran•porte. Sin embargo, c l eaple.ador no r·eeal>ol■ar.1 • ningQn traba. jador para el co s:to 
diario de trans.port• oi conr.'IUt lt,.'"'l.dO de d entro de ni tuer,1. dcl tre,1 do etnplco destinado. El cmplea.dor no pagarO. por viaj es 
voluntario.t I.tr.is • 1u reaidenci a. debido a en1crge.nciAs {1,Qiliares, ni debido , Ucencia1. 
V'S.l FlJAClO)llS A STA 790 PAU DBTALLSS MAS COKPLUOS . 
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•·. 

20. I& il lf,t prevaiing,practice lo use Farm Labor Contractors (FLC) to recruit, supervise, transport, house, and/or pay worke<1 for this (these) crop activity (ies)? / , Es la pr~ctk:e habitual usar Conlratistu de Trabajo Agricola para reciutar, supervisar, transporter, darvivienda·, y/o paga~e a los ltabajadores para elle(os) tipa(s) de cosecha(s)? Yes/ Si O No~ 

If you have checked yes. what Is the FLC wage for each activity?/ Si conteslo 'Si: cuAI es el salario que le p19a al Conltatiste de Trabajo Agricola por cada activldad? 

21 . A.re workers covered for Unemployment lnsurence? I ,se le proporcionan Seguro de Dosemploo a los lrabajadares? YeslSJ!l:11 .No O • ir •PP»•••" 

22. Are wMeri covered by workers' compensation? I iSe le provee seguro de compensad6n/indemnlzaci6n al lrabajedor. Yes/Si29 No D 

23. Are tools. supplies, and equipment provided al no charge to Iha wor~ers? I ,se Jes proveen nerramlentas y equlpos sin cos to alguno a los trabajedores? 

Yes/Sill!l No 0 
see attached 

24: Lisi any arrangements whic/1 have been made with establishment owners or agents for the payment ol a commission or other benefits tor sales made lo wotken;. (II there are no such arrangements. enter 'None' .) I Enumere lodos los acuerdos o convenios hechos con los proplelarios del establecimiento o sus egentos para el pago de una comlsiOn u otros beneficios por venlas hechas a lo& lrabajadores. (Si no hay nfngun acuerdo o convcnlo, lndlque 'Ninguno' .) 

none/ninguno 

25. List any Slrike, v.a1< stoppage, slo.-down, 0t interrupUon of operation by lhe employees al lhe place where lhe woncers win be employed. (f there are no such Incidents. enter 'Hone'.) / Enumere loda huelga, pare o interrupcion de operaciones de trabaio par parte de los empleados en el lugar de empleo. (Si no hay incidentes de este Upa. indique 'Ninguno'.) 

none/ ninguno 
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• • 26. Is jro order ;o be Db~ in C01'1l8ciJQ,\ W11h·a Mure ~.pplication fa Temporary E'.llploymen1 ee111r.c.mn for H-2A wofl<er,? I 4Esra :rdsn de e.'1\Pleo ha sido J)IJ9Sla M aioerlln <Xln UNI ful\.t3 solicilud cl& C&"dficati6n de emj)ieo l!Kl'PCJ8' para \rabaiaoo<es ~-2A' 

Yes/S11:l NoO 

27 Employ91'$ Ce<1if,caOon: This iob ordo, descobes lhe actual terms and collditic.is ol lhe amploymonl being ottered by mo and contams all lhe matenal terms iftd condiUon, ot lhe job. I Ceniij:aci6n 001 EmplnclOr. Esta 01den de 11aba10 de,cr,be los t6rm,noo y condic,0118> def umphlo qu~ se I~ ofrece, y 
conl!eno lodo, los limnmoo y oondiciunes materiales ofrOC:Oos. 

RCAD CARefULL Y, In vie-.. or'"" statutorily es1eo11,neo basic tunctton·or lhe Emoloyment Servia. do a no-ree laoo, e1e11ange. 'hat is as a forum for bringing :ogell'.e1 employer, ano JOI> seekers, neilhei 1he Employmeol and Training Adrrun~lratioo (ETAj nof the State agencie, are gua,antors of 1ne l!Cl.-uracy or lrulhfulnen ol lnforrneUon conteined on job oflle~ ,ubrnllled by e.mploye~. Nor Ooe, any job onler accepted or recruited upor1 by Ille Amo11can Job Center oonsfiMe a conlraclual job ofklr to 11hich lhe ~merican Joi> Center. ETA or, Slate agency 1s in any way a party 

lEA COi( CWlADO, En~ 08 ti funolYl b~c.; del Se/V1cio de Empleo eslablecida oor ley. corno u.~a Clllldad de lllClKcambio •.ooral $irl coinisKlfl<>~. es <ledr, CQmO t.rt /010 para reurir a los ~eador'e5 y los sdicila11~ de eo,pieo. d ETA n: las ageroas oe, es136o r,..eden gar.i!lliw ta e""ebl.Jd o ve1acida-:i oe ta iro;,,mad611 corlffilda en las crdenll9 dt traoo;,o someijjas por to, lifl"4)!aa0ores. Ni ninguna ordon d8 trilbejo atOj:1.ado o aintrataoo tn el CEnuo de Camiras (Amerbn Joo Conte,) l»'ISl'1Jyen una oh!rta .le no,t> COl\lractvaJes a la, que el Ame'lCan Job Center. ETA o un o,oanisrno ~Stal 65 da nin;una rnane<a 1.r..i a~ las p.wtei 

PUBLIC BURDEN STATEMENT 
Tot l)lbhc re,ortirQ bun!en fol l1lSl)Clndng 10 ETA FMTI 790, whdl is NQ.iired lo or,t.;m or :elan bellellto i{4 use ~ 1]. a; estmate1no be a:lQlcr.malC!y 6Cm,nutespe, 
fell!X)f118, lnduo,ng lime for ,e..,,.;ng lnr1rudi<rn ,;oard1lng exbbng data IIOUftl)O, gatt>c<h~ and ro,;,,w,1>g rhe'co?.ec1ion Thepur,l,c r.eed IIOl rt!~-potld 10 tM Clllecl!Dr oi in!om,;nion UOleS$ It displlrjs a o,rT&ntJyvalic! 0MB ConUoi Nu-. Ttis 11 r,ut:,c inlom1Sll-'I' Ind ~era is ro e,pectalion ot conlider\bailty. Se1>d co,nm1r1ts regilltfng rhis 
tu:l8n e,Urnits °' any oth11< ~ al t!il rollec11on. ~ sugge3!ion$ r,,, r~ ~ !>urdo!n, n the U.S. Oeparuncnt ol Leber, Ernploymen1 ancl Training 
Aelriri5tr.110n, Office of Worldoroo lnvestmenl. Roan G-4510, 200 Con511Mion Avtrua, .vw. 'Nash,ngton. OC 20210. 

OECLARACIOH OE CARGA PIJSUCA 
La~ de lnfonna:!6n p(rblica p.ra respon<J8f a 18 F c:ma ETA 700. q,.,,, ~ ltlquielll par. :J\)1Efle< o rijte001 blrlelido9 (44 USC J501 I 56 e,6ma e11 af)<Mrr~- 60 
O'iru~ poc 1U!)Ue$la. ll'du'feNIO el lJ8m!Xl para re.~ 131 ~ . oo=: b er~O$~ ~alos ex,$'.Ell'~. rE<:Opll;r 7 re'<i~ ta colett'611 El ooibf1C0 ro tiene t>OI qub rsspcncler a 8113 r~acl6n de inlormaci6n a meno, cue muetlre 111 nilmvro de COl\ll'O• 0MB val;oo. E~ :rdormaci611 es p(Jblica y no hay ri11?1Jna ~xpec1a1iva de co,dldeneialQid. Envie SUS OllTHl<'1.oool aolrto tie esta ~ O cuaiq,,ie, O'ro '1Sl)eCIC ,~ .,.., COlecQOO. ind:.~ r"1o ,ugcrond~ pa .. rcoueir 1<$18 csrga, 81 U.S. Depanment d Laoo-, EmpiO'fmont a/Id 1r.!lnlng A!lm111i,lr.itJo11, Offica ol Workro,oe ln,.,tment Room C-1510. 200 Con,tituaon Avurue. NW, Wash,ngtorl, DC 20210 . 
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• 28. Use this s~ction lo prpvide eddi,tiOllal supporting info:mefon (inclodlng seciicn Box number). lncklde attachments, ii necessary. / UUlice esta secd6n pe,a propon:ionar ,nroima<ion adici0/\/11 de ap0'fo; ,nduya el numll!o de la sea;ion e incluya archiYTJS adj~ntos. si es necesario. 

SEE ATTACHMENTS TO THE ETA 790 FOR DETAI LS CONCERNI NG THIS JOB OPENING. 

VEA FIJACIONES A LA ETA 790 PARA DETALLES CON RESPECTO A ESTA APERTURA de TRABAJO 
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20 CFR 653.501 
Assurances 

INTRASTATE AND INTERSTATE CLEARANCE ORDER 

The employer agrees to provide to workers referred through the dearance system the number or hours of work per week cited In Item 10 or t/ie clearence order for the week beginning with the anticipated date of need, unless the employer has amended the date of need at least 10 working days prior to the original date of need by so notifying the Order-Holding Office (OHO). If the employer falls lo notify the OHO at least 10 working days prior to the original date or need, the employer shall pay eligible workers referred through the Intrastate/interstate dearance system the specified hourly rate or pay, or In the absence or a specified hourly rate or pay, the higher of the Federal or State m inimum wage rate for the first week starting with the original anticipated date of need. The employer may require workers to perform alternative work if the guarilntee Is invoked and If such alternative work Is stated on the Job order. 

The employer agrees that no extension of employment beyond the period of employment shown on tt1e Job order will relieve the employer from paying the wages already earned, or specified in the Job order as a term of employment, providing transportation or paying transportation elCpenses to the worker's home. 

The employer assures that all working conditions comply with applicable Federal and State minimum wage, child labor, social security, health and safety, farm labor contractor registration and other employment-related laws. 

The employer agrees to expedltlously not ify the OHO or State agency by telephone 1mmeolately upon lea ming that a crop Is maturing earlier or later, or that weather conditions, over recruitment, or other factors have changed the terms and conditJons of employment. 

The employer, If acting as a rarm labor contr;,ctor, has a valid farm labor contractor registration certificate. 

nie employer assures the availability of no cost or public housing which meets applicable Federal and State standards ano which 1s sumc1ent to house the speclfled number of workers requested through t he clearance system. 

The employer also assures that outreach workers shall have reasonable access to t he workers In the conduct or outreach activities pursuant t o 20 CFR. 653.107. 

Emplgyer's Name 

Be&lde• the material terma and conditions of the employment. the employer must agree to these anurances If the Job order la to be pieced aa part or the Agricultural Recruitment Sy1tem. Thi:, as:wuranc:e statAlment must be signed by the employer, and It must accompany the .'ETA Form 790 • 
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ATTACHMENT TO ETA 790 

V)/91"kers·r~cl\Jlted under this .Job Order are recruited to work on the employer's rann shown on the addendum in the certified occupation during lhe period of employment shown In Item 9. The employer/member will offer US workers at least the same opportunities, wages, benefits, and working conditions as those which the employer offers or intends to offer to non-immigrant foreign workers. •use of the masculine pronoun herein Is for convenience of reference only. 

1. Name and address of employer: Sun Valley Orchards LLC; 29 Vestry Rd, Swedesboro NJ 08085 .. 

9. Anticipated dates of employment: 04/13/2015 untll 10/10/2015. 

10. The number of workers shown Is the aggregate number of foreign workers that will be employed by the employer under this temporary employment certification. The approximate maximum number of workers (foreign and domestic) to be employed in the certified occupation is shown on the addendum. The numbers shown are approximations provided for the governing administrative agencies. The actual number of workers employed in the certified job opportunities of the grower at any given time may be more or less than the approximate numbers shown in the addendum, depending upon crop conditions, weather, marllets or other circumstances that develop during lhe season. 

11. Anticipated Hours of Worl<.: Worker will report to worl<. at the designated time and place as directed by the Grower each day. The standard workweek of 7 hours per day Monday-Friday, and 5 hours on Saturday Is normal; however, workers may be requested to work 12+ hours per day depending upon the conditions In the fields and maturity of the crops but will not be required to do so.Also. the workers may be requested to work on federal holidays and on their Sabbath but will not be required to do so. Workers may volunteer to work additional hours when work Is available. Down Tlme: Workers should expect occasional periods of li"le 01 no work because of weather, crop or other conditions beyond the employers oontrol. These periods can occur anytime throughout the season. 

Starting and ending limes will change due to weather and crop conditions. During certain times of the season workers are required to work at night. Workers will be given as much notice as possible when the changing of shifts is required. If a worker Is offered and agrees to work more· than the scheduled hours during the workweek, they must still report to work on their other scheduled days, unless arrangement, are approved In adVance with the owner or supervisor. Choosing to ~ork longer hours during the week does not exclude workers from working each scheduled work day. Not reporting for work on your scheduled work day will be counted as an unexcused absence. 

14. Employers will furnish free cooking and kitchen fadlltles to those workers who are entitled to five In the employers' housing so that workers may prepare their own meals. Workers will buy their own groceries. Once a week the employers will offer to provide (on a voluntary basis by the won<ers) free transportation to assure workers access to the closest store where they can purchase groceries. 

Housing Is provided at no cost to workers who are not reasonably able to return the same day to their place of residence. This paragraph applies to such workers only. Housing is not provided to non-workers. Housing capacity Is strictly regulated by the US Department of Labor, and no person, other than the eligible employees authorized by the employer, may occupy or remain overnight In employer-prco,,ided housing. The housing Is offered as temporary in-season (during the employment period only) housing provided for migrant agricultural workers while they are employed at farms beyond normal commuting distance from their residence. Workers provided hou&lng by the employer must promptly vacal!! lhe housing upon termlnetlon·of employment. No charge will be made for beds, cooking utensils and similar items furnished to workers to whom housing Is provided hereunder unless unlawfully removed or damaged beyond normal wear and tear. All housing Is group housing in which all workers will share kitchens and common areas without regard to gender. Ferm le workers, however, will be provided with sleeping facilities shared ont.y with other family members or with other females. Sex-segregaled toilets facilities will be provided. Workers who reside In such housing agree to be responsible for maintaining the housing in a neat and clean manner. Reasonable repair costs of damage or loss of property, other than that caused by normal wear and tear will be charged to the worker if he is found to be responsible for damage or loss to housing or furnishings. Workers residing In employers housing may have mail directed to them at the employers address on attached addendum. All housing or public accommodations will comply with applicable State, Federal, Local, or health regulations. Employer-provided housing will meet the full set of DOL Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) standards set forth at 29 CFR 1910.142, or the full set of standards set at §§ 654.404 through 654.417, whichever are appllcable under§ 654.401 . 

15. Interested candidates should contact their local State Workforce Office to receive a copy of the ETA 780 and applicable a"achments. Once the appicant has a copy of the job order they may apply directly to employer by calllng (856) 769-5280 ext 7. Applicants are encouraged to fax appllcations or resumes to (656) 769-5213 attn Farmworker Job. Group Interviews for local appllcants will be held Tuesdays and Fridays from 8am - 11 am. Appllcants are encouraged to arrive 15-20 minutes early to complete/review an application packet at 
29 Vestry Rd, Swedesboro NJ 08085. 

All interstate (out of state) and Intrastate (In state) applicants interested in this job offer should first contact the order holding office prior to contacting the employer for information and permission to refer. Workers should be fully apprised by their local employmeni office of the terms. conditions and nature of employment prior to referral. This will enable applicants lo review all lhe infonnation and make an 
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. lf\formeq .decision about the Job and w111 e, .. .re compliance with disclosure requirements. lr, .• . state {out of state) and Intrastate {In state) candidates will be interviewed over the phone once em~loyer has received written confirmation that aU required disclosures have been ~de. C~~pleUng an.applicaJion is part of the lriterview'process. 

Workers should be fully apprised by the local employment office of the terms. conditions and nature or employment prior to referral. Workers are screened for compliance with the following criteria: a) confirm ability, evallebility, qualifications and willingness to perform work described and confirm intuition to work the entire season, 2) local workers confirm availability of rellable dally transportation to and from the job cite for the entire season. Non local workers confirm availability bf transportation to job site to begin wo11<, 3) confirmation of full disclosure of all terms, condition, and nature or work-Job by local employment staff, 4) affirmaUve oonflrmatlon of legal quallflcattons to work In the US as described below. The employer may terminate the worker !foreign and/ot domestic) with notification to the employment service if employer discovern a criminal conviction record or 1t11tus as II registered sell offender that employer reasonably believes, consistent with current lew, wlll lmpplr the sa{!ty end living conditions of other workers, 

Only workers legally entiUed to work In the United States and who possess original Identity end employment ellglblllty documents sufficient to complete INS Form 1-9. as required by the Immigration and Nationality Act, will be permitted to complete lhe hlr1hg process. Workers rerened against this order should be Informed that they must have these documents In their possession when they arrive at the place of employment Provided thal worj(ers complete section 1 of form 1-9, workers will have three business days to produce the required documentation to complete section 2 or form 1-9, as provided in the Act Workers not providing this documentation will not be allowed to go to work on the fourth business day of employment. or any subsequent days until the documentation Is provided, as provided In the Act. 

16. Job Specifications: Must have three months' verifiable experience hand harvesting a perishable crop, Applicants must be able to furnish affirmative job references rrom recent employers.operating comparable operations establishing acceptable previous experience. 

Worker must possess requisite physical strength and endurance to repeat the harvest process throughout the workday, working quickly and skillfully to perform activities lor which they were hired. Workers must work at a sustained, vigorous pace and make bone fide efforts to work efficiently and consistently that are reasonable under the climatic and other working conditions, considering also the amount, quality, and efficiency ot work accomplished by their coworkers. Workers may not leave trash, or other discarded items in work areas or vehicles but must dispose of such items in provided receptacles. Workers must wash hands with soap and water after all bathroom and meal breaks. Allergies to varieties of ragweed, goldenrod, Insecticides, related agricultural chemicals, etc, may' affect workers ability to perform the work described herein. Workers should be physically able to do the worker described with or without reasonable accommodaUon. Must display the ability to move, place, climb and work from orchard ladders up to 6 feet In height, making the necessary adjustments for various procedures while carrying up to 30 pounds. 

Sanjtatlon Rpgulrements: For food and general personal sefety purposes, all workers will be required and expected to follow common sa11ltary practices· at all tim111. Thie Is par1icularly critical when hand harvesting crops for human consumption. Employees are required to cleanse their hands by w1111hlng them thoroughly with soap and water after using the bathroom and before entering the fields for harvest activities or the packing feclltty for packing operations. 

Workers will plant, cultivate, and.harvest Asparagus, Zucchini, Pickles, Cucumbers, Egg Plant, and Peppers. 

Asparagus: Workers will move along assigned row, stopping, bending and reaching to cut asparagus spears at ground level may operate self-propelled harvesUng aid on which workers ride while stopping to cut spears at ground level. Spears which are less than¼ inch In diame(er (measured at butt) are discarded. Spears over¼ Inch In diameter which exceed 12 Inches In length will be re-broken at the bun end. Any spearhead which has begun to open will be discarded. Spears meeting harvest specification will b.e placed in a straight fashion In field buckets and carried to trucks or trailers for dumping. Workers will be required to stay on their assigned row. Worl<ers must use care while uSing knifes to prevent injury to themselves and other workers: 

Zucchini. Plckles, Cucumbers, Egg Plant, and Peppers: Workers will plant, cultivate and harvest vegetables, Workers wlll be required to remove weeds by hand or with a hoe. Workers will bend and stoop to pick vegetables according to size, color, shape and degree or maturity and place Into field containers. Workers may carry full container weighing approximately fifty (50) lbs. and empty Into field bin o.r load onto trailer. May be required to pull and discard culls as directed by supervisor. Pickers will take care not to bruise or scar produce. Pre-harvest activities may include staking, tying, transplanting and pruning. Workers will stand on feet for long periods of time. Workers are required to work In fields when plants are wet with dew or rain. Temperatures In fields during working hours can range from forty (40) to over one hundred (100) degrees. 

Peaches: Worl\ers will perform various duties associated with thinning and picking peaches._Worker will be assigned a row, usually with a partner, and Is responsible for picking all the proper fruit from that row, or half row. Fruit are selected from the tree according to size and/or color standard set by the picking supervisor. In some Instances, fruit harvest will be done from a six-foot ladder weighing up to 30 lbs. All workers must be able to lift, carry. end work fTom the top of the ladder. The entire tree must be checked to ensure removal or all fruit meeting-picking requirements. Fruit are placed gently In the picking container until container Is full. The full picking container weighing up to 25 lbs. is then taken to fruit wagon and gently emptied Into a field bin, ta~lng care or not to spill or bruise the frull In the container or in the field bin. Workers ar.e to stay on their assigned row unless directed by a supervisor lo change, or to 
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hill!' someqne out sporadically. Picklng u, .... will be kept free of limbs. leaves or mushy frui,. ,uit harvested specifically for sale at a roadside stand as fresh market specialty baskets.In peck: or half bushel containers must be field graded. For fruit harvest for sale at a 
roadslde'stend, extra c!are must be used to insure that each piece of fruit is undamaged and perfect. Workers will be required to pjck 
\JP and return picking ladders to the ladder wagon proyjded by the grower at the end of each wori<daY or as directed by the grower or dHjgnated supervisor. 

Farm Equip,ient Operation: Workers may be require to opera le tractors and otherfarm equipment during dally operations, as an Incidental activity. Before any worker is require lo operate any farm equipment, workers will be instructed in the safety and operation of the tractor before driving the tractor. Tractors should be driven in a manner to protect operator, other workers, products, trees, crops, and equipment. Repeated failure to obey safety requirements and bperating instructions may result in termination. 

Orchard Mai)tenance: Workers will be responsible for general orchard clean up. They will rake up debris from the land such as sticks. straw, etc. Workers involved In orchard maintenance may be required to hoe trees, girdle, spread fertlllzer, pick up roots and limbs, strip suckers or unwanted growth from trees, dig root suckers, kno"Ck fruit off trees, use hand sprayer, remove vines, lay Irrigation pipe, repair and maintain drip system, and strap and tie fruit trees. Employer will provide all equipment. Instruction will be given for each task and standards of performance communicated to wor1<ers. The specific standards for a Job will be disclosed and demonstrated by the supervisor before the work begins. 

Orchard Cla!IJ Up: They may be responsible for the removal of old and unproductive peach trees. They must take care to not damage or destroy any other trees or property In the area. 

Forklift OperaUon during Packing Operations: Workers may be required to operate forklifts during packlng operations as an incidental. Before any worker Is required to operate a forklift, the worxer will be instructed in the proper and safe operation. Workers will be required to operate forklifts according to instructions and In a manner that protects the operator, other workers and equipment. Repealed fai lure to obey operating and safety instructions may result in tennlnatlon. 

Farm, and Fleld Sanitation 
AU workers ~II be responsible for picking up trash, cleaning balhrooms, sweeping floors and other farn:i sanitation duties. 

This employer may grow one or more other crops. Farmers frequently decide whether to plant these crops and what addltional crops they will plant after this application Is submitted. Information on crops planted after submission or this application will be dlsdosed In writing to the U.S. Department of Labor for approval as soon as it Is known. 

GENERAL OONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL CROPS; Fieldwork begins at assigned time shortly after daylight. Work may be performed during ljght rain and In high humidity and In temperatures ranging from 110+ degrees to below 20 degrees F. Workers will perform the majority of tasks standing In the upright position and can expect to stand on their feet for extended periods of tlme. Some tasks, however, require workers to perform activities on their feet in stooped or crouched position for long periods of time. Workers will supply their cmn work clothes. All the tasks In this Job Oescr1ptlon constitute one (1) job; the employer may assign workers to different tasks on any day or to multiple tasks during the same day In the sole judgment of the employer. Workers may be required to perform work, on the farm, that Is incidental to farming the crops listed in the application, such as performing hand cultivatfon tasks, packing, weeding or hoeing, cleaning and repairing farm buildings, grounds, set up and move equipment, cleaning and maintaining drip Irrigation systems, , weeding, etc. This is a very demanding and compelitive business In which quality specifications must be rigorously adhered to. Sloppy work cannot and w ill not be tolerated. 

Full Crop Commitment: This Is regular work, seven hours per day, Monday-Friday, and five on Saturday for the full remainder of the period of employment. The worker agrees to work for assigned employer(s) whenever work is available during the full remaining period of employment even though work may be slack al times. The worker understands lhat If the worker quits or Is terminated for cause prior to the end of the period of employment, the worker will not receive the 3/4 guarantees discussed below and will not receive ceriain transportation reimbursements discussed below. Excessive tardiness and/or absences will not be tolerated and will result In termination. 

Dally Individual work assignments, crew assignments, and location of work, will be determined by and at the sole discretion of the farm manger and/or farm supervisor as the needs of the fanning operation dictate. Workers may be assigned a variety of duties In any given day and/or different tasks on different days. Workers wlll be expected to perform any or the listed duUes and work on any crop as assigned by the worker's supervisor. 

Harvesting specifications, in particular, can change from lime to time during the season due to crop or market conditions. even on the same crop. Workers will be expected to conform to the specific instructions given for each day's work, 

The farm ownef/supervisor or a designated employee will provide instructions and general supervision. However, field workers will be expected to perform their duties in a timely and proficient manner without close supervision. 

17. Wage Rates, Special Pay Information and Deductions: The tasks In the crops listed below will be paid al the piece rates listed. All other work will be paid the adverse effect wage rate (AEWR) of S 11 .29 per hour. Employer will pay the highest of the AEWR, prevailing 
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wp.ge, th.~ ag-eed-upon collective bargainlo • ., fiage or the Federal or State minimum wage w,.~n the wor1< Is performed. In the event that !he Department Of Labor promulgates a new AEWR applicable to any portion of the period of employment covered by this Job order ~lch i& h i_gher or low11r than the AEWR herein, lhe emi:floyer will pay the higher AEWR, and may, at the employer's discretion pay the lower AEVilR. beginning with the effective date or the new AEWR. 

Workers are guaranteed that their total earnings will be at least equal to the AEWR of $11.29 per hour for all hours worked In a pay period. If a wor1<er's total earnings in any pay period in which the worker has worked at a piece rate ere less than the AEWR of $11.29 for all hours worked in the pay period, the employer wlll increase the worker's pay to the guaranteed minimum of $11.29 per hour for the total hours worked in the pay period. 

Commodl~ 

Asparagus 

Zucchini 

Pickles 

Cucumber 

Eggplant 

Pepper 

Peaches 

Bl!!! 
$7.00 

$1.00 

$1.50 

$1.00 

$0.60 

$0.60 

Hourly+ POB 

•POB= Packed 
Out Bonus 

Unit 

Packed out 28# crate 

Packed out 1 /2bu equivalent 

Packed out 1.0bu equivalent 

Packed out 1 1 /9bu equivalent 

Packed out 1 1 /9bu equivalent 

Packed out 1 1 /gbu equivalent 

Packed out 1/2bu equivalent 

All Jobs performed hourly will be compensated at $11.29/hr 

'Peaches: $11.29/hr + $3.50/bin + Pack out bonus 

Pack out bonus may vary-. 2014 bonus was $3.42/bin 

Due to weather and crop condiNons, the employer reserves the right to temporary Increase the listed piece rates, or add a piece rate. The employer also reserves the right to completely do away with the piece rate all together to ensure a quality product and fair earnings. Employer reserves the right to add a piece rate, with notlftcation to workers, prior to adding lhe rate. 

All activities not listed as paid by piece rate will be paid by the hour. 

18. More details concerning pay: Employer reserves the right to pay higher than the stated wage rate to any worker foreign or domestic. This Is not promised or guaranteed. The decision to pay above the stated rates wlll be made by the employer, at their sole discretion. and will be based on factors Including the recipients' performance and tenure. 

A). The employer will make the following deductions from the worker's wages: FICA taxes, State (If applicable) and Federal Income tax as required by law. Workers will be charged for the followtng: cash advances and repayment of loans. repayment of overpayment of wages to the worker, payment tor articles which the Worker ha6 voluntarily purchased fro") the Employer, long~istance telephone charges, recovery of any loss to the Employer due to the Wori<er's damage (beyond normal wear and tear) or loss of equipment or housing items where it is shown that the Worker is responsible, and any other charges expressly authorized by the Worker In writing. If the grower reimburses lhe wori<er prior to the 50% date, and the worker is terminated for cause or abandons prior to the 50"/o date, the grower reserves the right to recapture that reimbursement. No deduction not required by law will be made that brings the worker's hourly earnings below the statutory federal or state minimum wage. There may be deductions that reduce your pay below the stated contraci wage; but will not reduce your pay below Federal or State Minimum Wage, whichever Is higher. FICA, State and Federal taxes will not be deducted from those worker's wages that are working under a temporary, agricultural visa, unless it's discovered it is required or If the worker reque&t wi_thholdlng. 

B) Employers guarantee to offer employment for the hourly equivalent of 3/4 of the workdays of the total specified period during which the work contract and all amendments thereof are In effect, beginning with the first workday after the workers' arrival at the assigned Grower's farm, ready, willing, able, and ellglbte to work and ending on the expiration date specified in the work contract and all extensions thereof or upon the termination of thls employment as provided below. For purposes of this guarantee, a •workday" consists of seven hours Monday-Friday and five hours on Saturday. The wor1<er Is not required to work on his Sabbath or on federal holidays 
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· . wt,jch ar~.New Year's Day, January 1; Ma,_ .. Luther King, Jr.'s birthday, the third Monday i,, .. anuary; Presidents Day, the third Monday ih February; Memorial Day, the last Monday In May; Independence Day. July 4; Labor Day, the first Monday In September, Columbus Day, thi:"second Monday in O,ctober; Veteran's Day, No(lember 11; Thanksgiving Day, the fourth Thursday in November: and Christmas Day, Dece"mber 25. On certain of these days, work may be available. If the worker al the conclusion of his work agreement has beeri afforded less employment opportunity than required under this provision, the worker will be paid at his average hourly rate for the hours. in addition lo those actually offered, up to the hourly equivalent of the guaranteed number of days. In determining whether the guarantee of employment has been met, any hours which the Worker falls to work during a workday, when the Employer offers him the opportunity to work, and ell hours of work actually performed shall be counted toward meeting this guarantee. 

C). This employment guarantee shall be terminated before the end of the Period of Employment If the services of the workers are no longer required for reasons beyond the control of the Employer due to nre, frost. nood, drought, hall, other Act of God (AOG) which makes fulfillment of this contract Impossible. (CO will be notified and employer will seek approval for AOG's) In such cases, the employer will make efforts lo transfer workers lo other comparable employment acceptable to workers. If such transfer ts not effective. wortlers will be retumed at Employer's expense lo the place from which Workef, without lntetvenlng employment, came to work for employer. In the event of such termination, the 3/4-9uarantee period ends on the date of terminaUon. The guarantee shall be void from the beginning should the Worker voluntarily abandon this employment before the end of the contract period or In the event the Worker Is terminated for a lawful job-related reason, and the employer notifies the NPC, and OHS In the case cif an H·2A worker. In Writing or by any other method specified by the Department or OHS In a manner specified In a notlce published In the Federal Register not later then 2 working days after such abandonment occurs and this wiU relleve the employer from subsequent transpo'r1atlon and subsistence costs and the 3J41h guarantee. 

D). The payroll period shall be weekly. Workers will be paid weekly with a 1 week holding period. 

E). Employer will provide a worker referred through the SWA Interstate System forty (40) hours of work for the week beginning with the anticipated date of need, unless the employer has amended the date of need by notifying the local employment setvlce office at least 10 working days prior to the original date of need. If the employer falls to notify the order-holding office, then employer shail pay an eilglble worker referred through the interstate clearance system $11 .29 per hour for the first week, starting with the original anticipated date of need. 40 hrs x $11 .29 = $451.60 gross (before taxes). The employer may require the wooer to perform alternative work If the guarantee cited in this section Is Invoked. If the worker falls to notify the order-holding office of his contirwlng Interest In the job no sooner than nine working days and no later than five wortllng days before the date of need, the worker will be disqualified from the above-mentioned assurance. 

F). The Employer will furnish to the worker. on or before each payday one or more written statements showing the worker's total earnings for the pay period, his hourly rate or piece rate (if applicable): the hours of work which have been offered to the worker, the total hours actually wortled by the worker, beginning and ending times. en itemization of ell deductions made from the worker's wages; the worker's net pay; the employer's name, address and IRS ldenttncatlon number. Employer will abide by all regulations at 20 CFR 655.122(j)(k). 

19. Transponation: The Employer will not advance transportaUon and subsistence costs to Workers for transportation to the place of employment. · 

This subparagraph applles only to Workers who cannot reasonabllity return to their residence the same day. Mer the workers have completed 600~ of the work contract. All eligible applicants wtll have their Inbound reasonable transportation expenses reimbursed, one time only. Domestic applicants from outside or the normal commuting distance that voluntary chose not lo reside in the employer provided houging, the employer will pay for the Initial Inbound transportaUon reimbursement. However, the employer will not reimburse any workers for daily transportation cost whether commuting from inside ex outside of the area of Intended employment. Employer will not pay for voluntary trips back lo their residence due to fam~emergencles, or vacations. 
,1\,lJ.'ilD~ . 

The amount of such transportation payment will e equal to the Worker's actual transportation costs not to exceed the most economical and reasonable common carrier transportation arges for the distance Involved. In lieu of the above payments lo the workers ror transportation, the employer reserves the rtg to charter or otherwise arrange to provide for transportation at the employer's election. Subsistence 1'8lmbursement shall be $ . per day, without producing documentation or actual expenses, or wili otherwise Ile paid as per 20 CFR 665.122(h) only to those employees who are ellglble under the H-2A program regulations for subsistence pay. Maximum Amount to be reimbursed with receipts is S46.00. By way of illustration and not in !Imitation of the foregoing, the employer will not pay transportation for such worker If he does not have suitable documents to comply with proof of Identity and employment ellglblllty requirements of IRCA, If he is discharged for lawful Job-related reasons, If he has knowledge at the place of recruitment that he cannot perform the duties of the Job as described above or if he abandons this employment when he is needed by the Grower. If the grower reimburses the wor1<er prior to the 50% date, and the worker Is terminated for cause or abandons prior to the 50% date, the grower reserves the right to recapture that reimbursement. 

Employer will provide, pay. or reimburse transportaUon and subsistence under this agreement If the worker is terminated because of work related injury caused by this/these crop activities and Is so certlned by a doctor acceptable to employer before leaving employers farm. or termination resulting from an Act of God, as outlined In 655.122(0), which makes fulfillment of this contract Impossible es provided in paragraph 18C or If the worker Is displaced by a U.S. worker under DOL's 50¾ rule . 
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. Employer Wi• offer free transportation f_or workers living In employer's housing faclllty both to ancl from the daily work site. The use of the .transpo~allon by the '(lorker i~ voluntary; no worker will be required as a condlUon of employment to utilize the transportation offered by the emplos,er. Workers are free to choose their own means of transportation at their own expense. 

For US workers who complete the work contraci and are eligible for the outbound transportation benefit, or if the employee ts tennlnated wlt~out cause, and the worker has no immediate subsequent H2a employment, or an H2a workers that Is displaced due the employers obligation under the USOOL 50% rule, the Employer will provide or pay for the worker's reasonable cost of return transportation and 
subsistence lrom the place or employment to the place from which the worker departed to work for the employer, except when the worker 
will not be retumin~ to the place of recruitment due to s~bsequent employment with another employer. If the subseQuent employer has 
not agreed to provide or pay for the worker's transportation to the subsequent place of employment, the Employer will provide or pay for 
the transportation and subsistence to the subsequent place of employment In lieu of providing or paying for such expenses from the 
place of employment to the place lrom which the worker departed to work for the employer. If the subsequent employer has agreed to provide or pay for the worker's transportation end subsistence to the subsequent place of employment the Employer will not provide or pay for such expenses. The Employer reserves the right to arrange charter or other return transportatJon. Workers eligible for this 
benefit who do not wish to avail themselves of employer arranged return transportatlon would be provided their outbound 1ransportation and subsistence by check. If a worker choses to not use the employer arrange transportation then they will only be reimbursed for the 
transportation not included In the employer arranged (Mexican transportation, border crossing and dally subsistence.) In those 
circumstances. the grower will distribute the checks, as soon as all work is completed. as determined by the employer, and the worker ts ready to depart. Workers may select any means of transportation home they choose, however, the reimbursement Is llmlted to lhe most economical and reasonable common carrier transportation cost for the distance Involved. Workers who ·arrange their own iransportalion 
understand they assume all tiabllity and hold harmless the grower/assoctaUon for any damages. Injuries. and personal or property losses. 

21. U.S. workers may or may not be covered by unemploymenl insurance and may or may not be ellgible under current unemployment 
regulations. Workers employed under this job order are designated as seasonal employees. 

22. Injuries: Worker wlll be covered by Worker's Compensation Insurance or equivalent employer provided Insurance for Injuries arising 
out of and in the course of employment. Employer assures thal there will be no lapse in coverage for workers compensaUon. The 
employers workers compensation will be provided throughout the entire length of the contract period Employer's proof of insurance 
coverage will be provided to lhe Regional Administrator before certification Is granted. All workers must report all injuries and Illnesses to lhelr employer. Failure not to do so may result In termtnellon. 

23. Employers will provide tools and ~qulpment at no cost for workers to perform the above tasks. Workers will be charged for any willful 
damage to or loss or such tools and equipment. 

24. For workers covered by MSPA 29 CFR 500.075{8) there are not any arrangements made with establishment owners or agents for 
the payment'of a commission or othe-r benefits for sales made to the workers. 

28. Other Conditions of Employment: 

A). Discipline and/or Termination: Employer may discipline and/or terminate the worker for lawful )ob-related reasons and so notify the 
Job Service local office of the termination If the worker. a) refuses without justified cause to perform work for which the worker was 
recruited and hired, b) commit serious act(s) of misconduct or serious or repeated violation(s).of Work Rules attached hereto. c) fails 
after completing the training period to perform the work as specified In Item 16 and Attachment, d) malingers or otherwise refuses without 
Justified cause to perform as directed the work for wtilqh the Wori<er was recruited end h[red; e) provides other lawful Job-related 
reeson(s) for termination of employment. f) abandons hls employment; g) falls to meet appllcable produotlon standards or keep up with fellow workero h) falsifies Identification. personnel, medical, produclion or other work related records, I) faUs or refuses to take a drug 
test, or j) convnits acts of insubordination, kl the employer may terminate the worker /foreign or domestic) with notification to the employment service If employer discovers a crlmln;,I conviction record or status as a registered sex offender tlia1 employer 
reasonably boli'eyes, consistent with current law, will impair the safety arid living conditions of other worker,. Reason beyond 
employer's control" includes termination of workers. if he not a U.S. worker because a U.S, worker makes himself available for the job 
under DOL's 50% rule. Workers must notify the employer prior to voluntarily terminating their employment. All wages due will be 
forwarded to the last known address for Wori<ers that leave without providing notlce. 1t Is Imperative that worl\ers provide a complete and accurate address to lhe employer no later than the first day of employment. These employers have a no complete, no rehire policy. 
Termination for lawful job related reasons before the specified ending date fisted In this appilcatton will disqualify the employee from 
future emplo~ent opportunities with this employer. Workers who abandon their employment without notice during the period covered 
by this work agreement will be disqualified from future employment opportunitJes with this employer. Voluntary reslgnatlon before the specified ending date listed In this appllcatton may disqualify the employee from fulure employment opportunities with this employer. For workers who resign their employment voluntarily. the employer will consider and evaluate special circumstances and hardship cases on a case-by~ase basis. Employees. without exception, are required to notlfy appropriate supervisory staff prior to voluntarily lermlnaling their employment to be considered and eligible for exemption to the no complete • no rehire policy. 
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, E!J.., The /!IJ'IPloyer may discipline the workto., ,ncludlng requiring the worl<er to leave the field, ume out") for a period determined by the 
f?reman,suspens1on from employment for up to _three d~ys, or termination of employment as described In termination (A) above. 

cj: Employer_ Obllgatl;n ;f E~ployment Extended: No extension of employment beyo~d the Period of Employment specified In the job 
order ~hall rttheve the Empl_oyer from paying the wages already earned, or if specified in the job order as a term of employment, 
prov1d1ng return transportation or paying return transpcrtatlon expenses to the Worker. 

D). Employa., Notification of Changes in Employment Terms and Conditions: Employers will expeditiously notify the order-holding local 
office or State agency by email immediately upon learning that a crop is maturing earlier or later, or that weather conditions, over 
recruitment, or other faclors have changed the terms and conditions of employment. The terms of this Work Agreement !hereafter may 
be changed upon posted notice to the Worker. 

E). Outreach Workers: Outreach workers shall have reasonable access to the Worker in the conduct of outreach activities pursuant 10 
20 CFR 653.107 and 20 CFR 653.501. 

FJ. Training: There will be a short demonstration period (up to 1 hr.) to familiarize workers with Job speciflcaUons, to demonstrate proper 
methods and other crop specific issues. The employer will not provide separate formal orientation or training periods for each different 
crop or each different type of task or job assignment covered within the job description. After completion of the training period the 
employer will expect all workers lo pc;,ssess the skills to worl< In the producllon oi the crops above. For purposes of this section~ or 
more hours will tie considered one day. 

G). Work Agreement: A copy of the contract or Job Clear;mce Order and work rules (copy attached) will be provided to the Worker by tl)e 
employer no later than on the day the time at-which the worl<er applies for the visa (for foreign workers), or to a worker In corresponding 
employment no later than when the when employment Is offered. 

H). Employer agrees to abide by the regulat1ons at 20 CFR 655.135. 

I). The employer as a part .of posiUve recruitment as per 20 CFR 655.164 is willing, If and when any substantial number of applicants are 
available, to coordinate group transportation arrangements (to facilitate their purchase of bus tickets etc.), where appropriate, and to 
provide any additional Information 1hat W()(kers need to coordinate their arrival. 

J) We are an equal opportunity employer. Women and minorities are_ encouraged lo apply to these positions. 

K). SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY: This employer will strive to provide a .safe and healthful work environment, free of substance abuse, 
for the protection of our associates, employees end visito~s,. The use, possession or being under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol 
during working iime is prohibited. (Alcohol may be permitted In the housing facllity outside work hours.) Employees may also be 
requested lo take random drug tests at no cost to the worker. Workers are subject to random drug tes1Ing effective their first date of 
work. Failure to comply with the req~eS1 or testing positive will result i n Immediate termination. 

L). Pursuant to 20 CFR 655.135{iX1 ). each employee that enters the United States with an H-2A temporary work visa must return at the 
end of the period listed In this contract and cer1Ified by the U.S. Department of l.l!b0r or upon separation from the employer, whichever Is 
earlier, unless the employee Is being sponsored by another subsequent H-2A employer. 

M) Grievance Polley: If any area of your work Is causing you concern. you have the responsibility to address your concern .with your 
Immediate supervisor. Most problems can and should be solved in discussion with your immediate supervisor; if after these attempts 
there Is no satisfactory resolution, you sh9uld bring your concerns lo upper management. 

This employer strongly urges the reporting of all incidents of discrimination, harassment or retaliation, regardless of the offender's identity 
or position. Individuals who believe they have experienced any of these or who have concerns about such matters should file their 
complaints before the conduct becomes severe or pervasive. Individuals should not feel obligated to file their complaints with their 
Immediate s1.4>ervlsor first before bringing the matter to the altention of upper management. 

Our goal Is lo have a work environment where we all treat each other respectfully and professlonally. Any unprofessional or disrespectful 
behavior, even If no t Illegal, that Interferes with that goal and will not be tolerated. The employer reserves the right to respond to 
inappropriate behavior even where no one has complalried or indicated they have been offended 

N) The employer Is committed to providing a safe. nexlble and respectful environment for employees, staff, clients, or anyone you come 
Into contact with on company business, free from all forms of sexual harassment. Any type of sexual harassment.ls grounds for 
immediate termination. Sexual harassment is a specific and serious form of harassment. It Is defined as: unwelcome sexual behavior, 
which could be expected to make a person feel offended, humiliated or intimidated. Sexual harassment can be physical, spoken or 
written. It can include: a) comments about a person's private life or the way they look, b) sexually suggestive behaviour, such as leering 
or staring, c) brushing up against someone, touching, fondling or hugging, d) sexually suggestive comments or Jokes e) displaying 
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. ottensivii ~en savers, photos, calendar, _, objects, f) repeated requests to go ou1, g) reci. ,cits for sex, h) sexually explicit emails. text messagi;s or posts on social networking sites. _ · • 

Just becaus11 someone does not object to Inappropriate behavior in the w0/1<.place at the time, It does not mean that they are consenting lo the behavior. 

Sexual harassment is covered in the workplace when ii happens at work, at work-related events, between people sharing the same workplace, or between colleagues outside of work. 

FARM, HARVESTING, ANO FIELD FOOD SAFETY RULES 

1. Worker must practice good personal hygiene. 
2. Worker should wash and sanitize hands for at least 20 seconds: 

a. Before and after working 
b. Before beginning work In a different area 
c. Before and after ea Ung 
d. After visiting the restrooms, tollets and port•aiohns 
e. Before and after treaUng an open wound or cut 
f. Before and after treating an individual with a cut or wound 
g. After blowing of nose 
h. After touching the hair or face 
I. After sneezing or coughing 
J. After touching anything which can cause contamination or performing maintenance 
k. After any break 
I. After handling any dirty raw material or garbage 
m. After touching animals or animal feces 

3. All jewelry (ring with stones. watches. earrings, etc) must be removed before entering any work area. Wedding bands without 
stones are permitted (supervisor's authorization Is required). 

4 . Eati11g food, drinking beverages, chewing gum and using tobacco products are strictly prohibited in all work areas. 
5 . Worker· should use proper hand washing and toilet facilities. 
6 . Report any active case of illness to crew leader or supervisors before beginning work. Workers with bad colds , contagious diseases, bolls or sores will not be allowed to contact product, equipment, boxes and containers. 
7. ·If worker cuts_ him or herself while working , worker should stop work Immediately, cover the wound. and report It to the 

supervisor. Keep wounds covered so that you do not contaminate the product, equipment, boxes and containers with body 
nuid1. 

8. All workers shall maintain neatness while In working areas. 
9. Personal items such as pens, pencils, keys, tobacco products, cell phones, snacks, etc., shaU not be carried In pockets while In 

working areas. 
10. Animals are prohibited on all farm premises. _ 
11, Only employer personnel and registered visitors are allowed on the employer's premises. Visitors must sign In at designated 

area prior to entering the premises. 
12. Workers families and chltdren are not allowed In any work area. 
13. Tool&, knives and sheaths must be sanitized upon entering each field, leaving each field, with each crop change and arter each 

break. Worker should wear knife sheath at all times when working. Knife should be stored in sheath. 14. If issued, worker should change and have laundered at least every other day h1s/her uniforms, and protective clothing. If 
required, worker should use personal protective equipment correctly. 
15. No glass Is allowed In any wor1< areas. 
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' ' 
Addendum - Sun Valley Orchards LLC 

Employers 

RHsell Jamea Merino Jr. (8301) 
Sun Valley Oreharda LLC 
29 Veslry Rd 
Sllledesboro, NJ, 08085 
1 •B56-769-5280 
Asparagus, Cucumbers, Eggplant, Peaches, 
Peppers, Zucchini 

Total 
Workers 

Employed 

200 

Starting 
Date 

Ending 
Date 

4/13/1S 
10/10/15 

Total 
Housing Total H2A 

Housing Type Location County Capacity Wrkrs 
. Gk>ucester 190 40 

Total Workers Employed 200 
Total Housing Capacity 190 

Total H2A Workers Requested 40 
Total Employers 

Housing Types: AP - Apartmenl, BL • Block, HO· Hotel/Motel. ME· Metal. MH • Mobile Home, SH· Shared, WF • Wood Frame 
Page 1 of 1 

DOL00287 
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Sun Valley Orchards 2015 Field Locatio_ns 
. - . . . .. 

' field loQtlon city state zip county 
Burlington/ Garrison Rd Elmer NJ 08318 Salem Biddle Rd Mannington Twp NJ 08079 Salem Halltown Rd Mannington Twp NJ 08079 Salem Pt Airy Rd Woodstown NJ 08098 Salem 
Vestry Rd Swedesboro NJ 0808S Gloucester St Rt 4S Harrisonville NJ 0808S Gloucester 
Marl Rd Harrisonville NJ 0808S Gloucester 
Swedesboro/ Harrisonville Rd Harrisonville NJ 08085 Gloucester 
Harrisonville/Woodstown Rd Harrtsonvllle NJ 08085 Gloucester 
Harrisonville/Woodstown Rd Woodstown NJ 08098 Salem 
Cty Rd 538 Swedesboro NJ 08085 Gloucester 
High St Swedesboro NJ 08085 Gloucester 

,,-,:__ ? "" (. ... - '"· 

DOL00288 
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U.S. Department of Labor Employme~t and Training Administration 
Office of Foreign Labor Certification 
Chicago National Processing Center 

March 13, 2015 

Th~resa L Ward 
685 Us Hwy 15-501 
Carthage, NC 28327 

Dear Sir/Madam: 

11 West Quincy Court 
Chicago, IL 60604 

Case Number: H-300-15056-056255 

RE: Sun Valley Orchards LLC 

Your application seeking temporary labor certification under the H-2A temporary 
agricultural program has been certified. On March 3, 2015, this ·office accepted for 
consideration an application from you requesting H-2A temporary labor certification for 
40 Farmworkers and Laborers, Crop, Nursery, and Greenhouse job opportunities. In 
accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) § 
655, Subpart B, it has been determined that a sufficient number of abie, willing and 
qualified U.S. workers have not been Identified as being available at the time and place 
needed to fill all of the job opportunities for which. certification has been requested and 
that employment of the H-2A workers will not adversely affect the wages and working 
conditions of workers in the United States similarly employed. 

Therefore, the Department grants certification for 40 Farmworkers and Laborers, Crop, 
Nursery, and Greenhouse Job opportunities. You must comply with all assurances, 
guarantees and other requirements contained ln Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 
655, Subpart Band 20 CFR § 653, Subpart F. 

Upon receipt of this notification, you will need to submit to the U.S. Citizenship and 
Immigration Service (USCIS) California Service Center the 1-129 Form that is required 
in conjunction with an H-2A application. The USCIS petition can be obtained at 
http:/ /www.uscls.gov. 

IMPORTANT NOTE: The employer must sign and date the ETA Form 9142 prior to 
submission to USCIS Callfornla Service Center. 

Enclosed is a bill for fees .assessed for the H-2A certification. Non-payment or untimely 
payment may be considered a substantial violation subject to the procedures in 
Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.182. 

Important Reminders: 
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• In accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.120(b), If the prevailing hourly wage or piece rate Is adjusted during a work contract, and is higher than the highest of the AEWR, the prevailing wage, the agreed-upon collective bargaining wage, or the Federal or State minimum wage, in effect at the time the work is performed, the employer must pay at least that higher prevailing wage or piece rate upon notice to the employer by the Department. The Department posts all current prevailing hourly wages and piece rates to the -Department of Labor's Agricultural On-Line Wage Library (AOWL). You are encouraged to visit the AOWL website at 
http://www.foreignfaborcert.doleta.gov/aowl.cfm for the updated wage rates. 

• You must continue to cooperate with the State Workforce Agency (SWA) by accepting all referrals of eligible U.S. workers who apply (or on whose behalf an application is made) for the job opportunity until the end of the recruitment period as set forth in Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.135(d}. The end date of your obligation to consider all referrals under the 50 percent rule is calculated by the SWA based on the date the H-2A worker departed for the employer's place of business, which Is assumed to be three days j)rjor to the first date of need. However, If the H-2A worker will not depart for your place of employment three days prior to the first date of need, Departmental regulation .20 CFR § 655.135(c) requires you to inform the SWA in wrjtlng of the new expected departure date. 
■ You must ·update and maintain the recruitment report throughout the recruitment period including the 50 percent period as specified in Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.156(b). This supplement to the recruitment report must meet the requirements of Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.156(a)(1)-(4). The employer must sign and date this supplement to the recruitment report and retain it for a period of no less th.an three (3) years. The supplement to the recruitment report must be provided upon request. 

• You are also reminded that in accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.122(n), the termination of workers for cause and abandonment of the job by workers are to be reported in writing to the Department and to the Department of Homeland Security (OHS) within two (2) business days of the termination or discovering abandonment. To make compliance with this requirement simple and fast, the employer may e-mail the notification directly to the Chicago NPC using TLC.Chjcago@dol.gov. Your requests will be handled as expeditiously as possible. Employers without internet access may also send written notification by facsimile to (312) 886-1688 (ATTN: H-2A Abandonment and Termination) or U.S. mall to the following address: 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 
Office of Foreign Labor Certification 
Chicago National Processing Center 
11 West Quincy Court 
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Chicago, IL 60604 
ATTN: H-2A Abandonment and Termination 

• In ace:ordance with-Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.135(1), employers 
must inform H-2A workers of the requirement that they must leave the United 
States at the end of the period certified by the Department or separation from the 
employer, whichever is earlier, unless the H-2A worker is being sponsored by 
another subsequent employer. · 

• In accordance with Departmental regulatlonsat 20 CFR § 655.122(q), employers 
must provide to H-2A workers no later than the time at which the workers apply 
for the visa, or to workers In corresponding employment no later than on the day 
work commences, a copy of the work contract between the employer and the 
workers in a language understood by the worker as necessary or reasonable. For 
H-2A workers going from an H-2A employer to a subsequent H-2A employer, the 
copy must be provided no later than the time an offer of employment Is made by 
the subsequent H-2A employer. 

• In accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.135(1), employers 
must post and maintain in a conspicuous locatlon at the place of employment, a 
poster provided by the Secretary of the Department of Labor in English, and to 
the extent necessary, any language common to a significant portion of the 
workers If they are not fluent in English, which sets out the rights and protections 
for workers. A copy of the poste·r Is available at 
http://www,dol.gov/whd/resources/posters.htm. 

• Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.180, allow the Department to conduct 
audit examinations of certified H-2A applications. The applications selected for 
audit will be chosen within the sole discretion of the Department. If your 
certification has been selected for audit, you are reminded that you must submit 
the documentation requested in the audit letter within the specified timeframe. 
Failure to comply with the audit process may result in a finding by the Certifying 
Officer to revoke the labor certification and/or debarment of the employer from 
future filings of H-2A temporary labor certification applications. Additionally, the 
audit findings and underlying documentation may be provided to the Department 
of Homeland Security or another appropriate enforcement agency. Referrals df 
any findings that an employer discouraged an eligible U.S. worker from applying, 
or failed to hire, discharged, or otherwise discriminated against an eligible U.S. 
worker, to the Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Office of Special 
Counsel for Unfair Immigration Related Employment Practices. 

• In accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.170, employers 
may request to extend (by more than two (2) weeks) the period of employment 
on certified H-2A applications in writing, to the Chicago NPC. The employer may 
e-mail the request directly to the Chicago NPC using the address: 
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TLC.Chicago@dol.gov, with the words "H-2A Extension Request" contained in the subject line of the e-mail. Employers without Internet access may send a 
written request by facsimile to (312) 886-1688 (ATTN: H-2A Extension Request) or by U.S. mail to the following address: 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 
Office of Foreign Labor Certification 
Chicago National Processing Center 
11 West Quincy Court 
Chicago, IL 60604 
ATTN: H-2A Extension Request 

• Requests for changes in the period of employment lasting two (2) weeks or less can be directly flied with the USCIS California Service Center. 

Sincerely, 

OFLC Certifying Officer 

Enclosures: Invoice for Certification; ETA Form 9142 

CC: Sun Valley Orchards LLC 
New Jersey Department of Employment & Workforce 

Public Burden Statement: 0MB control number 1205-0466, expiration date 03/31/2016. This reporting Instruction has been approved under the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, Person& are not required to respond to this oollectlon of Information unless It displays a currently valid -OMB control number. Obligations to respond are mandatory (20 CFR 655.122, 655.135, 655.145, and 655.166). Public reporting burden for this collectlon of informetlon Is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, Including the time to review Instructions, search existing data sources, gather and maintain the data needed, and complete and review ·the collectlon of Information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collectlon of lnformatlon,·lncludlng suggestions foneduclng this burden, to the U.S. Department of Labor, Room C-4312, 200 Constitution Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20210. DO NOT send any of the above listed notices to this address. 
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0MB ApprOWII: 1205-0466 
Expiration Dale: 03/31/2018 

H-2A Appllcatlon for Temporary Employment Certification 
ETA Form 8142A 

U.S. Department of Labor • . 
. 

PleNe l"ffd and r•vlew th• ffllng lnflnlotlims earefully bd1rt comp/eflng fhe ETA .Porm 9 i42;, A copy of the lnstructiOM can be found . •t bUPi(twim,CPr,mzlfbcm;e,t,dJllftf,fte.Y/. In t60otdlnco wtth Federal ROfl(llatloM, Incomplete o.r °'1v/ously /n11ccurate ,ppllc:stions wlll not be omlfled y the O.,,lltment of I.Abor, If ubmlttltrg th/$ fonn non-.ltctronlcally, &,&. requl(vd nelda/ltems containing 11n ntemk ( •) mu,t be compltt.d ,s _,, ... ,ny fleld.m~ when, • l'Npollfl Is cottdltlona/ N fndlcat•d by the section (§)symbol. 

~- Employment-Based Nonlmmlgrant Vlaa Information 

1. Indicate the type of visa ctessific:,tlon supported by this application (Write c/aaslflcatfon symbol): • H-2A 

B, Temporary Need lnfonnatlon 
1 · Job Title •Farmworker. Diversified I . 

2. SOC (ONET/OES) code• 3. soc (ONET/OES) ocoupatlon title• I 
45-2092 I Farmworkers and Laborers, Crop, Nursery, and Greenhouse 
4. Is this a full-time position? • 

' Period of Intended Emolovment 
[l]veaONo 6. Begin Date• 04/13/2015 16. End Date • 10/10/2015 

7. Worker posltlons needed/basis for the Vl88 claaalflcatlon supported by this. application LI Total Worker Posttlo118 B~lng Roquimed for Cortlflcatl~n • 

Basis for the vlaa daaalficatlon aupport&d by this application 
(/ndlost11 the total worlcllrs ln each appUcab/e catagory based on the total worl<or. ldontffl11d r,bow) LI a. New employment•. B d. New concurrent employment• . . D b. continuation of previoualy approved employment• 

I I 

e. Change In employer• without change with the same employer D c. Change In previously approved employment • · · D f. Amended petition • 
8. Nature of Temporary Need: (Choose onty one of the standards)• f71 Seasonal n Peakload n One-Time Oocurrenoe n Intermittent or Other Temporary Need 
9. Statement of Temporary Need • 
N/A 

I 

.J 

ETJ\ Form 9142J\ FOR DEPARTMENT OF UBOR USE ONLY 
Pau• 1 afl 

Cuc Number: H-JO().l 6056-0662SS Cuo Status: ~C~ERTI_A_e!l ___ _ VaUdlty Period: 0411112016 to 1011or.20(5 
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H-2A Application for Temporary Employment Certlflcatlon . 
ETA Form 8142A 

U.S. Department of Labor 

C, Employer lnfonnatlon 
important Nett: Enter the fl.ti name ·of the lndlvklual-1111ployer, partnership; Of CO/l)Oratlon and all other required lnfonnatlon In this section. For joint employer or master app(½:aUons-flled-on_ behalf.of more than one ·ef!lployer under the H-2A program, ldenUfy 1he main or primary employer In the 68Cl!on below and then eubmll-8 separate attachment that Identifies each employer, by name. maQlng addreu. end total wortec DO§ltlons needed, under the appTil:atlan. 

1. Legal bualneas name • 
Sun Valley Orchards LLC -' 

~/rade name/Doing Business As (OBA), ff appllcable 

3. Addreaa 1 • 
29 Vestry Rd . 
4. Address 2 

' I NIA 
l 

§w~;boro ~J State• 11, Postal oode • 
08085 

JNR-~t~TATES OF AMERICA ~}/rovlnoe 

JBs.. f 8~B8 number• J 1. Extension 
/A 

12. Federal Employer lde~flcation Number (FEIN from IRS) • 13. NAICS code (muat be at leaat -4-dlgtta) • 460542793 ~ 111338 
14. Number of non-family full-time equivalent employees 15. Annual groBB revenue 11 e. Year established 0 

• NIA 
17. Type of employer eppllcetion (chooae only one box below)• §,._,., -So• Em~•Y" (H.2A ooly) 

@ Individual Employer O H-2A Labor Contractor or Association - Joint Employer (H-2A only) Job Contractor Aseoclatlon - FIUng as Agent (H-2/, o"nly) I , 

D, Employer Point of Contac:t Information 
!mpprtant Note: The Information oomalned In this !,action must l?e 1hat of an empioyee of 1he employer who Is authorized to act on behalf of the employer In labor i:artlficatlon mattera. The ·lnformlltloll _In thla Sedlon ll'.lla1~ lifwlml from ~ agent or.attomey Information.listed In Section E, llnleN the attorney Is an employee of the eml)l9Yer, For Joint employer or muter appllcaUons flied on behalf of more than one employer under the H•2A program, enter lWlY the contact Information for the main or primary employer (e.g., contact for ah association flllng as Joint employer) under the appUcaUon. 

.. 1. Contact's last (family) name • , 2. First (given) name • , 3. Middle name(s) • Marino Jr Ruseell James 
4. Co~ct'a Jgb title • Owner an er , 
5. Addrees 1 • I 

29 Vestrv Rd 
6, Address 2 

NIA 

lwe'1M;boro ~~State• I 9. Postal code • 
08085 · 

J~~~1f ATES OF AMERICA JJA Province 
12. Telephone number• 113, Extension 14. E-Mail addre88 

856-769-6280 NIA NIA 

ETA Form 9142A FOR DEPARTMENT OF LUIOR USE ONLY PIQ02 oU 

Cue Number. ~00-,5-.-.ss CUe Su1111:_AA-R-Tl~A@ ___ _ Validity Period: CW1at2015 lO 10/1W2015 
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0MB Approval: 120~66 
Explrallon 011e: 03/3112016 

H-2A Application for Temporary Employment Certlficatlon 
ETA Form 9142A . · 

U.S. Department of Labor • ' 

' 

E. Attorney or Agent lnfom:i1t1on (H·1pp1ic1ble) 
' 

1. ls/ere the employer(&) repreaemed by en ettomey or agent In the flllng of this appllcatlon I f7lves n No llneludlno easoclatlons ectlna as ..,,..nt under the H-2A nmt1rern l? If "Yes" oom1>lete Section E. • 
2. Attorney or Agent's last (family) name f , 3. Flret'(glven) name f 14. Middle name(&) § Ward I Theresa L : 
5. Addres1r1 f 

685 us Hy..y 5-501 
6. Address 2 
NIA ' 'l 

7. City f .t State f I 9. Postal code f l Carthage .. 
' ' C . - .. 28327 · 

10. Count[fJ tJJ~ Province UNITED S JES OF AMERICA 
1.2 . . Telephone number f 113. Extension 14. E-Mail address 

91 ()..947-6004 NIA tward.nac@gmall.com 
15. Lawflrm/Bualnesa name f 116. Lew firm/Business FEIN§ 

National Agricultural Consultant~ LLC 471490898 
17. State Bar number (only If attorney} f 

I 18. State of highest oourt where attorney Is In good 
standing (only If attorney) f NIA 

N/A 
18. Name of the highest court where attorney la In good standing (only If attorney) f 
NIA 

F. Job Offer Information 
•· Job Descrtptlon 

~ · Job -r;~e • armwor er; Diversified 
2. Number of hours of work per week 

Basic•: .iQ__ Overtlme:.,Q__. 
13. Hourly Worl< Sohedule • 

't,,M, (h:mm): ]_ : ~ P.M. (h:mmJ: 1,_ : .QQ_ 
4. Does this position supervise the work of other employees[] I4a. If yes, number of employees • ., . Yea({] No worker will supervise (If appllcable) § _o __ 
6. Job duties -A desorlptlon of the duties to be performed MUST begin in this space. If necessary, add attachment to continue and complete de&eriptlon . • 

Workers wlll perform a variety of duties with harvesting vegetable crops grown by employer See 8142 attachments for more complete detelle. l 
} 

; 1. 

. 

' 

ETA !1onr, 9 l 4~A FOR DEPARTMENT OF LAJIOR UBE ONL V 

Cue_§!Atus: ... G-•B1J~ee-P~- - Vlllldlty P~od: 0411:v.zo,~ \0 10/10/2015 
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0~ Approval: 12054466 
Expiration Data: OS/31/20HI 

H-2AAppllcatlo~ for Temporary Employment CertfficatJon , 
ETA Form 9142A 

U.S.DepartmentofLabor 
F. Job Offer lnfonnatlon {continued) 

b. Minimum .,lob Requirements 

1. Education: minimum U.S. dlploma/degree required~ 

0None D High S~ooVGED D Assocf11te's Oeachelor'a 0Master's O Doctorate (PhD) 0 Other degree (JD, .MD, etc.) 1 a. If "Other degree• In question 1, speolfy the diploma/ 
degree required f / 

1b. lll!lloate the major(s) and/or field(~) of study required§ (May llat more than ol'le related major and more than one field) NIA NIA 

2. Does the employer require a aecond,U.S. dlplomJfdegree? • 
I I [Yes ~✓INo 2a. If 'Yes" In question 2, Indicate the seccind•U.S, diploma/degree and the major(s) and/or field(s) of study required§ NIA 

3. Is training for the Job opportI,mtty re!lulred? • ' . . I I I Yes l✓ I No . . 3a. If •ves' In question 3, specify the number of 3b. lndloate the fleld(s)/name(s) of training required § ~ of training required f (May Hat more than one relatsd 1\eld • ~ more than one type) 
0 NIA \ 

4. Is employment experlenoe required? • 
I l✓ IYes I I No 4a. II "Yes" In question 4, specify t_he number of 4b . ._ lndloate the .occupation required § m2.!lllll of experience required f 

verifiable experience harvestlhg a perisliable crop 
3 
5. Special Requirements• List specific aklls, llcenses/cenl cations, and requirements of the job opportunity. • 

. SEE ADDENDUM ( 
i 

Applicants must be able to furnish affirmative job ref~nces from r~cent employers operating comparable operations establishing acceptable -previous experience. \1Vorke1'8 

c. Place of Employm•nt Information .. 
de ~~Aaddress 1 • ., 

2. Address 2 
NIA 
3. City• 

4. County • 
SWedesboro Gloucester 
~j State/District/ 1 errltory • e

8 
Postal code • 

0 085 
7. WIii wori< be performed In mulllple WOt'kaltei Within an area bf Intended.. IZ]ves □No employment or e locatlon(a) other than the address ll&teQ abolte'? • 
7a. If Yes In question 7, Identify the geographic ptace(a) of employment with as much specificity as possible. If necessary, submit en attachment to continue and complete a listing of an anticipated WO!ksltea. § · . . 

1. Naw Jeraey Other see attached spreadsheet au of Which are owned/leased by en,ployer. 2. New jersey Other employer provldea dally transportation from main location to each worlc site. .. 

j ) 

·• 

.. 

ETA P o rm 9J.4 2A FOR DEP~TMENT OF LABOR USE ONLY . Pa(te , o<8 

Case Number: K-30G-l 5066.o6e25S eue status: .,.c;:,!R,..TI'"'F1e .. o ____ _ Validtl)' Period: 04/1312016 to 10,110"2015 
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./ 

0MB ApptOVa!; 12.05-0468 
Explrallon Date: 0313112016 

H-2A Application for Temporary Employment Certfficatlon 
ETA Form 9142A 

U.S. Department of Labor • 
. 

. 

G, Rate of P■y 

1. BasJo Rate of Pay Offered • 1 a. Overtime Rate of Pay (If ,pplJcable) § 

From: $ 11 , 29 To (Optlonal): $ O . 00 
--,- -. - --- -- From: $' _'O __ , _Q.Q_ To (Optional): $ _o __ . _QQ_ 

2. Per: (Choose only one)• 

2a. If Pf&ce Rate Is Indicated In 
Piece Rate 

WA · · 

3. Addltlonel Wage !nformatlo)'I (e.g:, U11:Jltlp e wo~ .appllcatlbns, ltl.ne!lnt work, or other special prooedores). 
If necessary, add attachment to con~nue and comp[ets description. f 

SEE ADDENDUM 

In the event that the Department of Labor promulgates a new AEWR applicable to any portlon of the period of 
employment covered by this Job order which Is higher or lower than the AEWR herein, the employer wlll pay the 
higher AEWR, and may, at the 

H. Recruitment Information · 

1. Name of Stale Wor!(force Agency (SWA) serving the area of Intended employment •. 
New Jersery Department of Err,ployment & VVorkforce · 

2. SWA Job order ldehtlfi?Stlon number• 2a. Start date of SWA job order• 2b. End date of SWA Job order • 
(In H-2A thla date la 60% of conltacl po~od) 

NJ0982022 I 02/12/2014 · j 07/27/'2.01_5 : 

3. Is there a Sunday edition of a newspaper (of general clrculatlon} In ~e area of 171Yes □No Intended emplovment? • · 
Name of Newsoii.oer/Pubffcatlon (In''" o(lni.lHfftl emalolmtenJ tor H•2B onliil. • Dates of Print Advertisement § 

4. From: To: TBA 
5. 
NIA 

From: To: 

6. Additional Recruitment ActMtlee for H-2Bprogram. Use the space below to Identify the type(s} or source(s) of recruitment, 
geographic locallon(s) of recruitment, !!J.Q the date(s) on v.tilch rechJltment was conducted. If necessary, add attachment, 
to ggminY~ !IDQ mm112~m desctfpllon. • . 

Attempt to re-contact former workers 
I Advertlse In local newspaper(· 

Advertise by word of mouth 
Publlclze through employment service 
Sollclt help_througti.,Ag Extension and Farm Bureau. ' 

} 
The employers wlll engage In positive rec:rultm~nt of U.S. workers to the same extent (with respect to both effort 
and location) no less than that of non H-2A employers of comparable or smaller size In the area of employment in 
accordance with 655.135. 

ETT< Form 91421' 

Case Number. H-300-UO~!Wl266 

FOR DEPARTMENT OF LABOR USE ONLY 
I 

I 

Cato Status: _CE_fDJ~FDi-P--- Validil)I Period: W1sr.io15 10 ·-.10110/2016 
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OMll Approval; 1205-04ff 
Expiration Date: 03/a1/2018 

H-2A Application for Temporary Employment Certification 
ETA Form 9142A 

U.S. Department of Labor 

I. Declaratlon of Employer and Attomey/A:gent 
In accordance with .federal regulations, the employer muat attest that It will abide by certain terms, assurances and obligations 
as II condition for receiving a temporary labor certlffcatlon from the U.S. Department of Labor. AppHcatlons that fall to attach Appendix A or Appendix B will lpe conaidered incomplete and -not accepted tor processing by the ETA appJlcation processing 2ll!R!L, . 

1. For H-2A Applications ONLY, please confirm that you have read and agree to all the 
applloable terms, assurances and obllgatlona oontaln&d In Appendix A. f 
2, For H-2B Appllcatfona ONLY, plaslle co!lfl(m a1 you have read and agree to all the 
applicable terms, asaurances and obllga_tlons contained In Api>Jndbt B, I 

J . Preparer 
Complete this section If thp preRarer of this application is e person other than the one Identified In eith_er Section D (employer · point of contact) or E (attorney dr agent) of this appllcatlon. I 

1. Last (family} name § 
·' 

,12. First (given) name f 13. Middle Initial § 
NIA ' '· NIA NIA 
4. Job Title1 § 
NIA · 

·, 
6. Fltm/Buslneaa name § 

N/A 
6, E-Mail address § 
NIA . 

K. U.S. Government Agency Use (ONLY) 
Pursuant to the provlelona of Sectlon 101 (a)(16)(h)OI) of the Immigration and Nationality Act, as amended, I hereby certify that l there ere not eufflclent U.S. workers •~Hable and the employment of the .above will.not adversely affect the wages end working _conditions of worker& In the U.S. elmlle\1y employed. By virtue of the signature below, the Department of Labor hereby acknov.1edgea the following: · · 

\ 
This certification Is valid from _.....,04::;..:.:../1.:.:3...,12::.0:..1..:::5 ___ to ___ 1_0_11_0_12_0_1 _s __ _ 

I 

03/13~015 
Determination pate (date signed) 

H-300• 15056-066255 
Case number CEBIIEIEP 

Case Status 

L. Pubnc Burden Statement 1205-0466 
Person, are not required to rvepond to \ht, colectlon of lnfonnatlon unleas It dlaplays a eutrently vaJld 0MB control number. Pub~c report1n11 burden far thla collectlon of lnfonnatlon Is estfmawd to awrage 1 hour to complete the form and 20 minutes per responee for all other H-2A lnformatton.

1
~ctlon requirements, tncludlng the time for reviewing lnltructlona, Marching ,xistmg data so~, gathering and maintaining the data neeaed, and completing and nivlewlng the 001Jec::Uon.of Information. The obllgatJon to respond to thla data collectlon la required to obtain/retain benaftlB (Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C. 111!1, et uq.), Please aend comm&nts regarding this burden es~mate or any 

other aapect of t111, nfonnatlon conectlon to the Offloe cf Foreign Labor Certlflcatlon • U.S. Department of ubor • Room C4312 • 200 Conatltutlon Ave., NW, • Washington, DC • 20210 or by emeU ETA.OFLC.Forme@dol.gov. PIHsa do not Hnd the completed application to thll addl"ffs, 

ETA Form 9142A FOR DEPARTMENT OF LABOR USE ONLY 
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\ 

0MB App,ovai: 12064466 
&pl,vtlon o,te: 1XVJ11201e 

• 
H-2A Appllca~cm for Temporary Employment Certification 

ET A Fqrm 9_142A-APPENDIX A 
U.S. Department of Labor 

For Use In Filing Applications Under the H-2A Agricultural Program~ 

. 

A. Attorney or Agent Declaration · 

I hen,by certlfy thttl I am an employee of, orhtr,,d by, the employerllmd In Section C of the ETA Fonn.8142A, and that I have 
been dealgnated 6y that employer to •~ on Its be,ha/f In connection with thl& appllc1111on. N I • m an agent and not an 
•mp/oYff of the 11111ployer, then I hlMI ttttlldled a Leifer of Repfll!entaUon from the employer, / a/eo certify that to the best of 
my knowledge the lnfonnatlrm contaltl1d h.,.Tn Ill we ,md conwct. I Ul)Qf!l~d that to Jmowlng(y tum/sh false lnfonnatfon In the 
prepafBt/on of this foim ar,d !l!IY aupp/emont he.reto or to •kl. abet, or counsel enofher to do so /a a·re1ony pun/shab/e bye $250,000 
fine or5 yeers In a Fedors/ penltanttaryorbath (111 U.S.C. 1001). 

1. Attorney or Agent's last (famlly).n,ame 
Ward 

2: First (g en) name 
Theresa 

3. iddle Initial 

L 
4. Finn/Busineas name 
National Agricultural Consultants LLC 

5. E-Mail address 
tward.nac@gmall.com 
6. SI l Date signed 

B. Employer Declaration 

By virtue of mr signature below, I H~BY CERTIFY thB fol/owing CO(lc//1/ons of employment , 

1. The Job opportunity la a full-tlme temporary poaltlon, the quallflcatlona for Which do no! sub&lllntle.lly deviate from the normal 
and accepted quaDfioatlona required by non-#2A employers In the aame or comparable occupatione and crops. 

2. The woncatte for Which the employer la requeatlng H-2A cortlflcaUon does not ourrenuy have worker, on slllke or belng locked 
out In the course or a labor dllpute, 

3. The Job opportunity Is and will Qentlnue to be open to any qual'lfied U.S. w0111er regardless of race, oolor, national ortgln, age, &ex, 
rellglon, haljdlcap, or clllrenahlp, and the employer has conclualed · and W!I contlnue to oonduct tl)e required reerultmen~ in 
accordance with regulations, and has been una uccoasful In I~ ~t Jlllfflbera °if qualified U.S. applloanb for the Jab 
opportunity for which ciirtlllcaUon la 101111hL Any U:S. wol'kers W,,o applled or IIPP'Y for the Job were or will be rejected only for 
laVlfvl, Job-related roasona, 11nd 'the e!Jlployer must main re~rda of al rejection& es required by 20 CFR. 656.167, 

s. 

: 6. 

7. 

The Job opportunity olfera.~.s. workers no Ina than the eeme boneftta, lvagea, and wondng condition• that the employer Is 
offering, Intends to offer, or will provide to H-2A WO/Qra and complle11 with the requirements at 20 CFR 8155, Subparts. 

The employer understands\that It must offer, reeru~ a,t, •and pay a wage that la the. hlgheat of the adverse effect wage rate In 
effect at the time the Job order .16 plaoed, the prevallng hourly or pleoe rate, the agreed-upon coUectJve bargaining rate (CBA), 
or the Federal or state minimum wage, and, furthermora, that tf a new Adverse Effect Wege Rate Is published, or the employer 
Is notified of a new pre111Rlng wage rate during tho connct period, and that now rate Is higher than the wage determined by 
the NPC (axcept the CSA) during the appllutlon procec. the employer wlll lncre■ae ,the pay of all employees In the same Job 
occupation to the higher rate, 

There ere no U.S. workers avallable In the area(s) capable of Pllrf0nnlng the temporary selV(ce& or labor In the Job 
ppportunlty, end the employer wtU conduct positive reClllltment .aa apec111ed by the NPC and cPOtlriue t,:, cooperate with the 
'SWA by accepting referrals 0h1U ellgJble U.S. wori<ers Who apply (or on whose behalf an appllcatlon la made) for the Job 
opportunity untn completion of f!0 percent of the oontract period calculated from the first date of need Indicated In Secllon 
B,6 of ETA Form 9142A. / \ 

All fees associated wHh prooesalng the temporary tabor certification will be paid In a timely manner. 

( 

!IT A.Fann 9142A-Appeodix A 

Co.se Numb<:r· tt-:s'oo.1606M582U 

FOR DEPARTMENT OF LABOR USE ,ONLY · Page A. I of A.3 
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0MB Approval: 120~8 
Exfital[on Date: O.v.11/2010 \ 

H•2A Ap_pllcatlon for Temporary Employment Certification 
. ETA Fom, 9142A-APPENDIX A 

U.S. Depar!!J!ent of Labor • ' 
' , 

, 

8. ciunng the period of employment that ls1the subject or the labor certlftcat{on appNcaUon, the employer: (I) Wll comply with appllcable Federal, Stl18 and local employment-n1lited lawa and regulaUona, Including health and safety laws; / . (II) WII prov\de for or aeoure houalrQ for wortllln; who are not reasonably
1 
able to return to their permanent realdence at the end of the wort day that oomP!Jae ~ the appUcaj)le _local, e_tate, or Federal atandards and guidennes for houatng 'Mthout charge to the Worker; 

010 Where reqund, hU timely req1191te,:1 i preoi:cupancy lnaped!on.-ofthe ho.using and recelvedcertlffcatlon; (Iv) WI provide lnsuranoe, without ct,a,ve to the W0!1(er, under ;a State workers' compenaatlon law or otherwise, that meet, the requtrament, of20 OFRUll.122(8). 
(II) . Wi! provide traniportetion In oomplf1nce with aR applclable Federal, state or local lawa and regulations between the workefe IMng quarters (I.e., houalng pro\ided by the employer urfder 20 CFR 666.122(hl) and tho employe~a wolkilte without cost to the wor1<er. 

9. The employer has not laid off and win not lay off'any elmBany employed U.S. WOrk!lr In the oooupaUon that Is the subject of the AppHcaHon fpr Temporary EmpkMnont Cel1lftcaflon In fhe area of lntindad employment except for lewfUJ, Job related reasons within 60 days or the date of need, or If t11e·emp1oyer has laid off auch workers, rt haa offered the Job opportunity that I& the aubjlld of the applloatlon to thole- laid-off U.S. wor1ter(1) and lhe U.S. worller(s) rsfused the job opportunity, WH rejected for the Job opportunity for lawful, Job-related 19illl{l8, or was hi rad, 
1 o, The employer and It$ agents have not 1011ght or received payment of any kind from the H-2A worker for any act!vlty related to obtaining labor certfflcatlon, Including payment of the employefa attorneys' feea,. applcallon f(les, or recruitment coats. For purposes of this paragraph, payment lncllldea, but la not Bmlt9d to, monetary paymenla; wage concessions 0ncludlng deductions from wages, 511fary, or beneflta), klcltbaoka, brlbee, tilbutea, In kind payments, and free labor. 
11. TIie employer haa and wtU oontractudy forbid any foreign lal,or contractof° or re\:f\Jller whom the employer engages In International reCN!tm•"I ¢ H-2A worilenl to ,ee.k or reoelve payments from proapecllve employees ... 
12. The employer hu not and will not lnltmldaJe, threaten, raatraln, coerce, blackllll, or In any manner discriminate ·against, and hae no.I and win not cauae any ponion to lritlmldate, ttveat11n, mnln, coerce, blackllat, or In ■ny maMar discriminate against, any pereon who has with just cause:. 1 (I) Flied a complaint under or related to Sec. 218 of the INA (8 u.s.c. 1188), or any Department regulallon promulpeted under Sec. 218 of Iha INA; · 

01) Instituted or caused to be lnatltuled iny prooeedlng under or related to-Sec. 216 of the INA, or any Department regulation promulgated undet Seo. 218 of the INA; 
(Bl) Testified or Is about to testify.In any proceeillng under or related to Sec. 218 of the INA or any Department regulation prom~ated·under Sec. 218 ofthe INA; 
(Iv) Conaulted with an empl0f811 of a leglil uallwloe program/or an attorney on matters related to Sec. 218 of the INA 0~.•-ny.1?0?artment~11t1on p~ under Se_<?, 2)_8 of.tho INA~O< . (v) Exerclaed Of uaetted bn behalf of hfmaellllie!Ulf or others any right or proteotfbn afforded by Sec. 218 of the INA, or any Department, ,egulitloh promdgated under Sec. 218 of the INA. • 

13. The employer has not alld wlU not dlaoharge any peraon because of that peraon~ taking lll'IY action !lated In paragraph 12(Q through (V) Utt6d above. 
14. The employer- will Inform H-2A WO(kol'tl or the requlremant that ~Y leave the U.S. at the end of the period certified by the Department or aeparaUon from the ,employer, whlchevar la earlier, ii required under 20 CFR eee.1350), unless the H-2A woncer Is being ~ponsoted by ~er subsequent employer. 
16.· The employer ha8 ~ -the NotJce of Workers~ Right& as required by 20 CFR 655.136(1) In a consptcuous place frequented by all emp!oyaea. , ,. 

. i . . 16. If the appUcaUon la bel!lll tued as en t+2A Labor CO!ltrBotO< the foQcWlng addltlonal attestaUona and obMgaUons apply under 20 CFR 8515.132: . 
(I) The H-2A Labor c~otor hu proVlded • copy of the MSPA Fann labor contractor (FLC) ce_rtlficate of reglstrauon If required under MSPA, 1801 U.S.C. et nq., to haw euch a certificate ldentlfyfng the speclllc farm labor contracting activftle8 It Is authorized to pilrfoflll; 
(II) Tha H-2A Laboe-Conttaotor hu pllllll!led with this appllceuon a I let of tne names and locations of each fixed-site 11grlcultural l>IISlneaa to Which the ~ l.al>or C:onltlotor e)Cl)8cta to provide H-2A woncers, Iha expected beginning and ending detaa when the H-2A Latior Contractor wlll be providing the workera to each fixed atte,.a description of the crops and aotlvWea the WOfkera are expoc:ted ti> perform at such 1lxed ette, an_d copies of l!le fully-executed work contraota with each ffxed◄lta. agricultural bualneaa ao fdontltled; · \ (Ill) The H-2A Lal;>or Contractor le able to prowle proof of 1111 abllty to discharge fi~al obflllallona under the H-2A program and has aecu-ed a surety bond aa required by 29 CFR 601 .9, the original of which Is attaohed and &hows the name, addres5, phone number, and oontact par.on for the 1urety, and provldea the amount of the bond (as calclAated pursuant to 28 CFR 1501.B); 

ETA Form 9l42A-Appe1ulixA' 

Cue Number: H-300-16-.oee266 

FOR DEPARTMENT 011' LABOR USE ONLY 
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C)t,(8 App(Ovai: 1205-0400 
Exp/ral/on Date: 03/3112016 

H•2A Application tor J'emporary Employment Certification 
ETA Fo;,,; 9142A _.: APPENDIX A \ 

U.S. Department of Labor • . 

. I l 
PY) The H-2A Labor Co~traotor haa elig1ged In and will engage I n recnlltment effor1s In each area of Intended employment In which It ha1 !lated a ftxed-4lte agrlcutural bullneu aa reqUlred lh 20 CFR 655.121, 655.150-156; 1111d (v) "Where the fixed-ette agrleultural bumeas(ea) will pro'oide houalng or transportation to the wor1<ers, proof th~t: a. AM hol1$1ng • Lllttd by woritffl and own9f1; operated, or aeaned by the flxed1lte agrtcultural bualneea oomplles with the appllclbkt_ho4slng atandarda In 20 OFR 656.122(d); b. Al tranapottatlon:_be~n the wollallle and the worl<era' IMng quarters that la. provided by the flxed-elte agrlculfural bualneaa-complies with II applicable Federal, state, or local lawa and regulations and that H wm provide, at a mlnlmlJTI, the .1ame vehlcle safety atandards, driller Hcensure, and vehicle Insurance as required under 28 U,S.C, 1&41 and 2.8 CFR part 600, except where workers' compensation la used to cover euch tranaportalfon 11 ducrlbed In § 866.122(e); and o. Cerffllcatee of ocoupancy from the fJWA for el1 employer owned housing and copies of all drivers' l cenaes, vehlcle regl~n, and lnaurance ponclea for all dr1wr. and vehicles uaed to transport H•2A wor1<ers. 

I hereby acknowledge that the e@nt or sttorney lden'tlfled In aecllon I: (If any) of 1he ETA Form 91-42A and aectlon A e~ove Is au1horixed to represent me for the purpote_ of labor oortlflcatlon and, 'by vtrtue of my &lgnature In Block 6 below, I take full responslblllty for the accuracy of any repreaentatlons made by my agent or attorney. 
I d•Claro under penalty of perjury that I hltve read and reviewed this appllcatlon and that to the best of my knowledge the Information , contained the~ln ls tNe and accurate. / underalend tJiat to knowingly fumlah fel,e Information In the prepwat/on of this form end any· supplsment thereto or to aid, abet, or oounae/ another to rJo ao /a a felony punlsh■b/e by a $260, 000 fine or 6 years In the Federn/ penitentiary or both (18 u,s.c. 1001). 

1. Last (frUy) name 
Manno J ·· 

4. Title 
OWner/Mana~r 
5. Signature 

. ( 
2. First (given) name 
Russell 

Public Burden Statement (1205-0466) . A +\-or~ J:r-i ~ 

3, Mlddle nlUal 
James 

Persona are not required to respond to thJ, oollectlon of Information unloH It dlaplays a currenUy valid 0MB control number. PubHc reporting burden for thls collectlon of Information la estimated to average 1 hour to oomplete the fonn and 20 milutea per response for al other H-2A Information oollec:tlon requJremenlB, lncludlng the time for reviewing lnatrucllone, searching existing data aourcea, gathemg end maintaining the data needed, and completilg and revtewlng the <:Okctton of lnfonnallOI), The obllgatlon to respond to thb date coltectlon I& required to obtain/retain benefits (Immigration and Nationality Act, a U.S.C, 11O1, et HQ.), Ple11e 111nd comment& 1119ardJng this tiurden eatimete or any other aspect of thla Information 00lecllon to the Offloe of Foreign Labor Cer1lflca11on • U.S. Department of Labor• Room C4312 • 200 Conatitutfon Ave., NW,• Waahlngtcn, DC• 20210 or by omaD ETA.OFLC.Forma@dol.gov. Please do not send tho completed appllcatlon to this addren, \ · . · 

ITTA Form 9142A-Appccdix A 

Cuc N~tJr. 1+301).15050-<)!lll;ll!6 
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0MB Approval: 1205-048e 
Expl'lltion Date: 03~112016 

H-2A Appllcatlon for Temporary Employment Certification 
ETA Form 9142A 

U.S.Dep,rtmentofLabor 

ADDENDUM \ 
ADDENDUM SECTION F.b.O: Speclal Requ!remente 

\ 

• . 
., 

muat bt 11>1t to bend,~. alt and 1taml on 1ffl 1or·1ong pttlod.-of •· MIii! be~-to meet 1nd pllfomt "'Job 1pedlloatlonl 11"1ad ln)ob ofllor, nclucing llnill!I botwun 35-75 lb,. MYII bt lblo to wonc n hofhumld WHlll1r. 1W -tcl'PIJ10d1 l,f.llno. - 1rw ..., ~cl to ll(ldom dnll! 11111171g II no COit to 11T1ploye1. All dNO luting vol oca, lftor fl• WO<kor boQln• hll or her employmonl. Filing or rwt,,mu I dn,o ttll wl - 1 IIIO•w '""tt fl yow tmpl_,,. 11111111, 611 1111Ghmon1 for mar■ """""°" dotob. 

j 

ETA Fonn 9142A FOR DEPARTMENT OF.LABOR USE ONLY Pio• 7 ate 

Cue Number. H-SOD-1eo56-060255 Case Status: _c_Eim_f'l_e_o ___ _ Validity Period: 04/13/2015 to 1MOr'2015 

J. . 
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0MB Approval: 120~6 
ElQllratJon Date: 03/31/201& 

H-2A Application for Temporary Employment Certification 
ETA Fonn 9142A 

111,S, Department of Labor 

ADDENDUM 
ADDENDUM SECTION G.S: Additional Wage Information 

emj>loyl,. -P-r 11\t -AE'Ml.. be0llril9•M8l1he r«, ..... 1111, dtllt -A!WR. l!m~rw\11 poy tho ~It of tho~ PrwalnvWlllt, 11\t ploco '""· "'' "91110-IIS>On -- ba,vl!nlnv Wlllf or tfio Fodorwl or 81111' minimum MIit 11 lhl Imo lht-,. II pom,rmod. . 

\ . 

ETA Form 9J42A FOR DEPARTMENT OF LAJIOR USE ONLY Page e oto 
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. . ' ,' Sun Valley Orchards LLC • 
Atta~nts 10 E/JJit&0-15056-056255 (NJ} 

F A 3: Slartlng and ending tJmea may vary aooordlng to weather and crop oondtllons. If e worker Is offered and agrees to work more than the &eheduled houl'$ during any wot1t day, 1h~ must·&till report to wor1t on tl:lelr other scheduled d8Y$, unlese arrangements are approved In epvance with the owner-or supeNlsor. Choosing te wor1< longer'hour:s 'during'the week does not exolu.de yo\J from worl<lng each scheduled work day. Not reporting for wol1( on -your scheduled wor1< day will be counted as an unexcused absence. 
F A 5: Job Specifications: Must have three months' verfflable experienoe hand harvesting a perishable crop. Applicants must be able to fumlllh allrmaUve Job references from recent employer& opera~ng oomperable operations aitabllshlng acceptable previous experience. 
Worker r'ftU&I posse~ requisite phyafoal strength ·end endurance to repeat the baMIS.t process tnroughout the worxday, working quickly end sklttfully to perform aotMties for which ~Y were hlred, Wortcers m1:1&t work at a sustained, vigorous pace and make bona fide efforts to wori( efflclently end conslatenUy lhat ere reasol)Jlble under ttie.ellmatlo-and other wori<Jng oondltlona; considering also the amount, quality, and efficiency of work ecoom'pllahed bylhelrcoworkers. Workere may not leave trash, or other discarded Items In work areas or vehicles but must.dlapoee of such ltems·ln plVt'lded 18CelJlades. Wodters muat wash hands with soap and water alter ell bathroom end meal breaks. Allerglea to varieties of ragweed, goldenl'Qd, lnaecflcldet, ieiated agricultural ehemlcala, etc, may effect wori\ers ability to perform the wol1c deJcrlbed h.ereln. Wotkers ~ ba.physloally able to do the wor1<er clesertbed with or without reasonetie accommodation. Must display the ability to move, plaoa, climb and work from orchard ladders up to 6 feet in height. making the necessary adjustments for various proced.ures whUe canylng up to 30 pounds. 

SanttaUgn Regul[lmenta: For food and general pel'llonal safety pu~•• all Yt'Drkera wlll be required and expected to follow common sanitary praetlcee at all tlmH, This 1, parUcularly CJ1tk::al When. hand harvel.tlng crope for human consumption. Employees are rttqulred to cteanae their harw.11 by wNhlnu them thoroughly With •oap and water after ualne the bathroom and befcn entering the fields for harvest ~vltle• or the l)l'Ck!nv facility for pac:k1ng openrtlons. 
Workers will plant, cultlvate, and harvest Asparagus, Zucchini, Plcklee, Cucumben;, Egg Plant, and Peppers. 
Aep•raql!e: Workers will move along 8861gned ~w. stopping, bertdirtg llnd reaching IQ cut asparagus spe81'$ at ground level may operate elf-propelled harvesting aid on whk:h worker& rtde whlle stopping_ to cut.spears at groond level. Speers which are less then ¼ Inch In diameter (measured at bl.rtt) are discarded. Spears over¼ Inch In dlametw which e,ccei,d 12 lnche11 In length wlll be re-broken et the butt end. Any spearhead which has begun to open will be dlecarded. Speara meeting haNest $p8Clflcalfon will be placed In a straight fashion In field buokets and oarrted lo truok11 or trailers for dumping. Workera wltl be required to &tay on their assigned row. Workers must use care while using knifes to prevent Injury to the1T11Jelves end other worxers. 

ZUcch!nl, Pfckfea. Cucumber,. Eag Pfjlnt. fnd Pepper:,: Work811 will plant, cultivate and harvest vegfltables. Workers wUI be required lo remove weeds by hand or with & hee. WOl'kers will bend and &tPoj> to plc'k vegetallles aooordlng to size, color, shape end degree of maturity and place Into field containers. WOll<ers may oany ful oontalnerweighlng &J>P(O>dmetaly fifty (60} !be. end empty Into field bin or load onto trailer, May be required to p11U jlnd dlll08l'tl cults. as directed by supervisor, Pickers will take care not to bruise or seer produce. Pre-harvest activities may Include staking, tying, tran,plantlng and pruning. Workers wlll stand on feet for long periods af time. Workers are required to work In llelds wlien plants are wet with dew or rain. Temperatures In fields.during working hours can range from forty (40) to over one hundred (100) degrees. 

Peachgj Workers wlll perfonn various duties euoolated with thinning and pleklhg peaches .• Worker_wlll be assigned a row, usually with a partner, and Is reeponalble for plok!ng all the proper frUlt from tha.t'roW, or batf oow, Fruit are selected from the tree according to size and/or color standard ,et by the picking supervleor. In fO(nf lpttarJcg. fruit baryat will be done from a •Ix-foot ladder weighing up to 30 llmi .An workers mu1Ua thlf to Ifft. pam,, lml:WOtt fmrn the Jop.pf the ladder. The entire tree must be checked lo ern;ure removal of all fNtt meetlng-plC'kln~ reqUltements. Fruit ara placed gelltly' In the 15Joi<lng· container untll container Is full. The full picking container weighing up to 215 Iba. Is then taken to fruit wagon and gentty emptied Into a. field bin, taking care of not to spill or bruise the fruit in the container or In the fk!Jd bin, Worl(ere are to 81ay ori their eselgned row unless directed by a supervisor to change, or to help someone put sporadloally. Ploklng_ unlt8 will be kept tree of limbs, leaves or mushy fruit. Fl'\Jlt harvested speclflcelly for sale at a roadside stand ea fresh market specialty bu)(~ts Jn peck or half bushe.J CX>r)talners must be field graded. For fruit harvest for sale at e roadside stand, extra care must be uNd to insure that each ple<:e of fruit Is ~ndamaged and perfect. Wprkem wlll be reaul[td 1o pick up tDd retum pfckJ09 laddm-19 tb•·Jadder wagon proyJgeg by the grower at the end qt each workday or @8 directed l!x tht srower·or dnlsotltd !YPID1for. 
farm Eq11lpment Operation: WOfkers may be require to QPerata fl8010rs and otherfan)'l equipment during_ dally operations, as en Incidental activity. Before any wori<llr Is require to ope.rate· any farm equipment, wol1<en; YtiU be Instructed In the safety end operation of the tractor before dr1vtng the tractor. Tractors Jl,oulcl be·drtven In a manner to' protect operator, other workens, products, trees, crops, and equipment. Repeated failure to obey safety requirements and operatlhg lnstruotlona may result \n termination. 
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... 

. . . S!Jn Valley Orchards LLC • H-300-15056--056255 , Orchard Maintenance; Wprk&rs will be responsible for genef111Am1 -clean up. They will rake up debris from the land such 85 sticks, straw, etc. Worl(ers Involved In orchard maintenance may be required to hoe tree:s, glrdle, spread fertilizer, pick up roots and limbs, strip suckers or unwanted growth from trees, dig root wokers, krlook fruit off tN1es, use hand sprayer, remove vines, lay lrrigaUon pipe; repair end malrtsln drip system, and strep and Ile fruit Wes. Employer will provide all equipment. ln&tructlon will be given for each task and standards of performance dommunlcaled to workers. The specific &tandart!s for e )ob will be dlsOloeed end demonstrated by the supervisor before 1he wori< begins. 

Orchard Clean Up; They may be responslble for the removal ofold and unproductive peach trees. They must take care to not damage or destroy any other trees or property In the area, 

Forklift QRtfltlon during Paekfne Opel'Jllpna; W011<era mey be required to operate forklifts during packing operattons as an Incidental. Before any worker Is required to operate a foridttt, the wortter wm be lnstl\lcted In the proper and safe operation. WOl1<ers will be required to operate forl<flfts according to lnstr\Jatlone and In e manner that pl'Qteots the operator, other wori<ers end equipment. Repeated failure to obey operating end -safety Instructions may result In tennlnatlon. 

Farm, and Ete1g.san1tauon 
All workers will be responsible fOr picking up traah, cleaning bathrooms, sweeplng·floors end otl'ler fem, sanitation duties. 
This employer may grow one or more other crops. Farmers frequently decide whether to plant these crops and what additional crops they will plant after Ihle appllcatloh Is submitted. lnfom'lelfon on crops planted after submission of this applloetlon will be disclosed In writing to the U.S. Department of Labor for approval ae 11900 as It 16 known. 

GENERAL .COHQmONS APPLICABLE TO AJ,b CROJ!§; Fleldwprk begins. at asalgned time shortly after dayllght. Work may be performed during light rain end In high h\lll'll~lty end In temP.8f'9~re1 ,rangll)fl fro111110+ degrees to beloW 20 degrees F. Workers wtll perform !tie majority of tasks standing In the upright position and can expect to stand on their feet for extended periods of time. Some tasks, however, require wori(ere to perform activities on their feet In n.,oped or orouchod l)08ltlon for long periods of time. Wolkers will supply their own wort< clothes. All the taske·ln this Job Oesorlptlon constitute one (1) Job; the employer may assign workers to different ta ska on any day o·r to multlple tasks during the same day In the sole Judgment of the employer. Workers may be required to perform woo, on the farm, that Is Incidental to farming the cropt lleted In the applli:'allon, such as performing hand cultivation.tasks, packing, weeding or hoeing, cleaning and repairing farm bulldlngs, grounds, eel up and move equipment, cleaning and IT)Blntalnlng drip Irrigation systems, , weedlng, etc. Thie 18 a very demanding .and oompelltlve buslnen In which quality epeelflcatlons must be rigorously adhered to. SlopP',' work cannot and will not be tolerated. 

Full Crop Commitment This le regular work, seven hours per day, Monday-Friday, and five on Sunday for the full remainder of the period of employment. The worker agrees to work for assigned employer(e) whenever work ls avanable during the full remaining period of employment even though work may be slack et times. The worker understands that If the worker quits or Is terminated for cause prior to the end of the period of employment, the worket wlll not reoelve the 3/4 ·guarantees discussed below and will not receive certain transport,tlon reimbursements dlscu588d belQW. Excessive tardiness and/or absences will not be tolerated end will result In termination. 

Dally Individual work aaslgnments, ere,; assignments, and tocatton of work, Will be made by and et Iha sole discretion of the farm manger Sld/or farm supervisor as the needs of the fanning operation dictate. Workers may be esalgned a variety of duties In any given day and/or different tasks on different days. Workers will be expected to perform any of the listed duties and work on any crop as assigned by the worker's supervisor. 

Harve&tlng specifications, In parUcular, can change from time 1o time during the season due to crop or market conditions, even on the same crop. Workers will be expected to conform to the epecfflc Instruction$ given for each day•• work. 
The farm owner/supervisor .or a designated employee will provide ·fn&tiwtlons and general aupervlalon. However, field workers will be expected to perform their duties In a timely and prollolent manner .wfthout close sapervlslon. 
Oth&r Coodltlons of Employment: A). Dlsclpllne and/or Termination: Employ11r .may dle(;fpllne and/or terminate the worker for lawful job-related reasons and so notify the Job Sarvlce local offl011 of th& tennli'laUon If th'e worker. a) refuses without Justified cause to perform work for which the worker was recrultecl and hired, b) oomtnlt "11ous act(e) of mlsoonduct or serlove or repeated vlolation(s) of Work Rules c) falls after completing the training perfod to perform the work as apeclfled In Item F-6 and Attachment, d) mallngers or otherwise refu~ without J1,1stlfled caullft IQ pcuwnn a& di~ the wol1< for w,hlch lh,e W(>rker was recruited and hired; e) provides other l1twful Job-r-elated reason(a) for termination of employment. f) '8bendons hla emplo)ll'llent; ,g) falls to k&ep up with fellow workers. h) felslfle& Identification, peraonne~ medloel, production or other wor1( related reoordS', !} falls or ref\Jaea to take a drug test, or I) commits acts of Insubordination. k) thp •roRIRXlt may l!IJDIPIII the wom,t Cfgrplgn or domutiql wtth notification to the empJoym,nt ucv1ce If empfoyer dl1coyem a cf'lmtnaJ ponyjctlon c,pord or ftlWt as a realatfred sex offender that employer rnas2a:,1v bfllmt, -eon1J1m,t wlth curant law, wm liDRllctbt •afflY and IIYIBB condJtlon• 91 gther worfserJ, Reason beyond employee oontror Include~ termination of workers, If he not a u.s, worker because a u,s. wor1<er makes himself evelleble for the Job under OOL's 50% rute. Workers must notify the employer prfor to volL(ntatlly terminating their employmeint. All wages due will be fOf'.Wllrded to the last known address for Workers that leave without providing nollce. It le Imperative that workers provide a complete and ecclrl!te address to the employer no later than the first day of employment. These employers have a,no complete, no rehire 
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.· ,• Sun Valley Orchards LLC .. H■J00-15056-056255 (~J) 
. poricy. ;rennlnatlon for laV<fvl Job related reUOl\8 before the specified ending date listed In this appllcatlon will disqualify the employee from futi.re employment opportunities with this employer. Workers 'MIO abandon their employment without notice durfng the period covered by this wori< agreement wlll be dlsquallflad from Mure employment opportunities wl1h this employer. Voluntary reslgnaUon before the specified ending date listed In this applk;atlon may disqualify the employee frpm Mure employment opportunitles with this employer. For workers who resign their employment volunladly, the employer wfll oonelder and evaluate special circumstances and hardship cases on a case-by-caee 1>8$ls, Employees, without el(Ceptlon, are required to notify appropriate supervisory staff prior to votuntartly terminating 1helr employment to be consldemd and ellglble'for exemption to the no complete - no rehire policy. 

Wor11ers are guaranteed that their total earnings will be at least equal to the AeNR of $11.29 per hour for all hours wori<ed In e pay period. II a worker's total earnings In any pay period In which the worker ha& worl(ed at a piece rate are less than the A'eNR of $11.29 for all hours worked In the pay period, the employer will Increase the worker's· pay to the guaranteed minimum of $11 .29 per hour for the total hours worked In the pay per1od. 
Due to weather and crop conditions, the employer reserves the right to temporary Increase the listed piece rates, or add e piece rate. The employer also reserves the right to completely do away with the plaoe ratf:l an tQgether to ensure a quality product and fair earnings. Employer reserves the right to add a piece rate, With notification to wo~ers. prlOf .to adding the rate, 

Comodjty 

Asparagus 

Zuchlnnl 

Pickles 

Cucumber 

Eggplant 

Pepper 

Peaches 

811! 
$7.00 

$1.00 

$1.50 

$1.00 

$0.60 

$0.60 

Hourly+ POB 

"POB• Pecked OUt 
Bonus 

All Jobs performed hourty will be copensated at $11.29/hr 

·Peaches: $11.29/hr + $3.50/bln + Pack out bonus 
Pack o..- bonus may vary; 2014 bonus was $3.42/bln 

Ylll1 
Pecked out 28# crate 

Packed OIJl 1/2bu equlvlent 

Packed out 1.0bu eqlvtent 

Packed out 1 1/9bu equlvlent 

Packed out 1 1/9bu equlvlent 

Packed out 1 1/9bu equlvlent 

Packed out 1/2bu equlv1ent 

18. More details concerning pay: Employer r&llerves the right to pay higher than the stated wage rate to any worker foreign or domestic. This Is not promised or guaranteed. The deolslon to pay above the stated rates will be made by the employer, at their sole discretion, and will be based on factors Including the recipients' performance and tenure. 

Training: There will be a ·short demonstration period (up to 1 ht.) to femlllarlz.8 workers with Job specifications, to demonstrate proper methods 11nd other crop .specific Issues. The employer wlD not provide separate form.el orlentatlon or training periods for each different crop or eech different type of teak or Job assignment eovered within the job description. After completlon of the training period the employer wtll expect ell wori<ers to possess the &ldlla to work In the productlon of the crops above. For purposes of this secUon seven or more hours will be considered one day. 

•use of Ule masculine pronoun hereln le for convenience of reference onty. 
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.. , . . 

' .Sun Valley Orchards LLC • H-300-15056-05525 
(NJ) 

Addendum • Sun Valley Orchards LLC 

Einployera 

Rnaell JamN Marino Jr. (8~1) 
Sun Valley Orchard& LLC 
29 Vestry Rd 
Swedesboro, NJ, 08085 
1-856-769-6280 
Aapsragus, Cuoumb81'8, Eggplant. Peacilee, 
Ptppere, Zucchini 

Total 
WOl'bre. 

EmploY,cf 

:zoo 

80rtlng 
Date 

Enlilno 
Otte 

<1/13/115 
10/10/16 

Total 
Housing Total H2A Houilng Type L-ocatlon County Capacity Wrkr& 
Glouoeater 190 <10 

Total Workers Employed 200 
Total Houelne Capaclty 190 

Total H2A Worktns Requested 40 
Total Employers 1 

Housing Types: AP • Ap11rtmen1, BL· Block, HO . HoleVMotel, ME • Mete!, MH • Mobile Home, SH· Shared, WF • Wood Frame 
Page 1 of 1 
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' , . ·. 
Sun_ Valley Or~f!a~~ -~~~ Fl~I~ Locations . , ......... ....... . . ··- . ... 

field loc~on eltv 
Burlington/ Garrison Rd Elmer 
Biddle Rd Mannington Twp 
Hall~wn Rd Mannington 'TWP Pt Airy Rd Woodstown 
Vestry Rd · Swedesboro 
St Rt4S Harrlsonvllle 
Marl Rd HarrlSQnvllle 
Swedesboro / Harrisonvllle Rd HarrlsQnvllle 
Harrfsonvllie/Woodstown Rd Harrlsonvllle 
Harrisonville/Woodstown Rd Woodstown 
Cty lld S38 Swedesboro 
High St Swedesboro 

/'.-

Sun Valley Orchards LLC • H-300-15056-05625! (NJ) 

' - ·· · ·--·---·-"•'- .. ... ... ,., _ ,,. ... . .. . .... 
! 

state tzlp county 
NJ 0831B Salem 
NJ 08079 salem 
NJ OB079 Salem 
NJ 08098 Salem 
NJ 08085 Gloucester 
NJ 08085 Glouet:ster 
NJ 08085 Gloucest er 
NJ Q8Q85 -Gloucester 
NJ 08085 Gloucester 
NJ 08098 Salem 
NJ 08085 Gloucester 
NJ 08085 Gloucester 
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I. 

LIMJTEP PQWEB QE ATfQBNEX 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned does constitute and appoint National Agricultural Consultants LLC to be its true and wful ay-in-fact with respect to the following: · 

To act as the authoriud representative for ll Jj client name] in all matters relating to the filing d execution of an H-2A Labor Certifica_tion Application with the U.S. Department ofLabor, including a Clearance Order with the relevant State Workforce Agency, and a Petition for a Nonimmigrant Worker with the U.S. Department of Homeland Security. 

I hereby vest and appoint said attorney-in-fact with full power, authority ·and discretion to perfonn any act whatsoever to accomplish the foregoing as fully and with the same force and effect as I could or might do myself. 

This Limited Power of Attorney shall be effective as of the date of execution hereof and all persons may rely upon this power as being in full force and effect without any further inquiry whatsoever. This Limited Power of Attorney shall be governed by the laws of the State ofNorth Carolina. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Limited Power of Attorney this 
7-<- day of JlGC . 20,/f." 

By,~ 
(<lgnatu,e) 

~;;;;;: ~;j-;acllent name) 
Title: Ow~ ,t .,./ ,4-,pe-fo 

a ~-Zf 04<-u tu11-
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

CELESTE ANNE KEEN 
NOTARY PUBUCOF NEW asey 
·~ Celllfflle8lon Expires &l4/2016 
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Thi• H-2A ~ng Serw:ea, ~~and~~ (the •Ag eotared Into by and 

betweeo Nallor18I Agrloul!,.nl CcMuManta LLC (h •~. an agr1cullural labor contultant nt with an expertise in 

the H-2A Governing Aegldltlonl at 20 CFR § 866 in ltaenlklty and Iha U.S. DOI.ESAW. and Hour I+. nt regulations 

at 29 CFR § 501, In the IClle cl n under the lawl of North Carolina 11nc1 
a fixed eite agricultural 

PfO(luOllr(•)I~}, by· ~ at 20 CFR 656.103(b) In the lttte--W.af~IUJ:~!l-J-1.a:..i..:~~~ (the "&lrtcuituraJ 

Emplom, 'AG!R' ") who is a client of the ConNtant. · 
WHE~, the ~ la quallfted Ind capable aa an ~ll.lltant of rendori~ 

cenain apeciflc admll'liltrltM NMOeS. and other llmlltd Nl'licas (neoN&aly to llllat fllcllltatlon of the A 
and/or~~ workers ID partlolpae In the~ program (8 USC 1101(a)(15)(H)(U)(a); 8 U 
to meet lhe AGER'.1 1e810n81 a;ri<:ultural labor ~;-and 

WHEREAS, the AGER IIClknove1edga, ~ and agreu lhat It II~ and tolely rN 
all appU.caole farm~• labor Wld ~-and Pf'O',llalont of the H-V. progfWrl, lncludlnQ the 
Employnwnt OeftlflcaUon. the CINtance Order, and 1he Wotbr Agreement; and 

WHERIWI, the AGER deelrea to avail themlelvet of the Agent and Cone4.it1nQ MN1cea, adni 
linvted s«vicea prOYidfd by the AgentfConaulllr In ons.r to MOUl1I CIOmatlc end/or aupplementary J 
AGER'1 te.U0nlll ~ labor requ)Alfflel1ls fJ:,i' 1w aelendar year beglrwng Janua,y 1, 20./.S:J 

nd COllSUltlng services, 
In obtaining domestic 

1188) ("H-2A WOl'kere") 

NOW THEREFORE, In conelderation at h paymonl(s) .,_ by the AGER of the Nlllblllhed dues, misaion fff& and other 

aaeonmentB and 8LICh OOlaa • ani -~ tom time to time for~ lhe NfvloN recp.alll by the AGER, and for 

011w 900d .-ld ~ callldenltian, lncluclng Iha nUUII promleea oon&llnld In 1Ha Agreement. ant to the appNcable 

~ or 20 CPR§ W. The ~ will prowlt Agent and COl1IUllalve NMCN to , prepare and/or aasl8t 

the AGER, aa·necelNly, to lntefact with II~~~ lnWMd In the H-2A appllcation processes. 

lndudlng but nQt llrnllitd to US Oepemwlit of Labor ("DOI."), US Deparlmant of Homeland . ("OHSi, US State 

Departmont("OOS-), and the ~ State Wortcfofoe ~•) r&WA"), The pertiea hereto fwther agr _foRows: A. Ibt CqpftulSt::ft 2Nf Rest'."1JI 
(1) The Agent/Cc)nlullant. with Input and ,......,tori, AGER, will pnipare end IUbmlt to the AGER tdt~IW, modify, approve, 

and/or txOO.lle, and eulhoriD lll4>n"illlon la tht ~'-~ aoeno, for pl'OOMling, ell f'0rma documentl, required, 

puniuant to ~ lawa and DOL, OHS, and S1lte Department 111QU181k)ns, to obtain US WOttc«a and,( -2A WOl'kere from the 

R8Pl,tllic of Maxloo. The AGER providN expllclt aulhonutiOn to Cqnsubnt to pr-.pant all neoeeaa,y and doeumente, with 

ernphalls added, for the Coneultant"' P9Plr• IQd A(IPl[l the 1-129 petlbl on behalf of the AGER who I then review, modify. 

,pprow, execut8 and ·eutmt. or authortza aubnNlloh, to U.S. CIS per the petition flllng IMtrucllon8. (2) The ~ on behalf of the, AGER. wll provide certain ad~A"atiYe auppcrtiw le0

1Na!M 

domNlic reau~ requirementa NlablllNd ~ DOL. NIGl,lldonl. Such 1am et\111 be llmlad •clLllively 
Form and attac:hmlnla, ~ to review, mod!fica11on, appr011111, and elC8CUllon by the AGER, and to be a9n,1ttild 

au.1tol1ze AgentlConaullan·~ 1Ubm1t. In order to Ill the esom.tic job 0fder with Vie ~ 8- W 
prepadng ad capy for the AGER to review, modify and Nhorlae the ~ to ptace a 
behalf of the AQER aa dnoled by OOL. ~ cei'111n lupporM NNiaea to Ml!A when/If needed by A 
p,openy lnlervlew and ~ US refemll1 nde clladly to the AGER from t fWA. llld preparing 
1'9¥11w, app,oval, execulor\ 11,c! tmrittlng, or ~ •for AgentlConaultan to IUbmlt, the neoeua,y ~llllrfient 
The AGER aow that M. ~ . ta eollcltlno ~ aa l9QUnd ~ a. Fedenll Regulallon and the 
r9qlited ad an,d appnMd lhe conlent befofe ~llant IUbn1ta It to the nawa~ for print on 
and DOL determine, eQN)ly and~. tt,e '-"- aid oondMioN dleoloaed In the ad, when ald where It la 
cc:ipy for AGER ocinaidlllllition and author1zation. the ~ IS NOT perfonnlng or angagtng in 
Corndl119 aclMtie8 such n l0llcltlng. I, the AGER. am elCCluelwly eollclting empto, .. for myeelf as requl (3) The~ will maintain, or, aN18t the AGER 10 malntaln ccntacll that may be needed, 
Agent!Canlultln or AGER, either direatly or through 111 ~ ~. with SWA's, OOL. D 
1tate and federal govemmental agenaes, and ~ oontractcn 8Cling on behalf d ar pelforTmlg 
behalf of government agenaa ll808118f'Y to effectuata the aucceaful aanlnlstrallve participation In the H-i 
purpoN(I) deacr1bed In thle A;reement. 

tod with the 
the ETA 790 

the AGER, or 
iSWA"), 

on 
re AGER to 

to AGER for 
with DOL. 

reviewed the 
R. The AGER 

By preparing ad 
Farm Labor 

ral law. 

to time, by the 
S: and, other 

llve actions on 
m and for other 

(4) The Agenl/Conllultant has not eoughl or received payment d any kind from any employee au 8 USC 1188 tor any 

aaMty related to ODlalnlng -the H-2A labor oetUflcltiOn In aornpffence wl1h 20 CFR § es&.1360). (5) The ~ Who .11.JHZI an a!k>mey and II not providing legal advice to the AGER Y, under the limited 

lerm8 otthia agreem,nt. act.II the agent or the~. With anv gowemment or prlYlte entity, u necesa.trll·~ aal&t th& employ<!r 

wit! pa,1lcipatlng In 'ihe H-2A program. Thi• clcc:tument IS NOT, nor ahould It be conetrued, u a p Attorney, llrntted Of 

Olherwieo.. The N3ER ~,s1r:tges undenltan'1lnG ~ egrMmant that th9y 8hould ~ ooneult wltti e ltfled attcmey to have 

H•2A / Con>Ulllrqi litrviOII al lnckmntfleelion ....,_ 
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all ofthelr legal QUMllonl answeted. if any. 

8 . The 4PdPytlwal &)plPffl'l 91JMelUee• 
(1) The AGER .,.._ to c:off1)ly llmely wit\ all rNaonaiM polic:IN, procedures, and 

~~It coillidlra fllNnlill b'b proper opnllor1 dh program to obtain domestic 
auccauful participation, and to prorrw c:ompliala with 8'JPbblt l8WI and raguldona. 

ea eetabUshftd by the 
and/or H-2A workers. (2) The AGER ecknowtedgea that It la 1-nlliar with the regulatlona IOd requiremeril of the H- program and agrees to 

~Y with au of the..,.,. and ooncllllo,. den~ dlacribld In the AGER••~ end FOQd P Ing Clearance Order. 

ETA Fom, 790 and attadvnenla, and ApplatlOn forT"11)01a!Y ~ c.tflcatlon, E.TA 91~2 and Rffl~,_,18, (coll&dlvely 1he 

• Job Orde(') and WUh 1he ~ wort\ aUIWIW1t. Whld\ dtecrtbet al the material terma and cones employment and that 1s 

enteted Into with bOlh U.S. MCI t+2A wc,urs by the AGER. The AGER agrtes k> comply with all on the AGER ae 

an 8f11)1oyer of domelUo •~ H-2A wotka fculd In appllClbla law aid ~. lncludlng wtihOUt n, those at 20 CFR 

Pait 863 (OOL IIUll1ltlte Clearance Order l'IIQl,lldonl); 20 CFR part 055 (DCL !-WA Regulations); 29 501 (OOL Wage and 

Ho.ur Enfort.em111t Aag,~.,,,_); ·anrt appllcab41 l!(Mlonl Ill 8 CFR Pana 214, 215, and 27411 (OHS ); and to always 

coopnte wtlh all gQ\Wnffltnt aeenoiee with ~. The AGER ..,._. to ~y with ALL lawe and relevant 

~ and epodflcaly, t,ut not llrrfted to, 2() C.F.R. 955.120(Wagea), 122(conlllnt of job offer), 136( ncea and obligations), 

153(oontact former' US~). 1 !55(rehimtt of US wariterl), 167(document retention requlremelu) of the regulations. (3) In pan!QAi.r, ~ not-llmltlng the foregoing, the AGER 1QtW a) 10 pay their wcnei'1 l1lqUi and benefits;. b) to 

mal\e only ~ deductlont from their warilel'1 ~ lhlt are ~ by law and only 1hoN owed by la_w: c) to 

provide housing n AIQl,lnCI by law that n.- •II appllQlble llanderdl II) efftQt at the time of tlmsly reimburae 

reqwed trwpactatlon Md dally tub9letena8 00lts; e} to pr'Ollldewrtilr\ dllalled 'Migl ttalllmlnta of their eemings, start 

time and.lCl:lp time, ,,.... qt~ Net\ day, hp&l1y - tJYJ/« p6ece rafa of pay, 1w llotn of amploynalt been offered to 

lhelr woriter, the houri Mtulllly ~ ~ their wortcer, and lllmlzalion of al deduc:tm made from their and, If piece 

ras n uaa:s, the uCb produaecl dally, the AGER'• _,., eddlw end Federal Tax k»11tificallon or Number; f) to 

termnallt llelr wo,tcer orq for lawful Joi) r8lalld ,...,,,_: II) tD NQft and malraln workers' oornpenaatl for ech worker 

for the entire period of tn'Clk>Yment. With no __. In CIMl1IQII; h} to 8IJ1)loy any quallfled US worker(1), and hire any 

qua»fied US WQ!Uf(s) wb0 IPf)lea directly to ·h AGER In 1ccordance wilh the lpplk:a~ rag1Ml10na R 655: I) that the 

Conaulant and the AG!R .,. not and ehlll not bl joint ~ with fNPeCt to any af 1he employees. The 

Agent/Conaultan does net ..,-c:ia8 any comol ow, any of the AGER'• ~N and does hold any I f erTlJ(oyment wtth 

reaped ta the AGER'a empio',..N. Tha AGeR II tM SO'- and udulM employer. (4) The AGER IQIM8 to pay lirrely any ~t «penalty~ IQalnlt the AGER and arialng . of the AGER'e violation 

of Ila obllgations under ~Fialtlle law or regualicn, and to lndlrmlfy and hold hamUlt the AnlllrwJC::tlnlli and any of Its other 

AGER Cllenta for ~ ~-- or penaltla and any atlcrneye' fw and oom ll"l0Wl'lld by the ullant Of other AGER 

Cllent8 In~ lfl8)nst such alleged lliolalicn. The AGER adalCM'tedgoa.lhat the lawa and regulatiOM ing the omployment 

ot ·~ ~__..end H-v. WOfMl'I.,. lut,jlOt to dapulad and~ legal lnterJ,19 · In vartous Jurtodlctions. 

TheAlfore, the AGER as,eM that In mattera In which • dalm II made or lltlgallon It lnatttuted agalnet Agent/Consultant. the 

Agenl/Consubnt may __. Its dlac:nldon a) ·1o ..W. IUCh ma&tar'I on behalf of lhl ~~ the AGER on terms It 

deems ~ b) to ~ such matlara; and c) ID determine whether IUd'I MlllerMnta, ludamenta. , oosts and attorneys 

fee& w1A be borne by the AGER out of whoM ..._.. ea11on or inll0llon #le dalm.,.. baMd or, what If any, will be borne by 

the ~ MdJ,x lha9d ~ Ila olher AGER Cllenta. The llrml of thla Paragraph B.(4) any Mure separation 

from AGER and the~ by the .AGER and the tierm cf ltn AQ'""'8nt, (5) The AGER agreee lo pay the AgentlOonaultan ariy ~ lewid by Iha An.twJC.:ON;uJtalll! the AGER'a 6here of 

legal and any olh!li' ~ or iablllty inc:un:ed by 1he ~ In dNlldi,g. pn)leOUting or y dispute relating to sn 

applcatlon for t+2A oec11btkln, dalm, lltl;allon, or lldniolatnlllve our,IIJllmt or~ whether or not of claims against the 

AQER or 1Wi11nQ out -of the faMlt of Iha AGER, In ICCIOl'danc» with • formula apprO'Md by the Alltlnl/Corl t. The terms of tllls 

paragraph 8.(5) a&.l'YN9 any aapandlon fflXJl l'W!l'-"'-1-tne Conlullant ~ 1h11 AGER Md tho term ot . "9reement. 

DATE 
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U.S. Department Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 

0MB Control No. 120S,0134 
Expirelion D•le: October 31. 201S 

Agricultural end Food Processing Clearance Order tTA Form 790 
Orden de Empleo para Obreros/Trabajadores Agr1colas y Procesamlento de Alimentos 

(Print or type in ear.h licld block- To ir.clU{Je addilional infor111alion. go 10 block I 28 - Please loflov, Step•By•Slep lnSlfuctiQns) 
(Favor de usar lctra de molde en ta solicilud - Para inc.luir inlormecion adldon&I vu el punto I 28 - Favor de segulr las in_struccloncs paso-a-paso) 

' Emp1oye(s and/01 AQenl's N:ime ~nd Adcircss (Number. Slrccl. C1!y. Slate 
and Zip Code J Nomb1e y Ol1ecci6n Oel Empleador/Palron yto A.~nlc 
(Nlime10. ~II,. Ciudad. Eslado y C6d,go Poswl J: 

Sun Valley Oreh•rds LLC 
:.u vc1 try Rn 
Sved~3boro NJ oaoe S 

C/0 NAC 
68S VS J1vy l'!I ~OJ 
Carthage. NC 21ll'1 

a) Federal Employe, ldenllflcallon Number (FEIN)/ Nu~federa! de 
lder,bl,cao<ln ~ I En)p!e-aCor. 

b) Telephone NumDBr I NOmero de TIltfono: 
£mploy«r(8SG l 7,~-5280 
11;,.c (9101 947•600t 

c) Fu Numbe1 / H<imero de Fa,.; 
t"'f>I0yAt , ( U~ I 7O•S2 l ) 
~AC l91t l 9<7•6006 

<l) EN/~ Addr~ I Oireoo6n de Dlrreo Electr6nico: 

•2, 4ddresi end Directions lo Work Sile / Oom/dllo y Df1ecclones al luga, de 
lrabaJo: 

9 Veacry Ad, S._.Pd~aboro . P.:.J 0808~ 

S'!~ att:ac:hed ${\C8-Ad.s:h.eet Cot' •ddltional vorkaitea 

l l ot whic:h •"• ewned/l••••d by eo ploy«r . 
n:.ploye r pTovide• da1.ly tl'&nspor t at1cn l r0'31. tr.a1n lOci.ltion 

to a.tc~ vork •i ta . 

3. Addte•s and Olrecbons 10 >lousing/ 0omic,io y Oitecc,orNJ• ul luger de 
v1vienda: 

1)2 9 Rt 45 South, Harr! sonville , NJ 00085 

a) uesai1)1ion ol Hou$ing I Oev.ripc,6~ oo 1a VlVillnde: 

Block 81Jl1din9 
Capacity : l?O 

Code / C6digo Industrial: 

11219 
a. SOC (ONET/OES) Occupa1iona1 

TiUe / Tilu10 Ocupaeio11a1 

NJ0994S38 

farmworkers and laborers-Crops-, 45-2092,02 
6. Addr1s1 cf 011!er Holding Office (include Tvlephone nu!TlberJ / Oirt<Xio~ ~e 

la Oficina Oonde ,e radico la olerla [tncfuya el numero de feltilono): 
Onc-SJOf) C-01\"Cr Ccnrc, 
21 S Cro1<n l'oint Rd 
l frorn(a,c N, 08088 

a Name of Local Office Rep1e,enlellve (inclllde direct diel lelephOne 
nunibe1) I Nombre Oel Repre1entanI, de la Oficina Loe.I (lncluya e, 
hoimero de lel~lono oo su Hnee direcla) 

Manager, 856-384-3700 

7 .-Cleu,ance Orde1 ltsue Dale I Fecha de Emisi6o de l16ici~eo: 

04/02/2015 

·1 s, Job Oldtt Expiration Date/ Fecna de Vencimiento o EJp·;;iooniie 1a Orlien 

de Empleo: 08/05/20 l 5 

; 9. Anticipated Period of Emptoym1nI / Perlodoan6.otJado o prev,slO de =m;ilco· 

F1om/Oesde:Q6/0l/2015 To /Ham: 1 0/10/2015 

1 · ,,. Number ofWClrllers Requested I Nilmeio de Trabajadores So!itrl.a:Jos: 

60 
) 11. A.ntic,pated Hours ol Work pef Wetk / Hom Al\l~ padac/Prevista~ de 
1 T rebajo por St man, T otlll: 4 0 

Sunday I Oomlnso~ Thursday fJueve,_7 __ 
~ond.oy I ~unes _7__ friday I Vitmes-1__ 
Tuesday / Martes .J___ Saturday I Stib3do _a_ 
Wednesday I l\Aitrcotes...:z__ 

, 12. Anticipated range of /\Ours /0( dirlerent wwrrai acii-'es: I Rafl90 pre,,isto de 
·I hotas par alas dife1ente3 lldMdaoos de la te~da: 
, 7:00ar,-3:0Cpm houra vary, &ee •ttacnlft.Crit t o £TA '190 t o, 
1 C\Orc oo:splete decatlc / l•• hora.1 l:00H1 • J : 00Pfll vK.r!an Ycri 
'i t i t.ci6n ~ r.?'1' '790 itra; c!t11t~l lUJ nla COIQ: ?.etOS 

• 13. Coiled Call$ A.ccel)lel:1 lrom; I Aoel)lan llama,Ja, PO< Cobnlr de: 

Employer I EmP:e.!<101: Yas,Si □ NoCl 

DOL00289 
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K Describe how l'le employer inlends lo prCMde either 3 meals a day to each worur o, furnish free and convenient cooking and kitchen raciities rD' "1011lers 10 prepare 
meals/ Oesoi)a como el ernplei!dor tiene la inlencicin de ofnlcer, ya sea 3 aimidas al di.I a cad a lrabajedor, o prol)()(cionar gratUllamenle inslalaciones para cocinar. 

Employers will furnish free cooki~g and kitchen facilities to those workers who arc entitled· to live in the employer• • housing so that workers inay prepare their o~n meals. Worker• will buy their own groceries. Once a week the employers will ofter to provide (on a voluntary basie by the workers) fc~e transportation 
to a,8ure worker• access to the closest store where they can purchase groceries . 

Housing is provided at no cost to workers who are not reasonably able to return the eame day to their 
place ot residence . Thi• paragraph applies to cuch worker• only. Houving 1• not provided to non•workers. Housing cap4city i• atrictly regulated by the US Oepart~ent of Labor, and no person , other than the 
eligible employees author:zed by the employer, may occupy or remain overnight In employer-provided ho~sing Employer -provided housing must meet the full set o! DOL Occupational Safety and Health Adm1nistration 
/OSHA) standardD set forth at 29 CFR 1910.162, or the full set of standards set at SS 654.4D4 through 
654.411, whichever are appljcable under§ 6S◄ .40l. Th• houa1ng is offered as temporary in-seaaon /dur i ng 
the employment period only) ~ousing provided for migrant agricultural wor~ers while they are employed at 
far~, beyond normal commuting di•tance from their residence. Workers provided housing by the employer 
must promptly vacate the housing upon ter~ination of employment. No charge wilt be taade for beds or cooking utensiln and similar itome furnished to workers to whom housing is provided. All housing i 8 group hou~ing in ~hich all work~r~ will ahare kitchens and common area• without regard to gender. 
~•=le wor~ets, however, will be provided with sleeping facilities shared only with other family members 
or wl:h other rem•les. Sex-oegregated toileta facilltiec will bo provided . Workera who reside in such housing agr~~ to be responsible for maintaining the housing in a neat and clean r...:inncr. Worker~ residing in employer 's hou•i~g may have mail directed to them at the employer•c address on attachod addendum. Rent.>l housir.g will co01pl y -,I th a 11 appl ir.:able regulations, 
SEB ETA 790 attachlneata 

I.Os ampleadores proporcionarAn facilidades libres de cocina y cocina a csoa trabajadores que ticnen derechp para vivir en loa cmploadorea que albergan para que trabajadore■ pued~n preparar sua propias comidac. Loo :rabajadores compra~jn &us propioe CD1"Restibles. Una vez a la semana los emple~dore~ ofreceran proporcionar 
1en una base voluntaria por los ~,~b~jadoresl liberta cransporte para asegurarse dt que trabajadores 
conseguir acceso a~ la tienda mAs cercana donde pueden comprar comestibles . 

Albergar es proporcionado en ningun costo a trabajadorco que no son razonablemer.te capaces de rcgresar el mismo dla a au domici llo. r,ca pArrato aplica ~ tale• trabajadoreo solo . Albergar no es proporc1onado a no-traba jadorce, La capacidad de lQ envoltura es regulada estrictamente por la Sccrctaria de Trabd jo de EEUU, y por ninguna persona, de otra Manera que los empleados elegiblea autorizado por el empleador , puede ocupar ni pueden quedarce por la noche en albergar de ampleador-proporclon6. Albergar de empleador• 
proporclon6 debe encontrar el conju.~to lleno de DOL la Administraci6n Profesional de la Seguridad y ;a 
Sal~d IOSKA) estAndarea exponen en 29 CFR l9JO,L42, o et conjunto llano de est4ndarea pone en §5 654,404 por 651 . 111, el que son aplicables abajo s 654,401. La envoltura e~ o!recida como en•te~porada temporaria 

(durante el periodo de empleo s6lo) albergondo prev;o trabajadores agr1cola migratories mlentras son 
empl eados en granjas ~As allA de conmucar normal distancia de su residencia. Los trabajadorpo 
proporcionaron alb~rgar por el ernple~dor debe deoocupar inmP.diate~ente la envoltura oobre Ja cesantia . 
Ninguna carga ser~ causada c~maa ni UtileR de cocJna y &rt!culou semejentes praporcionaron a trabajadore& 
a qu!en alberg~r es proporc1on~do . Tod~ la envoltura es envoltura d~ grupo en la que todoa loa 
tr•bajadoYes compartlrAn cocinas y &teas comune, sin consider•ci6n al genera. Lo, trabajadore9 fc~en1nos ser&n proporcionados sin embargo con {acilidadeG durmientes compartidaa s6lo con ocros miefflhros de l• 
familia o con otr•s hembrao . t,aa facilidadct de lavaboo de 5e~o-Be9re96 serin proporcionadao. Lo• 
trab4jadorcs que rcsidcn en tal envolture concuerdan en eer reaponsabtes de mantener la cnvoltura en una m~ner~ ordenada y limpia. Los trabaj•dores que residen en 14 envoltur& de empleador pueden ~ener corceo 
dirigido a ello~ en la dlrecci6n del e~ple~dor en el ap6ndice cunectado . Alquiler de vivlondo~ va a cumpllr con todas lac regulaclo~ee aplicables vu. .IITA 1,0 fijacionae · 

- 2. 

( 
\. 
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15. Referral lnsllvclions and Hiftng lnf01ma11on / lnSlrucciones sabre olmo Referir Cerdldato.s/Solicilantes • (Exp!arn t-.o.. app!icanls are lo be hir!d or referred. and lhe Employer's/Agenrs avaiable hour lo inwrvlew worke,s I EIJ)liqoo olmo los ca,,didalos ser$n contratados o referidos. y las hom di!lpanibles del empleador/agenle para enltevistar a IOs lrllbajado<es) See mJructions lor mo,e delails / Vea las insltve:ciones para mas delalfes 

wock:cr~ •re 11crcef'110 tot complunc:c w-Hh t he tolhndng cdtcra1 11 confu;w, ob,lity, •"•ilobll1ty , q~llt1coc.ion1 .-nd .,,,.ll,n gnr.-u tc p,rror,a -.;oT~ d«'tcrtbcd •nd eonfiT• )nt-.i1t1on to ""Ork. the •nun ••uon, 21 Loca l wori..cu ccnfh.,. "'".a1U!u ~lty ct r•lubl• d-uly t r an•portat1on to •nd troe \.he job •\tc t o r the ent i n •~••on. Non Joc• l ..,o,~•r• c;ontlrn •vail.,bt l ,ty o r c.ran1pon• tion to JOb &It,,. ro b,•qin work. ll conftroi.:.ttot\ o f full dhelo1i.rt- ot .oJL ,uc1 . c:ondit.ion. ont nu uu of IJOC-k•Job by local 1ur1plo,,..cnt autr, -'1 .:itr1nwtut con!'HD,ai.ou of hg,1.l quU1rlcnioi,s to v o rk in u·.e v: •• de1cdbcd bc:\o,,,i . Th• ••p l oycr ~ Y u:r•inate :ht voO.tr ttouign •nd/ 01· donrst:c watt; not :f1('.,1 ,nr, to the •-.ploy-..r,t oorvicc Lt er,ployar dl:tc:ovc:n a cru•fn1I conviction rec:ord or .tutu■ ;u • rcgi■tered ccH< ottcndcr thi1 t tQloyer rc.1~on•bly ticltevu, cOf\•iu•nt ..-1th C'\ICccnt h"', will l191,1•ir t he • •hty •nd. ln·1ng condition• ol otht ...-o,~en Wor>:ert ncnutt:d ~~in:,:. the Jot, Ott•r h o'" v1thin nor~l cc:-,,nvting dltt • nc• vil l not be provad•d titith >.ouu"1, ,ubaistcn~c ~n~ t r•n■porc,c ion . 

0nly workers hqally ct1tithd to uork 1.n thf" un1t ,nl 5tJU.::i jf'\d 'Who po1ou · onoin,1\ 1donttcy l\nd •fflf)loy,,,ont 1ltg1bilh.y docv,.cimt J\lt!ic-lt:nt to cOC'lplu• JNS PoY'• J .,. •• rcqu.,nd by th• 1•19Tat\on ar.a ~At.ton•llty /\ct, ~11! be p,:ri,iitud co co.ipl.c• t'h• turu"9 froc•a• "'orllters t"t:hrrcd ~g.&lnu thu order •hould be lnCoraed that tl'l•y ..use ha\le the: ■K dOC\IIMntt 1n their pcr.11•••1ion 111ht:n they • .-nv• •t. t h e p:ace ct criploy,,,c.nt. Provided th• t vor1ttr1 eo,.pl•t• ltttlon l of for .. 1- ,. "'°rkeJ'• \Jill have t.hr•■ bu■in•■- d•r• to producr, th~ L'c;ivi nd doeuinenutian to c0n9htc e,cction l o.f fona I•J, u provi df'c1 Jn the "ct. Worker1 not pr0vldill9 th,, doC:u1N1nuuon 'flll noc be cllo~d to ~o to work. un t h• fourth bu11 int1111t day o t , .. ploy,wnt. or .. ny • wbt'fquu:t d■y• until th• docu-.nc,u 2 O;\ 11 provided. •• provu:ted in th• r..c-t . 
SF.Ci f.TA HO ATfACMNbfTS FOR DIM'Atl,S . 

P~U l.Os· tr• b•1•doru •Oir'I l nvuug&doa p:1u h eontorl'll<hd eon lo• cdterio• , i guicnt••: uni confiC"NI c-.1p1cid~d. l .1 dhpantbtlLd.\d, lea r equuito• y el con.:tritu:11ento p•r• rt1alh•r el t r ab.ljo duC"ntvs y eonhnMn intuic:16n tnWj .ir la tcinpocad.ii t:ntt:ia. 21 tub,11.iidorr• :ocaJu eonftri••n h d.hpontbilidl.doa de tr•n•poru din to 3t'9'UTO ,1 y dU utio de tub.ii Jo p&r.11 h , tmpcr.ad.a ent#.rJ . Los tr.lbA)• dor .. . ~ no l oc&Ju c-onhr-.n lo d.i•pc.nibili.d•d•• de tu.n.:por~e al ut,o dcl tr.iba)O p•n capq1Ar ■ 1 t.ub.ijo, l1 cc11tuNclon LI\! ~civc\.-clUn lhn• d~ todos h~• rtr="ltnoa, dt' Lo cond1c16n, y Ile l• n.it...u~l•1• d~ tub.Jjo• tr.atkll)o por cl pocscriol l~al de crDpho, 4 1 ctintu· ...... c:011 .tr • r"'-"l\1v• dr. rcqu1•lt.o• h9.alc11 tr•t:..)61" • n Etu\J C:Ot.O ducrito &bljo . E1 o,pll.Jidor P\ICdc tCflftl.nO r al \UNj•dor IUtt.l()Jlft'O y/o doc-611 LCOI ... "Or, notHlc->C'iOn .1l aervac10 dcl t1.-p1to a, c,a,ple1doi- dt:sc..bra un ugtotro craMina \ de c-onv1ccilffl o cnac.ua COl'IO un ,he!lncurntir •P•u•l r'c:cp•tr•do que. t111pludor crct' r.iton~blcacntc , coherent• cct1 11 l•r actw•l. da fi,11 1l 1• a•gur\d•d y l•o corw:hcfontt do vu'I.- dft Ol10• tub• J at.dorea. 1..t,1, cub•i•dcuo• ~ l•tt•ron ccntu 14 Ohu◄ dr c-i,1~ da d • ntto de 1.'on..uur nor,..l q~o cU • t 1nc:1• no ••,-J ptoporc,onadiJ en,: 1oJbe1·9•r. 1 .. autJai.ot.cncl., y cl t.r•n~port•. 

S6!a trobal•dnrc• pcnutia ron leg•l'-Cnte t.r.b41 Jn en ht•~ Uni.do.- yon que •lcgt!)ihd•d onginal de Jdcnt1d&d y u.pi.eo de tucs't.o\S &r•.,d• • docu..,.,..t.• l,)\lflcL•nc.c p.Ara ~:ec•r fQf roru )O•'· c0>0 ncco,uo por l• ln11111iqroc1.0n y I\Cto dt H•c100alio.1d, acr• pernu1do co~~ht•r •J proeouo qu. cnr.pleJ . Loa tnba)odon:a rettrido• c:ontu •~t., ordtl' d•bc-n ,.:., h:itor•Hdos ~u• dtben t•n•r e-•to• docu1Mlnto1 t n ~u pt)Us\f.lr, cu .. ndo lle9..n 1n •~ lu9o11r d• •~ho . Con t.>l dt qw• tr• b•J~doru cc~let~n • c.cci~n l de fonw yo-,, lo., Lr•b.l j .adou, tend r4n trfl di•• h&b,:u pu• prod1.:cir h ~nuc:10n nceouria pau COIIPl•UT ••c~1tln 2 de !om. yo,, . co!ftO proporclon•C.C en c l Ano. w, cutw: •dorcs que "? pro;,orclon.an uu doc:urunuc:-ldn no ur,n per«iltidoa lr .t. tr•b.Ju en •1 tUArto dh h!bJ} d~ ttpleo. ni dt> n1n9Un dia aubu9"iento haau qur h dOC'WDtnUei.6n •c• prapordonada , co.o prooornon.do c.n cl "-cto. 

VU t:TJ. HO rtJACtOtits Po\RA Dt:To\LLlS , 

16. Job dl/$Criplion and rcquircmenls / Descripci6n y requlsilos del trabajo: 
"'ork.ot• w: 11 harvfst Aapu· , gu•. Z\lCChlnL , P ic: llltt , C\Jc:-.:Vtu: tg!Jpl.ant. ~pper■ a nd pcoehoa . S01"11l11!1C ■ thu wJJ) occur tt top ., ,tt i •ddf'r ·or,.-r• •v.,, t..Ji.♦- c-ar• vh•I' wor litlng a top l • dd•r•. ,n na. 7,0 •ru.ananrrs 
Lo• u••b•j•dor•• ■c coaocU ••Jt4.rr•uo•. calab.41.c:in, onc~rtido11, poplno■, beren,ana■, ptnl•nta• y loo 110l0Cotonc1. A •iecao ao c.o OC.\&tf• •" l• P4krt.o •upoTlo,i- wn f pl•• ••c•l•r• lo• \rab•1•daro■ do'Dlll'I t.oc,n• c~ld•do • l '-r•b•j•r w,a a■calara . V&• ru 1,0 .UC)UVO• ~HTC• 

1. Is previous work experience preferred? I Se prefiere prevla exoeriencia? Yes/ SI 0!l No D If yes, number ol monlhs preferred: / Si es asf. numero de meses de e:&pcriencii: ..l.!tu.1<ublt f'JC'PCUtnC't }\arvuLlng • perhhabie crop . Applic11nt.t NU.I,:, be .&bl• \.0 (urnL•h t1.tf H"WUlltl\lCI )n!J rcrcrcr.c( a Toi, rectnt •f'l'Ployers oper.11ung Co1J\pauble cp•nt,on• uub l Js htog eccept■blo prwvlova u.puicncit, h~ 1tt.ict11M1,,U for •ore Ott-ll l o. Lt os■cft• do \I~ ••P-r , • nci• cc,iprobab!■: clc cult\ ivoa r",.•"=~"e-roa . Lo~ a.ol1cita nt• = da~n ••t~r on c0f'\dic1.on•• de Ffoporc,oo•r 1"■:t crcnci,,, dit ab•JO poutiv• • de le• C.1tl~• !.0• t11plcador•• co-p•r-,blc=i ••t•bleccr n,vch·■ a.cepu,bl•• de •1tpcracnc l • -pr•vu . Con.a uJt.e LOJI do:\I.Mnt oa djuntos p•n. obtencr nh dct♦ llt• . 

2. Check all requiremenls lhal epply: 

□ Cenificeuon/Llcense Requirements / Cenificacion/Ucem:la Roqu1silo.$ 
0 Oriver Requirements/ Requositos del conductor 
0 Employer 'r'f~I Train, Empteador enlrenar.i o adleslrari 
Kl Exle"3ive Silting/ Esta, sentado largos ralos 
® Exposure lo Extreme Temp. I E.xpue>10 a TemP<)raturas !:Jttremas 
m Ufttng requiremenl I Levanlar o Cargar _1_Libs.nibras 
liil Repetitive Movemenls / Movlmientos repelitivos 

0 Crimina: SBCl<ground Checl<. / Verification de antacedentes penales 
iQ Drug Screen/ Oetecclon de Drogas ( random) 
11!1 Extensive Pushing and Pulling/ EmpUJar y J,1lar Exlensamenle 
llll Extensive Walking / Camlnar per largos rates 
l!l Frequenl Stooping/ lndln~ndose o agact!tndose con freC11encia 
.Sci OT/Holiday b not mandalQry / Horas E1lres (sobre Uempol / Dias Feria~os no 

obllgalo110 
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17. Waoe Rates. S0eclal Pav lnformetion and Deductions/ Tarira de Paoo, lnformacion Sobro Paoos Esoeclatos Y Deducciones (Rebajas) 
Crop Aclivihes Piece Rate I Deductions· • Yes/Si No Pay Period I Hou~y Wage Special Pay 

Unil(s) (bonus. eic.) Periodo de Pago 
Culhvos Salano por Hora Pogos Espedale, 01duccionu 

I tBono. etc.) ; 
Pago por Pieza I 

Unidadlesl 
We~y I SemaiiaJ"' vegecao.1es s .l.l . .t.':I I s Social Securily I ta □ 

I Seauro Sociel s s Federal Tax I I'll □ 0 
lmpueslos 
Fed11ales 

s $ Slate Ta, 'Z.J □ Bi-weeltlyl 
/lmpucslos Ouinconal 
Eslalalea s $ Meals I Comidas 0 18 0 

s $ Other (specify) / ~ □ Monthly/Mensual 

I Otto (es0ecifica) 
0 

see attachments Oiher/Otro 
vea fijaciones 

0 

18. More Details About the Pay I Mas Oetallu Sabre el Pago: 

In lt'1• e \'c nt ,~, th< Dt:;,.,ctmenr. Ot L.1bor prot1ulo,u ■1 • new Aeva • ppl tu.blc to ,my por:Jor1 of tl'lc pcr.to:i ot cniplo'((lenl C'f)Vt-Ud by t hll'I )Ob o:-der w-hieh h l'UVhtr or lo~or th~n tho AINSI he r ein, the (lap!oyu wl ll poy the- higher i.1wa. .ano Ny ,H the t l'lllpl oyOY' s d~~c, ~t ,on p,ay tho lo-.er AE,iA, ~inning vith t'h(! ethct..lve dtt.C of t h ,. na,., AnrR. l':lllploye-r vil l p•y th• l'l19hcst o( t.hc Al'IU;, prev• 1 l Ing v..,q, , tho p,ecc-r•t.c- . the • CJUtd•l.l?Of"I colhct\vo tugdnit\Q "'"9' or t.n• P•d•ul or Sc;ou ,.ini..,_ "•9« ,n the tiAI' t.l\~ '-Ork u 9ertol"MCd . If' tho La•k • vh•ro there fJ no puv,ultn9 practico to pa y .a phctr rno the e•ployc-r, •t. nu tole d1 scrctlo,1. ,wy opt t.O pay ?•r hCNt ro ,.n.1uro • qooO q-.14:icv prcauct.. At no ti"'• w1:1 th1: w't>r>tus be p Ald hec th;rn th1 h19hut •v•\ 1able vagt: . S•• Att achaont.o tor co:apl•t• w•v• infora.a,t;ior, . 
tn c.., , o de que la s1eutuS• d,.. ,.ut>,t,jo prcnu\9Uc un OYtvo All"4'R • p h c;ib~c • cuolcr-11cr s,otcUf' dt-L -p.dodo d• .-.-plf:o cu'buO per ut• or4u d• :r:.b.aJo q;uc IU Na a h • o ll'Jt ba)o Cf·"- el Arwa en 111ato. d eM9lHdor pagu·, , J AttfR M l el t.o. y 1:iaro on l a diacr•c,on dc-1 en,pJ eador-p,ag .., a l AiWR "'°1• b, jo . t t11peundo con h t • cha Jt vigenci.a d t 1 P\,WVO AIVR . u • npl .. OOr p.ig•r• cl Na dto dd it.NI, pnv~hcl•ndo • 1 l \:lldo. cl prtcio • dt H o jo. el a cep'!.6 el au.cldo d a n.-gocudi6n c:-ol~ctha o cl "•d•nl o ••l•do "'tnuo cS. z,t.edo t:f' •que:l ~nto c1 t r•b.)O c a tcali&ado . 
en 1.lt t-lrt•• dor-.1e no h~y pr,c1.1c.a prcd01111nante pag.a.r un Pl'•c.10 a de•u10 • l •f1>l1:•Jo'C, en II.& 
Un1ca dl.aC'tt ciM. p\,;edo op"c p.)r P•v•r por hoc• Je .au9"'r~r \U'I producto bueno d• cal l dad. An n1n;Cin tin ,po h.agtl . Jo.. 1r•b..J<111LIOr1t1 aon p•q•do• aeno• que d ouolcto daspon1i>l • IUa a lto. V•• Pljacion•• pa"E"& l.a inhinl4ci6n ci;mpl.oU dd ouoldo . 

19. Transportolion Arran~ements / Arreglo• de Trpr\6porti,ci6n 

Th< Ecnplov er will not a d v•nc• tr•ncportat1on .and •ub■ 1:1tence cost:, to WorX•r~ tor tran:,port~t 1on lO the pl.a.cc of 
employment . Thia vubp.ar~9t.a.ph •ppl i•s only co Workers who c•nnot re••on•b1.licy return to chel r r e~id•nce the st11fflfl dily . 
At ter lha wor'kc-r~ h•• cu~ple ted SOI ol t!le woric contr-acc. All t:ligible •PPl 1cant I vi 1 1 hlYQ t hcl r inbound r~u aona.bl • 
cran~portation expense:-, reimburoed, one tir.111 only. OoMeatic applicant., fro• out:,itle ot tho nonial comut1r.9 di .stance thcl 
volunt&ry choae not co residci ln <ho c mpl oye:I' Pl'OVidttd hou,ing . tl'le: en1ployar will pay tor the init.ia l inbour..d 
tr&ns-portation rei,nburs,u11e-nt . However, · t h e c~ployer will not reil'TIDUrse ,3ny worJt~n• for d~l!y trt.naport•t 10n cost 
wh•thar COftl.'JIUting front iti:,idt or 0uta 1de: of the ,u·•• of int ended ell!\pl oyoent . Employer will not pay for voluntary tripa 
boc~ to the.;. r re,~dence due to far.,il y eW11ergenc:i •$. or v ,1c ation• . s11a ATTAonm.KTS to l:TA 190 POR IIOU C:OMPUTI DBTAtt.a. 

21 £nplciador no ilVill-nt•rJi tr,an:sporte y sub1iatenc-ia costos a 'trab.1}.1dore:1 p•r• •l tri.ns:por ce •1 l.ugi.r de e~pleo . t,t~ 
sub~r:-a.to a.plic,1 c:;6lo • Tr•baj ador•c que pueder. no regreso de r eaaonahi .Li ty a SU re1idenci.1 • l mismo dh, . Despucts de 
que lo• tr~b.ljodores h•y•n cc1aplet&00 50 \ del ecnt rato del trabi!O - ·rodos lo, &olieit•ntes wl•g1bles tend:-Un eu• g,stos 
ra2onable1 de entrada d• tr•n•porte r e cll'lbol•ado•, un t ie.-ipo •6lo . 1.08 aol.icitont.":1 do~stico• d• futr• d~ de lo dist•nci• 
rn.> rm• l. qc.e ~onm\.lt.~ qu• volunt•rio escogi6 r.o roaidi r en el ~pl.,&dor proporcion6 • lbf'Tgar. el e11pl e ador pagarJ. por el 
rn embo l ao do cntr, t!_. inic1al de tr.1n5por-te- . Sin tw.b.,rgo. Cl 1!:Pllpleador 
diorio de t.rAn•porc, el c:on:llutendo dit dcntto de ni h>wr• dol Area de 
volu.nt ar10J1 atr.13 • ,u r1aid1ncia debido • er1er9enci•• taff)i li,1,ro,. nl 
VL\ 11,UCION'IC A lrTA 790 rAtu on,u.us >!At COMPLWTO&:, 

• 4 • 

no rermbolsbr.; 4 nln9'1n trebajador r,•r,a. el co• co 
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Is ii the prevailing practice to use Farm Labor Contractors (FLC) 10 recrviL supervise, uans~ort, house, anolor pay wor~ers ror this (lhese) crop activity (ies)? I lEs la pr~ctlca habitual uur Conlrallstas de Trabajo Agricola para reclutar, supervisar. transporlar, dar vivienda, ylo pogarte a tos 1ratajadores para este(os) tipo(s) de cosccha(s)? Yes I SI □ No 2SI 

H you have checked yes. whal is the FLC wage ro, each activity? / Si contesto "SI,' cu61 es el setarlo que le pega al Contratista de Trabajo Agricola por cada actividad? 

21. Aro workers covered for Unemploymenl 11\SUrance? / lSe le proporcionen Svguro de Oesempreo a los lraba1adoru~? Yes/SitKI No O · 1' • .,_, ..... ,. 

22. Are worlter, covered by wor~ers· compensation?/ lSe le provee seguro de compensaci6n/indemni1atl6n al tra~ajador. Ye'1Sil19 No □ 

23. Are toots , supplies. and equipment provided at no charge to the worlters? I LS• les proveen he11amienlas y equlpos sin coslo at9uno a to1 trabajadonis? 

Yes/Silll No □ 
see attached 

24. List any errangemenls which have been made wilh establishment owners or a9enls ror the paymenl or a commission or other benefits ror sales made to workers. (If them ere no such arrangemenls. enler "None".) I Enumere lodos los acuerdos o convenio.s hechos con los prnplelarios del ealablacimicnlo o sus agentes para el pago de una comislon u ot1os benefic,os por venta, heches a los llabajadores. (Si no hay ningun acuell'.to o conYenlo. indique "Ninguno".) 

none/ninguno 

25. Lrst any striko. wor'A Slo~qe. SWYIOQWll, or interNplion or ope,ation by the employees at the pt&ce where the Y,Q/<er; 'Mil be emp!oyed. (tr lhete are no such incidents. enter "None".) I Enome,e !Oda .,u~ga. paro o ,ntenvpcion de operaciones de traba/o por p&r1e de los empleados en el luga1 de empleo. (SI no hay incidentes de es1e ~po. ,nd,que 'Ninguno".) 

none/ninguno 

~-- -------------------- ----------------------------' 
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' , : » :·,:s p "-cl: : · ~ , ·,:- ~ " c;,11r.vt:'~ -w.th a 'u1ure ,'.pp.,calio, lor Tcrr,p:rvy Emr-lr.)m,11: Ce·:,,c;;uo~ ,~, ~2A Y .:s' / cEs:a · . r. do o:r-:r:• ::O r.J s.:J ;,or ;ii 7 
1:1, : ~1l:.;,i.]n '4::l 1.ma !U"\!.:: J sc~.:,.:.ud ~ r.en·f,:3:.~n cc. cmr:~J 10::.p::,;,. pza il;!J::;~jo~ H-iA' 

f, .- ~rr.~.o;·e( s Cor.1J.CJl10 .. : ihr~ 1ot t •1!ol Jt,,.n~es 1-~ a~\ual 1c:ms lnd tor.J1!1Cnl of 11,e em~!, ymi•t :.! ing o!Jorod by me iindc~ aii", nwc'r:j, - 7 ttr :is , :11.J ~··~'l:J.titns ('if 1ne 1:t. ! Ct1M:cac1t.111 cct Emplei'\d-t-t Es·.:i •l!:1,,n d6o tr;i~a!o d,1. :ritt '.J~ ~.~mnino~ y ccnj ":tones ch err.p1no ;;:; : 1, I.~ ,h·:.1• ) ~"•:!:.c:~.- t.;O:• ')s tCr1i. n:s ., cc:·l!:ci~"l:?.S mJ'~~;,:p~ oh'Zt,d.)S 

/ 2'.J > ·_;tt l. __ / .' !d!..~ ~-...-~ I ,-:. ( IL.%' ;:J!./~fY'At'-.r"l. 
c:r,;~o,er s 0111ll~d r:a;m ,.,ff{-;·f / Titu,~ on Loi-a :Je M~ oe,,mptt•I~ cei"linpu~or 

) 

----=-~ -.__.,~-·--,+ - -,~ 
~:1.p:oyar s . j\\1ta 1 ' 

:iL;,o c ;,Rcrull V 1 , . • ,, c·f lt,o, s1, 1c1c•~y s,:Jt~;-.a caste lvtlt~on cl the Emr-.cy,ne:11 S.rvit f u a no-Ice laxr ~xcr,angu :~vi ,,. as J :: :u,1 : .. :: '" ~myl •oy.rt,t· emr.:01e1s ,1nrl !ob sccka•~-nc11he11t.e Employmc.11 and Tra1nin9 A~minls1ra:;011 (E:M) r>OI l~.o £1~10 agencies ~re guarani.JI• of 1•1~ ~'~"'"~! ~• :rulnJu1nos; o' ,nl;;11na:1~: tonlatnc;; an jo~ 0<de1$ aubminr.d by ~mplufo" tlo! oo~s any job o,o~r .X:L"tr,ld N rctrJitod U~"Qn by tno A, m ,ca:i "c~ t:,11110, ,.v,i,.111,:v ~ c-011!rJclu~J ,ct ~!for lu whten lhe Americzn Job Ceolt,. ET/. or a S:a:e :,gooey ., ,n ar.y 1Yay a pa,ly. 

LLA Cl:11 CUIDAnO. Fn , .;fl d~ ,, ~., .. ,on ;.;1,..:;a ~cl Sc.v-~-a aa E:nplea ~ •s-:<IJ r-;,, ~y. cumo ur3 rl:Oad CJ ,1.re:t:1,Tb.>01.!.crnl •·• c,;,n,s.~:>v, os ~ .:11 ~==-., 1111 •· ;, para •r :•u ; '<Js a·r;;>,liJCY.Ui y ios sc1,c,1.:n1a~ de u nµlt' J. Iii ETA nl 1.1, ;vier,d~s ~ct t~o pu!:'!en ~l tan~l.llf 1.1 c,i:;t111~ o v.,ro:JJ~J o, I~ :n.'!,;111t::.~• CJr,:::·:d.J ,)n .ts ":•Jfr.~!t :J~ tn:~·:Jj:> S:>.T.!:L1:s po, ~ ~oru Ii.:. •:y ;na ord6n dE tr2tt:.j? zcep!o.Jo o ~ntra'.ado en el Centro~ Carrera:1 (P-nct'1C2!'1 Jl!!t Ccr•: r.i c;::: :.hr/CJl 01~1 ;.:~.:; ... ·: u •. ·.-~.;u ~•1:r.:..~1-;.10:cs :i l.1:'i G-•~ cl Ar.ie·c.rl ... l'J Ce"1.,r. ET).:, un org3r.ismo c-!.!:,W cs ce hb;1..n~ miJlk.'f,-j u11a Ct lu part~ 

~UoLIC IIURClN SlATC~J[Nl 
r~·\: ,;:i;..::..: ri:; .,, .. r3 b~..:i:n !"' ~ ~-vrJ if.-.J t:: EiA F~ ":Ti i1W nh..::."1 IS 1¢-lUtteo t;,; '.tlk»! Qf 1e:l.r. bet~f.\S !4.-: \i:iC ~()l!. IS f:Sl.:itil'~ :v ::\! J~►-fC . ::., er: r.-;1; :.-..-:· ... - : : ;r.c,,$-i.. 11t:. " t.f.•:!] l:rr.e t~; :t?v,i:'l,1r.9 !f!stftit: 'Jns, )!.:tir.~1 kJ ~ •:!i:rg tiltd !vJrt~::. ~!ifhrn~J Jn:I re\';': 1 ·,., :tll· c:::t:10:"'. Tt-.J :;J!:i1c •·t:e-J l"'.J. :~s;:-. : . .: .. :11.:c •r.:·. · c: :,•~:ir.rit ..,:. v,.;.c.-; ll c.s~ jt!- 11 ~ m-rJ=•, Vl:l~ 0\1a C\o-''l(>I N:.;m~e<. u-.. , S ~•.M·:: •~'.Ciff"Bllt'r. ar'(S ~r.cre '" r..;) £.>.pe-:"'1:0, ct ";O!"li.o.:mi J~!;' ::-.Cr,d C.,,:I'.'.':· ::.; h.:~..:N,J 11 r. 1 .. ·di~ u-s•imai~ .:r ;r,y 01!1e, : s;, .. -c! ~~ l'liS ..:j!tt:lnl'' • i.1 .. •1.,~;1 'l ~'.AJ~S:./Jns tor ~~r:r; I~" Dt..lfdlin. tJ lJ\i: U S. Ct.~rh't:r.t 01 ta~·..i. E•rr-~~ymtti! ::• ; i:.,:!\.") ;.i:::r..n\:rc11ion_ C!"~~\! of Wo·~10t't-~ .. 1·;1'1~,V1. R•·,r.1 C..o!~lV. 2,)J C:r,st,:u::'1 /..-.'i"'.•J-::. l~\•;, \·,1a:,;hcr,·1ton. o: & nli 

DE CUIMCION 0£ CAnGA PUllLICA 
La Cllt~J ,~ •IDf~l~~ put:1;.a pi>IJ h:i p:ndu :i la Fot1'.'::I = T,, l !t:'. ~Cll , ~ rcqu.t ;t: l,idlcli t !:lenEr o ft'..t-1~1 b!ct!:c. GS {4( USC 3501), i':!: eibnli l-i' 1,~rt:,1:1,.\J..;,·'ll'fll.< tu !:-.:,:..:~ r-:r h1::":.pu~1,,:d, 111.,.t1\.,:--.J\l b t;~r."--o ca~ re ,~.:,~ '"l:,~ ... .i;r: lo"'.F'J. l .. ~::;r ~.r<::.~ d'!! Oir.:i..t ~l'C:'~5. rttOf.;!a,: ·, 1e"-s.as !a r<;,'-~:e.ct.Cr.. 0 c::U:.:1.-; .. -0 \·•.!-, p:..: rt,:•.' ' t'! , ~..: :!t: J \,·~1J 1~:0r;,1z-::=:n oe r.1f::irn.x101\ ; m'j,,cs cu-: muestte .;n r,6me,o do c:;,c-c1c :,~s veildO. Esra .of01f.Z!On n pjt, Ci? y r,o h3'/ ri~J , ... ;.,.;c.1:i.tv.1 t:1) ::t.~f,..;•1r.:1~:,~::L ~nvlJ ~...s cc. T.t-~:Jr.o..s ~!:ICD cJe t~!a ; 3-g.i o cut:p.,;~, 01<0 a.:iif..ocl.:> <.!1 ~~a c~ c,t;:,5", indu)'(;ndo s~gcci:nt:zs poro rt!00~1r t )Lo c:rga . • L;, u~:;I~{·~! ol laucr. i::11;:'~·,r.-., ,., ~nd 1,a.:iil'G .\,Jnmisn-.ition. ~ ~ Vlo,<.'Clce inv~tmenl. R~m C-4510. 200 Con,11-,11on I.V>!.1U8. IIW, l\'ils/l,~~~•-o r. ~J2' 0 I 

- · · - - - - - - -- - - - ---- --- - - ---- ---- --- ---- ----· ·- -- I 
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28. Use this seclioo lo pro'lide additional suppo,ling information (iN:ludillg '6Coon Box ll\Jl!lber) lnclKle allachmen\s, if ~s&<y. I Utifice es1a seociOn pa,a proporciooar 
informaci6n adieional de apoyo; incluya el nume<o de la section e incluya ;uclwos odjunl0$, si es necesario. 

SEE ATTACHMENTS TO THE ETA 790 FOR DETAILS CONCERNING THIS JOB OPENING. 

VEA FIJACIONES A LA ETA 790 PARA DETALLES CON RESPECTO A BSTA APERTURA de TRABAJO 

- 7 -
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20 CFR 653.501 
Assuranr:·1'.!: 

INTRASTATE Afl:D INTERSTATE CLMRANCE ORDER 

fhe ,::11ployer .iyrees to provide to workers referred through the clearance system t~e numb<.!: ol 
flee .. ~ of wor~. per wct:k cil~d In Item 10 of tne clei.rance order ror the week be9inn1n!l •,:ith tr,<.! 
11m;cip,1teu ,1c1te of need, uniess the employer t,as an,ended the d.ite of need at l1::t1st 10 working 
days ;mor tc; tht: original dale of need by so notifying the Order-Holding Office (OHO). II th,~ 
cnwluyt-r ia,1s to notify the OHO at leilst 10 working days prior to the original date (Jf 11eed, tlH! 
1:mp10·1er shali pay el•gib!e workers referred through the Intrastate/Interstate clearanct: sy~:,,m 
the spec1tied hourly rnte or pay, or In :he absence or cl specified hourly rate or pay, the hlghr, cf 
th,~ Federal or State mln'imum wage ratt' for the first week starting with the original anr-c:pil~•!d 
<:ate of need. The employer may require workers to perform alternative work if tile guJra11te1: I'; 
invot-ed .ind Ii such alternative work Is stated ori tll'.l JOI.> order. 

Thi: employer agrees that no extension of employment beyonel tht: period or employmer:I :,,1uw11 
on the Job order will relieve the employer from pilying the wages already earned, or sptic:1'11:d ,r. 
the Job oreler ilS a te:rm of employment, proviellng transportation or paying transportation 
expenses to the worker's hof'le. 

The employer ussures that ail working conditions comply with applicable F~tr.rt1I and Stilte 
minimum wag~, ct\1lcl labor, social sec11rlty, health and safety, form labor contrilctor r~91strat1on 
ant.I other ,•mploymenl-related laws, 

The r.mp1oyer agr::C;S to E:xpec:,t;ously notify the OHO or Statf! nge:1cy by telephon!c! irr.111ct.J1a:iiiy 
upon ,~arn1ng tl'at il crcp is matwing eari,er or later, or that WE:clther conu,lions, ever 
1ecrL,unen~. or other ra::tor~ have cnanged the terms dnd conditions of employment. · 

Tilt: cm,1i•>yt?r, ,f acti:19 as a f<1rr.1 labor contractor, has ;, va1;cJ ldrn1 lr1ucr contractor reg.s:,-,1t,01· 
C1-.,rtiriCVlC. 

The c·mploy,:r d!;sures the ilva:!ab1lity of no cost or public housing which meets .:ip;)licallle Fi:tie1 J I 

.,,,,1 St0'.e sta, ,J,m.Js d11u wl11Lh Is surhc,ent to house t11e specified number of worker5 reqi.;cstct; 
through tne clearance syslem. 

Tile employer also assures that outreach workers shall have reasonable access to tht! we., kc,~ 111 
the conduct of outreach activities pursu,mt to 20 CFR 653.107. 

E:mployc~·s Nr.mc Date : 

--•i,ll::, th" material lerrns ilnd condltion:i ur th~ employm<,nt, tho omplover must .ios•i •.' to 11,--.- ,a .i.:c.-i:,rnc.,,, if 
t· : ·: job ouJe, iG to bo placed a:; p.1rt or the Agriculturol Recruitment 5yi:tom. Thli. ~~~urilnc0 Gtulerrnml must IJr, 
:;ig,1ed by the ..:,mployer, and it muct accomp,my the l:TA Form 790, 

- 8 • 
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ATTACHMENT TO ETA 790 

Wor11ers recruited under this Job Order are reGn.Jited to work on the employer's farm shown on the addendum In the cenlfied occupation 
during lhe period of employment shown In Item 9 . The employerlrnember will offer US workers at least the same opportunities, wages. 
benefits, and working conditions as those which the employer offers or Intends to offer to non-Immigrant foreign workers. •use of the 
masculine pronoun herein Is for convenience of reference only. 

1. Name and address of employer. Sun Valley Orchards LLC; i9 Vestry Rd, Swedesboro NJ 08085 . . 

9, Anticipated dales of employment: 06/01/2015 until 10/10/2015. 

10. The number of workers shown Is the aggregate number of foreign workers that will be employed by the employer under this 
temporary employment cer11ficalion. The approximate maximum number of workers (foreign and domestic) to be employed In the 
certified occupation ts shown on the addendum. The numbers shown are approximations provided for the governing administrative 
agencies. The actual number of workers employed in the oer11fied Job opportunllles of the grower at any given time may be more or less 
than the approximate numbers shown in the addendum, depending upon crop conditions, weather, markets or other circumstances that 
develop during the season. 

11 . Anticipated Hours of Work; Worker wilt report tq worll at the designated time and place es directed by the Grower each day. The 
standard workweek of 7 hours per day Monday-Friday, and 5 hours on Saturday is normal; however, work8fs may be requested to work 
12+ hours per day depending upon the conditions In the ftelds and maturity of the crops but will not be required to do so. Also, the 
workers may be requested to work on federal holidays and on their Sabbath but will not be requill!d to do so. Workers may volunteer to 
work additional hours when work Is avallable. Down Time: Workers should expect occasional periods of lltUe or no work because of 
weather, crop or other conditions beyond the employer's control. These periods can occur anytime throughout the season. 

Star11ng and ending limes will change due lo weather and crop conditions. During certain times of the season workers are required lo 
work at night. Workers will be given as mu.ch notice as possible wt,en the changing of shifts Is required. If a worker Is offered and agrees 
to worll more than the scheduled hours during the workweek, they must s(ill report to work on their other scheduled days, unless 
arrangements are approved In advance with the owner or supervisor. Choosing to work longer hours d11ring the week does not exclude 
workers from working each scheduled work day. Not reporting for work on your scheduled work day will be counted as an unexcused 
absence. 

14. Employers will furnish free cooking and kitchen facllitles to those workers who are entitled to live In the employers' housing so that 
worllers may prepare their own meals. Workers win buy their own groceries. Once a week the employers wUI ·offer to provide (on a 
voluntary basis by the workers) free transportation to assure workers access to the closest store where they can purchase groceries. 

Housing is provided at no cost to workers who are not reasonably able to return \he same day to their piece of residence. This 
paragraph applies to such workers only, Housing is not provided to non-workers. Housing capsclly Is stricily regulated by the US 
Department of Labor, and no person, other than the eligible employees authorized by the employer, may occupy or remain ovemigl)t In 
employer-provided housing. The housing Is offered as temporary In-season (durtng the employment period only) housing provided for 
migrant agricultural workers while the_y are employed at farms beyond normal commuting distance from their residence. Workers 
provided housing by the employer must prompUy vacate the housing upon termJnatloh or employment. No charge will be made for beds. 
cooking utensi ls and similar Items furnished to worl<ers to whom housing Is provided hereunder unless unlawfully removed or damaged 
beyond normal wear and tear. All housing Is group housl11g In which all workers wlll share kitchens .and common areas without regard to 
9ender. Female worllers, however, will be provided with steeping facilllles shared only with other family members or with other females. 
Sex-segregated toilets raclUUes wlll be provided. Workers who reside in such housing agree to be.responsible for maintaining the housing 
111 a neat and clean manner, Reasonable rep.air costs of damage or loss of property, other lhan that caused by normal wear and tear will 
be charged lo the worker If he Is found to be responsible for damage or loss to housing odurnlshings. Workers residing In employer's 
housing may have mail directed to them at u,e employer's address on attached addendum. All housing or public accommodations will 
comply with applicable State. Federal, Local, or health regulations. Employer-provided housing will meet the full set of OOL Occupational 
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) standards set fonh et 29 CFR 1910.142, or the full set or standards set at§§ 654.404 through 
654.417, whichever are applicable under§ 654.401. 

15. Interested candidates should contact their local State Workforce Office to receive a copy of the ETA 790 and applicable attachments. 
Once the applicant has e copy of the Job order they may apply dlrecUy lo employer by calling (856) 769-5280 ext 7 . Applicants are 
encouraged to rax applications or resumes to {856) 769-5213 attn Fprmworker Job. Group interviews for local applicants wlll be held 
Tuesdays and Fridays from Barn - 11am. Applicants are encouraged to arrive 15-20 minutes early lo complete/review an application 
packet at 29 Vestry Rd, Swedesboro NJ 06085. 

All interstate (out of state) and Intrastate (in state) appltcants Interested In this Job offer should first contact the order holding office prior 
to contacting the employer for Information and permission lo refer. Workers should be fully apprised by their local employment office of 
the terms, conditions and nature of employment prior to referral. This w ill enable appllcanfs lo review all the Information and ma.ke an 
informed decision about the job and will ensure compliance wilh dlsclosure requirements. Interstate {out of stale) and Intrastate (in state) 
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candidates will be interviewed over the phane once employer has received written confim,alion that ail required disclosures have been 
made. Completing an application Is part of the Interview process. 

Workers should be fully apprised by t_he local employment office of lhe terms, conditions and nature of employmenl prior to referral. 
Workers are screened for compliance with the following criteria: a) confirm ability, availability, qualificaUons and willingness lo perform 
work described and confirm intuition lo wori< the en Ure season, 2) local workers confirm availabillly of reliable daily transportation to and 
from the Job site for the entire season. Non local workers confirm availability of transportation to job site to begin work, 3) confirmation or 
lull disclosure of all terms, condition, and nature of work1ob by local employment staff, 4) affirmative confirrnation·of legal qualifications to 
work In the US as described below. The employer may tennlnate the wor:tser {foreign and/or domestic) with noUflcatlon to the 
employment service Ir employer discovers B criminal conviction record or status as a registered sex offender that employer 
reasonably believes, consistent with cmrent law, will Impair the safety and Uvlng conditions of other workers. 

Only wori<ers legally entitled lo work In the United States and who possess original identity and employment eligibility documents 
sufficient to complete INS Form 1-9, as required by the lmmlgrafion and Nationality Act, wlll be penmitted to complete the hiring process. 
Workers referred against this order should be informed that they must have these documents in their possession when they arrive at the 
place of employment Provided that workers complete section 1 of form l-9, workers wlll have three business days to produce the 
required documentation to complete secUon 2 of form 1-9, as provided In the Acl Workers not providing this documentation will not be 
allowed to go to work on the fourth business day of employment, or any subsequent days until the documentation is provided, as 
provided In lhe Act. 

16. Job Specifications: Must have three months' verifiable experience hand harvesting a perlshable crop. Applicants must be able to 
furnish affirmative Job references from re<:ent employers operating comparable operaHons establlshlng acceptable previous experience. 

Worker must possess requisite physical strength and endurance to repeat the harvest process throughout the workday, working quickly 
and skillfully to perform actlvfUes for which they were hired. Workers must work at a sustained, vigorous pace and make bona fide effons 
lo work efficiently and consistently that are reasonable under the climatic and other working conditions, considering also the amount, 
quality, and efficiency of work accomplished by their coworkers. Workers may not leave trash, or other discarded Items in worll areas or 
vehicles bul must dispose of such items In provided receptacles. Workers must wash hands with soap and water afler all bathroom and 
meal breaks. Allergies to varieties or ragweed, goldenrod, insecticides, related agricultural chemicals, etc, may affect workers ability to 
perform the wori<. described herein. Workers should be physically able to do the worker described with or without reasonable 
accommodation. Must display the abllity to move, place, cllmb and work from orchard ladders up to 6 feet in height. making the 
necessary adjustments for various procedures while carrying up to 30 pounds. 

Sanitation Requirements: For food and general personal Hfety purposes, all workers will be required and e,cpected to follow 
common sanitary practices at all times, Thl11 is par1lcularly critical when hand harvesting crops for human consumption. 
Employees are required to clean&& their hand11 by wai.hing them thoroughly with soap and water after using the bathroom and 
before entering the fields for harvest actlvlti111, or the packing facility for packing operations. 

Workers will plant, cultivate. and harvest Asparagus, Zucchini, Plckles, Cucumbers, Egg Plant, and Peppers. 

Asparagus: Workers will move along assigned row, stopping. bending and reaching to cut asparagus spears at ground level may 
operate self-propelled harvesting aid on which workers ride while stopping to cut spears at ground level. Spears which are less than ¼ 
inch in diameter (measured at butt) are discarded. Spears over¼ Inch In diameter which exceed 12 inches In length will be re-broken at 
the butt end. Any spearhead Which has begun to open will be discarded. Spears meeting harvest specification will be placed in a straight 
fashion in fleld buckets and carried to trucks or trailers for dumping. Workers will be required to stay on their assigned row. Workers must 
use care while using knifes to prevent Injury to themselves and other workers. 

lvcchlnl, pickle&, Cucumbers. Egg pfgnt. and Peppers: Workers will plant, cultivate and harvest vegetables. Workers wlll be required 
lo remove weeds by hand or with a hoe. Workers will bend and stoop to pick vegetables according to siz:e. color, shape and degree of 
maturity and place into field containers. Workers may carry full container weighing approximately fifty (50) lbs. and empty Into field bin or 
load onlo trailer. May be required to pull and discard culls as d irected by supervisor. Pickers will take care not to bruise or scar 
produce. Pre-harvest activities may include staking, tying, transplanttng and pruning. Workers will stand on feet for long periods or 
time. Workers are required to work in fields when planls are wet with dew or rain. Temperatures In fields during working hours can 
range rrom forty (40) lo over one hundred (100) degrees. 

Peaches: Workers will perform various duties associated with thinning and picking peaches._Worker will be assigned a row, usually with 
a partner, and Is responsible for picking all the proper fruit from that row, or hall row. Fruit are selected from the tree according to slz:e 
and/or color standard set by the picking supervisor. In some instances. fryll harvest will be done from a she-foot ladder weighing 
up to 30 fbs. All workers must be abfe to 11ft, carrY. and wor~ from the top of the ladder. The entire tree must be checked to 
ensure removal of all .fruit meeting-picking requirements. Fruit are placed gently In the picking container untll container ls lull. The full 
picking container weighing up to 25 lbs. Is then taken to frull wagon and gently emplied into a Held bin, laking care of not to spill or bruise 
the fruit in the container or in the field bin. Workers are lo stay on their assigned row unless directed by a supervisor to change, or to 

• 2 -
15 R Morino # 2 up veg• NJ 790.docs 

DOL00298 

JX 3 Page 51 
AR - 1553 Appx242

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 141      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



' 

help someone out sporadically. Picking units will be kept free of limbs, leaves or mushy fruit. Fruit harvested specincally for sale al a 
roadside stand as fresh market specialty baskets In peck or half bushel containers must be field graded. For fruit harvest for sale at a 
roadside stand, e~tra care must be used to Insure lhat each piece of fruit is undamaged and perfect. Workers wlll be required to pick 
up and return picking ladders to V,e ladder wagon proylded by the grower at the end of each workday or as dln,cted by the 
grower or designated supervisor. 

Fann Equipment Operation: Workers may be require to operate tractors and other rarm equipment during daily operations. as an 
incidental acllvl ty. Before any worker Is require to operate any farm equipment, workers will be Instructed In the safety and operation of 
lhe·tractor before driving lhe tractor. Tractors should be driven In a manner to protect operator, other workers, products, trees, crops, and 
eQulpmen1. Repealed failure to obey safety requlremenls and operating instructions may result in termination. 

Orchard Maintenance: Workers will be responsible for general orchard clean up. They will rake up debris from the land such as slicks. 
straw, etc. Workers Involved in orchard maintenance may be reQuired to hoe trees, girdle, spread fertilizer, pick up roots and limbs, strip 
suckers or unwanled growth from trees, dig root suckers, knock fruit off trees, use hand sprayer. remove vines, lay l"lgation pipe, repair 
and maintain drip system, and strap and tie fruit trees. Employer will provide all equipment. lnstrvcUon will be given for each task and 
standards of performance communicated to workers. The specific standards for a job wlll be disclosed and demonstrated by the 
supervisor before the work begins. 

Orchard Clean Up: They may be responsible for lhe removal of old and unproductive peach trees. They must take care to not damage 
or destroy any othar trees or property in the area. 

Forklift Operation during Packl!)g Operations: Workers may be required to operate forklifts during packing operations as an 
incidental. Before any worker Is required to operate a forklift, the worker will be Instructed In 1he proper and safe operation. Workers will 
be required to operate forklifts according to instructions and In a manner that protects the operator, other workers and equipment. 
Repeated failure to obey operating and safety Instructions may result in terminaUon. 

F11rm 1 and field Sanitation 
All workers will be responsible for plcklng up trash, cleaning bathrooms. sweeping noors and other farm sanitation duties. 

This employer may grow one or more other crops. Farmers frequently decide whether to plant these crops and what addlUonal crops 
\hey will plant after this eppllcatlon is submitted. Information on crops planted after-submission of this application will be disclosed In 
writing lo the U.S. Department of Labor for approval as soon as It is known. 

GENERAL CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL CROPS: Fieldworll begins at assigned lime shortly after daylight. Work may be 
performed during light rain and In high humidity end In temperatures ranging from 11 O+ degrees to below 20 degrees F. Workers will 
perform the majority of tasks standing In the upright position and can expect to stand on their feet for extended periods of time. Some 
tasks, however, require workers lo perform activities on their feet In stooped or crouched position for long periods of time. Workers will 
supply their own work Clothes. All the ta3ks In this Job Description constitute one (1) job; the employer may assign workers to different 
tasks on any day or to multiple lasks during the same day in the sole judgment of the employer. Workers may be reQuired to perform 
work, on the farm. that Is incidental to farming the crops listed In the application, such as performing hand cultivation tasks, packing, 
weeding or hoeing, cleaning and repairing fa"" buildings, grounds, set up and move equipment, cleaning and maintaining drip Irrigation 
systems, , weeding, etc. This is a very demanding and competitive business In which quality specifications must be rigorously adhered 
to. Sloppy work cannot and will not be tolerated. 

Full Crop Commitment: This is regular work, seven hours per day, Monday-Friday, and five on Saturday for the full remainder of the 
period of employment. The worker agrees to work for assigned employer(s) whenever work Is available during the full remaining period 
of employment even though work may be slack at times. The worker understands thal If lhe worker quits or Is terminated for cause prior 
to lhe end of the period of employment, the worker will not receive the 3/4 guarantees discussed lielow and will not receive certain 
transportation reimbursements discussed below. Excessive tardiness and/or absences will not be tolerated and will result In teITninaUon. 

Dally Individual work assignments, crew assignments, and location of work, will be determined by and at the sole discretion of the farm 
manger and/or farm supervisor as lhe needs of the farming operation dictate. Workers may be assigned a variety of duties in any given 
day and/or different tasks on different days. Workers will be expected to perform any of lhe listed duties and work on any crop as 
assigned by the worker's supervisor. 

Harvesting specifications, in parttcular, can change from time to time during the season due to crop or market conditions, even on the 
same crop. Workers will be expected to conform to the speclflc Instructions given for each day's work. 

The farm owner/supervisor or a designated employee will provide instructions and general supervision. However, field workers will be 
expected lo perform lheir duties in a llmely and proficient manner without close supervision. 

17. Wage Rates. Special Pay Information and Deductions: The tasks in the crops listed below will be paid at the piece rates listed. All 
other work will be paid the adverse effect wage rate (AEW R) of$ 11 .29 per hour. Employer wlll pay lhe highes1 of lhe AEWR. prevailing 
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wage, the agreed-upon collecUve bargaining wage or the Federal or State minimum wage when lhe work is performed. In the event that 
. the_ Deparynent Of Labor promulgates a new AEWR applicable to any portion of the period of employment covered by this job order 

which 1s higher or lower than the AeNR herein, the employer will pay the higher AEWR and may at the employer's discretion pay the 
lower AEWR, beginning with lhe effective date of the new AEWR. ' • 

Workers are guara?teed that ~air t?tal earnings "':''" be at least equal to the AEWR of $11.29 per hour for all hours worked in a pay 
period. If a workers total earnings 1n any pay penod In which the worker has worked at a piece rate are less than the AEWR of $11 .29 
for all hours worked in the pay period, the employer will increase the worke;•s pay to the guaranteed minimum of $11.29 per hour for the 
total hours worked in the pay period. 

Com modl!;i 

Asparagus 

Zucchini 

Pickles 

Cucumber 

Eggplant 

Pepper 

Peaches 

~ 

$7.00 

$1.00 

$1.50 

$1.00 

$0.60 

$0.60 

Hourly+ POB 

•pos- Packed 
Out Bonus 

Unit 

Packed out 28# crate 

Packed out 1 /2bu equivalent 

Packed out 1.0bu equivalent 

Packed out 1 1/gbu equivalent 

Packed out 1 1/9bu equivalent 

Packed out 1 1 /gbu equivalent 

Packed out 1/2bu equivalent 

All jobs performed hourly win be compensated at $11.29/hr 

' Peaches: $11.29/hr + $3.50/bin + Pack out bonus 

Pack out bonus may vary; 2014 bonus was $3.42lbln 

Due to weather and crop conditions, the employer reserves the right to temporary increase the listed piece rates, or add a piece rate. 
The employer also reserves the right to completely do away with the piece rate ell together to ensure a quality product and lair earnings. 
Employer reserves the right to add a piece rate, with notification to workers, prior to adding the rate. 

All activities not listed as paid by piece rate will be paid by the hour. 

18. More details concerning pay: Employer reserves the right to pay higher than the stated wage rale to any worker foreign or domestic. 
This Is not promised or guaranteed. The decision to pay above the stated rates will be made by the employer, at their sole discretion, and 
will be based on factors Including the recipients' perfonnance and tenure. 

A). The employer wlll make the following deductions from the worker's wages: FICA taxes, Stale (if applicable) end Federal Income ta~ 
as required by law. Workers Will be charged for the followtng: cash advances and repayment of loans, repayment of overpayment of 
wages to the worker, payment for articles which the Wori<er has voluntarily purchased from the Employer, long.<fistance telephone 
charges, reco11e1y of any loss to the Employer due to the Worker's damage (beyond normal wear and tear) or loss or equipment or 
housing items where it Is shown that the Worker is responsible, and any other charges expressly authorized by the Worker in writing. If 
the grower reimburses the worker prior lo the 50% dale, and the worker is terminated for cause or abandons prior to the 50% date, the 
grower reserves the right to recapture that reimbursement No deducilon not required by law will be made that brings the worker's hourly 
earnings below the statutory federal or slate minimum wage. There may be deductions that reduce your pay below the slated contract 
wage; but will not reduce your pay below Federal or Slate Minimum Wage, whichever Is higher. FICA, State and Federal taxes will not be 
deducted from those worker's wages that BNI working under a temporary, agricultural visa, unless it's discovered it is required or If the 
worker request withholding. 

B) Employers guarantee to offer employment for the hourly equivalent of 3/4 of the workdays of the total specified period during which 
the work contract and all amendments thereof are In effect, beginning with the first workday after the workers' arrival at the assigned 
Grower's farm, ready, willing, able, and ellgible to work and ending on the expiration date specified In the work contract and all 
extensions thereof or upon the termlnallon of this employment as provided below. For purposes of this guarantee, a "workday" consists 
of seven hours Monday-Friday and five hours on Saturday. The worker is not required to work on his Sabbath or on federal holidays 
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wllich are New Year's Oay, January t Martira Lulher 'Klng, Jr.'s birthday, the ttiird Mor:iday In January: Presidents Day. ,the lhird Monday 
'in february; Memo~ial Day, th.e last Monday in May; IDdepenclence Oay. July 4; Labor Oay. lhe first Monday ,in September:; Columbus 
Day, the second Monday in October; Veteran's Day, November 11; ThanksgMng Day, the fourth Thursday in November; and Christmas 
Day, December 25. On certain of these days, work may be avallable. 'If the worker at the conoluslon of his wor:k agreement has been 
a·fford·ed Jess employment opportunity than required under 'this provision, the worker wlll be ,paid al his average hourly rale .for the hours, 
in addition to fhose aclually offered, up to 1he hourly equivalent •of the guaranteed n~beJ of days, Iii detmniir:ilng whether Jhe guarantee 
or employment has been met, any hours which the Wtirker fails ,lo work dur'in_g a wor1<day. when the Employer offers him the opportunity 
to work, end all hours of woil< .actisally performed shall be counted toward meeting this guarante.e. 

C). This employment guarantee shall .be 1erminated before ·the erad of the Period -of Employment II lhe 'Servlces of the workffl; .are no 
longer required for ~easons beyond the control of the Employer due to tire, frost., flood, drought, hall. other Act or God •(AOG)whloh 
makes fulfilment <>f this contract impossible. (CO will be notified and employer wllf seek approval for AOG's) In such cases, the 
employer will make efforts to 1rans1er workers lo other comparable employment acceptable to workers. Ir such trans'fer is not effective, 
workers will be returned at Employer's expense to the place from which Wort<er, without tntervenlng employment. came to work for 
employer. In the event of liUCh termination, lhe 3/4-guerantoe period ends on lhe dale of termination. The guarantee shea be void t'rom 
the beginning should the W«ke1 voluntarily abandon this employment before the end of the contrac1 period or in lhe event lhe Worker is 
terminated for a lawfuljob-related reason, and the employer noUfies the NPC, and OHS In the case of an H-2A worker. in writing or by 
any other method specified by the Department or OHS In a manner specified in a notice published In the federal Register not later than 2 
working days afler such abandonment occurs and this wilt relieve lhe employer from subsequent transportaUon and subslslence costs 
and the 3/4111 guarantee. 

0). The payroll period .shall be weekly. Workers will be paid weekly with a 1 week holding period. 

E). Emplcyer wlll provide a worker rererred through the SWA lntms!ale System forty (40) ·hours of work for the week beginning with lhe 
anllcipated date of need, unless the employer has amend&d the date of need by notifying the locel employment servt~ office al least 10 
working days prior to the oliginal date of need. If the employer fails to notify the order-holding office, then employer shall pay an eligible 
worl<er referred through the Interstate clearance system $11.29 per hour for the first week, starting with the original anllcipaled date of 
need. 40 hrs J<. $11 .29 = $451 .60 gross (before ·taxes). The employer may require the wor1<er lo perform alternative wort< if the 
guarantee cited in lhis section ts invoked. Jr the worker fails to notify the order-holding office of his continuln,g Interest In the job no 
sooner than nine working days and 110 later than five working days before the date of need, the worker wm be disqualified from lhe 
above-mentioned assurance. 

F). The Employer will furnish to the worker, on or before each payday one or more written statements showing the worker's total earnings 
ror the pay period, his hourly rate or piece rate (if appllcable); the hours of work which have been offered to the worker, the total hours 
actually worked by the worker. beginning and ending times, an ltemiZation of all deductions made from the worker's wages; the worker's 
net pay; the employer's name, address and IRS Identification number. Employer will abide by all regulations at 20 CFR 655.122(j)(k). 

19. Transportation: The Employer will not advance transportation and subslslence costs to Workers for transportation to the place of 
employment. 

This subparagraph applies only lo Workers who cannot reasonabillty return to their residence lhe same day. Alter the workers have 
completed 50% of lhe work contract. All eligible appllcants will have their Inbound reasonable transportation expenses reimbursed, one 

· time only. Domestic appllcants from outside of the normal commuting distance that voluntary chose not {o reside In the employer 
provided housing, the employer will pay for the initial Inbound 1/ansporta~on reimbursement However, the employer wm not reimburse 
any workers for dally transportation cost whether commuting from inside or outside of the area of Intended employment Employer will 

· not pay for voluntary trips back to their residence due to family emergencies, or vacations. 

The amount of sucl) transportation payment will be equal to the Worker's actual transportation costs not lo exceed the most economical 
and reasonable common carrier transportation charges for the distance Involved. in lieu of the above payments to the wor1<ers for 
transportatlon. the employer reserves the right to charter or otherwise arrange to proylde for transporta«on at the employer's electlon. 
Subsistence reimbursement shall be $11,86 per day, without producing documentaUon of actual expenses, or will otherwise be paid as 
per 20 CFR 655.122(h) only to those employees who are eligible.under the H-2A program regulations for subsisl~nce pay. Maximum 
Amount to be reimbursed with receipts Is $46.00. By way of lllustraUon and not In limitation or the foregoing, the employer wlll not pay 
transportation for such worker if he does not have suitable documents to comply with proof of identity and employment ellglbllity 
requirements of IRCA, if he is discharged ror lawful jOb.felated reasons. Ir he has knowledge at the place of recruitment that he cannot 
perform the duties of the Job as described above or If he abandons this employment when he is needed by the Grower. If lhe grower 
reimburses the worker prior to the 50% date, and the worker is terminated for cause or abandons prior to the 50% dale, the grower 
reserves lhe right lo recapture that reimbursement. 

Employer will provide, pay. or reimburse lransponation and subs is ten~ under this agreement If the worker Is lerminated because of 
work related injury caused by this/these a-op acUvilies and Is so certified by a doctor acceptable to employer before leaving employers 
farm, or termination resulHng from an Act of God, as outlined In 655.122(0). which makes fulfillment of this contract Impossible as 
provided in paragraph 18C or if lhe worker Is displaced by a U.S. worker under DOL's 50% rule . 
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Employer will otter free transportation for workers living in employer's housing facility both to and from the daily work site. The use of lhe 
transportation by the worker is voluntary; no worker will be required es a condition of employment to utilize the transportation offered by 
the employer. Workers are free lo choose their own means of transportaHon at their own expense. 

For US workers who complete the work contract and are eligible for the outbound transportation benefit, or if the employee is terminated 
without cause, and the worker has no Immediate subsequent H2a employment. or an H2a workers that is displaced due the employers 
obligation under the USDOL 50% rule, the Empioyer will provide or pay for the worker's reasonable cost of retvm transportation and 
subsistence from the place of employment lo the place from which the worker departed to work for the employer, except when the worker 
will not be_ returning to lhe place of recruitment due to subsequent employment with another employer. H the subsequent employer has 
nol agreed lo provide or pay for lhe worker's transportation to the subsequent place· of employment, the Employer will provide or pay for 
the transportaUon and subsistence to the subsequent place of employment In Heu of providing or paying for such expenses from the 
place of employment lo the place from which the worker departed to work for the employer. If the subsequent employer has agreed to 
provide or pay for the worker's transportation and subsistence to the subsequent place of employment the Employer will not provide or 
pay for such expenses. The Employer reserves the right to arrange charter or other return transportslfon. Wori<ers eligible for this 
benefit who do not wish to avail themselves of employer arranged return transportation would be provided their outbound transportation 
and subsistence by check. If a worker choses lo not use the employer arrange transportation then they will only be reimbursed for the 
transportation not included In the employer arranged (Mexican transportation, border crossing and dally subsistence.) in those 
circumstances, the grower will dlstlibute the checks, as soon as all work Is completed, as determined by the employer, end the worker is 
ready lo depart. Workers may select any means of transportation home they choose, however, the reimbursement Is limited to the most 
economical and reasonable common carrier transportation cost for the distance involved. Workers who arrange their own transportation 
understand they assume all llablllty and hold harmless the grower/associaUon for any damages, Injuries. and personal or property losses. 

21. U.S. workers may or may not be covered by unemployment insurance end may or may not be eligible under current unemployment 
regulations. Workers employed under this job order are designated es seasonal employees. 

22. Injuries: Worker will be covered by Worl<er's Compensation Insurance or equivalent employer provided Insurance for Injuries arising 
out of and in the course of employmenl Employer assures-that there will be no lapse In coverage for workers compensalion. The 
employers workers compensation will be provided throughout the entire length of the contract period Employer's proof of insurance 
coverage will be provided to lhe Regional Administrator before certlflce1Ion Is granted. All -workers must report all injuries and illnesses to 
their employer. Failure not to do so may result In termination. 

23. Employers will provide tools and equipment at no cost for workers to perform the above tasks. Wooers will be charged for any willful 
damage to or loss of such tools and equlpmenl 

24. For workers covered by MSPA 29 CFR 600.075(8) there are not any arrangements made with establishment owners or agents for 
the payment of a commission or other benefits for sales made to the workers. 

28. Other Conditions of Employment: 

A). Discipline and/or Termination: Employer may discipline and/or terminate the worker for lawful job.related reasons and so notify the 
Job Service local office of the termination If the worker. a) refuses without justified cause to perform work for which the worker was 
recruited and hired, b) commit ser1ous ac!{s) of misconduct or serious or repeated vlolallon(s) of Work Rules atlached hereto. c) fails 
after completing the training period lo perform the work as specified In Item 16 and Attachment, d) maDngers or otherwise refuses without 
justified cause to perform as directed the work for which the Worker was recruited and hired; e) provides other lawful Job-related 
reason(s) for termination of employment, f) abandons his employment; g) fails to meet applicable production standards or keep up with 
fellow workers h) falsifies Identification, personnel, medical, production or other work related records, i) falls or refuses to take a drug 
lest, or j) commits acts of insubordination. kl the employer may terminate the wori<et (foreign or doms3tlcl with notlficetlon to the 
employment service If employer discovers a criminal conviction record or status as a ctRi,t•red se}( offender that employer 
reasonably bellpylHI, con1lit•mt with current Jaw, wit! Impair the safety and living condttlons of other workers, Reason beyond 
employer's control" includes termination of workers, If he not a U.S. worker because a U.S. worker makes himself available for the fob 
under DOL's 50% rule. Workers must nollfy the employer prior lo voluntarlly terminating their emp.loymenl All wages due will be 
forwarded to the last known address for Workers that leave without providing notice. It is imperative that worllers provide a complete and 
accurate addre.ss lo the employer no later than the Orsi day of employment. These employers have a no complete, no rehire policy. 
Termination for lawful Job related reasons before the specified ending date !Isled In this appticatlon will disqualify the employee from 
future employment opportunlUes with this employer. Workers who abandon their employment without notice during the period covered 
by this work agreement will be disqualifled from future employment opportunities with this employer. Voluntary resignation be(ore the 
specified ending date listed In this application may dlsqualify the employee from future employment opportunities with this employer. For 
workers who resign their employment voluntarily, the employer wtll cooslder and evaluate special circumstances and hardship cases on 
a case-by-case basis. Employees. without exception, ere required to notify appropriate supervisory staff prior to voluntarily terminating 
their employment to be considered and eligible ror exemption to the no complete • no rehire policy • 
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BJ. The employer may discipline the worker, Including requiring the worker to leave the field (•time out'') for a period determined by the 
foreman, suspension from employment for up to three days. or termination of employment as described In terminaUon (A) above. 

C). Employer Obligation II Employment Extended: No extension of employment beyond the Period of Employment specified In the job 
order shall relieve the Employer from paying the wages already earned, or if specified In the Job order as a term of employment, 
providing return transportation or paying return transportation expenses to the Worker. 

0). Employer Notification of Changes In Employment Terms an~ Conditions: Employers will exped!Uously notify the order-holding local 
office or State agency by email Immediately upon learning that a crop Is maturing earlier or later, or that weather conditions, over 
recruitment, or other factors have changed the terms and condrnons of employment. The terms of !his Work Agreement thereafter may 
be changed upon posted notice to the Worker. 

E), Outreach Workers: Outreach workers shall have reasonable access to the Worker in the conduct of outreach activities pursuant to 
20 CFR 653.107 and 20-CFR 653.501. 

F). Training: There will be a short demonstration period (up to 1 hr.) to lemlllarize workers with Job specificattons, to demonstrate proper 
methods and other crop spednc Issues. The employer will not provide separate formal orientation or training periods for each different 
crop or each different lype of task or Job assignment covered within the job descrtplion. After completion of the training period the 
employer will expect all workers to possess the skills to work in the production of the crops above. For purposes of this secnon seven or 
more hours will be considered one dey. 

G). Work Agreement: A copy of the contract or Job Clearance Order and work rules (copy attached) will be provided to the worker by the 
employer no later than on the day the time at which the worker applies for the visa {for foreign workers), or to a worker in corresponding 
employment no later than when the when employment is offered. 

H). Employer agrees to abide by the regulations at 20 CFR 655.135. 

I). The employer as a part of positive recruitment as· per 20 CFR 655.154 Is willing, ii and when any substantial number or applic;ants are 
available, to coordinate group transportation arrangements (to facilitate their purchase of bus tickets etc.), where appropriate, and to 
provide any addlUorial lnfonnatton that workers need to coordinate their arrival. 

J) We are an equal opportunity employer. Women and minorities are encouraged to apply to these positions. 

K). SUBST ANGE ABUSE POLICY: This employer wfll strive to provide a sale and healthful work environment, free of substance abuse, 
for the protection of our associates, employees and visitors. The use, possession or being under the Influence of Illegal drugs or alcohol 
dunng working time Is prohibited. (Alcohol may be permitted In the housing facility outside work hours.) Employees may also be 
requested to take random drug tests at no cost to the worker. Workers are subject to random drug testing effectlve their first date ol 
work. Failure lo comply with the request or testing positive will result in immediate termination. 

L). Pursuant to 20 CFR 655.135(IX1 ), each employee that enters the United States with an H-2A temporary work visa must return at the 
end of the period listed in this contract and certified by the U.S. Department of Labor or upon separation from the employer, whichever Is 
earlier, unless the e_mployee Is being sponsored by another subsequent H-2A employer. 

M) Grievance Policy: If any erea or your work is causing you concern, you have the responsibility to address your concern with your 
Immediate supervisor. Most problems can and should be solved In discussion with your Immediate supervisor; if after these attempts 
there is no satlslactory resoluUon, you should bring your concerns to upper management 

This employer strongly urges the reporting of ell incidents of discrimination, harassment or relaliaUon, regardless or the offender's Identity 
or posiUon. Individuals who believe they have experienced any of these or who have concerns about such m~tters should file their 
complaints before the conduct becomes severe or pervasive. Individuals should not feel obligated to file their complaints with their 
immediate supervisor nrst before bringing the matter to the attentton of upper management 

Our goal Is to have a work environment where we all treat each other respectfully and professionally. Any unprofessional or disrespectful 
behavior, even if not Illegal, that Interferes with that goal and wlll not be tolerated. The employer reserves the right to respond to 
inappropriate behavior even where no one has complained or Indicated they have been offended 

N) The employer is committed to providing a safe, flexible and respectful environment for employees, staff. clients, or anyone you come 
into contact with on company business, free from all forms of sexual harassment. Any type of sexual harassment Is grounds for 
immediate termination. Sexual harassment is a specific and serious form of harassment. It Is defined as: unwelcome sexual behavior, 
which could be expected to make a person feel offended, humiliated or Intimidated. Sexual harassment can be physical, spoken or 
written. 11 can include: a) comments about a person's private life or the way they look, b) sexually suggestive behaviour, such as leering 
or staring, c) brushing up againsl someone, touching, fondling o r hugging, d) sexually suggestive comments or jokes e) displaying 
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offensive screen savers, photos, calendars or objects, f) repeated requests to go out, g) requests for sex, h} sexually explicit emails, text messages or posts on social networking sites. 

Just because someone does not object to inappropriate behavior in the workplace at the time, It does not mean lhat they are consenting to the behavior. 

Sexual harassment is covered in the workplace when it happens at work. at work-related events, between people sharing the same workplace, or between colleagues outside of work. 

FARM. HARVESTING, ANO FIELD FOOD SAFETY RULES 

1. Wotlter must practice good personal hygiene. 
2. Worker .should wash and sanitize hands for at least 20 seconds: 

a. Before·and aner working 
b. Before beginning work In a different area 
c. Before and after eating 
d. After vlstring the restrooms, toilets and port-a-johns 
e. Before and after treating en open wound or cut 
f. Before and after treating an Individual with a cut or wound 
g. After blowing of nose 
h. After touching the hair or face 
i. After sneezJng or coughing 
j. After touching any1hing which can cause contamination or performing maintenance 
k. After any braak 
I. After handling any dirty raw mat&rlal or garbage 
m. After touching animals ot animal feces 

3. All jewelry (ring with stones, watches, earrings, etc) must be removed before entering any work area. Wedding bands without stones are permitted (supervisor's authorization Is required). 
4. Eating food, drinking beverages, chewing gum and using tobacco products are strictly prohibited in all work areas. 
5. Worker should use proper hand washing and toilet facilities. 
6. Repon any active case of Illness lo crew leader or supervisors before beginning work. Workers with bad colds, contagious diseases, bolls or sores will not be allowed to contact product, equipment, boxes and containers. 
7. If worker cuts him or herself while working, worker should stop work lmmedlately, cover the wound, and report It to the 

supervisor. Keep wounds covered so that you do not contaminate lhe product. equipment, boxes and containers with body llulds. 
8. All workers shall maintain neatness while In working areas. 
9. Personal llems such as pens, pencils, keys, tobacco products, cell phones. snacks, etc., shall not be carried In pockets while In working areas. 
10. Animals are prohibited on all rarm premises. 
11 . Only employer personnel end registered visitors are allowed on the employer's premises. Visitors must sign in at designated area prior lo entering the premises. 
12. Wooers famHles and children are not allowed In any worl< area. 
13. Tools. knives and sheaths must be sanitized upon entering each field, leaving each field, with each crop change and after each break. Worker should wear knife sheath at ell Umes when worl(lng. Knife should be stored in sheath. 
14. If Issued, worker should change and have laundered at least every other day his/her uniforms, and protective clothing. If 
required, worker should use personal protective equipment correctly. 
15. No glass_is allowed In any work areas. 
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U.S. Department of Labor Employment and Training Administration 
Office of Foreign Labor Certification 
Chicago National Processing Center 
11 West Quincy Court 
Chicago, IL 60604 

May 1, 2015 

Theresa L Ward Case Number: H-300-15106-786261 
685 Us Hwy 15-501 
Carthage, NC 28327 

Dear Sir/Madam: 

RE: Sun Valley Orchards LLC 

Your application seeking temporary labor certification under the H-2A temporary 
agricultural program has been certified. On April 23·, 2015, this office accepted for 
consideration an application from you requesting H-2A temporary labor certification for 
60 Farmworker and Laborer, Crop, Nursery, And Greenhouse job opportunities. In 
accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) § 
655, Subpart B, it has been determined that a sufficient number of able, willing and 
qualified U.S . workers have not been identified as being available at the time and place 
needed to fill all of the job opportunities for which certification has been requested and 
that employment of the H-2A workers will not adversely affect the wages and working 
conditions of workers in the United States similarly employed. 

Therefore, the Department grants certification for 60 Farmworker and Laborer, Crop, 
Nursery, And Greenhouse job opportunities. You must comply with all assurances, 
guarantees and other requirements contained in Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 
655, Subpart Band 20 CFR § 653, Subpart F. 

Upon receipt of this notification, you will need to submit to the U.S. Citizenship and 
Immigration Service (USCIS) California Service Center the 1-129 Form that is required 
in conjunction with an H-2A application. The USCIS petition can be obtained at 
http://www.uscis.gov. 

IMPORTANT NOTE: The employer must sign and date the ETA Form 9142 prior to 
submission to users California Service Center. 

Enclosed is a bill for fees assessed for the H-2A certification. Non-payment or untimely 
payment may be considered a substantial violation subject to the procedures in 
Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.182. 

Important Reminders: 
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■ In accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.120(b) , if the 
prevailing hourly wage or piece rate is adjusted during a work contract, and is 
higher than the highest of the AEWR, the prevailing wage, the agreed-upon 
collective bargaining wage, or the Federal or State minimum wage, in effect at 
the time the work is performed, the employer must pay at least that higher 
prevailing wage or piece rate upon notice to the employer by the Department. 
The Department posts all current prevailing hourly wages and piece rates to the 
Department of Labor's Agricultural On-Line Wage Library (AOWL). You are 
encouraged to visit the AOWL website at · 
http://www.foreignlaborcert.doleta.gov/aowl.cfm for the updated wage rates . 

■ You must continue to cooperate with the State Workforce Agency (SWA) by 
accepting all referrals of eligible U.S. workers who apply (or on whose behalf an 
application is made) for the job opportunity until the end of the recruitment period 
as set forth in Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.135(d). The end date of 
your obligation to consider all referrals under the 50 percent rule is calculated by 
the SWA based on the date the H-2A worker departed for the employer's place of 
business, which is assumed to be three days prior to the first date of need. 
However, if the H-2A worker will not depart for your place of employment three 
days prior to the first date of need, Departmental regulation 20 CFR § 655.135{c) 
requires you to infonn the SWA in writing of the new expected departure date. 

■ You must update and maintain the recruitment report throughout the recruitment 
period including the 50 percent period as specified in Departmental regulations at 

, 20 CFR § 655, 156(b). This supplement to the recruitment report must meet the 
requirements of Departmental regulations at 20 CFR§ 655.156(a)(1 )-(4). The 
employer must sign and date this supplement to the recruitment report and retain 
it for a period of no less than three (3) years. The supplement to the recruitment 
report must be provided upon request. 

■ You are also reminded that in accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 
CFR § 655.122(n), the termination of workers for cause and abandonment of the 
job by workers are to be reported in writing to the Department and to the · 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS) within two (2) business days of the 
termination or discovering abandonment. To make compliance with this 
requirement simple and fast, the employer may e-mail the notification directly to 
the Chicago NPC using TLC.Chicago@dol.gov. Your requests will be handled as 
expeditiously as possible. Employers without internet access may also send 
written notification by facsimile to (312) 886-1688 (ATTN: H-2A Abandonment 
and Termination) or U.S. mail to the following address: 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 
Office of Foreign Labor Certification 
Chicago National Processing Center 
11 West Quincy Court 
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Chicago, IL 60604 
ATTN: H-2A Abandonment and Termination 

■ In accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 CFR ·§ 655.135(i), employers 
must inform H-2A workers of the requirement that they must leave the United 
States at the end of the period certified by the Department or separation from the 
employer, whichever is earlier, unless the H-2A worker is peing sponsored by 
another subsequent employer .. 

■ In accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.122(q), employers 
must provide to H-2A workers no later than the time at which the workers apply 
for the visa, or to workers in corresponding employment no later than on the day 
work commences, a copy of the work contract between the employer and the 
workers in a language understood by the worker as necessary or reasonable. For 
H-2A workers going from an H-2A employer to a subsequent H-2A employer, the 
copy must be provided· no later than the time an offer of employment is made by 
the subsequent H-2A employer. 

• In accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.135(1), employers 
must post and maintain in a conspicuous location at the place of employment, a 
poster provided by the Secretary of the Department of Labor in English, and to 
the extent necessary, any language common to a significant portion of the 
workers if they are not fluent in English, which sets out the rights and protections 
for workers. A copy of the poster is-available at 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/resources/posters.htm. 

• Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.180, allow the Department to conduct 
audit examinations of certified H-2A applications. The applications selected for 
audit will be chosen within the sole discretion of the Department. If your 
certification has been selected for audit, you are reminded that you must submit 
the documentation requested in the audit letter within the specified timeframe. 
Failure to comply with the audit process may result in a finding by the Certifying 
Officer to revoke the labor certification and/or debarment of the employer from 
future filings of H-2A temporary labor certification applications. Additionally, the 
audit findings and underlying documentation may be provided to the Department 
of Homeland Security or another appropriate enforcement agency. Referrals of 
any findings that an employer discouraged an eligible U.S. worker from applying, 
or failed to hire, discharged, or otherwise discriminated against an eligible U.S. 
worker, to the Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Office of Special 
Counsel for Unfair Immigration Related Employment Practices. 

• In accordance with Departmental regulations at 20 CFR § 655.170, employers 
may request to extend (by more than two (2) weeks) the period of employment 
on certified H-2A applications in writing, to the Chicago NPC. The employer may 
e-mail the request directly to the Chicago NPC using the address: 
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TLC.Chicago@dol.gov, with the words "H-2A Extension Request" contained in 
the subject line of the e-mail. Employers without internet access may send a 
written request by facsimile to (312) 886-1688 (ATTN: H-2A Extension Request) 
or by U.S. mail to the following address: 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 
Office of Foreign Labor Certification 
Chicago National Processing Center 
11 West Quincy Court 
Chicago, IL 60604 
ATTN: H-2A Extension Request 

• Requests for changes in the period of employment lasting two (2) weeks or less 
can be directly filed with the USCIS ca·lifornia_ Service Center. 

Sincerely, 

OFLC Certifying Officer 

Enclosures: Invoice for Certification; ETA Form 9142 

CC: Sun Valley Orchards LLC 
NJ DEPT OF LABOR - LWD 

Public Burden Statement: 0MB control number 1205-0466, expiration date 03/31/2016. This reporting instruction has 
been approved under the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995. Persons are not required to respond to this ·collection of 
information unless it displays a currently valid 0MB control number. Obllgatlons to respond are mandatory (20 CFR 
655.122, 655.135, 655.145, and 655.156). Public reporting burden for this collection of Information Is estimated to 
average 15 minutes per response, Including the time to review Instructions, search existing data sources, gather and 
maintain the data needed, and complete and review the collection of information. Send comments regarding this 
burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, Including suggestions for reducing this burden, 
to the U.S. Department of Labor, Room C-4312, 200 Constitution Ave., Nl/v, Washington, DC 20210. DO NOT send 
any of the above listed notices to this address. · 
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OM!! Approval: 1205-0466 
Explr8tlon Osle: 03/31/2016 

H-2A Application for Tempo~ary Employment Certification 
ETA Form 9142A 

U.S. Department of Labor 
_I 

PINse read and re'llew the filing instroctlon11 CM'flfully before compl4ltlng the ETA Form 9142;, A copy of the Instructions can be found •t http://www.forelqnh1borcert.do/e(l.qovl. In •ccordance with Federal Regulstlons, Incomplete or obviously Inaccurate app//ceUon• w/11 not be certified by the Depanment of Labor. ff submHtlng thl11 fonn non-electron/calty, &J. required fleldsllt11ms containing an asterisk ( •) mu$t be completed as weJ( as any f/o/ds/ltems where a response Is condltlonal as Indicated by the section ( §) symbol. 

~- Employment-Based Non Immigrant Visa lntonnatlon 

1. Indicate the type of visa classification supported by this application (Write classif1CStion symbol): • H-2A 

B. Temporary Need lnfonnatlon 

1· Job Title •Farmworker; Diversified 

2. SOC (ONET/OES) code • 3. SOC (ONET/OES) occupatio_n title • 
45-2092 Farmworkers and Laborers, Crop, Nursery, and Greenhouse 
4. Is this a full-time position?• Period of Intended Employment 

IZJYesONo 5. Begin Date• 06/01/2015 I 16. End Date • 10/10/2015 (mm'ddlwWl 
7. Worker positions needed/basis for the visa classification supported by this application 

~ Total Worker Positions Being Requested for Certification • 

Basis for the vise c!asslficatlon supported by this application 
(Indicate tho total workers In each applicable category based on the totBI workers identified above) 

~ a. New employment• :o d. New concurrent employment• 

D b. Continuation of previously approved employment• D e. Change In employer• without change with the s11me employer 

D c. Change ·in previously approved employment• D f. Amended petition • 
8. Nature of Temporary Need: (Choose only one,,·of the standards) • 
f7l Seasonal nPeakload n One-Time Occurrence n lntennlttent or Other Temporary /'leed 
9. Statement of Temporary Need • ' 
N/A 

I 

I 

' 

ETA l'orm 9142A FOR DEPARTMENT OF LAJIOR USE ONLY Ptpe 1 c,18 

Case Number: H-300-15106-788261 
Case Status: -=C-"'ER--'Tl~A=E~O --- Validity Period: OGI01l2Dt5 10 10/10/2015 
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0MB Approval: 1205-0466 
Expiration Dato: 03/31/2016 

C. Employer lnfonnatlon 

H-2A Application f9r Tes:nporary Employment Certification 
ETA Form 9142A 

U.S. Department of Labor 
I 

Important Note: Enter the fuD name of the lncllvldual employer, partnership, or corporation and all other required lnfonnation In this section, 
For joint employer or master appllcatlons flied on behalf of more than one employer under the H-2A program, Identify the main or primary 
employer In the section below and then submtt a separate attachment that Identifies each employer. by name, malling addreu, and total 
wonser positions needed. under the appllcatlon, 

1. Legal business name • 
Sun Vafley Orchards LLC 

I 

2. Trade name/Doing Business As (DBA). If applicable 
N/A . . 
3. Address 1 • 

· 29 Vestry Rd 
4 . Address 2 

I N/A 

· ~~J~;boro 
6. State• 
NJ 

I 7. Postal code • 
08085 

JNfrrclt~rATEs dF AMERICA 
9. Province 

N/A 
a1?eJ8~_!l~RB number• I 

11. Extension 
N/A 

12. Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN from IRS) • •·13. NAICS code (must be at least 4-dlglts) • 
460542793 111339 
14. Number of non-family full-time equivalent employees 15. Annual gross revenue 116. Year established 
0 N/A 
17, Type of employer application (choose only one bcix below) • 

IZ] Individual Employer OAssociatlon - .Sole Employer (H-2A only) 
D H-2A Labor Con~ctor or 

I . 
OAssociation - Joint Employer (H-2A only) i 

Job Contracior □Association - Filing as Agent (H-2A only) 

0. Employer Point of Contact lnfonnation 'l 

Import.ant Note: The information contained In this Sectlon must be that of an empl-Oyee of the employer who i$ authorized to act on behalf of 
the employer In labor certification mattara. The Information In thls Section ll!l§112! ~ from the agent or attorney information listed In 
Section-E, unless the attorney Is an employee of the employer. For Joint employer or master applications flied on behalf of more ttian one 
employer under the H-2A program. enter .9!!]y: the contact Information for the main or primary employer (e.g., contact for an assoclallon filing 
as Joint e,mployer) under the appficaUon. 

1. Contact's last (family) name • 12. First (given) name • 13. Middle name(s) • 
Marino Jr Russell I James ! 

6. Con~cfs job title• 
wner anager 

5. Address 1 • ( 
29 Vestry Rd 
6. Address 2 
N/A 
$wCit • • edlsboro ~J State• I 9. Postal code • 

08085 . 

J~1fl?8~ATES OF AMERICA ~JA Province 

12. Telephone number• , • 113. Extension 14. E-Mail address 

856-769-5280 NIA NIA 

( , 

ETA Form 9142A FOR DEPARTMENT OF LABOR USE ONLY P•oe 2 ot e 

Case Number: H-000.15 106-711626 1 Case Sta!IU: =C=ER=TI~f l=EO"----- Validity Period: 06/0112015 to 101101201s 
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0MB Approval: 12064166 
Expiration Dale: 03/3112016 

H-2A Appllcatton for Te1J1porary Employment Certification 
ETA Form 9142A 

U.S. Department of Labor 

E. Attorney or Agent lnfonnation (If applicable) 
1. ls/are the employer(s) represented by an'attomey or agent in the filing of this application /including associations acting as aoent under the H-2A orooraml? If "Yes• comolete Section E. • I 17lves 
2. Attorney or Agent's last (family) name § , 3. First (given) name § I:- Middle name(s) § 
Ward· Theresa 
5. Address 1 § \ 

685 us Hwy 1 5-501 
6. Address 2 

NIA 
7, City§ 6. State§ 19. Postal code § Carthage NC 28327 
10. Counl[r_,{ 

UNITED S TES QF AMERICA ~l Province 

12. Te_lephone number§ ·113. Extension 14. E-Mail address 
910-947-6004 NI/>! tward.nac@gmail.com l 
15. Law firm/Business name§ 116. Lawflnn/Business FEIN§ National Agricultural Consultants LLC 471490898 

nNo 

17. State Bar number (only If attorney) f 16. State of highest court where attorney is In good 
NIA standing (only If ettomey) § 

! '· ., NIA 
19. Name of the highest court where attorney Is in good standing (only If attorney) § 

NIA 

F. Job Offer lnfonnatlon 
a. Job Description 

1. Job Tltle • 
Farmworker; Diversified 
2. Number of hours of work per week 

r ! 

Basic•: .1Q_ Overtime: _o __ 
, 3. f,jour1y Work Schedule • 

A.M. (h:mm}: L : ..£2... P.M. (h:mm}: .!_ : ..Q.Q.... 
4. Does this position supervise the V(Or1< of other employees? • I 4a. If yes, number of employees 

Oves [Z)No worker will supervlse (if applicable)§ _O __ 
5. Job duties - A description of the duUes to be performed MUST begin in this space. If necessary, add attachment to continue and complete description. • 

Workers will perform a variety of duties with harvesting vegetable crops grown by employer See 9142 attachments for more co'mplete details. 

' 
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0MB Approval: 1206-0461; 
Explra11on Date: 03/31/2016 } . \ ' 

H-2A Application for Temporary Employment Certification 

F. Job Offer Information (continued) 

b. Minimum Job Requirements 

ETA Form 9142A . 

U.S. Department of Labor 

1 . . Education;· minimum U.S. diploma/degree required• 

0None O High School/GED D Associate's O Bachelor's D Masters O Doctorate (PhD) D Other degree (JD, MD, etc.) 
1 a. If "Other degree• in question 1, specify the diploma/ 1b. Indicate the mejor(s) and/or field(s) of study required§ 
degree raqulred § \ (May 11st more than one related major and more than one field) 
NIA NIA 

2. Does the emAloyer require a second U.~. diploma/degree?• !Yes IIJNo I l 
2a. If 'Yes• in question 2, Indicate the second U.S. diploma/degree and the major(s) and/or field(s) of study required § 

NIA 

3. Is training for the job opportunity required? • II I Yes Ill No 
3a. if 'Yes" in question 3, specify the number of 3b. Indicate the field(s)/name(s) of training required§ i months of training required f (May 11st more than one related field and more than one type) 
0 l NIA 

1· Is employment experience required? • I Ill Yes I · !No 
4a. If "Yes' In question 4, specify ttie number of 4b, Indicate the occupation required § 
months of experience required § · 
3 verifiable experience harvesting a perishable crop 
5. Special Requirements • List specific skills, rioenseslcertlfications, and requirements of the job opportunity. • 
SEE ADDENDUM 

Applicants must be able to furnish affirmative job references from recent employers operating comparable 
operations establishing acceptable previo1,1s experience. Workers · 

c. Place of Employment Information 

ig ~iiylt~address 1 • 
I 

2. Address 2 
N/A \ 

3. City• 4. County • 
Swedes~oro Gloucester 

~J State/Districtrrerritory • 6. Postal code • 
08085 

7. Will work be performed in multiple wO'(l<sit!lB within an area of Intended 
IZ)Yes □No employment or a locatlon(s) other than the address fisted above? • 

7a. If Yes in question 7, identify the geographic plaoe(s} of employment with as much specificity as possible. If necessary, 
submit an attachment to continue and complete a listing of all anticipated worksites. § 

1. New Jersey other see attached spread~heet 
2. New Jersey Other all of which are owned/leased by employer. 
3. New lersey Other employer provide$ dally transportation from main location to each work site. 

I 
I 
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OMS A pproval: 1205-0-468 
Expiration Date: 03/31/2016 

G. Rate of Pay 
1. Basic Rate of Pey Offered • 

H-2A Application for Temporary Employment Certification 
· ETA Form 9142.A 
U.S. Department of Labor 

1 a. Overtime Rate of Pay (If applicab/a/ § 

From: $ _1_1_.~ To (Optional): $ _o __ . ..Q.Q_ From: $ _0 __ . . _QQ_ To (Optional): $ 
2. Per: (Choose only one) • (Z] CJ n 
I Hour Week O B1-Weeklv D Month Year D Piece Rate 
2a. If Piece Rate is indicated In question 2, specify the wage offer requirements: § 

NIA 

0 

3. Additional Wage lnformaUon (e.g., multiple worksite applications, iUnerant wor1<, or other special procedures). 
If necessary, edd attachment to continue and comp!ete pescriptlon. ~-

SEE ADDENDUM 

. ..Q.Q_ 

In the event that the Department Of Labor promulgates a new AEWR applicable to any portion of the period of 
employment covered by this job order which Is higher or lower than the AEWR herein, the employer will pay the 
higher AEWR, and may, at the 

H R ltm I f ecru e~t n onnat on \ 
1. Name of State Workforce Agency (SWA) serving the area of intended employment • 

New Jersey Department pf Em"ployment & Workforce 
2. SWA job order Identification number• 2a. Siert date of SWA job order• 2b. End date of SWA Job order• 

(n H·2A Ihle dato I• 60% of contract period) 
NJ0994838 04/02/2015 08/05/2015 
3. Is there a Sunday edition _of a newspaper (of general circulation) In the area of 

[7lves nNo Intended emolovment? • 
.Name of Newspaper/Publication /In•-otlntMlded omoJoyrr,enl tor H•2B onM • Dates of Print Advertisement § 

4. .. 
From: \ To: TBA : I 

5. From: To: NIA 
6. Additional Recruitment Activities for H-28 program. Use the space below to Identify the type(s) or source(s) of recruitment, geographic location(s) of recrultment. !ill! the date(s) on which recruitment was conducted. If necessary, add attachment 

to e2ntinue and compl!ll!l description. • 
Attempt to re-contact former workers. 

J Advertise In local newspaper. 
· Advertise by word of mouth. 
Publicize through employment service. 
Solicit help through Ag Extension and Farm Bureau. 

The employers wlll engage in positive recruitment of U.S. workers to the same extent (with respect to both effort 
and location) no less than that of non H-2A employets of comparable or smaller size in the area of employment In 
accordance with 655.135. 

\ , 

' I 

I 
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, 0MB Approval: 120$-0466 
Expiration Date: 03/3112016 

H-2A Application for Temporary Employment Certification 
ETA Form 9142A 

U.S. Department of Labor 

I, Declaration of Employer and Attorney/Agent 

In accordance with Federal regulations, the employer must attest that It will abide by certain terms, assurances and obligations 
as a condition for receiving a temporary labor certification from the U.S. Department of Labor. Appljcations that {ail to attach 
Appendix A or Appendix B V411 be considered Incomplete and not accepted for processing by the ETA application processing ~- . 

1. For H-2A Applications ONLY, please confirm that you have read and agree to all the 
applicable tetms, assurances and obligations contained In Appendix A. § [Z]ves D No D NIA 

2. For H-28 Appllcations,oNLY, please confirm that you have read and agree to all the 
applicable terms, assurances end obligations contained In Appendix B. § n vesnNoQN!A 

J . Preparer 

i omplete this section If the preparer of this application is a person other than the one identified in either Section D (employer 
point of contact) or E (attorney or agent) of this application. 

' 1. Last (family) name.§ J 2: First (given) name § l 3. Middle initial § 
NIA NIA NIA 
4. Job TIiie § 

N/A 
5. Firm/Business name § 

N/A 
6. E-Mail address § 
NIA 

K. U.S. Government Agency Use. (ONL.Yl ,, 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 101 (a)(15)(h)(ii) of the Immigration and Nationality Act, as amended, I hereby certify that 
there are not sufficient U.S. wor1<ers available and the employment of the above will not adversely affect the wages and working 
condltlqns of wor1<ers in the· U.S. slmllarly employed. By virtue of f!ie signature below, the Department ot Labor hereby 
acknowledges the following: 

This certification is valid from __ 06_ /0-1_/2_0_1~5 ___ to ___ 1_0_/1_0_/2_0_1 _5 __ _ 

05/01/2015 
Department of Labor, Office of Foreign Labor Certification Determination Date (date signed) 

H-300-15106-786261 

Case number 
CEBI IEIEP 
Case· Status 

L. Public Burden Statement 1205-04 66 

Perspns are not required to respond to this collection of inf;>rrnatlon unless It displays a currently valid 0MB control number. Public reporting 
burden for this collectlon of Information Is estimated to average 1 hour to complete the form and 20 minutes per response for all othet H·2A 
Information collection requirements, Including the time for reviewing Instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining 
the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of Information. The obligation to respond to this data collection is required to 
obtain/retain benefits (lmmlgratlon and Natlonatlty Ad , 8 U.S.C. 1101 , et seq,), Pleue send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this Information collecllon to the Office of Foreign Labor Certification • U.S. Department of Labor• Room C4312 • 200 
ConstltuUon Ave., NW.• Washington, DC• 20210 or by email ETA OFLC.Form&@dQl,goy. Please do oot send the completed appllcatlon 
to this address, 
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9MB Approvo/: 120$-0406 
Expiration Date: 03/3112016 

H-2A Application for Temporary Employm~nt Certification 

ET A Forni 9142A -APPENDIX A 
U.S. Department of L_abor 

For Use In Filing Applications Under the H·2A Agricultural Program QlibY 

A. Attorney or Agent Declaration 

I hereby certify thar I am an employeo of, or hired by, the ,mployer listed In Section C of the ETA Fonn 9142A, and that I hllVe 
been deslgnltted by that employer to act on /ta behalf In connection with this application. ff I am an ,gent' and not en 
employee of the employer, then I h,ve attached a Letter of Reprenntatlon from the employer. I also certify th1r to the best of· 
my knowledge the Information cont,ined herein Is troe and comict I undemend that td knowingly tum/sh te/se lnformstlon In the 
preparation of this form end any supplement hereto or to aid, ebst, or counsel another to do so is a felony punishable by a $250,000 
fine or 5 years Ins Federal penitentiary or both (18 U.S.C. 1001). 

1. Attomey or Agent's last (family) name 

Ward 

4. Firm/Business name 

National Agricultural Consultants LLC 

5. E-Mail address 
tward.nac@gmail.com 
6. Signature 

B, Employer Declaration 

2, First (given) name 

Theresa 
3. Middle Initial 

L 

7·. Date signed 

By virtue of my signature below, I HEREBY CERTIFY the following c:onditlons of employment: 

1. The Job opportunity Is a full-time temporary position, the qualifications for which do not substantlaUy deviate from the normal 
and accepted qualifications requ)r&d by non-H-2A employera In the same or comparable occupations and crops. 

2. The worl<slte for which the emp/oyer 1$ requesting H-2A certification doea not currently have wor1<ers on s1rlke or being locked 
oU1 In the course of a labor dispute. 

3. The job opportunity Is and will continue lo be open lo any .qualified U.S. worl<er regardless of race, color, national origin, age, 6BX, 
religion, handicap, or citizenship, and the employer has conductad and will continue to condue1 the required recruitment, In 
accordance with regulations, and has been una uccessful In locating aufflclent numbers of qualified U.S. appHcants for the Job 
opportuntty for which certification Is sought. Any U.S. workers who applied or apply for the Job were or wlll be rejected only for 
lawful, Job-related reasons, and the employer must retain records of all rejections es required by 20 CFR 655.167. 

4. The Job opportunity offers U.S. worl<ert. no less than the same benefits, wages, and worl<lng condl1lons that the employer Is 
offering, ln1ends lo offer, orwlll provide to H-2A wor1<era and compPes wl1h the requirements et 20 CFR 655, Subpart B. 

5. The· employer I.Wlderatands that 11 must offer, recruit at, and pay a wage 1hal Is the highest of the adverse effect wage rate in 
effeci at 1he lime the Job order Is placed, the prevaUlng hourly or piece rate, the agreed-upon coMective bargaining rate (CBA), 
or the Federal or Slate minimum wage, and, furthermore, that If a new Adverse Effect Wege Rate Is pubUshed, or the employer 
Is no11fied of a new prevalllng wage rate during the contract period, and that new rate Is higher than the wage determined by 
the NPC (except the CBA) during the appllcaUon proceu the employer will Increase the pay of all employees In the same Job 
occupation·to the higher ra1e. , 

6. There are no U.S. worllers available In the area(s) capable of performing the temporary services or labor In the Job 
opportunity, and the employer wlll conduct positive recruitment as specified by the NPC and continue to cooperate with the 
SVI/A by accepting referrals of all eligible U.S. wor1(ers who apply (or on whose behalr an application Is made) for the job 
opportunity unut completion of 50 percent of the contract period calculated from the f\rs1 date of need Indicated in Section 
B.5 of ETA Fonn 9142A. 

7. All fees associated with processing the temporary labor certification will be paid In a timely manner. 
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OMS Approve/: 1205-0466 
cxplrafon Dato: 031.11/2016 

H-2A Appllcatfonlor Temporary Employment Certificatlon 
ETA Form 9142A -APPENDIX A 

U.S. Department of Labor 

8. During the period of employment that Is the subject of the labor certification appllcatlon. the employer: 0) wru comply with applicable Federal, State and local employment-related l8W8 and reguleUons, Including health and 
safety laws; , · (II) W~I provide for cir secure housing for workers who are not reasonably able to return to their permanent residence at 
the end of the work day that complies wtth the applicable local, State, or Federal standards and guidelines for 
housing without charge to .the worker; 

(ill) 'Milera required, has timely requeated a preoccupancy inspection of the housing and received certlflcaUon; 
(Iv) Will provide Insurance, without charge to lhe worker, under a State workers' compensa1Ion law or otherwise, tha\ 

meets the requirements or 20 CFR 6~5.122(e). 
(V) Will provide transportaUon In compliance with an appllGable Federal, State or local laws aoo regulations between the worker's llvlng quarters Q.e., houalng provided by the employer under 20 CFR 655.122(h)) and the employer's 

workslte without coat to the worker. ' 
9. The employer has not laid off and will not lay off any stmHarty employed U.S. worker In the occupaUon that Is the subject of the 

AopUcatlon for Temporary Employment C,rtfflcation In the area of Intended employment except for lawful, Job related reasons within 60 days of the date of need, or )f the employer has laid off euch worl<e1$, It has offered the Job opportun~y that Is the subject of the appllcaUon to those laid-off U.S. worker(•) and the U.S. worbr(s) refused the Job opportunity, was rejected for the Job opportun~y for lawful, Job-related reasons, or was hired. 
10. Tue employer and tts agents have not aought or received payment of any kind from the H-2A worl<er for any activity related to obtaining tabor certification, Including payment of the employer's attorneys' fees, appticaUon fees, or recruitment .costs. For 

pU!l)oses of this paragraph, payment tnctudea, but Is not limited to, monetary payments, wage concessions (Including deductions from wagee, salary, or benefits), ·kickbacks, bribes, tributes, In kind payments, and free labor. 
11. The employer has and will contractually forbid any foreign labor contractor or recruttar whom the employer engages In International recruitment or H-2A workers to seek or receive payments from prospective employees ... 
12, Tue employer has not and will not Intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blactdlst, or In. any manner discriminate against. and has not and wiU not cause any person to Intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blackllst. or In any maMer discriminate against, 

any person Who has with Just C8U$8: 
(I) Fiied a complaint under or related to Sec. 218 of the INA (8 U.S.C. 1188), or any Department regulatlon promulgated 

under Sec. 218 of the INA; 
(II} Instituted or caused to be l1111tltuted any proceeding under qf related to Sec. 218 of the, INA, or any Department 

regliatlon promulgated under Sec. 218 of the INA; . 
(Ill} Testified or Is about to testify In any proceeding under or related to Sec. 218 of the INA or any Department regulation 

promulgated under Sec. 218 of the INA; 
(iv) Consulted with an employee of a legal aaslslence program or an attomey on mal1el'$ related to Sec. 218 of the INA 

or any Department regulatlon promulgated under Sec. 218 of the INA; or 
(v) Exercised or asserted o.n behalf of himself/herself or qthera any right or protection afforded by Sec. 218 of the INA, or 

1 
any Oepartmentyegutetlon promulgated under .Sec. 211! of the INA. 

1 
13. the employer has not and wUI not discharge any person because of that person's taklng any action llated In paragraph 120) tlvough (V) listed above. '. 
14. The employer will Inform H-2A worke'rs of the requirement that they leave the U.S. st the end of the period certified by the Department or separation from the employer, whichever ts eariier, as required 1111der 20 CFR 655.135(1), unleas the H-2A worl<er Is being sponsored by another subsequent employer. 

:15. The employer has posted the Notice of Workers' Rights as required by 20 CFR 655.135(1) In a jnsplcuous place frequented by all employees. 1 . 

16. If the appllcatlon Is being ~led as an H-2A Labor Contractor the foflowlng addlUonal attei;teUons end obUgatlons apply under 20 CFR 855.132: · 
(I} The H-2A Labor Contractor hee provided a copy of the MSPA Farm Labor Contractor (FLC) certificate of registration 

If required under MSPA, 1801 U.S.C. et seq., to have such a certlncate Identifying the specific farm tabor contracting 
activities tt Is authorized to perform; 

(ii) The H·2A Labor Contractor has provided with !Ills appllcaUon a 11st of the names and locations of each fixed-site agricuNurat business to Which the H-2A Labor Contractor expects to provide H-2A workers, the expected beginning 
and ending dates when the H-2A Labor Contractor will be providing the workers to each_ fixed site, a description or the crops and acUvlUea the worl<ers are expected to perform at sueh fixed site, and copies of the fully-executed work contracts Wlt/1 each f1Xed~tte agricultural buslnesa so ldenUfied; 

(IIQ The H-2A Labor Contractor Is able to provide proof of Its abll~ to discharge financial obtlgatlons under the H-2A program and has secured a surety bond as required by 29 CFR 601,9, the original of Which Is attached and shows 
the name, address, phone number, and contact person for the surety, end provides the amount of the bond (as calculated pursuant to 29 CFR 601.9); 
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0MB Approval: 1206-0466 
Expiration Date: 03/3112016 

H-2A Application for Temporary Employment Certification 
ETA Form 9142A-APPENDIX A 

U.S. Department of Labor 

(IV) The H·2A Labor Contractor has eriga11ed In and will engage I n recruttment efforts In each area of Intended employment In which II has listed a fiiced-slte agricultural business as required ln 20 CFR 655.121, 655.160-155; and (V) Where the fixed.site agricultural bustness(es) will provide housing or transportation to the workers, proof that: a. AU housing u,ed by workers and owned, operated, or secured by the fixed-$lle agricultural business complies with the eppllcable housing standards In 20 CFR 655.122(d); 
b. An transportaVon betweeh the work&lte and the workers' lMng quarten; that Is provided by the fixed-site agricuttural business complies with ell applicable Federal, State, or local laws and regulations and that It will provide, at a minimum, the same vehicle safety standards, driver ftcensure, and vehicle Insurance es required under 28 U .S.C. 18'11 end 28 C FR part 500, except whera wor1ters' compensaUon IS used to cover auch transportation as described In§ 655.122(e); and 
c. Certlf1CB!es of occypancy from the &NA for all employer ciwned housing and copies of all drivers' flcenses, vehicle re11Iatralloll, and Insurance policies for all drivers and vehicles used to transport H-2A wori<era. 

I hereby acknowledge that the agent or attorney Identified in aeellon E (If any) of the ETA Form 8142A and sec;tJon A above Is authorized to represent me for the purpose of labor certlflcaUon and, by virtue of my signature In Block 5 below, I take full reaponalblllty for the •accuracy of any representations made by my agent or attorney. 

I declare under penalty of p,rjury that I have read and reviewed lhls appllcallon and that lo the best of my knowledge Iha Information contained therein Is true and accurate. I understand that to knowingly fumlsh false Information in the proparel/on of this fonn and any supp/ament thereto or ro aid, abet, or counsel another to do so Is a felony punishable by a $250,000 fine or 5 yea~ In the FederBJ penitentiary or both (1f a.s.~; 1001). . , · · 

1, Last (family) name 2. Pirst (glven)·name 3. Middle initial 
Marino Jr Russell James. 
4. Title 
Owner/Manager 

' 5. Slgnatu~ 

Public Burden Statement (1205-0466) P..,~ -:fr"\~-\-
Persons are not required lo respond to this collection of lnformellon unless II displays a currentiy valid 0MB control' number. Public reporting burden for !hi& collectlon of Information Is esttmeted to averege 1 hour to complete the form and 20 minutes per response for an other H-2A Information collectlon requirements, Including the time for reviewing inslNctions, acardllng existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, end completing and reviewing the collection of lnfonnaUon. The obUl)ation to respond to this data colleellon is required to obtain/retain benefits (Immigration and NaUonality Act, 8 U.S.C. 1101, et seq.). Please &end comments regarding th!S burden esUmate or any other aspect of this infonnaUon collectlon to the Office of Foreign Labor Certification· U.S. Department-of Labor • Room C4312 • 200 Constitution Ave., NW.• Washington, DC• 20210 or by eman ETA.OFLC.Forms@dol.gov. Please 1!2.!!.2!.aond the completed appllcatlon to this address. 
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H-2A Application for T-emporary Employment Certification 
ETA Form 9142A 

U.S. Department of Labor 

ADDENDUM 
ADDENDUM SECTION F.b.5: Special Requirements 

muat be able to bond, otoop, alt and It.Ind on INI I« long pollodo or 11ml. MIIII bl phyllt:dy- ID fflNI and pertorm Ill Job 1P1cil!01tion1 Nied In ll)b O<dor, lnc:Mf,ng ltllng betwoon :15-76 R>•. Muit b• able ID worl< nhot humldwullwr«extonded period• of Im•. Woit.er1 era ot,o oub)tct to random dNQ tulln; at no co,t ID employee. AlldlUQ IHtit19wtl occur after tht wont« beQ>IM hi• or htr employm•nL r:.nano orretu,no • crug tttt wtl hive• neg11Ne ,-,d k\ your 1mploymlnt atatul. '" abc:twn,nt for mot• comp, t. Oltd.1, 

.l 
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H-2A Application for Temporary Employment Certification 
ETA Form 9142A 

U.S. Department of Labor 

ADDENDUM 

ADDENDUM SECTION G.3: Additional Wage lnfoime1lon 

omploye,'a dlO"Olion pay lho lowor AEWR, beginning w!1II the effoctMI oau, at 1111 new M.WR. Employer ..;J pay 11\e hlghel( ol 1ho AE.WR, p~lng wag a, the pie"' ram, lhe ogr .. d• 
upQ'1 coloctiYt 1:>1rgalnl09 W&Qe or the Focsoral or State mlnlmum wa;e 1t the time the work la P9rfMMd. 
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Sun Valley Orchards LLC- H-300-15106-786261 

Attfchments to ETA9142 
FA 3: Slarting-and ending times may vary according to weather and crop conditions. If a worker Is offered and agrees to work more than the scheduled hours during any work day, they must still report lo work on their other scheduled days, unless arrangements are approved In advance with the owner or supervisor. Choosing to work longer hours during the week does not exclude you from working each scheduled work day. Nol reporting for worll on your scheduled work day will be·counted as an unexcused absence. 
FA 5: Job Specifications: Must have three months' verlflable experience hand harvesting a perishable crop. Applicants must be able to furnish affirmative job references from recent employers operating comparable operations establlshlng acceptable previous experience. 

Worker must possess requisite physical strength and endurance to repeat the harvest process throughout the workday, working quickly and skillfully lo perform aciMlles for which they we~ hired. Workers must WQrk at a sustained, vigorous pace and make bona fide efforts to work efficiently and conslstenuy that are reasonable under tha climatic and other working conditions, considering also the amount. quality, end efficiency of work accomplished by their coworkers. Worl<ers may not leave trash, or other discarded items In work areas or vehicles but must dispose of euch·ltema In provided receptacles. Workers must wash hands with soap and water after ell bathroom and meal breaks. Allergies to varieties of ragweed, goldenrod, Insecticides, related .agricultural chemicals, etc, may effect workers eblllty to perform the work described herein. Workers should be physically able to do the worker described wtth or without reasonable accommodation. Must display the ebflity to move, place, climb and work from orchard ladders up to 6 feet In height, making the necessary adjustments for various procedures while carrying up to 30 pounds. 

S11nttatlon Regulremen)J: For food and general pen1onal safety purposes, all wori(ers will be required and expected to follow common sanitary practices et all times. This Is pertlcular1y critical when hand harvesting crops for human consumption. Employees are required to cleanse their ~nds by washing them thoroughly with soap and water after using the bathroom and before entering the fields for harvest ac:tlvltlee or the packing facility for P!ICklng operations. · 

Workers will plant. cultivate, and harvest Asparagus, ZUcchlnl, Pickles, Cucumbers, Egg Plant, end Peppers. 

Allpara'llf: Workers will move along aBSlgned row, stopping, bending and reaching to cut asparagus spears at ground level may operate aelf-propelled harvesting aid on which wol1<er:s ride while stopping to cut spears -at ground level. Spears which ere less then ¼ Inch in diameter (measured at butt) are discarded. Spears over¼ Inch In diameter whlc.h exceed 12 inches In length will be re-broken at the butt end. Any spearhead which has begun to open will be discarded. Spears meetlng harvest speciflcatlon will be placed In a straight fashion In field buckets and carried to trucks or trailers for dumping. Workers wlll be required to stay on their assigned row. Workers must use care while using knifes to prevent Injury to themselves and other work-ers. 

ZUcchlnL Pickles, CucumbglJ!, Egg Plant and peppe(J: Worl<ers wlH plant, cuttlvate and harvest vegetables. woi-kers will be required lo remove weeds by hand or v.ith a hoe. Wor1<.ers will bend and stoop to pick vegetables according to size, color, shape and degree of maturity and place Into field contalners. Workera may carry full container weighing epproxlmetely fifty (50) lbs. and empty into field bin or load onto trailer. Mey be required to pull and discard culls as directed by supervisor. Pickers will take care not to bruise or scar produce. Pre-harvest activities may Include staking, tying, transplanting and pruning. Workers will stand on feet for long periods of time. Workers are required to work In fields when plants are wet with dew or rein. Temperatures In fields during working hours can range from forty (40) to over one hundred (100) degrees. 

Peaches; Workers wtll perfonn various duties associated with thinning and plckfng peaches._Worker will be assigned a row, usually with a partner, and Is responsible for picking ell the proper fruit from that row, or ha'!f row. Fruit ere selected from the tree according lo size and/or color standard set by the picking supervisor. lo some Instances, fruit herveat wlll be done from a six-foot ladder welghJna yp to 30 lbs. All workers must be able to Uft, carry. apd work from fhe top 'ot ib• ladder. The entire tree must be checked to ensure removal of ell fruit meeting-picking requirements. Fruit are pleoed gently In the picking container until container Is full. The full picking container weighing up to 25 lbs. Is then taken to fruit wagon end gently emptted Into a field bin, taking care of not to spill or bl\llse the fruit In the container or In the field bin. Wori(ers are to stay on their assigned row unless directed by a supervisor to change, or to help someone out sporadically. Picking units will be kept free of limbs, leaves or mushy fruit. Fruit harvested speclflcally for sale ate roadside stand as fresh market specialty baskets In peck or half bushel containers must be field graded. For fruit harvest for sale at a roadside stand, extra care muat be used to Insure that each piece of fruit Is undamaged end perfect. Workers will be required to pick up and return picking iaddef! to tf)e ladder wp92n provided by the grower at the end of each workday or as directed by the grower or designated supervteor; 
Fann Equipment Operation: Workers may be require to operate tractors end other farm equipment during dally operations, es an incidental activity. Before any 1M:>rker Is require to operate any farm equipment, workere will be Instructed In the safety and operation of the tractor before driving the tractor. Tractors should be driven In a manner to protect operator, other workers, products, trees, crops, and equipment. Repeated failure to obey safety requirements and operating Instructions may result In tennlnetton. 
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Sun Valley Orchards LLC- H-300-15106-786261 
Orchard Maintenance: Workers will be responsible for general or.chard clean up, They will rake up debris from the land such as sticks, 
straw, etc. Workers Involved In orchard maintenance may be required to hoe trees, girdle, spread fertlllzer, plck up roots and limbs, strip 
suckera a unwanted growth from trees, dig root.suckers, -knock fruit off trees, use hand sprayer, remove vines, lay irrigation pipe, repair 
and maintain drip system, and strap and lie trult trees." Employer wlll provide all equlpmenL Instruction will be given for each task end 
standards of performance communicated to workers. The specific standards for e job wlll be dlsclosed and demonstrated by the 
supervisor before the work begins. 

Orchard '-lean Up; They may be responsible for the removal of old and unproductive peach trees. They must take care to not damage 
or destroy any other tre&S or property In the area. 

Forklift Operation during packing Operatlon§,i Workers may be required to operate forklifts during packing operations as an 
incidental. Before any worker la required to operate a for:kllft, the worker wlll be Instructed In the proper end safe operation. Workers 
will be required to operate forklifts according to Instructions end In a manner that protects the operator, olher workers and equipment. 
Repeated failure to obey operating and safety lnstructlollll may result In termination. 

Farm, and Field Sanitation 
All workers wlil be respo~lble for picking up trash, cleaning bathrooms, sweeping floors and other farm sanitation duties. 

This employer may grow one or more other crops. Farmers frequently decide whether to plant these crops and what addlUonal crops 
they wlll plant after this application Is submitted. Information on crops planted after submission of this appllcatJon will be disclosed In 
writing to the U.S. Department of Labor for approval as soon as It ls known. 

GENERAL CONDmONS APPLICABLE to ALL CROps; Fieldwork begins at assigned time shortly after daylight. Work may be 
performed during Hght rain end 1n high humidity and In temperatures ranging from 110+ degrees to below 20 degrees F. Workers will 
perform the majority of tasks standing In tHe upright posltlon and can expect to stand on their feet for extended periods of time. Some 
tasks, howeve·r, require workers. to perform actlvltlee on their feet In stooped or crouched position for long periods of time. Workers will 
supply their own work clothes. All the teaks In this Job DesorlptJon constitute one (1) job; the employer may assign workers to different 
tasks on any day or to multiple tasks during thfi same day In the sole Judgment of the employer. Workers may be required to perform 
won<, on the fann, that Is lncldental to farming the crops listed In the eppllcatlon, such as performing hand cultivation tasks, packing, 
weeding or hoeing, cleaning and repairing farm buildings, grounds, set up and move equipment, cleanlng and maintaining drip Irrigation 
systems, , weeding, etc. This Is a very demanding and competitive buslnllSS In which quality specifications must be rigorously adhered 
to. Sloppy work cannot and will not be tolerated. 

Full Crop Commitment: This Is regular work, seven hours per day, Monday-Friday, and five on Sunday for the full remainder of the 
period of employment. The worker agrees to work for assigned employer(a) whenever woik Is available during the full remaining period 
of employmenreven though work may be slack at times. The worker understands that If the worker quits or Is terminated for cause 
prior to the end of the period of employment, the worker wlH not receive the 3/4 guarantees discussed below and will not receive certain 
transportation reimbursements discussed below. Excessive tardiness and/or absences v.;11 not be tolerated and will result In 
termination. 

Dally Individual work asslgn!)lents, c;rew assignments, and location of work, will be made by and at the sole dlscreUon of the farm 
manger and/or fann supervisor as the needs of the farming ope~t!Qn dictate. Wori(ers may be assigned a variety of duties Jn any given 
day andtor different tasks on different days, Worll.ers will be expected to perform any of the fisted duties and work on any crop as 
assigned by the worker's supervisor. 

Harvesting spectficatlons, In particular, can change from time to time during the season due-to crop or market conditions, even on the 
same crop. Workers WIii be expected to conform to the specific lrnstructlons given fOI' each day's work. 

The farm owner/supervisor or a designated employee will provide Instructions and general super:vlsloo. However, field workers will be 
expected to perform their duties In e timely and proficient manner without close supervision. 

other Conditions of Employment: A). Discipline and/or Termination: Employer may dlsclpllne and/or terminate the worker for lawful 
Job-related reasons and so notify the Job S91'Vic:!e .local office of the termination If the worker. a) refuses without justified cause to 
perform work for which the worker was recruited and hired; b) commit serious act(s) of misconduct or serious or repeated violation(s) of 
Wort< ~ules c) falls after completing the training period to. perform the work as specified In Item F-5 and Attachment, d) malingers or 
otherwise refuse.a without Jus.tlfled cause to perform as directed the work for wt,lch the Worker was recruited and hired; e) provides 
other lawful job-related reason(s) for termination of employment, f) abandons his employment. h) falsifies Identification, personnel, 
medical, production· or other work related records, I) falls or refuses to take a drug test, or j) commits acts of Insubordination, kl the 

~ri%1;:cfili9~~g;:i;:;,;3~r:!us1is1;:ir;.:W;!;lo~~tt£1;f'.;nJ:!;,':!!'n:?,ff;,~:1::_ ~=&~"£tw1';hj~rien~ 
Im, wm Impair the safety and living eondltlon!f of other WOd(fllJr Reaaon beyond employer's control' Includes termination of 
workers, If he riot a U.S. wori\er becaUlle a U'.S. worker makes himself available for the job under D01.'s 50% rule. Won<ers must notify 
the employer prior to voluntar1ty terminating their employment. All wages 'due wlll be forwarded to the last known address for Workers 
that leave without providing notice. It Is Imperative- that workers provide a oomplete end accurate address to the employer no later· than 
the first day of employment. These employers have a no complete, no rehire policy, Termination for lawful Job related reasons before 
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Sun Valley Orchards LLC- H-300-15106-786261 
the speclled ending date listed In this application WIii disqualtry the employee from future employment opportunities with this employer. 
Wo111ers who abandon their employment without notice d11rlng the period covered by this wori< agreement will be dlsquallfled from 
future employment opportunities with this employer. Voluntary resignation before the specified ending date listed In this application 
may disqualify lhe employee from future employmen\ opportunities with this employer. For wori<ers who resign their employment 
voluntarlly, the employer will consider and evaluate special circumstances and hardship cases on a case-by-case basis. Employees, 
without exception, ere required lo notify appropriate supervlso;y staff prior to voluntarily tennlnatlng their employment to be considered 
and eligible for exemption to the no complete - no rehire policy. 

Worilers are guaranteed that their total earnings Will be et least equal. to the Af=WR of $11 .29 per hour for all hours worked In a pay 
period. If a worker's total earnings In any pay period In which the worker has worked at a piece rate are less than the AEINR of $11.29 
for all hours wori<ed in the pay period, the employer will Increase the worker's pay to the guaranteed minimum of $11.29 per hour for 
the total hours worked In the pay period. · 

Due to weather and crop conditions, the employer reserves the right to temporary Increase the listed piece rates, or add a piece rate. 
The employer also reserves the right to completely do away with the piece rate an together to ensure a quality product and fair 
earnings. Employer reserves the rlght to add a piece rate, with notification to workers, prior to adding the rate. 

Comodlty 

Asparagus 

Zuchinnl 

Pk:kles 

Cucumber 

Eggplant 

Pepper 

Peaches 

B!!.! 
$7.00 

$1.00 

$1.50 

$1,00 

$0.60 

$0.60 

Hourly+ POB 

•pos= Pacl<ed Out 
Bonus 

All jobs performed hourly will be copensated at $11.29/hr 

•Peaches: $1 1.29/hr + $3.50/bln + Pack out bonus 

Pack out bonus may vary; 2014 bonus was $3.42/bln 

Y!!!! 
Packed out 28# crate 

Packed out 1/2bu equMent 

Packed out 1.0bu eqlvtent 

Packed out 1 1/9bu equivlent 

Packed out 1 1/9bu equlvlent 

Packed out 1 1 /9bu equlvtent 

Packed out 1 /2bu equivlent 

18. More details concerning pay: Employer r.eserves the right to pay higher than the stated wage rate to any worker foreign or 
domestic, This Is not promised or guaranteed. The decision to pay above the stated rates will be made by the employer, at their sole 
discretion, and will be based on factors Including the recipients' performance end tenure. 

Training: There will be a short demonstration period (up to 1 hr.) to familiarize workers with Job speclflcetlons, to demonstrate proper 
methods and other crop specific Issues. The employer wlli not provide separate fonnal orientation or training periods for each different 
crop or each different type of task or Job assignment covered within the job descriptlon. After completion of the training period the 
employer will expect ell workers to possess the skills to wori< In the production of the crops above. For purposes of this section seven 
o-r more hours will be considered one day. 

•use of the masculine pronoun herein Is for convenience of refenmce only. 
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Sun Valley Orchards LLC- H-300-15106-786261 

Sun Valley Orchards 2015 Field Locations 

field location ctty state zip county 
~~riington / Garrison Rd ~lmer NJ 0831-8 Salem 

Biddle Rd Mannington Twp NJ 08079 Salem 

Halltown Rd Martnh,gton Twp NJ 08079 Salem 

Pt Airy Rd Woodstown NJ 08098 Salem 

Vestry Rd .. Swedesboro NJ 08085 Gloucester 

St Rt45 Harrisonville NJ 08085 Gloucester 
-

Marl Rd Harrlsonvllle NJ 08085 Gloucester ---
Swedesboro / Harrlsonvllle Rd Harrlsonvllle NJ 08085 Gloucester 

Harrlsonvllle/Woodstown Rd Harrisonville NJ 08085 Gloucester 

Harrisonvllle/Wood_stown Rd Woodstown NJ 08098 Salem .. 
Cty Rd 538 Swedesboro NJ 08085 Gloucester 
High St Swedesboro NJ 08085 Gloucester 
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LIMITED POWER QF AUQBNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned does constitute and appoint 
National Agricultural Consultants LLC to be its true and lawful ao y-in-fact with respect to the 
fullowfog, · i.,_ 
To •ct " thoauthori=I represen<ative fo, ~1/f _JI@'.: ;e<;iijP,2:' .Jj t f dlent . 
name] in all matters relating to the filing dexecution of an H-2A Labor Certification Application 
with the U.S. Department ofLabor, including a Clearance Order with the relevant State Workforce 
Agency, and a Petition for a Nonimmigrant Worker with the U.S. Department of Homeland 
Security. 

1 hereby vest and appoint said attorney-in-fact with full power, authority and discretion to perfonn 
any act whatsoever to accomplish the foregoing as fully and with the same force and effect as I 
could or might do myself. 

This Limited Power of Attorney shall be effective as of the date of execution hereof and all persons 
may rely upon this power as being in full force and effect without any further inquiry whatsoever. 
This Limited Power of Attorney shall be governed by the laws of the State ofNorth Carolina. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Limited Power of Attorney this 

7 (.._ day of flGC . 20¥ 
By, ~~ (sigoatu,e) 

e: f2.~t:-~.: ~client name) 

Title: {)yJ~ 1: _., (ICe-fe-

cJ~_0 t:lxu ~11. 

Notary Public 

My Commlsslon·Expires: 

CELESTE ANNE KEEN 
NOT ARY PUBUC OF NEW JERSEY 
"¥ Gommiastou Expires 8/4/2016 
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Thl8 H-2A Consulting Servlcea, ~ Repruerqtion and lndemnlflQation Agreement (the "A{J nt") entered Into by end belweeo National AarioUllura1 Consultants LLC (hi "Agtnt/Conaullant"), an ~ral labor consultant and t with an expertise in the H-2A Goveming Regulatlona at 20 CFR § 655 In tta.entirely end the U.S. OOL ESA Wage and Hour H- nforoement regulations at 29 CFR § 501, In the ~ d and under the laWI of North caroltna and .;;;i.~llUJ,II;~..LJJu.;.o.~~ a fixed aite agricultural producer(a~a), by ~ltion at 2.0 CFR 855.103(b) in the state af (the "&irioultural 
EmplO)'I!, 'AGER' ") who la a client ol the ~ 

WHEREAS, the AQent/Con&IJltant ill qualltled and capable as an AQent!ConNtant of rendlsring certain specific admni8tratNe services. and other United services (1'180N88ly to assist faoljltatlon o(the A and/or .upplementary fontlgn workere to partlcipllle In the H-2A program {8 USC 1101(a)(15)(H)(ll)(a}; 6 U to meet the AGER'& aeatonal agricultural labor requlrementa; and 

WHEREAS, the AGER aoknowledget, ~ and agreoa that It ii personally and aolely all applicable farm employee labor and en-lJk>yment lawe and prCMeiona of the H-V. program, including the Employment Certification, the Clearance Order, aod 1he Woriulr Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the AGER desires to avail themNlves of the Agent and Consulting s8fVicea, admln Umlted services provided by the Agent/Consultant In order to eeoure domutk: and/or supplementary f AGER'• seasonal ~ral labor requintments for the calendar year oeginnlng January 1, 20./.:5::. 

nd consulting services. 
R In obtaining domestic 
1188) ("H-2A workers") 

NOW THEREFORE, In OOlllideration of the payment(1) mllde by the AGER of the eatabllshed dues, misaion fee, and other H8e&IIITl81lll and iUCh C08te U ate charged/lllNaed from time to time for prollidlng the 181Vloe8 reque by the AGER, and for other goad and aufficient c;oneiderallon, lncludlng lhe mutual promiMa. contained In !hi& Agreement, uant to the applk:able requiremente ot 2<> Cf"R § 656. The Aoent,'Consulta wlll provide AQerA and Conaultatiw MrVicea to non,--.lllttt, prepare end/or assi5t the AGER, as necena,y, to Interact with all appoprlate goyemment agenc;ie1 ln\101ved In the H-2A application processea, Including but not llmlted to US Do?artmant of Ulbor rOOL i , US Department of Homeland {"OHS"), US State 
Department("DOS'). and the reapective state Worldo(ae A;enoy(&} ("SWAj. The P«!rtiel hereto further ag~ follows: 

"'- Jht CoolYUlot• QbHpaUom 
(1) The Agent!ContUltant, with input and review from AGER, wlH prepare and aubmlt to the AGER and/or execute, and authorize aubmlaslon to the applloable gowmnent agency for prOCNling, all formt pursuat\l to applicable lawa and OOL, DHS, and State Oepat1ment ragl.llatlON, to obtain US WOftlera and/ Republic of Mexico. The AGER provides exptlc:it authorization to CQnsultant to JQpare all neoeasery empheei& added, for the Cone41itant to populatf and PrlPl(l lhe 1-129 petition on behalf of the AGER who approve, execute and 1Ubm1t. or authorize aubniulon, to U.S. CIS per the petition~ lnstnwtiona. 

. view, modify, approve. 
documents, required, 
-2A wori(ers from the 
and documents, wlth 

·11 then review, modify. 

(2) The Conaultan~ on behalf of the. AGER. wiU prcMde certain admlnlatratille aupponlve &e &MOCiatcd with the 
dom&llic recruitment reql.llrenw1tl eatabllahed by OOL regulationa. SJJCh taalcs shall be limited exclusively paring the ETA 790 Fonn and attachmenta, ~ to review, modlb1ioo, approval, and execution by the AGER, and to be by the AGER. or au:thoriZl!i Ageot/Conaultant to tubmlt, In order to bl the domeatlc job order with the appropnate ~te w ce Agency ("SWA'). preparing ad copy for the AGER to review, modify and authorize lhe A;entlConau1t8n to pla0e a1dvE1rt"ilec11Mnt11 in newspapers on behalf cf the AGER aa .directed by OOL, providng oeitaln 1uppo,tive Mflllael to AGER whenl1f needed by A to prepare AGER to property Interview and docul'!lent US referrala made dll9Ctly to the AGER from a SWA, and preparing bmltting to AGER for review, approval, exeartlon ar,d eubmittlng, or aLllhorizatlon for.AgentfConluttant to llb'lit, the necetl8ary report with DOL. 
The AGER ag~ that It, aolely, la eollclting ~ aa reqult8d by the Federal RegulatiOn and the .ER haa relliewed the rwqulred ad and app~ lhe content before AgentfConaultant •~ It 10 the newapaper for print on be of AGER. The AGER and DOL determine,~ and •ualvety, the 1sma and oondltlona dleaooed In the ad, when and where It Is . By preparing ad copy for AGER consldandlon and authorization, the A;ent/Conlultant 16 NOT perfonnlng or~~ In A related F&11T1 Labor Contradlng activities suah aa IOlldting. I, the AGER, am exduei'41y eoHalllng employeoa for myaelf as requl Federal law. 

(3) The AQentlConal.lltant wlll maintain, °'• alllst the AGER to maintain conract1 that may be needed, Agenl/Conaultant or AGER, either directly or through lta deaignaled repreaentativea, with SWA'1, OOL. D BUiie and federai governmental agenciea, and 110~1 oontraetora acting on behalf of or performing behalf al government agenci81 neoessary to effec:tuatA! the SYc:cesafuJ adminllt'atlve partlelpation In the H­purpose(a) described In .thle Agreement. 

(4) The Agent/Consultant has not aought °' recel\led payment of any kind from any employee subj activity related to obla!nlng the H-2A labor certfflcatlon In compliance with 20 CFR § 655.135(1). 

m lime to time, by the 
and DOS; ano, other 
nlSttative actions on 
rogram and for other 

8 use 1188 for any 

(5) The Agent/Consultant. who 1i.liQI an attorney and ls not providing legal advice to the AGER, Y. under the limited terms of this~. act 11& the agent of the employer, with any gowmment or private entity, ea n,eceeSSateilto asslat Iha employer with participating In the H-2A program. Thia document IS NOT, nor ahould it be construed, 11.a a P Attorney, limited or othetwiae. The AGER ~ underatanding and agrNmllflt that they ahould •~ conault with e llfled attorney to have 
H-2A I Consulll"I! Sc<Yica and IDdmmlllcelion Aa1"""1Cl1I 
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all otthelr legal questions ana-.ect. if any. 

B. The bJnjctfturlf Emelem ObffAltfonl 
(1) The AGER agreos to c:omply timely wllh all reaaonable poiiclea, procedure&, and Agent/Conwlt.ent which it conslcleta eaeentlaJ for 1he proper 0p9llltlon of the progrwt1 to obtain domestie SUCC&Slful pa111cipation, and to prornota compllanca with applicable laws and 1'9Qulatione. 
(2) The AGER ldtnowledgeg that it la flmlliar with the regulation& and requiremeota of the H- ram and agrees to comply with all of the tems and conditions of employment deac:tlbed In the AGER'• AQrlcultural and FoQCI P Clearance Order. ETA Form 790 and attachments, and Applk:etlon for Tlll'fl)OfalY ~ c.t1iflcatlon, ETA 9142 and atalldhr!W"lte, (collectively the "Job Order") and with the agrlQritural work agreement, which describe& aD the mat8riaJ terme and oondl6on oyment and that Is entered Intl) with both U.S. Md H-2A worker& by the AGER. The AGER agreet lo comply with all obligatio on the AGER as an ~yer of domestic and/or H-2A woriteal found In applicable law and regulatjone,.lnc:ludlng without , those at 20 CFR Pan 653 (DOL lrderltete Clearance Order iagulallona); 20 CFR ~art 655 (OOl H-.2A Regulatlont); 29 C 1 (DOL Wage and HO\lf Enfol~mant Regulatio,ns); ·and. applicable P.l"(Mtlont at 8 CFR Parts 214, 215, and .27411 (OHS s); and to always cooperate wUh all QO-..mment agonole& with juriadiction. The AGER agrees to comply with ALL a laws and relevant r&guletiona and tpedflcaAy, but not flmlllld to, 20 C.F .R. 655.120(Wagu), 122(oontent of job offer), 135( and obligations), 153(contact former US woriter1}, 155(rafttm1I of US woritera), 167(document r-.tentlon requirement•) of the latlons. 

(3) In particular, but not lin'vtlng the foreaolng, the AGER agrees a) ID pay their woriter'a required make only tho&t deductions from their ~•r's p8)'Checka that era requlnld by law and only thoae ded provide housing as required by law that meets au applia,able etendardl In •~ at the time of oa:u required lnlnaporlallon aAd dally eub&latence ooets; e) ID provide wr1tten detailed wage atatementa of their time and slilp time, nature Qf work each day, tic,ur,y rate and/or piece rate of pay, 118 houra of employment their woriter, the hoor8 actually ~d by their W011cer, and it8l'nlz.don of all dedudlona made ffom-thelr ralee are Ulled, the Ut'tlts produced dally, the AGER'• name, lddreM and Federa Tax ~on or t.ermnate their WOltler «vy for lawful job related IUIOnll; g) ID sean and maintain workera' compenaatl for the entire period of II01)ioyment, with no lapl8I In a>verage; h) ID employ any qualified US workef{s}, qualified US WQl'll.er(s) who applies directly to •the AGER In accordance wi1h the applicable regulations Conaultant and the AGER an, not end shall not be joint llfll>loyert with respect to any of the Agent/Con11111tant does not ~•rclaa any oontrol ~ any of the AGER'e ~ and does hold any I respect to the AGER'a employees. The AGER It the tole and exdUIMI employer. 

and benefits; b) to 
owed by law; c) to 

to timely reimburoe 
earnings, stan 

been offered to 
ages and, If piece 

Number. I) to 
ge for each worker 

and hire any 
R 655; i) that the 
employaes. The 
f employment with 

(4) The AGER agr9N to pay timely any judgment or penalty entered against the AGER and ar1&ing of the AGER's violation or lta obllgaliona under appliclble law or regulation, and to lndermlfy and hold harml ... the Ag4Klt/l:::on4'turt and any of Its other AGER CII- for 8\ICh j\.ldgmel'a. or penaltiel and any attomeye' fHs and costs Incurred by the Age sultan! or other AGER Cllenta In de~lng 11111inst euch alleged violation. The AGER acknowledges that the lawa and regulations vernino the employment of dorMetic egricultulal wcners and H-2A wortlore .,. subjoct to dilputed and differing legal lmerpre in various jurisdictions. Th&lefore, the AGER ag,_. that In matters In which a dalm Is made or lftlgatlon la fnatituted against ,¾Jent/Conaultant. the Agent/Consultant may exerti8e Its dlacntlon a} to •Ille 1uoh matlara on behalf of the Agent/Consultant the AGER on terms i1 deems appropriate; b) to l1'lgaie such rnaUen; and c) to determine whether IUOh 18Ulementa. Judgments, es, coats and attorneys fees wlB be borne by the AGER out of whole ~ don or inaaion the claim 11181 1)-.d or, what amo tf any, will be borne by the Agerw/Consultant And/or ehared among Ila other AGER Cilenti. The tenna af 1'M Paragraph B.(4) e any future separation from AGER and the AQanllConlultanl by the AGER and the term of thil AQreement. 
(5) The AGER agrees to pay the AQentJConau1tan any asseaament lel!itKI by the AQent/Consulta legal and any oth!/lf' expenee or llablllty Incurred by the Age~ In defending. prosecuting or Ytlllir' ldllilrl appllcatlon for H-2A oertlbtion, clalm, litigation, or administrative complaint or appeal, whether or not arisl 

he AGER's share of 
relating to an 

claims agalnst the 
The terms of this 

I. 

AGER or arising out of the fault of the AGER, In IOCOrdanoe with a fomwla approved by the AQent/'<'..nr'IIMl'ltsan paragraph 6 .(5) IUTVive any aeparation ftt>m ~~..,.., the Coll8Ultant by 1he AGER and the term of 
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Joint Exhibit 5 
H-2A and domestic workers employed by Sun Valley during 2015 

Last Name First Name 
l Aguilar Caldera Eliseo 
2 Aguilar Maraues Irineo 
] Aguilar Soto Trinidad 
4 Aponte Rodriguez Daniel 
5 Aoonte Rodriguez Johnnv 
6 Arias Baltazar 
7 Arias Ricardo 
8 Arias Mava German 
9 Arrovo Alonso Nicolas. 
10 Asencion Flores Eusebio 
11 Baltazar Cheguez J 
12 Blanco Aguilar Oscar J 
13 Carrera Cortez Martin 
1-1 Carrera Hernandez Camilo 
15 Castaneda David 
16 Cervantes Aguilar Griselda 
17 Cervantes Cumolido Rafael 
18 Cervantes Ramirez Carlos 
19 Chanwv Escudero Pedro 
20 Cinta Tegoma HugoL 
21 Cruz Delmar 
22 Cruz Looez Javier 
?" _.) Cruz Perez Antonio 
?4 Cruz Reves Carlos 
?-_ ) Cruz Reves Jose D 
26 Cuellar Romero Gustavo 
27 Cumplido Aguilar Juan M 
28 De La Cruz Martinez Eduardo 
29 De La Cruz Morales Rogelio 
JO Del Angel Salas Geovani de Jesus 
31 Dominguez Cruz Humberto 
31 Elizondo Soto Miguel A 
33 Escovar Jorge 
34 Flores Flores David 
35 Flores Montero Gilberto 
36 Franco Varga Oscar R 
37 Galindo Cervantes Honorato 

7 
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38 Galindo Cervantes Juan E 
39 Galindo Reyes Alfredo 
.+0 Garcia Cardos Erick G 
41 Garcia Cervantes Norberto 
42 Garcia Delgado Manuel 
.+3 Garcia Dominguez Hector M 
44 Garcia Olarte Demetria 
45 Garcia Ramirez Omar 
-+6 Garcia Raya Jorge L 
47 Godinez Barcenas Adan 
48 Gomes Francisco J 
-+9 Gomez Lopez Fernando 
50 Gonzalez Jaimes Amadeo 
51 Gonzalez Jaimes Gaspar 
52 Grijalva Ramos Celso 
53 Guillen Segovia Armando 
54 Hernandez Fabian 
55 Hernandez Fr'ancisco 
56 Hernandez Roberto 
57 Hernandez Hernandez Felix Arturo 
58 I lernandez Perez Herlinda 
59 Hernandez Perez Jeronimo 
60 Hernandez Perez Rufino 
61 Hernandez Sanchez Ines 
f7 )_ Hernandez Zavala Luis A 
63 Hurtado Olvera Martin 
6-l Ibanez Francisco A 
65 Islas LaJTa_ga Jose D 
66 Jacobo Ramirez Jose M 
67 Jimenez Raul 
68 Jimenez Osornio Jose Erick 

. 69 Juarez Hernandez Javier 
70 Justiniano Soto Carlos R 
71 Lara Amador Reymundo 
72 Lara Amador Vicente 
73 Leon Hernandez Ruben 
74 Lopez Ranulfo 
75 Lopez Carrera Modesto E 
76 Lopez Carrera Yreneo C 
77 Lopez Cruz Ricardo 
78 Lopez Cruz Victor 
79 Lopez Lopez -Conrado 
80 Lopez Lopez Domingo 
81 Lopez Mendez Jose 
82 Lugo Morales Gabriel 
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83 Luna Gonzalez Luis A 
84 Magallanes Hernandez Carlos 
85 Maldonado Maldonado Marco G 
86 Marquez Perez Gustavo 
87 Martinez Antonio Valentin 
88 Martinez Areliaho Efrain 
89 Martinez Arellano Cesar 
90 Martinez Cervantes Manuel 
91 Martinez Paulino Jose 
92 Mendez Hernandez Cristian 
93 Mendoza Soto Esteban 
9-l Morales Acosta Dario 
95 Ortega Vargas Marcelo 
96 Perez Ramiro 
97 Perez Tomas 
98 Perez Looez Domingo 
99 Perez Vasquez Conrado 
100 Pinon Jose L 
IOI Pinon Rangel Francisco J 
102 Pinon Roque Omar 
103 Ramirez Lorenzo Domimw 
104 Ramirez Matias 
105 Ramirez Chavez Juan 
106 Rava Jose 
107 Rava Garcia Adan 
l 08 Raya Tania Rodril!o 
109 Reves Delfino Antonio 
110 Revnoso Adonias 0 
111 Revnoso Rodriguez Elias 
112 Reynoso Rodriguez Jose L 
11 3 Rios Bautista Mateo 
1 1-l Rodriguez Jaimes Armando 
115 Rodriguez Velasauez Jeines 
II 6 Rodriguez Velasquez Salvador 
117 Romero Arrendondo Aleiandro 
11 8 Rosales Looez Lucio 
11 9 Sanchez Dolores Venustiano 
120 Sanchez Villasenor Aleiandro 
121 Sanchez Villasenor Saul 
122 Santi Looez Carmelina 
123 Santiago Mendoza lsau 
12-l Santis Morales Francisco 
J?5 Santiz Perez Rogelio 
126 Santos Urauiza Juan 
127 Santovo Castro Ricardo 
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128 Silva Alfredo L 
129 Silva Llaguno Andres 
130 Silva Llaguno Carlos 
131 Silva Lopez Jose L 
132 Sonalo Guerrero Tomas 
I .. .. 

.).) Soto Gun·ola J Santos 
134 Tapia Barbosa Armando 
135 Vallejo Rojas Nocolas 
136 Vargas Diego 
137 Vargas Juan 
138 Vargas Vargas Octavk, 
139 Vargas Venegas Alvaro 
1-+0 Vazquez Desion Adrian 
I -+ I Velasquez Esdras 
142 Velasquez Leny 
1-+3 Villasenor Frediberto 
I ➔➔ Vi llasenor Vargas Jo'se M 
145 Zavala Almanza Pedro 
146 Zavala Jaimes Humberto 
1-+7 Zeveleta Hernandez Marcos 

10 
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A B C D E F G H J K M N 0 p a R 
empna pho H2A Last Day Home homec 
meidx empid First Name Middlo Last Name no Addross City State Zip Flag Worked Crow rewi:ta Hire OiJI0 

374 1006 Baltazar Arias (0) 1321 Routo 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Arias. Baltazar 1006 2/4/2015 0:00 
343 2000 Agustin Hernandez P.O. Box283 Mullica Hill NJ 08062 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Hernandez, Agustin 2000 2/10/2015 0:00 
344 2001 Alfredo L Silva 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Silva, Alfredo L 2001 2/10/2015 0:00 
346 2002 Frediberto Villasenor 713 Tomlin Station Road Mullica HIii NJ 08062 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Villasenor, Frediberto 2002 2/10/2015 0:00 
347 2003 Ricardo Arias 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9~015 0:00 Augustin Field Arias, Ricardo 2003 2/10/2015 0:00 
349 2004 Francisco A lbanoz 713 Tomlin Station Road Mullica Hill NJ 08062 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Ibanez. Francisco A 2004 2/23/2015 0:00 
351 2005 Jose Erick Jimenez Osornio 132 1 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Jimenez Osornio. Jose Erick 2005 2/10/2015 0:00 
353 2006 O~ar Pinon Roque 1321 Route 45 - Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Pinon Roque. Omar 2006 2/10/2015 0:00 
354 2007 Adan Raya Garcia 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Auguslin Fiold Raya Garcia, Adan 2007 2/16/2015 0:00 
355 2008 Octavio Vargas Vargas 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Vargas Vargas, Octavio 2008 2/10/2015 0:00 

Hernandez Hernandez, Felix 
357 2009 Felix Arturo Hornandez Hernandez 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 7112/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Muro 2009 2/10/2015 0:00 
358 2010 Cartos Silva Llaguno 1321 Roule 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9l2.2/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Silva llaguno, Cartos 2010 2/10/2015 0:00 
359 2011 Andres Sitva Uaguno 1321 Roule 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9122'2015 0:00 Augustin Field Silva Uaguno, Andres 2011 2/10/2015 0:00 
361 2012 Miguel Pinon 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 3117/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Pinon, M!guol 2012 2/10/2015 0:00 
364 2013 Fabian Hernandez 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Hernandez, Fabian 2013 2/23/2015 0:00 
375 2014 Martin Carrera Cortez (0) 713 Tomlin Station Road Mullica Hill NJ 08062 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Carrera Cortez.. Martin 2014 3/11/2015 0:00 
377 2015 Jose L Pinon (0) P.O. Box 124 Rosonhayn NJ 08352 N 8/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Pinon, Jose L 2015 3117/2015 0:00 
385 2016 Valentin Martinez Antonio (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08062 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Martinez Antonio, Valentin 2016 3/30/2015 0:00 
391 2017 Oav,d Gastaneda (0) 1321 Route 45 Swodosboro NJ 08085 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Castaneda, David 2017 4/14/2015 0:00 
392 2018 Leny Velasquez (0) 1321 Roulo 45 Swedosboto NJ 08085 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Velasquez, Leny 2018 4/14/2015 0:00 
394 2019 Raymundo Lara Amador (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboto NJ 08085 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Lara Amador, Raymundo 2019 4/14/2015 0:00 
395 2021 Carmelino Santi Lopez (0) P.O. Box 1791 Indiantown FL 34956 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Sanli LoP8z. Carmelina 2021 4/14/2015 0:00 
398 2022 Francisco Hernandez (0) P.O. Box 1791 Indiantown FL 34956 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Hernandez, Francisco 2022 4/14/2015 0:00 
435 2024 Carlos Cruz Rey,,s (0) Rural Veracruz VE 

C Morelos 30 
91709 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Cruz Reyes, Carlos 2024 4/15/2015 0:00 

26 436 2025 Yreneo C Lopez Carrera (0) Santa Cruz Xilla Oaxaca OA 70823 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Lopez Carrera, Yreneo C 2025 4/1512015 0:00 
Rural 

27 437 2026 Saul Sanchez Villasenor (0) Ocampo Michoacan MC 59660 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Sanchez Villasenor, Saul 2026 4/15/2015 0:00 
Rural 

28 438 2027 Ruben Loon Hernandez (0) Ocampo Michoacan MC 59660 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Leon Homandoz, Ruben 2027 4/15/2015 0:00 
C Morenos 30 

439 2028 Modesto E Lopez Carrera (0) Santa Cruz Xitia Oaxaca OA 70823 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Lopez Carrera, Modesto E 2028 4/15/2015 0:00 
452 2029 Amadeo Gonzalez Jaimes (0) Rural Edom ED 99999 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Gonzalez Jaimes, Amadeo 2029 4/1512015 0:00 

Rural 
440 2030 Mateo Rios Bautista (0) Xochicoatlan Hidalgo HG 42083 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Rios Bautista, Mateo 2030 4/15/2015 0:00 
442 2031 German Arias Maya (0) Rural Hidalgo HG 42083 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Arias Maya, German 2031 4/15/2015 0:00 

Del Angel Salas, Geovani de 
402 2032 Geovanl de Jesus Del Angel Salas (0) Rural VeraCfl:Jz VE 91709 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Jesus 2032 4/1512015 0:00 

Rural 
443 2033 Francisco Pinon Rangel (0) Ocampo Michoacan MC .59660 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Pinon Rangel, Francisco J 2033 4115/2015 0:00 
444 2034 Cesar Martinez Arellano (0) Rural Edom ED 99999 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Martinez Arellano, Cesar 2034 4/1512015 0:00 
447 2035 Celso Grijalva Ramos (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 516/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Grijalva Ramos, Celso 2035 4/15/2015 0:00 

Rua! 
450 2036 Alejandro Sanchez Villasenor (0) Ocampo Mlchoacan MC 59660 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Sanchez Villasenor, Alejandro 2036 4/15/2015 0:00 
453 2037 Eduardo De La Cruz Martinez (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A De La Cruz Martinez.. Eduardo 2037 4115/2015 0:00 

Rural 
454 2038 Armando Rodriguez Jaimes (0) Ocampo Michoacan MC 59660 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Rodriguez Jaimes, Armando 2038 4/15/2015 0:00 
421 2053 Jose Reynoso Rodriguez (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Reynoso Rodriguez. Jose L 2053 4/20/2015 0:00 
422 2054 Ranulfo Lopez (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Lopez, Ranulfo 2054 4/20/2015 0:00 
423 2055 Efrain Martinoz Aroliano (0) Rural Edom ED 99999 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Martinez Areliano, Efrain 2055 4/20/2015 0:00 

Rural 
424 2056 Humberto Zavala Jaimes (0) Ocampo Michoacan MC 59660 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Zavala Jaimes. Humberto 2056 4/20/2015 0:00 
426 2057 Conrrado Perez Vasquoz (0) P.O. BOX359 Hastings FL 32145 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Perez Vasquez. Comrade 2057 4/20/2015 0:00 
456 2063 JO'!le Esrovar (0) 1321 Roule 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Escovar, Jorge 2063 4/23/2015 0:00 
458 2064 Roberto Hernandez (0) 345 N 8th Street Reading PA 19604 N 6/26/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Hernandez. Roberto 2064 4/23/2015 0:00 
475 2065 Venustiano Sanchez Dolores (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5f7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Sanchez Dolores, Venustiano 2065 4/23/2015 0:00 
476 2066 Tomas Solano Guerrero (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5f7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Solano Guerrero, Tomas 2066 4/24/2015 0:00 
477 2067 Marcos Zavaleta Hernandez 0 Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5f7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Zaveleta Hornandez. Marcos 2067 4/24/2015 0:00 

DOL01602 

JX 6 Page 85 AR - 1587 Appx276

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 175      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



A B C D E F G H K L M N 0 p Q R 
Maldonado Maldonado. Marco 

478 2068 Marco G Maldonado Maldonado (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A G 2068 4/24/2015 0:00 
480 2069 Marcelo Ortega Vargas (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Ortega Vargas, Marcelo 2069 4/24/2015 0:00 
481 2070 Cheguez J Baltazar (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Baltazar, Cheguez J 2070 4/24/2015 0:00 
482 2071 Jose D Islas larraga (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 6115/2015 0 :00 H2A H2A Islas Larraga, Jose O 2071 4/24/2015 0 :00 
483 2072 Lucio Rosales Lopez (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Rosales Lopez, Lucio 2072 4/24/2015 0 :00 
485 2073 ·Jose Martinez Paulino (0) Rural Veracruz VE ,91709 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Martinez Paulino. Jose 2073 4/24/2015 0 :00 
486 2074 Javier Juarez Hernandez (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Juarez Hernandez. Javier 2074 4/24/20 15 0:00 
487 2075 lsau Santiago Mendoza (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/20 15 0:00 H2A H2A Santiago Mendoza, lsau 2075 4/24/2015 0:00 
488 2076 Ines Hernandez Sanchez (0) Rural Veracruz VE 9 1709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Hernandez Sanchez, Ines 2076 4/24/2015 0:00 
489 2077 Humberto Dominguez Cruz (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Dominguez Cruz, Humberto 2077 4/2412015 0:00 
490 2078 Hugo L Cinta Tegoma (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 517/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Cinta Tegoma, Hugo L 2078 4/24/2015 0:00 
491 2079 Hector M Garcia Dominguez (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Garcia Dominguez, Hector M 2079 4/24/2015 0:00 
493 2080 Gustavo Marquez Perez (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Marquez Perez, Gustavo 2080 4/24/2015 0:00 
494 2081 Oemetrio Garcia Olarte (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Garcia Olarte, Oemetrio 2081 4/24/2015 0:00 
495 2082 Delfino Antonio Reyes (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Antonio Reyes, DeHino 2082 4/24/2015 0:00 
496 2083 Cristian Mendez Hernandez (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Mendez Hernandez, Cristian 2083 4/24/2015 0 :00 
497 2084 CaMos Corvantes Ramirez (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Cervantes Ramirez, Car1os 2084 4/24/2015 0 :00 
499 2085 Adrian Vazquez Desion (0) Rural Veracruz VE 91709 y 5/7/2015 0:00 H2A H2A VazQuez Desion, Adrian 2085 4/24/2015 0:00 
512 2097 Tomas Perez (0) 45 Irving Ave Bridgeton NJ 08302 N 5/12/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Perez, Tomas 2097 5/ 12/2015 0:00 
513 2098 Brian H Hornandez (0) 744 To'mlin Station Road Mullica Hill NJ 08067 N 9/13/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Hernandez, Brian H 2098 5/12/2015 0:00 

527 2102 Domingo Perez Lopez (0) PO BOX 132 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Perez Lopez, Domingo 2102 5/ 18/2015 0:00 

528 2103 Jose D Cruz (0) PO Box 1278 Indiantown FL 34956 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Cruz, Jose O 2103 5/18/2015 0:00 
530 2104 Javier Cruz Lopez (0) PO Box 1278 Indiantown FL 34956 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Cruz Lopez, Javier 2104 5/18/2015 0:00 

567 2105 Rufino Hornandez Perez (0) P Q Box 1278 Indiantown FL 34956 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Hernandez Perez, Rufino 2105 5/18/2015 0:00 

531 2106 Ricardo Lopez Cruz (0) PO Box 1278 Indiantown NJ 34956 N ' 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Lopez Cruz, Ricardo 2106 5/18/2015 0:00 

533 2107 Victor Lopez Cruz (0) PO Box 1278 Indiantown FL 34956 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Lopez Cruz, Victor 2107 5/18/2015 0 :00 
Rodriguez Velasquez. Salvador 

5352110 Salvador B Rodriguez Velasquez (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field B 2110 5/26/2015 0:00 

537 2111 Joiner A Rodriguez Velasquez (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Rodriguez Velasquez, Joiner A 2111 512612015 0:00 
5392112 Jose Raya (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/1/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Raya, Jose 2112 5/26/2015 0:00 
5402113 Elias Reynoso Rodriguez (0) 1321 Routo 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9!2212.015 0:00 Augustin Field Reynoso Rodriguez. Elias 2113 5/2612015 0:00 
541 2114 Adonias Q Reynoso (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Reynoso. Adonias 0 2114 5/26/2015 0 :00 

542 2115 Alfredo Galindo Reyes (0) C Sin Nombre S/N Loe Mezquital DG 34971 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Galindo Reyes, Atfredo 21 15 5/2612015 0:00 
Magallanes Hernandez. Cartos 

543 2116 Carlos E Magallanes Hernandez (0) Loe Los Charcos MOZQUital DG 34980 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A E 2116 5/26/2015 0:00 
546 2117 David Floros Flores (0) C Sin Nombre sn Loe Los Mezquita! DG 34986 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Flores Floros, David 2117 5/26/2015 0:00 

547 2118 Eliseo Aguilar Caldera (0) C sin nombro sn Loe las Mezquita! DG 34976 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Aguilar Caldera, Eliseo 2118 5/2612015 0:00 

549 2119 Esteban Mendoza Soto (0) C s in nombre sn Loe Mezquita! DG 34971 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Mondoza Soto, Esteban 2119 5/26/2015 0:00 
Calle sin nombro Sanata 

550 2120 Gabriel Lugo Morales (0) Maria Ocotan MezQuital OG 34973 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Lugo Morales, Gabriel 2120 5/26/2015 0:00 

551 2121 Griselda Cervantes Aguilar (0) C sin nombre sn Loe Los Mezquita! DG 34989 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Cervantes Aguilar, Griselda 2121 5/26/2015 0:00 

C sin nombre SIN Loe 

553 2122 Honoralo Galindo Cervantes (0) Mesa de San Buena MezQultal DG 34973 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Galindo Cervantes, Honorato 2122 5/2612015 0:00 

554 2123 Irineo Aguilar Marques (0) C sin nombre sn Loe San Mezquita! DG 34989 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A . H2A Aguilar Marques, Irineo 2123 5/2612015 0 :00 

555 2124 J Santos Soto Gurrola (0) C sin nombre sn Loe Mezquita! DG 34970 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Soto Gurrola, J Santos 2124 5/2612015 0:00 
C Sin Nombre S?N Loe 

556 2125 Juan E Galindo Cervantes (0) Los Gavilanes Mezquita! DG 34970 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Galindo Cervantes, Juan E 2125 5/26/2015 0:00 

557 2126 Juan M Cumplido Aguilar (0) Loe Los Alisos Mezquital NJ 34970 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Cumplido Aguilar, Juan M 2126 5/26/2015 0 :00 
559 2127 Manuel Martinez Cervantes (0) Loe Agua Pneta MCZQUital DG 34987 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Martinez Cervantes. Manuel 2127 5/2612015 0:00 

C Sin Nombre SIN Loe 

560 2128 Norberto Garcia Cervantes (0) Loa Gavilanes Mozquital DG 34989 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Garcia Cervantes, Norberto 2128 5/26/2015 0 :00 
561 2129 Oscar Blanco Aguilar (0) Loe Hoyas del Agostadero Mezquita! DG 34974 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Blanco Aguilar, Oscar J 2129 5/2612015 0 :00 

563 2130 Rafael Cervantes Cumplido (0) Calle sin nombro Loe Los Mezquita! DG 349989 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Cervantes Cumplido, Rafael 2130 5/2612015 0 :00 
Callo Sin Nombre Loe la 

565 2131 Rogelio Do La Cruz Morales (0) Joya de Toyana Mezquita! DG 34990 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A De La Cruz Morales, Rogelio 2131 5/2612015 0:00 

568 2132 Trinidad Aguilar Soto (0) Calle Sin Nombre Loe Los MezQuital DG 34972 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Agunar Soto, Trinidad 2132 5/2612015 0 :00 
572 2134 Esdras Velasquez (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 7/8/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Velasquez. Esdras 2134 611/2015 0:00 
576 2135 Eusebio Asencion Flores (0) 1321 Routo 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Asencion Flo res, Eusobio 2135 611/2015 0:00 

575 2136 Roberto Ruiz 0 1321 Route 45 Sw edesboro NJ 08085 N Au ustin Field Ruiz, Roberto 2136 6/1/2015 0:00 
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A B C D E F G H J K L M N 0 p a R 
573 2137 Ramiro Perez (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 81812015 0:00 Augustin Field Perez, Ramiro 2137 612/2015 0:00 
579 2139 Matias Ramirez (0) 1321 Roule 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9122/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Ramirez, Matias 2139 6/7/2015 0:00 
580 2140 Pedro Chargoy Escudero (0) Rural Hildalgo HG 420836 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Chargoy Escudero, Pedro 2140 6/8/2015 0:00 
581 2141 Alvaro Vargas Venegas (0) Rural Michoacan MC 59660 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A· Vargas Venegas, Alvaro 2141 618/2015 0:00 
582 2142 Aramndo Tapia Barbosa (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Tapia Barbosa, Aramndo 2142 6/8/2015 0:00 
583 2143 Alejandro Romero Arrendondo (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Romero Arrendondo, Alejandro 2143 618/2015 0:00 
584 2144 Jose L Silva Lopez (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Silva Lopoz, Jose L 2144 6/8/2015 0:00 
586 2145 Tomas A Gutierrez Cisneros (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 619/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Gutierrez Cisneros, Tomas A 2145 6/8/2015 0:00 
590 2146 Gustavo Cuellar Romero (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Cuellar Romero, Gustavo 2146 618/2015 0:00 
591 2147 . Oscar R Franco Varga (0) Rural .Guanajuato GU 36044 y 6124/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Franco Varga, Oscar R 2147 618/2015 0:00 
592 2148 Jorge L Garcia Raya (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 6126/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Garcia Raya, Jorge L 2148 618/2015 0:00 
593 2149 Martin Hurtado Olvera (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Hurtado Olvera. Manin 2149 61812015 0:00 
594 2150 Manuel Garcia Delgado (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 61912015 0:00 H2A H2A Garcia Delgado, Manuel 2150 618/2015 0:00 
595 2151 Jesus A Rojas Contrerasaa (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 619/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Rojas Contrcrasaa, Jesus A 2151 618/2015 0:00 
596 2152 Luis A Hernandez Zavala (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Hemandez Zavala, Luis A 2152 618/2015 0:00 
597 2153 Luis A Luna Gonzaloz (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Luna Gonzalez. Luis A 2153 618/2015 0:00 
598 2154 Adan Godinoz Barcenas (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Godinez Barcenas, Adan 2154 618/2015 0:00 
599 2155 Nicolas Arroyo Alonso (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 81412015 0:00 H2A H2A Arroyo Alonso. Nicolas 2155 618/2015 0:00 
600 2156 Jose M Jacobo Ramirez (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Jacobo Ramirez, Jose M 2156 618/2015 0:00 
617 2157 Erick G Garcia Cardoso (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Garcia Cardoso, Erick G 2157 61812015 0:00 
601 2158 Joel RiosGomoz (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 619/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Rios Gomez, Joel 2158 618/2015 0:00 
602 2159 Juan Ramirez Chavez (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Ramirez Chavez, Juan 2159 618/2015 0:00 
603 2160 Miguel A Elizondo Soto (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Elizondo Soto, Miguel A 2160 618/2015 0:00 
604 2161 Pedro Zavalz Almanza (0) Rual Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Zavalz Almanza. Pedro 2161 618/2015 0:00 
605 2162 Nocolas Vallejo Rojas (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 6125/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Vallejo Rojas. Nocofas 2162 618/2015 0:00 
606 2163 Oscar Martinez Vazquez (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 619/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Martinez Vazquez, Oscar 2163 618/2015 0:00 
607 2164 Rodrigo Raya Tapia (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Raya Tapia, Rodrigo 2164 618/2015 0:00 
609 2165 Vicente Lara Amador (0) Rural Hidalgo HG 36044 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Lara Amador, Vicente 2165 618/2015 0:00 
611 2166 Omar Garcia Ramiez (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Garcia Ramiez, Omar 2166 618/2015 0:00 
612 2167 Dario Morales Acosta (0) Rural Guanajuato GU 36044 y 814/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Morales Acosta, Dario 2167 618/2015 0:00 
613 2168 Armando Guillen Segovia (0) Rural Michoacan MC 36044 y 9/2912015 0:00 H2A H2A Guillen Segovia, Annando 2168 618/2015 0:00 
615 2169 Jose M Villasenor Vargas (0) Rrual Michoacan MC 36044 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Villasenor Vargas, Jose M 2169 618/2015 0:00 
616 2170 Ricardo Santoyo Castro (0) Rural Michoacan MC 36044 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Santoyo Castro, Ricardo 2170 618/2015 0:00 
636 2176 Delmar Cruz (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/15/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Cruz, Delmar 2176 6115/2015 0:00 
638 2177 Antonio Cruz Perez (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/29/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Cruz Perez, Antonio 2177 6115/2015 0:00 
627 2183 Camilo Carrera Homandez (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Garrera Hemandez, Camilo 2183 6122/2015 0:00 

RR 11 Box 5829 
658 2185 Daniel Aponte Rodriguez (0) Suite 39 Bayamon PR 00956 y 7/8/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Aponte Rodriguez, Daniel 2185 7/112015 0:00 

Ave Arto~al Hostos Cnd 
656 2186 Carlos R Justiniano Soto (0) Parg Centro Apt M10 San Juan PR 00918 y 8/4/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Justiniano Solo, Car1os R 2186 7/1/2015 0:00 
659 2187 Johnny Aponte Rodriguez (0) RR 11 Box 5829 Bayamon PR 00956 y 719/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Aponte Rodriguez. J0hnny 2187 7/1/2015 0:00 
660 2188 Gaspar Gonzalez Jaimes (0) Rural Estado de ED y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Gonzalez Jaimes, Gaspar 2188 7/3/2015 0:00 
662 2189 Juan Santos Urquiza (0) rural Estado Do ED y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Santos Urquiza. Juan 2189 7/312015 0:00 
647 2194 Francisco J Gomez (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Gomez, Francisco J 2194 7(1/2015 0:00 
648 2195 Juan Vargas (0) 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Vargas, Juan 2195 7(1/2015 0:00 

Doming 
650 2196 Lorenzo 0 Ramirez (0) 1321 Roule45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Ramirez. Lorenzo Domingo 2196 7(1/2015 0:00 
651 2197 Diego Vargas (0) 1321 Roule 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/2015 0:00 Augustin Field Vargas, Diego 2197 7(112015 0:00 
684 2204 Jeronimo Hernandez Perez (0) 1321 Routo45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 9/22/20l 5 0:00 Augustin Field Hernandez Perez, Jeronimo 2204 7/14/2015 0:00 
685 2209 Rogelio Santiz Perez (0) Sin Nombre sn Las Margaritas CH 30187 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Santiz Perez. Rogelio 2209 7/20/2015 0:00 
686 2210 Jose R Lopez Mendez (0) la pledad sn, Piedad, Chlapas CH 30187 y 9/18/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Lopez Mendez, Jose R 2210 7/19/2015 0:00 
687 2211 Herlindo Hornandez Perez (0) Sin Nombre sn las Margaritas CH 30187 y 9/18/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Hemandoz Perez, Her1indo 2211 7/19/2015 0:00 
688 2212 Gilberto FJores Montero (0) Rural Midioacan MC 59660 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Flores Montoro, Gilberto 2212 7/19/2015 0:00 
689 2213 Francisco Santis Morelos (0) Sin Nombre sn Las Margaritas CH 30187 y 9129/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Santis Morales, Francisco 2213 7/19/2015 0:00 
690 2214 Fernando Gomozlopez (0) Sin Nombre sn Las Margaritas CH 30187 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Gomez Lopez, Fernando 2214 7/19/2015 0:00 
691 2215 Domingo LoPez Lopez (0) Sin nombre sn, San Las Margaritas CH 30187 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Lopaz Lopaz. Domingo 2215 7/19/2015 0:00 
692 2216 Conrado Lopez Lopez (0) Sin Nombro sn las Margaritas CH 30187 y 9/29/2015 0:00 H2A H2A Lopez Lopez. Conrado 2216 7/19/2015 0:00 
698 2217 Raul Jimenz 0 1321 Route 45 Swedesboro NJ 08085 N 8116/2015 0:00 Au usUn Field Jimenz, Raul 2217 7/19/2015 0:00 
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.Joint E:..:hibit 7 
H-2A employees whose work wifh S un Val ley ended by May 7. 2015 

Carlos Cervantes Ramirez 
3 ·Hu o Leonel Cinta Te oma 
4 Humberto Domin uez 
5 Hector M. Garcia Domin uez 
6 Celso Gri.alva Ramos 
7 Ines Hernandez Sanchez 
8 Javier Juarez Hernandez 
9 Marco G. Maldonado 

10 Gustavo Mar uez Perez 
11 Cristian Mendez Hernandez 
12 
13 
14 
15 Venustiano Sanchez Dolores 
16 Isau Santia o Mendoza 
17 Tomas Sonalo Guerrero 
18 Adrian Vaz uez Desion 
19 Marcos Zaveleta 

11 
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? 

My name is (.. :l ' • J 11 I_ 1,,-l · 
. I do hereby resign my job with 

; ' 
. ' \. L ' 

(farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

~ I need to return t o my home country because a family member is sick or injured or has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

_ _ I want to quit my Job. 

_ _ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:------- ---------
---- --------

---

(_)'I '-> r, 

__.., 
;' \ q \ \ ,'W A c1 m ,~ S 

Print Name: 6 t 

r~~e - _) 
(/ 

I 5· 

Signature: 
Date: 

__ , l 

0 

Print name of witness: . 4--e:,.; ~ < _,. ( " Y-11: ...... ""c t)? 

_ _ Expect to return t o my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my ab:ence. I expect to return on: _ ___ _ _ __ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignat•on is effect today, and US. Government agencies w ill be notified. 

-------·---
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My name is 0? J/6 ,4 v,~~A .s ) Jv \ A-.2. cc l -C . I do hereby resign my job with 

<_~ 'v "'.c 
------~-· ______ ___ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

~ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured or has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:------- -----------------
-------

Print Name: i} I [!, , r--(1, 

Signature: ; J I CJ) ,- r:- ( I'· 
. < 

I · /1 ,1 f er ..S 
t ;·: 1 9 ( 1S Date: _ ~_ ;;_{_- _)_£..=:::, __ _ 

Print name of witness: ______ __________ __________ _ 

_ _ Expect to return to my job once I f inish my unexpected business. I un_derstand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _ _ ______ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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I 
( . l'C•\,' Ii ✓~' 1/ 

'l /1,~, t: . I do hereby resign my job with 

~--',,.: ;,'--'-•- -' ~ ·'-! ___ _ _ ______ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

_ _ I am sick or I have been injured. 

-i_, need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or Injured or has died. 

_ _ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

_ _ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:------ --------- ---- - -----------

Print Name: ___ t-...,.i\~· ·~' •-1-_i_· ..... · ' ~,~· ~-~i~'-' ..... •--~--·-~,<~•·-~--·(~-<l- •~'c~·,.~1~;;~1~, ..... ·,_-__________ _ 

/11.1/t'.''/1,./. ' Date: __ (_-, /4-'f=-:;_._· _;./_~---

__ Expe~t to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: ______ __ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies wil l b€ notified. 
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f) . . 
MynameiJ')PJJd!-B} Ctt{vEl )D;,ir / l / I • l"l'V llt. ido hereby resign my job with 

) J ' 

. 5" ··; · (farm name). I ht;?reby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be not ified. 

__ ·, am sick or I have been injured . 

.i__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured or has died. 

__ I need lo return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:-------------------------------

Print Name: _, __ , _,_, --"·'-' ·_ ~L ... 1, ...... ..,, '"'-'·.,,_, · ... l _ __ \·.,.s._, .... \'-
0

•..;• ----~~- ,_. ,._c::_-\_1 
.... e ... ,..,.' ·_ (.c...· .... t."-, ------,,.-------

Signature: __ \ .. ..,~·· _J_\. _________ _____ ·' ___ Date: ____ S /;~t_,_. _J~t., _ _ _ _ 

Print name of witness: _,_f__,.,,'-"::,,...%'--__,/'--1-..... /..._..,, __ ; fl._,__-'-'/,,. .... 1_..c_· __,_T_'""?, _____________ _ 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: ________ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignation 1s effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified 
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l . . 

My name is --'-U~l',_f\,_,_'\_) .'--'1V;<>,'
1
""-;;_V:....,' :..... _;c_l_l_;c_.--'p_1..,_i t_.-=· '-+--'f~}J"-1,_·_1 _b.-"·:;_:--~_" _i_0. I do hereby resign my job with 

----~'-· 1,~'~°(-~' ___________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

I 
_;:__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured 9r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

other:----------------------------'-----
. l .l I PrintName: • .~-:;•,:.,, 

], ·, -. 

Signature: ./!,:;t,:1
/ 

/- . 
Date: __ -.c..l ..:,

1
(...,,'---'--!_1,:;.~ _- __ _ 

fi ,' \,~ ,·; 
P - t f 't /'-- ' > / ! ,!.1-1~ I\: . . 1 -.~ rm name o w1 ness: --'--'-~...:-_, _-,;..,, __ 

1
,___-.,._-=-• ,..., -"-""···...:.' .,_, ___,_. ___ _.Jo....;.p-"-----------

__ .Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employe_r during my absence. I expect to return on: ________ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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...... / 

My name is {e L l11 1/ 1f) {.._;.-,,~ , i EZ. C / -1?. .J L _....--? . I do hereby resign my job with 

- --"-· ""'·:.___"--
1 _t _________ ___ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

·( I need t o return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured or has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

_ _ I want to quit my job. 

_ _ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: ____ ________ ______ ______________ _ 

Print Name: ~--J--.~~:~· .. ~·.=• .,.,-~~1~· ~c~r-·~-~' l--''--'--'·~S-~)_,._· - -· ~ii_l_-~··- ---- - -
7
-t...,._

1 
___ /,-, -/-"--,--

Signature: ---=~'---'- -------- --- ----- Date: ---~--~---l~--
Print name of wit ness: _,_['_-_:_, _'..,. _ _ .... 1...,.1,'--1~ .,_,_,.__, _>v_~_-~ ___ ·I_\.~_. ________ _ 

I 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _ _______ . I understand that if I do not, my 

rE-signat ion 1s e..ffect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified 
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My name is 0 /71/ ,l ~:(/11<1 /; ) /-f '&c L {(~'t., '. L . I do hereby resign my job with 

_______________ _ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

-LL I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured or has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

_ _ I want to quit my job. 

_ _ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: _ ____________ _ ________________ _ 

PrintName: / :; ( ., , bb .... b, 

r~>-' 
Signature: ✓-({.c?.f.-,;.:. 

b 11=·( ::1', Mt'\ 

Date: ____ -S);-'-C_-_J_.!-_ _ _ 

Print name of witness: { ~, 5;;, Jt '1A-tl t , , \. · f,-z -+;-"----_,_- ~ --~--~~-- - ---------

_ _ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _ _______ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignat ion is effect today._and US. Government agencies will be notified. 

JX 8 Page 95 
AR - 1597 Appx286

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 185      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



J 
. }A~· i p j> 

My name is __ -_)__,l'-'-,'!--'~-'J-'l_- _z _ f'-'-t_·.;_t ..;./_\ ,_1);_>__:.1\,1_.-:r-.;..-..:::!_. ~--· 1 do hereby resign my job with . } 
. , v _. (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that:I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured.or has died. 

...:i_ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

, . 

Other: _____________________________ _ 

Print Name: _ --~- '- '"_,~_-__ ·----'-----~-''- ',__·:. ___ ,'_:\_;,_, _,._,_· _·:._,_1_, _____ ··· ____ \ ___ 1'_,,_-_' .,..·~.....,..' --· _____ _ 
) / i ; ... 

Signature:-----=.,,,._·_ ,_._·.-----~,.--------Date: ·-; C, - I•> 

'C. ,,, / • . Print name of w itness: -~---- --~ _., __ / _,_: ""' -~1~( _ , _,_v __ . __ . ___ · ·- -~\ ..,·)_,~, _________ _ 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay.in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: ________ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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My name is ---'7(---:'<c.:;.).:....A;.::U=.:...: /c.__..;.l_,,_i;--'1"[==-·..,,_l--,--_l_L_i_('-'-) ..._f.:....' __ • I do hereby resign my job with . j 

--- ' ~.'7_· _ . ..,·•~· ___________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

~ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured or has died . . , 
_LI need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: ________________________________ _ 

Print Name: __ ........ '-_-.... , .... ' _..,i .... } '"",._,.._ . .... · ._,, •. -'-. ,-'-'; _ _;,-.,_,;.•..,.'->-=1..-... L=------------------

Signature: _ __./_ .... ~r .... , __ i _ _ ,._j ,_,_). _._( _ ••~;~-' ~ '~' .... •·~·,~__.t.......,\ _' 1 ... } ... ,-=· l __ • _____ Date: _ _ -_..5....!.../2..,,c:..:.. ,_-_.lc_;-:.:;s::;.----

Print name of witness: -..L·t-J __ ~..:..>_<-""x·-~/1....,_''-l ..:..t/!._._1.c...N_."""~ -----'--f----"-.X_" _________ _ 
I 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: ________ . I understand t hat if I do not, my 
resignation is effect today, ano US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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I 1t .,'f • .. y -~ Myname is ·1··i: IA.,r j.l <.:-
r► 

( 

/ _~ . ·,' t.J (:¢ ·r,✓ J· , . I do hereby resign my job with 
} 

--'-<.c..·,-_,._1_· ( ______ ______ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

LI need to return to my home country beca\)se a family member is sick or Injured or has died. 

x_ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

_ _ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. · 

Other:---------------- -------- -------

Print Name: _ _ ·.,__k_'_. -;---~ _.-.... ·,_._. ~-•-··~,=~;, __ •;~,--:~"-"_.-~Ir_' !:~-- ---- --::,-------
.. , LS/ J . 

Signature: __ __,._,_,._.,_._•.:.., _______ _ _______ Date: __ ·_,,<-_.-6'--_· ---=.S'----

Print name of witness: _ ...!,1_·( __ -'-_. . ..::"",....,::..· _ __,J'-11_ (.:...A-_ ..,_. _v_::r..1.:· ., ___ J_-·...,>:;..,;-,'------------

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _ _______ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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~ " ~ ' ✓ -rt 6--r:'" 1 I i ,.v:: - ) :;;, L- , t -
Mynarne is · , ,/': \..K C f- 1 r//i,/\.-/L,·✓ 0-, I.. ,v f Y- l:1cl6herebyresignmyjobwith 

. i j . 

_c'; ,/~ · 
1 

(farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contra0, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u~derstand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been·injured. 

_Jlt I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured,6r has died. 

_k_ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

_ _ Expect'to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence .. I expect to return on: _______ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignation is effect tccay, and US. Government agencies will be notified . 

... _ .......... + ............ _ ......... _ ... _ ....... .,., ...... ... ...... ... .......................... ...... ... ... .......... ........... .. .... ... ... ....... .......... .. ...... - .......... . ............ .. ' .. .... · - . .. . .. .. .. 
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My name is \)p, ll'/x l,,'[L G· ;:)J l:./i- A-;j~\A .,J . I do hereby resign my job with 
j 

__ ..,,L""-'v"-1...,['--•-----------(farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

~- .£_ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured or has died. 

'--J.. I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: _ _____________________________ _ 

Print Name: _L_.._; ..:.,,._/..,_,_' .:...1__.r_· ..... , ___ : _• ..... 1 · .. "'"' - • .. ; ..,_r-'-<--' ... '(;...__ __ ~_.-_> ... ,._0
·_....,_,,._· ..,_,, __ . ,'--''-'''-----~-------

r 01/i . A ., ✓_ - { E, Signature: _ ,.........:.'"-::.:'P:;..;.:.-·r _ · _· --------.---------Date: _ _,_ _ _,(,,_:,__..::L;__ __ _ 

Print name of witness: _ P.:....-_~_·_·-,._ ....... 2'---/1-..'+-/ ''-'4'-· ~f'--, ,._~_•.,..l' ___ _,,j'-.J.,+""------- ---

__ Expect to return to my job once I f inish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my ernplover during my abse,,ce. I expect to return on: ________ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, ard US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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· ]J\ 1 s 1-1 A£/ 1 

My name Is -'{"-'--F_._•,f_. _( '-! A~. ~)'-'J'-t...,.,'-~-1 -'-I.:... '\_
1
{=-- ..;.l '_· E_-...,t:_.>1-b}...,..,._h;.,._]""l;=-· ~'----' 1 do hereby resign my job with 

✓ • 

___ /-~---,..:.." -=-'--' _,._ __________ (farm name). 1 hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for t he reason listed below. 1 understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or Injured or has died. 

~ I need to return t o my home country because of personal reasons . 

. __ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:------- ------- - --------- - ----- -

\ \ l , I\ 
Print Name: t:\ ,., ( h> V . -... \,'.) r, l (,_q_> ; IC 'o D V m 'I \ CJ (. <( ,.,.. 

,f.'.,o 

Signature:._.,!~ ~.,..-t:~ "'- ------ - - -------,--- Date: .:./{ • I S 

Print nam~ of ~itness: _ _,_f_..,_ "'"-::7_.c. ... ?:....-_,_h _ _ l ~'-·_,-'--, ..:..·---._ '.;..t _ _ ....;J_p'--- ------- -'--­, 
__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. 1 expect to return on: _ _ _ _____ . I understand that if I do not, mv 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies w ill be not ified. 
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/, 1l . I ' C _)- . 
My name is /1.! 'fA,1 7)f) /"/r} iJf.tJ ·tf'J:· f' 1 1/1/.,ldo hereby resign my job with 

_____ :.=-:J_ v.,,_'__.,,_,-) _________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work tor the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

_ \_ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured or has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:------~--------,------------------

k,\ (, i, ,.l lZ ..:. Print Name: f\ 1,.; 1 1 .' \ ---1 1) 

. ' 
Signature: , . , ,:ii],';' 

Print name of witness: _,_;Z.-"'.._,'--'-s·,) __ 1,._•_,......,f flc:.e=--=-'-----__,_,_, _·J_-_,_&=---------------

--Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: ________ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resigr.ation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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/ . 

My name is /,J,,,/ J /(' (:- () . ) 

11-fr- 'fJ['/, ! / ,II' I · c /- ~- ff ) /Cg . I do hereby resign my job with 

-----~/. .... ~-' _ _ ;_, _______ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign fo r the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured or has died. 

_L_ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: -------------------------------

Print Name: ·-;;, ---1 -. \,.i ,.· ) (': i 1 } : " ') C:: 

Signature: 'X, -► -~ -

Print name of witness:-·-'--?."""'-.....,,_·,-'✓.""'•-._;:;..· --'-'fl,_. -'-\A--'-'-'1<.."--)_.-_, _c __ · ""'"\__._R,-=-. ___________ _ 

_ _ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence . I expect to return on: ________ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resigna tion is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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My name is ;/ 1,A f l); \)[ z ·1'11:--lZ:.L {v :.:>i fl i./ (.> . , do hereby resign my job with 
·"' I 

,' . 
' ) v' :,. · (farm name). I hereby acknowl.edge t hat!' have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I uni:lerstand I am requlred by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured· or has died. 

_l I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

- 0 h (,•·. · ' , ,-., 1' ( 
t er: ·· ,-c'',;z.1,,· .. < c , ,.,. i'' 1, , , •/ . 

, • ; I I 

Print Name: ( : f ,:71'·' 

· 1 

")/( - ( l. 
Signature:-------------,--------Date: __ , ~ '--· - /~---

,...--; /I .'j 
Print name of witness: /:~ ~ · , .. -.; / i ,., /;· r.:. , rJ ,_ • - ,\ •·it -'----"---~'--"=...;.~~-----'-t--'------~----
__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: ________ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 

,.._ .......... ......................... _ ......... . .... _ ..................... . ...... - . .. ........ . .. ,1., .... .,,. ........ ..... __ ..... ~ - · .. .. ......... _ ... .....__ - · -· - •• - • - .~ •·· 
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T) . ~ ,·) \ /{.. I 5}" ) .4 ;,./4 .,.1...-I... ll'.L . /''(, . I do hereby resign my job with 
, 

· ) 1/ C' 
(farm name). I hereby acknowledge that! have been offered additional 

work for the balpnce of my contract, however l resign for the reason listed below. l understand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured:or has died. /4 I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 
__ I want to quit my job. 

_ _ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 
Other: __________________________ ......,. ___ _ 

Print Name: \ t:/~e lf'g: uc·· ~~ '/'/( h<'.? 
Signature: ( y;;~,' 1 

'/ ,-, ) ·,, .. ' Print name of witness: _,_/l_~-'-~:_·,_-=-'--~-1--'c.:.· ·..:.r_,·;=.:1_,_/~_·_,_~ ___ .,,..\._,}:,,..:,,...---------
, 

_ _ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: ________ . I understand that if I do not, my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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. I do hereby resign my job with 

----~--' v_.-_'=~'-· ------- ~ ___ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that-I have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured . 

....s._ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured.or has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: - -.. ---,-r, - - --, ----1---- ------~---
p . , f) I , 1' \ , , -. . 

nnt Name: , ···1 . u .._.,- 11::t;r n , ; ,:c. ·· ) ,,. l 
/ ,:;; ) ... 

Signature: ----•-.;'·-, .... ·r-.._0_1,_•?_1 
·--------.-------- Date: __ ; ... · _,(...,,'--- / ~' '-; ___ _ 

Print name of witness:_,_/?_· _·· ....;·_' ....;>:c.· - ~/'-:1_·.;...'j'-/f-,._· ·.,._L"'"··_-=-1,_/ _J :....· ___ ..,..1'-·+'.l'-"--· ----------'-

--Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my abse11ce. I expect to return on: ________ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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My name is _j_ / 4 ,,/ t 1 &v f i ( f ca_·, . ·1r h-1. ."i· d . I do hereby resign my job with 
J 

7 ,.) ::,, (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract , however I resign for the reason listed below. I understand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified . 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

_:;s.._ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured or has died. 

_ _ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons, 

_ _ I want to quit my job. 

_ _ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: ------- - --- ------------------- -----
Print Name: / <:,r' .f <: S 

.5,· 
Date: _ __,_1/._.._c,_· _·· ,_; _5..__ __ 

Print name of witness: ·,£..., -· . :> } 1'\ 4 i2 , . v '-

--Expect to return to my job once I fi nish my_unexpected business. I understand that I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _ _ ______ . I understand that if I do not, my 

resignat ion is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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II 

My "•m• is 1'.h r :0 r,JQ ,a I eJ , Jaz)q . ldo hec,b,, ,.,,,~ty job with S JV (fa;m name). I hereby acknowledge that ~!~ave been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. l u · 'rerstand I am required by federal law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. ! .I 
_ _ I am sick or I have been injured. ! _I 
_ _ I need to return to my home country because a family member is ~ick or injured' t r has died. 
__ i need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. I 

Ii _ ,_ I want to quit my job. 
:,: 

1 

L_ Work has_ slowed down, and I would like to return home. 
I · 
I 

Other: _________________________ ..,.! ___ _ 

1: Print Name: .... f)_,_('\..,_R, ...... t~O----.,-H!--"O ....... R~A-""l~G-S _~A ...... c-o .... S ..... Y._A ____ ,,_. _ __.,!i~!: ----.--.-'''"''""<tto,:o o ,../. ~- Date, . 3/ f- / S Print name of witness: __,J?-.__-_· . .:a.>_2..""---;rb--1i..:.k......,£.=-=1_,./V__,,1.,_1 __ ·_·,..,.J_.-J>-r>----------+----
_ _ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. l understand tltiat I need to stay In contact with my employer during my absence. l expect to return on: _____ __ . l unders~nd that if I do not, my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. ' ; 

··························••t••·····································••-i-••········· 
.. . _ _j_ _ I I r 
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My name is [arL,v JJQjqu ~ 
--~:2~V_O~ __________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

. I do hereby resi 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u : erstand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies wlll be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured ?r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. i I 
__ I want to quit my job. 

V-Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: ~n---:--""""""------:---:-1---rl--:---------+1----

I : 
__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unders~nd that If I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notrfied. · i · 
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My name is ~,,~ / ,,/,._;y, Maro/c- .S . I do hereby resi :J VD (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I h·ave been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u : erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

L_ Work has slowed down, and I would like to r~turn home. 

.I I am sick or I have been injured. I - . I __ I need to return to my home country because a family member Is sick or injured1r has died. 
__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. \"i 

11 
I . 
!: 

Other:--------------------------+!,,_ __ _ 
Print Name: -e;,..c;.c..:L--<~~=---'-'~,:::;._-~..!.J.-,;.u.-£.:~.l:!.-----~-- - ..i..\ 1......_---,--.-

.----....__9-JS 
Print name of witness: --'L..-....::::.......::.._-1--µ.J.-"'...:.<~---..::L...P...-------'-.;...._---

' I __ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _ _ _____ . l unders}~nd that lf I do not, my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. · i 
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l (; f d €fe1 . I do hereby resig my job with 
My name is f/r.s eo A3u~/qv 
__ ..,._j,<.....a\/V---= __________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

__ l need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured!·· r has died. 
__ 1 need to _return to my home country because of personal reasons. l,. ,

1

. 
__ I want to quit my job. 

; 
,k. Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: -------------------------4-1-----
Print Name: £/;seo Aeiu, I ar Co Ider a I I 
Signature: 8du.£ 0 

Date: )' /? -JS 
Print name of witness: ___,P-_ -_·. /'-r -2'------lfl,__j+=--A-'---='e_=-"-', /V:__,l,_l __ · .... _...s~-J\i..::,,...------'. .... '. __ _ ~ 

.I 

__ Expect to return to my Job once I finish my unexpected business. 1 understand 1'iat I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I undersl~nd that if I do not, my . 
'. resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. · ' ·••····· .............. -..,_--- ... .. . . 
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My name is_.0"'--'5c,._._c"Jll" __ ~..,)=o,""'y.._,-'-'9:<....__~..,_,,_;\...,()~:<\~c,p~___.iA~•----· I do hereby resi , my job with __ _.,j.L....:J;_D~ __________ {farm name). I hereby acknowledge that i have been offered additionel 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u _ erstand I am required by federal 
law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies wlll be notified. 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

!1· 
- . _ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured : r has died. _ _ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. ! 
__ I want to quit my job . 

.x_ Work has slowed down, and I would like ·to return home. 
Other: _____ ____________________ ,..;. ___ _ 

Date: 

· ' __ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay In contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I undefS?,nd that If I do not, my res ignation Is effect today, and us. Government agencies will be notified. · 
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.-

( . 

I.I 
My name is -l-v~• ..... S.__._I .... \ Y\ ......... t ..... o.._.._h....,_; .... o--lCLC-G;w.;c., ------· I do hereby resig i my job with 
__ ..._j._'"'"V...,O"--__________ {farm name). I hereby acknowledge that! have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u : erstand I am required by federal law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 
_ _ I am sick or I have been injured. 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured :· r has died. 
__ I need to-return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job·. 

_½_, work has slowed down, and I would like to return home . . 
Other: ...:{ _______________________ ----;.-1-----

Print Name: L lJ IS ANlONIO l UNA Go/VLALEZI 
Date: 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~ at I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I undersi~nd that If I do not, my resignation Is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 1 
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) 

My name is l1;Jvel dl?JtJ J a.,,cu;Jo Jofo . I do hereby resi ' my job with __ .,._j~®--=------· _____ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that l have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u · erstand I am required by federal law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. I 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or lnjuredli r has died. 
__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. I 
__ I want to quit my Job. 

_i_ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:-------------------------....+-----
Print Name: .L-....._~""-''"'""'-~""".._.......,=---...,_..._.1o....A-..Jo<:n<:-""-..J..L---Jo.LJ""--<-'-'!:.....,.-- -...U.-~--
Signature· <?4<1!: Date: __ J._...;_'?_- JS-
Prlnt name of witness: __,fC._ ... _·. "-?"'"'2-..,f'---i+/,--"-'--£>=-1:..</V__,,l-l __ -._, J.,._- _,,-')!,,..,,__ _____ -''...:..'. __ _ 

__ Expect to return to my Job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay In contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I undersr~nd that if I do not, my . resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. '. i 
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I 

I. 
My name is V Qi v 

0

1 d ""f lo"° <Z, S ::J \ o Yo:: 5 . I do hereby resi I, my job with ,:2 VD (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u ! erstand I am required by federal law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 
•I __ I am sick or I have been injured. !l 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured .' r has died. 
__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. ! \ 
__ I want to quit my job. 

_}(_ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 
Other: __________________________ ...,.. ___ _ 

Print Name: Do. ~ C '{ q:_ .S 
..... ..:;=....v...""r-------'-_,wa..--"'--....... ----'--~-___..;:::::;_.. _____ _._,_ ____ .,-

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ilJat I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I underst~nd that if I do not, my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. ' i ............................ _____ .., ... ...... . 
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My name is J Sa n \:0$ $ D:\- C C:11 , r t O \cl . I do hereby resig , my job with --~:S~V_o=-·-----'------(farm name). I hereby acknowledge that, havEl been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I uj erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. , 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. ! ·1 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured t r has died. 

I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. · 
-~ I want to quit my job . 

.i...,.. Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:-------------------------...+-----

Signature: ___ qi!;;==-_______________ Date: __ _,__...;.9_- JS 
Print name of witness: _,_g_ ... _··"""> ...... 2 __ 

1
+b--1if-'A_,_-..,£..--'1CL/V~l,_1 __ ._ .... ....,.J .... -:y.,..J.i--------'':_._l---

--Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~ at I n"eed to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I understilnd that If 1 do not,-my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
1 

· 
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My name is NO r b~v ±o C-z C• t C; C' ( e 7 \; c., Q 1(" ':-,. I do hereby resfg~ my job with 

:J VD (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that j have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u •~erstand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

1 
j 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. l·j 
I need to return to my home country because a family member Is ,lck or injured i r has died. 

I __ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

_::i. Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: _________________________ ..,.I ___ _ 

Print Name: _ _ +'k ....... Jod--'-1 -t-L--..... c ...... 1 .... ·;-.... , ..... ' _(,___.-2 ...... ,,~tc_.: ..... o.__ ..... (.,...._· Ci..,.1cY .... \i'""''a,,_.., ..... )J .... '. C'-"--'-S-.,.---- \ .... _1 ~? .... 1/-~<7 - Jc-
Signature: --~.._._, _______ --,, ________ Date: 

1 
_ 1 ..:..J 

Print name of witness: _ __,g'--__ ·. ::;..:>_2'----1}1'--Ji+-l/r'--'-£..-..1'-"/V~l-1 __ '_·.,.J"_,)\µ.... _______ '...:..\ __ _ 

Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _ ______ . I unders~ nd that If I do not, my 
resignation Is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. ! · 
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My name is ·4-oJpl( Q De le, c cv ~ Mp ca \e $ . I do hereby resi . my Job with 

j \/t> (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional I work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u ' erstand I am required by federal' 
law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

I 
I am sick or I have been injured. 1·1 = I need to return to my home country because a family member Is ,ick or injuredlb r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

_!:{__ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

,,I 
I :1 
! 
i ' 
! 

Other: _________________________ ... \ .__ __ _ 

PrintName: Ro~ol,o Pt<CS (,(0 7 r'.J( '.-n>,\<t,~ J---.-,.-
Signature: -d: Date: _ · ,~ / S 
Print name of witness: _f?-,___-_·· .... :>........,2_-rp_1f-"'A--....__£.-.., ... fV __ (,_1 __ , ___ 1 ... ··J'+ . ..._ _____ .... •-;-· __ _ 
__ Expect to return to mv job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand t,liat I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unde~nd that if I do not, my 
resignation Is effect to~ay, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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My name iQ110.n ~\:'Q,..~s::»:S'~¼ ~IJ-"D'( . I do hereby resig my job with 

__ .... S~v;_V:,,__ __________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason llsted below. I u . erstand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. I 

\1 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. : i 

I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured br has died. 
I 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. ] \! 

-~' want to quit my job. 1 

.$.. Work has slowed down, and I would !Ike to return home. 

Other: --------------------------4-----
Print Name:.,_;.)µ..i 0.>.A.Dw,.._r::;k\~,Cl4,.1..0u.,,::R~\..i.._C::.:::,,.o.C\.1..S:O>.l...J~i.lif~~J.:>~..llaoJ-..J:A!~e~\,lw)~\\...i,Q-~~--~---.LL--,.--r-

Signature: ~ Date: -.---...,___9_- J 5 
Print name of witness: _,_f_..:;....::;:>----:;':,_....,h ..... _li1k'-'---'E..=-'-, .,_/v_;(,.,._: __ ·-_, ,..._r-+'5>,-"--____ _..;.. __ _ 

J 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I underst~nd that if I do not, my 
• I • 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. · • · 

. . . . . . . .. . .... . . ... ' .. .. ' . ..... ............. . .... ... . .... . . . . ... . 
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My name Is CS,f-t bi~ ttl«:odPZ.Cl 5o+o. I do hereby resi • my job with 
· j/D · (farm name). I hereby acknowledge thatf; have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u 

I 

erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies wlll be notified. I 
__ I am sick or I have been Injured. . i I 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member Is sick or injured r has died. 

- __ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. i 

_ _ I want to quit my job. 

-A- Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. l[ .

1 

Other:--------------------------+·+-· ___ _ 

Print Name: ➔t~:'.!:}~..l.6.&..1-..i-.u...JL..L.1...A.1..~;.A,,..__::;~:::::._~~~-.-1l'·~--y-/~o _ / ,e-­
Signature: ---""'11!!!!!1:!9----""'-------.--------- . _ r o 

' Print name of witness: _;l.,__:::---=:.._-1-....:...l-.!..l....!..a..!...(~---~~--------"..:....---

--Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~ at I need to stay in contact with . my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _ ______ . I understjlnd that If I do not, my resignation Is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 'i 
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My name is Kc\tG\e\ (ct \/Ci n\<.) Q,/Mf ;{di. I do hereby resig ' my job with 

---~~J~D~ __________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 
work for the balance o:f my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u . erstand I am required by federal 

law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. i. 
i 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured ·. r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

_£ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: --------------------------+l..-1 ___ _ . , 
l': Print Name: --A--'-'=~:e:l..).....L.._-.:-~a..!...L..1..u.;L.-1.:e..:!.. __ ::::::....l!.J¥.ll.lo...:-.::U:__ _ ___ ..J..L1 ----.-

~; 1/r- JS 

Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand t½at I need to stay in contact with 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unders~hnd that if I do not, my 
' ' 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. · ! 
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My name is 41n C';if\CC. G(\ (C,er1£A.S . I do hereby resig . my job with j \/D (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that ;~have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u · erstand I am required by federal law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. J 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. _ _ ·1 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member ls sick or injured i·' r has died. 
__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 
_ __ I want to quit my job . 

..X. Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 
Other: _~,__ ______________________ ..,1.1.. ___ _ 

. ' Print name of witness: -'--......:;.----+-,-:..,...-...:..<--->----"-,J.;,...---------..;._---
__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . l understimd that if l do not, my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. ' · 
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My name is _Af,____,_4_,_J,....· .,~_,_b .... l U....._y➔J .... a .... d..,.o.._____.O~\ .... v ... r .... Y4"--'-, ----· I do hereby resi , my job with 

__ · .._j~\/-'(l..__ __________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that ! have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I ut: erstand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agendes will be notified. iJ 
__ 1 am sick or I have been injured. ;1·· 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured!':' r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. ] i 
I 

i -7t to quit my job. 

£ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

_._Other: ____________________ _..., __ _ 

II Print Name: b{4q>11./ · ~ -1/Sl'!AOC 

Signature: (@i@1 .J 2) Date: , 
1 

Y / 9 - JS 
Print name of witness: __,Jc.'--.._._· . .:::.'.>"""""2 _ _,)1'--,+1..,ft._£,...._,'-'l"_'..,l-i __ "_.,._1°,_,-'.)\,_,,.__ _____ --':-+-\ __ _ 

,- .f 

Q\V\;.t.A. 

Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact with 
-- '1 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I underst~nd that if I do not, my 

resignation Is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. r i 
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I 
i 

My oame ;, C- i 1e//o U,, 1 ...d:_e, . ¼~ ~( .,, . ldo he,eby ,esfg ty job w;th 
--~:S....,;.J_t>=--__________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u : erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies wlll be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. !' 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is oick or injured i r has died. 

I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. :, .. 

1 
-~ I want to quit my job. 

L Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. j l 
Other: ____ -r----------------------.1+----

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~~at I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: ________ . l underst~nd that If I do not, my 
resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. ' · 
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My na~e is -,; 1 n • d od -'\9 u I I ot ~gt-o . I do hereby resig ! my job with 
__ ..._S"--"-J-'t>,,__ __________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that! have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u · erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

! 
__ 1 am sick or I have been Injured. · ' ] 

I need to return to my home country because a family member Is sick or injured! • r has died. 
__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. I· 
__ I want to quit my job. 

~(.'~r~ has slowed down, and I would like to return home. : ~ '\' . I 
Other: ___________________ -,.;!!1---

Print Name: Tf 111 ,de1c/ A::3 u I I a ( '.e)o½-a . 
Signature: 4!1j' Date: , 

1 
)' /? -/ S 

P~int name of witne: ~i __ l'_, __ >~>-2~· --./L~/,+'&t~ E...~1_/J~l-1 __ '_, _f...,J,,......... _______ :-;-'.---
--Expect to. return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~~at I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . l unders\!md that lf I do not, my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. '. l ._ ........... ____ .. _______ .._ .... ..... .. . . 
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My name isffenP?{s+O c~.( 1 o Jo C~"' ye.. :n~c: · . I do hereby reslg! my job with 
:S VV (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that 1!have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u ~erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 1 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. i·I 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured tr has died. 

__ I nee~ to return to my home country because of personal reasons. · 

__ I want to quit my job . 

..L_ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:-----------------------------...!-----
Print Name: /-haozo 4-~ 
Signature: ~~ · 
Print name of witness: fc. ~ = )1//A-£.. , JV l) 

> 

Date: 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand 1j~at I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: ________ . I unders~~nd that If I do not, my 
resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. · i 
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My name is &.&do C1a )~ndo f<e:Ye) .ldoherebyresi , my job with S\/D (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that j have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u~ erstand I am required by federal law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. l 
__ 1 am sick or I have been injured. 

,•i 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or Injured ·. r has died. 
__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 
__ I want to quit my job. 

~ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: --------------------------4-----i ! 
!I 

Print Name: A fFrt;d p C10... \'anJo 
Signature: ifJt1tt Date: )' / 9- JS 
Print name of witness: _f?-,_~_·_>.....:::z:-_,b_1,...,A-"'-'£"=-'-'' /V:......,l._l ___ ·-,_,J._:j\+:>--------=•..!,\ __ _ . , __ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~~at I need to stay In contact with my employer during my absence. I expect ta return on: _______ . I unders~~nd that if I do not, my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. ! i 
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11 

I 
My name is,'£ t/c,H'f Vo-.,,~,..-s VeK&,%<&5 . I do hereby resig , my job with :;z\/D (farm name}. I hereby acknowledge that i~have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u · erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. I 

_ _ I am sick or I have been injured. I 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member Is sick or injured tr has died. 

I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 
1 • 

' __ I want to quit my job. 

:J,._ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: __________ 

1
1,~·-· _ Print Name: ,_/l++{ ...,V..,.o-;;;..;&J.Y"IG.--"'(/'-'C>-<.::..:..r y~.,.s....__+<[/'-',.-"'""'"'"""e~7=-1-e=.S'---------,-- --'--.__ ------,.-

. Signature: ~ll .... t-/l .... c:,.,.,_7'.,_.6,..__y.._,-~..,_r..,,.~~s..___v'.,.:<'!.~x--=-----c-..,~'"""'-..s~--- Date: 1/ 5' - / S Print name of witness: ~fl_-_· ~.?_.2,__ __ 
1
.,..b_i"'"A--~£.~1~~__,l-1 --'~J_-J,.,........ ______ .,...... __ _ 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~~at I need to stay In contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unders~nd that if I do not, my 
'' 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. · ' 
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l! I: 
MynameisJM11"'\ [we~Ja (t117O Jo (1,vqn➔fy:ldoherebyresig : my Job with 
_ ........,)'"""-'1/"----"'D'-_________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract. however I resign for the reason listed below. I u erstand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notifled. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. ! 1 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is 6ick or injured t r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 
11 

ii 
__ I want to quit my job. 

_::J-- Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:------------------------...+----
Print Name: ..,J .... u...,{A"'"'rt_..___,l..,.....,"-'t:'1 .... f:+'d"-'o...__6-a ...... 1 ;'-'-od~O...____..G .... CXl ......... ~ .... n ........ .\-~_j""--~ 
Signature : ~~~ut=I:• ~------.--------Date: 9- JS 
Print name o~: _._g_ ..... _ .. ..;:;>_2'--_,.fi_i+-'A-""'-'£...=-'-'' ''""rJ--'l._\ ___ ~, ... J ... 1,+""--------+----
--Expect to return to my Job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay In contact with . my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unders~nd that if I do not, my 
resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. : ; 
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I 

My aame ;, &£, di! cl Ma,/ , e n.. C 'vVa nj-< -~ • I do he,eby ,.,) my Job -'th 

:2 VD (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that il~ave been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u 

1
perstand I am required by federal 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notlfled. J 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. · .I l 
__ I need to _return to my home country because a family member Is sick or injured r has died. 

_ _ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. • 

_ _ I want to quit my job. 

_x.. Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: _ _ _________ ~ ______________ ...;_j ___ _ 

I 
I Print Name: _'--.&J<C-'-'-1.;..,...._ __ .._~....._.,_,ca...:.-..-. _ _._...,._-'-'"--"':;..u...,_.:...-"-,., : I 

Signature: _ ___.,~~~;..._-----:.--------- Date: 1/? -JS 
Print name of witness: _ fe'----·· ... :>_2'--_)1_11!-'A:'-'-'£...=-''-'-/V__,·l_1 -----.-"s .... ·i+-."-------''~I ---/ -~ ..p 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand tiat I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: ________ . I undersl:~nd that if I do not, my 
resignation Is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notlfled. ! : 
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My name is y1°fl°l0 f\~ U ?tar V\o.(i 1/ L'L . I do hereby resi ! my job with 
___ :S~l)~[>~► __________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that! have been offered additional work for the balance of mv contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u :perstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 1 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 'l 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured . r has died. 
__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. i I 
__ I want to quit my job. ! . 
::i.._ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:--------------------------;+----

____ ?-IS 
j ! 

Print name of witness: -'--_..:c~'---+-i-=-i-=a..:.<--->---..,.._+.=>---------'-"-' __ _ 
I· _ _ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~~at I need to stay In contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unders~ nd that lfl do not, mv resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencl2s will be notified. · ! 
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Ii 

My earn~ ,, =Jose. L1l2 ~ i)oul ''oo. ldo ho,eby ,.,,. t, Job with 

S VV . (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u 

law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

erstand I am required by federal 

I 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member Is sick or injured! . r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

_'_ I ~o quit my job. 

_/w_ Woorrkk h h;as slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

,. 
! 
1 

i 
! 

_...L....-'--9-JS 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~~at I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I e><pec;t to return on: _______ . I unders~~nd that if I do not, my 

resignat ion is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. : ; 
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My name is r;·o;,wo C,dkt, flaa1«0 . I do hereby resig my job with 

.'.] JV (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 
I 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason llsted below. I u . erstand I am required by federal 

law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. ! 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member Is sick or Injured i r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

__){_ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: ------------ --------------l-+-----

11 

Print name of witness: _r"--~-·· .::;>-·:...._-1----1~...!=c.!J._.:,,~--~~--------'-·.;..\ __ _ 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand i,;at I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I underst~nd that if I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. ' ; 

JX 8 Page 133 
AR - 1635 Appx324

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 223      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



I 

f . < I I My name is l 1ro\l.,r,r,1 ck S.,.~...,) d, ( f+riy-c,R ct.{a~ • I do hereby resi my job with 5 vo (farm ~ame). 1 hereby acknowledge that ;rhave been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u ! erstand I am required by fuderal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. _ I 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or Injured.tr has died. 
__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. i\ 

11 _ _ I want to quit my job. 
1 _x_ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: _________________________ ..;_j_ ___ _ 

Print Name: G €o\/Ci (' /\ i do j.,.-;._, / co.I Ao· ( 5-:r~ 5 

S;gaaMe, ('<o¼,oC d, ,';,:s "L~-1 ;."" __ Q,rte, 
Print name of witness: fc.-·-::?? }1 ~ 1 /V~ ·, j 'jl., r . 

I! 
I \ 

Ii 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I understand that if I do not, my ,. resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 

JX 8 Page 134 
AR - 1636 Appx325

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 224      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



II 

My name is ·. · , • -;;:d 1 "9 c.' r,, c)ft4,, . I do hereby resig~(, job w;tt, :J VV {farm name). I hereby acknowledge that i' have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u erstand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. I 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. I 
__ 1 need to return to my home country because a family member is ~ick or injured1 ·, r has died. 

I. 
1--- I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. \ I 

__ I want to quit my job. \ \ 

L Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:-------------------------++-----'-
Print Name: ..,_'ll.,,..,_c,:..::==-..,.__....1-,:_J,.'---.!::..!..J,c__--1....Ly<:-,<* ________ .,.-_ _;_-L--,~-r-

Signature: '.'C);w; A-CJt:- lr,a..~ (,. cJL.A~ Date: .,-..___9- JS 
Print name of.witness: "fe....:: >:;Aj;~ll , fi, i: '. r •! 

__ Expect to return to my Job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand tnat I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I understi)nd that if I do not, my 
resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. ! i 
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My name is ({rla ( he l'6Dj Gs C < zd e \:::0 . I do hereby resig my job with 

__ ..,.:J...___.J'--V-"-__________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that have been offered additional 

work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

erstand I am required by federal 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. i 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured :, r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

_ _ I want to quit my job. 

_:;/.work has"Slowed down, and I would like to return home. ' 

Other:------------------,--------+!+----

£SC Ci~Q:)rd) ~ ; 

Signature: Date: ? - JS 
Print name_o_f_w_i-tn-e-ss-;~=fc-==~=·· =:>=2=·· ===

1
=b=1==Jt==£..==, rJ==l=)====,=-=J~-'.)\p.._ __ -_-_-__ ---:··..:.:---

Print Name: 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~~at I need to stay in contact with 
1 1 

my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I under~~nd that If I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies wiffb~ notified. · ' 
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!! 
My name is Co,(\~,.) G ~ 1.. Qc: f'c"S . I do hereby resig~ my job with 

:2 JD (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that~ have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u erstand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. ! I 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. j I 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured ? r has died. 

;! 
_ _ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. ! 

__ I want to quit my job. 

+ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: ----- -------------------...+----

Print Name: -~< ..... ~ .......... ,l,-o~":>...__(?._._._-r-u ... L.__,/lv,.....c..,,.f::: ... e..._.S ___________ --,--~ - J ,c-

Signature: C<w(rp/ C,vv,Z. ~""~ Date: .~ .._J 

Print name of witness: ~ .; :>:;; .n/l;e_ I rJ L1 ' , fi ! I ~ -r. -P 

_ _ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand t~at I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unders}~nd_ that if I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. · ! 

. . . ...... ~ ...... .......................... i..:... .................. . 
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My name is 2,u, ", /}/ 6, t -le, hu QQ.t] de. c :20-v1
(\ l ), . 1 do hereby resig , my job with 

--~j~J~[>~ __________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that l have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. l u ·11erstand I am required by federal law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. II 

1-__ I am sick or I have been injured. •1· 

__ i need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured .' r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. • 
_ _ I want to quit my job. 

~ Work has slowed down, and l would like to return home. · ! 
l Other:-----------~-------------++----

AL\\£ ?:---Tc:2 HC11~9 JD£.2 zevf~ 
Slgaat,,e, '.k.,,, ~ '7/~ Date, ,~ / S · 
Print name of witness: 'fc.. ...:,•;= /i1A-£ 1 (':\: ·,,-f :J, - ; \ . 

Print Name: LU IS 

__ Expect to return to my job once l finish my unexpected business. I understand ~~at I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. l expect to return on: _______ . I unders~ nd that If I do not, my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
1 

i 
... - ~ .. . .......... . . , .. . . .. • , . .. .... ~ .... .... . .. ... . . . 
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I 
-1 

My name is }f r'I:/ 0, n d c> 0f2 i 1q, b 01.I> t) 5 q . I do hereby resig :1 my job with 

--5.Jv · (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that l have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u : erstand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

! 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. !l 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. l ! 
i : __ I want to quit my job. 1 i 

h Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. ! ! 
; i 

Other: .. .c.· ________________________ ! .... I ___ _ 

Print Name: A-ANAN 0p Tf1 P-iA eAB80:!A l!i_ 
Signature: Irr m411do fu, ·o.. · tJ. Q { bt1c£_·g Date: 

1 
Printnameofwitness: fe...:.·b biA-£.,~=1 ', fi J ..p 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~~at I need to stay In contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I undersr~nd that If I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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My name is S,)a..y( Q Q w\:l, C: 1- (_ \..cc:g_Jc,31 do hereby resig : my job with 
~ VD (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that!; have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason llsted below. I u ! erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member Is sick or injured r has died. 
- .-1 need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 1 
- ·- I want to quit my job. 

_ii Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 
Other: _____________________ ..,!~\ __ _ 

Ii 
I I 

Print Name: -S-: )0, 0 Q O M; x e .~ C l l ~\K:' ~ 
Signature: dl..l~ \4,~ 1.,-,h, .1"' ~ Date: 
Print name of witness: re, .,:_.'.>=}& , /V l ' ~-Ji , \ ' 

' __ Expect to return to my Job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _ ______ . I \mders~nd that If I do not, my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. ! i 
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I 

n l. 
My name is a"'1C') ( · Ca-1 qa US,,y r Vf-l✓ • I do hereby resigj' my job with 

___ S~'~v_o~ __________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that\ have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u · erstand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member Is sick or injured • r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 
ll 

__ I want to quit my job. j 
L Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. , 

I 
Other: ------------------------+I;--__ _ 

'.'. 

Print Name: v/1A (j C1 A A{_ rA 
s;'"'""' () 41'l f" G,. ~ , 
Print name of witness; 1{.. ..:,-'.? ; bf/ie_ 1 /'Y L1 

> 

Date: 

. ' 
_ _ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand il'iat I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I underst~nd that If I do not, my 
resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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My oam, '' ,£m Gm dalrip,, G,rcLa Gr:cb.o . I do hereby resl~ my job with · 

) VD (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that 1Jhave been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u :perstand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. I 

l 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. ] 

I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or inJ'ured 6r has died. 
- :1 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 
1 
j 

ii __ I want to quit my job. ! 

.)s_ Work has ~lowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:----------------------+'!-----

Print Name: ,£:;b; Gir,;k~'ipe Garc5a (o,ct::1bC} i !'. 
"•"""" ,£,a ~pfu\,~ ~'f" G:"" o,,, , : 
Pnnt name of witness: fc....,.? i ___jj_k£. 1~ "·fJ, . , 

. , 
__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unders~nd that If I do not, my 
resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. : ' 
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I 

I 
My nam,e Is A\eyod (Q p O me { o G.r<edoodo, do hereby resi i: my"job with 

--~S~J_D~ __________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that! have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u ·oerstand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. l 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. t' 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member Is sick or injured : r has died. 

_ _ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. ! I 
__ I want to quit my job. i 

i 
I 

X Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other=------------------------+r-----
Print Name: ~L£:J:A ND'60 30ME 150 AF5 l:3fDoNDd, 
s;g"''"" Ai e-Jcmd~ . C =orrr.7tJirmioo~ Dato _ • • 
Print name of wit ness: ~ - ..? -2. -J}.1-tt I/Vil '1')\ 

Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ttlat I need to stay in contact with - -
I' my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I under5l~nd that lf I do not, my 

resignat ion Is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. , ; 
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My name is PL:: DA O 2 // [3 (/ L.A J/Lt1A,4.{z4cio hereby resi 

--~S"---'-v_v;..._ __________ (farm name}. I hereby acknowledge that i have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u erstand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notlfled. 

_)(. Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. . j:j 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is ,ick or injured r has died. 

I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 
1 

_:_ 1 want to quit my job. . l l 
i I 

l,l Other:------------------------+, .. f-----

\\ 
1 I 

PrintName: 0£DB-o ?ftfJAU± AJ.A,jQ;t/2.,4 
Signature: &tee, 2, A Date: 1/ 9 - / S 
Print name of w!tness: __,f_..,__,· >::......2<---+fl--+1..a.A:"--"£..o;..:..., /V'--'l._1 __ ·,_,""j-JJ-""----------,';..,.!---~ 

ti 

Expect to return to my i· ob once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact with -- ' I my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unde~and that if I do not, my 
resignation Is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. : 1 
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I 
I 

My a am, Is 1',;;.;-" ./4a,,,zt ) .;; 0k i?c-PJ ,?,y;z . I do he,eby ,e,lg ,I my job with 
------':J"""--'V:::......::D'-_________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u~ erstand I am required by federal law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 
__ I am sick or I have been injured. :I 
__ I aeed to ,et,m to my home co,aw beca,,e , f.mUy membe, 1, ;;,k o, iaj,,ed t, ha, died. 
__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. · 
__ I want to quit my job. 

-4 Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 
Other: ________________________ ++-----

\ I 

:: 
'' __ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact wlth my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unders~nd that If I do not, my res ignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. '. i 
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ii 
My name ;, ,£2 ,'u rfl L,L , 1, ,l . I do he,e"' re,lg my job w;th 

:J\/(l (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that; have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u · erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 
1 

!. __ I am sick or I have been injured. 1 ·1 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member Is sick or injured ~r has died. 

I __ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. , I 
i I 
i: i I 

_ __ I want to quit my job. 

ll/; work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: ~...c..::::.._.;i~!.!.:..W.!a~--'-"--"'--....:l:c....,..,,.-"'-'"'P-11.,.L--------.......:.-1----

Print name of witness: __;c__....a:;-;._-1--1..!..!.-=:.!.I:--"---~~---------.:_---
' _ _ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at I need to stay in contact with my employer during my abse_nce. I expect to return on: _______ . I under51fnd that if I do not, my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified . 

..,. __ .............. ~-· ..... ... ......... -. ............. . 
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My name Is N ·, (_ ~ L ~s ~ \\ 'f~ ~ <'..; \::-\<) )':\ "2. 0 . I do hereby resig my job with 

---:J~V_(l~ __________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u erstand I am required by federal 
law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member Is ~ick or injured r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit my job. 

"::i,._ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other:-----------------------------

ii 

Print name of witness: --''--_:::;..-:;_-+--+~=--"L--"'---....,.,..+-0~-------,-+,---
--Expect to return to my Job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ~at i need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I under~nd that If I do not, my 
resignation Is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. · ! ............................. -~~-................ .... -----~ -·· ... -. . . ...... . 
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1 • 
! 

~ I 
I My nam,e is J(w;; bu1$ S ~ fvq_ L.ope:z. . I do hereby resi~ my job with . · S vv (fann name). 1 hereby acknowledge that ,1have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u ' erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. r 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. i 
__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is ~lck or injured!:· r has died. 
__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

,. 
I' 

li __ I want to quit my job. 

x_ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 

Other: -=..----,------------,---,--=-:-----++----­
Print Name: LL.--'--~~-.1o::::...i~i:::...:::::..----'~-=-=......1-'-.!..-.&:::=...1..--lf=-...;2~ _ _....L..__,_-r-

s;'"''"'" J;,,. Ws 5 / /£« ~"'-
Print name of witness: 1(. ._:.. > 2 )1,,( 1 JV l \ 

I 

Date: ....---'---'--? - IS 
; ! 

1 • Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand ttlat I need to stay in contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unders~~nd that If I do not, my resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. · ' 
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:1 I. 
My name is Eduordo J e-\o. ·C:fvZ- M..o.r-,b n <...L . I do hereby resig .• my job with 
__ .,._j"-'-\)--'(=--1 

__________ (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u · erstand I am required by federal law to return home immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. 
I 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. _ ! ·1 · 

__ I need to return to my ~ome country because a family member Is sick or injuredlr has died. 
__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. l I 
__ I want to quit my job. ! I 
X_ Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 11 

'! Other: _________________________ -++----

II PrintNarne:t d.ro,.rAA ,¼ \o.. 'C,ytJ")... t\o..rii.YI c..2-­
s;g,ato,e, b ,\uc•r ~0 ek- \a cv• '- :;: ,f i 11 .- -;, . Date, 
Print name of witness: J?_ ..:_. 7 2 f0._;£_ '~-\ ··:S-1:,, '. '. I . 1 

Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand t½at I need to stay In contact with my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I unders~nd that if I do not, my resignation Is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. : : 
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I 
.l 

My name is ~aUS CC f.1Z;,t~ £{; [ /J(1101 J R, . I do hereby res lg i my job with 

,:J \)(l (fann name). I hereby acknowledge that ;fhave been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. l u ' erstand l am required by federal 
law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notlfled. 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. 'j 
_·_I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured r has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. . j 
l 

_ _ I want to quit my job. ii 
L- . i i 

Work has slowed down, and I would like to return home. 1: 
Other: _________ _ _ ___________ ,...! .... I __ _ 
~ -,- ,-, - n _1\1 Print Name: :r:4: t,lGiSCo ug"U ier: r\"f) 0 '(\ +',Cl08c+:t i 

Signature: V:«ac ;15 ca M,1i ~~:e£ , ~~ Date:_ , 
1 

?7 9 - / S 
Print name of witness: _· __,fc-'----._,,-· . .:;;.> ........ ;'-----+---1-lr .... _ ..... ·e: ___ ,.._JJ__,.<,_• _. __ ,_:[..,, _~"1.,;-.,__ _______ , __ : __ _ 

/ ~ I 

__ Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand t;l,at I need to stay in contact with 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I under~nd that If I do not, my 
resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. · ' ---
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I.I 

. My name is t/4.rco 610 '5 3Au tJ .s:tA' . I do hereby resig I my job with 

.'.J JP' (farm name). I hereby acknowledge that I have been offered additional 
work for the balance of my contract, however I resign for the reason listed below. I u 1perstand I am required by federal 
law to return home Immediately and US Government agencies will be notified. i J 

__ I am sick or I have been injured. . /:i 

__ I need to return to my home country because a family member is sick or injured tpr has died. 

__ I need to return to my home country because of personal reasons. 

__ I want to quit m·y job. 

_)(_ Work has slowed down, and I .would like to return home. 

Other:--,,------------------------.;+----

s;goatmec /li r C O 7:: / , s: ~• n '~:. Oat" 

Print name of witness: 1Z- .:,-:> 2 h1A:::__J_ l~ -~ J, 

· Expect to return to my job once I finish my unexpected business. I understand t1lat I need to stay In contact with 
-- ' I 
my employer during my absence. I expect to return on: _______ . I undershmd that lf I do not, my 

resignation is effect today, and US. Government agencies will be notified. 
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UNITED ST A TES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
NEWYORK,NY 

IN THE MA TIER OF: 

SUN VALLEY ORCHARDS, LLC, 

Respondent. 

TO: CHIEF ADMINISTRA TJVE LAW JUDGE 
Office of the Administrative Law Judges 
United States Department of Labor 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CASE NO. 2016-T AE­

ORDER OF REFERENCE 

Pursuant to a timely request by Respondent for a hearing on the assessment of 

$369,703.22 in unpaid wages and $212,250.00 in civil money penalties, a hearing has been duly 

determined to be appropriate and pursuant to regulations is therefore required to be held to 

inquire into matters arising under the provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA), 8 

U.S.C. § 11 OJ, et seq. as amended by the Immigration Reform Control Act of 1986, Pub. L. 99-

603, § 301 , I 00 Stat. 3359, 3411 and the implementing regulations. 

The unpaid wages and civil money penalties were assessed on June 22, 2016, pursuant to 

29 C.F.R. § 501.16(a)(]) as a result of alleged violations of regulations, as described in the June 

22, 2016 Notice of Determination, including but not limited to 20 C.F.R. § 655.122(g) (failure to 

comply with meals requirement), § 655. I 22(p) (failure to comply with requirements regarding 

paycheck deductions), and § 655. I 22(i) (failure to comply with the three-fourths guarantee). The 

Administrator hereby amends the June 22, 2016 Notice of Determination to allege that 

Respondent also violated: (1) § 655. 122(p) by making unreasonable deductions from workers' 

paychecks, insofar as Respondent sold workers beverages and other goods at a profit and/or in 

violation of state law; (2) § 655. I 22(i) by terminating workers without cause; and 3) 29 C.F.R. § 
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501.5 insofar as Respondent improperly sought to have terminated workers waive their rights. 

The Administrator also hereby amends the June 22, 2016 Notice of Determination to allege that 

Respondent owes a total of $376,697.61 in unpaid wages and $212,250.00 in CMPs. 

The matter is accordingly hereby referred to the Chief Administrative Law Judge for 

designation and hearing in accordance with the INA, its implementing regulations, and 29 C.F.R. 

§ 501.37(a). 

Enclosed hereto for tiling of record pursuant to 29 C.F.R. § 501.37(a) are copies of: (1) 

the Not ice of Determination issued to Sun Valley Orchards, LLC on June 22, 2016; and (2) 

Respondent's timely request for a hearing dated July 20, 2016. 

r,I 
Dated and signed at New York, New York, on this ~ day of December 2016. 

JENNlFER S. BRAND 
Associate Solicitor of Labor for 
Fair Labor Standards 

. ( . 
~ ,' r ''J I 

J 
Trial Attorney 

Office of the Solicitor 
201 Varick St, Room 983 

· New York, NY 10014 

Attorneys for the Administrator 
Wage and Hour Division 
United States Department of Labor 
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United States Department of Labor 
Wage and Hour Div ision 
3131 Princeton Pike 
Buildi ng 5, Room 216 
Lawrenceville, New Jersey 08648 
Tel. (609) 538-8310 
Fax (609) 538-8314 

Dntc: J une 22, 20Hi 

CERTIFIED M,\JL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED: 7013 1710 0001 5882 0:\76 

To: Sun Valley Orchards, LLC 
A ttn: i\fr. Rui.sel l J. Marino, J1·. 
2.9 Vestry Rond 
S.ilcm, New J er sey 08085 

Subject: Notice of Detr.rmina1io11 of Wi'tges Owed and Assessing ('ivil Money 
renal lies 

Case H.efercnce Number: J7653.'i9 

Dear Si1 (s): 

An inve~tigalion conducted by this oiiicc of Suu Valley Orchards, LLC d/b/a Su11 Valley 
Orchards, rcla_ting LO th.:. requirement,; applicable 10 the employment of H-2A and othci workers 
under the. lmmigia1ion and Nationality Act (lNA) as amended by lhc lmmigrnt,on Reform and 
Con11ol Act (IH.CA) (8 u.S.C. 111J l (a)(15)(H)(ii)(o),1184(c) wid ll8u) in Flemington, New 
Jcrsc y, covc1 ing ihc pe1iotl from April 13, 2015 through Oclobcr 10, 2015, disd0;,ctl that Sun 
Valley Orchards, LLC h1 ileJ lu comply with Scclion 218 of lhc lNA and npplicalJ!c 1cgulations HL 
20 C.F.R. P~rt 6.5.5 and 29 C.F.R. Phrl 501. 

.As a couscquc: m:c of these H-2A ~iulaliuns, $369,703.22 iu unpaid wages are ov • .:d to one 
hundred and forty sc"en workers. The specific violauons and thc wages owed a:;s11c.:iatcd with 
them a1e sL'l fonh in the attached mutrix entitled Summary of Violations. 

In ;;ddition, pu rsuillll to Section 2J8(g)(2) of the fNA and it<i implcn1e.11ting rcgul;,1i<ins a1 2CJ 
C. J-'..R. Pan ,')01. civil mnncy penaltie:-. are hrn:by assessed in the amoi.:nt of$21:!,250.00. The. 
spcci11c violations ,1110 the civil money penal lies asso<.:iatcu with them u c set fo11!; in the ,11tachcu 
matrix cctitlctl S11mmw)' of \/iolutions. 
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The full ,11no 11 n1(s) refl ec1ed above $581,953.22 is due aod paynble within 30 da:;s to "Vv'age and 
!lour IJ i"ision, U.S. Depnrtmcnl of Labor.'' Payments by cerlified check or i:noncy order 
should I.Jc de livered or mniled to: 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Wage nnd Hom Division 
The Curtis Center, Suire 850 West 
l 70 8. Independer:ct: Mall West 
Philadelphia, PA 19106-3317 

TJ1c fact 1ha1 lhe above sanctions/remedies arn being imposed for the H-2/\ viol:itions found at 
th is time docs :1ot preclude the taking of olher enforcement action as is deemed iippropriatc by 
lhe Department of Labor , or thl: additional assessments of back wages or civil money penalties 
fer violnlions of the H-2A provisions found ut some future time .. Such o01er cuforcemen1 action 
may include the pursuit of unpaid wages, injuncti'(e action, specific pcrfonnanc,: of the work 
contracr, and denial or revocation of rcmpornry ~lien agricultural lahor certifici1tion. 

Tl1e doilar arnounl(s) retlec1ed above cons1itule a debt owed lo t.he Federal government. This 
delll is s ubje.cl 10 Lht: assessment of intcn:st, 11dminislra1ivc cost cha1 ge5 anrl penal tics in 
accorda.ncc with the Debt Collect ion Act of 1982, and dcpanrncn lal policies. lntcrcsl will l.Je 
assessed al the Tre,1su1y Tax i1JHI Lo;in Account Rate on any balance outstanding Imm the date of 
this 1mtice, accruing from the notice du1e. Administ ra livc cost charge~ will be a~,c~;scd lo help 
defray the Government's cos t of r.ollecting this debt. A pennlty at 1hc rate of 6% will be ·assessed 
()11 any µonion of lhe debl remaining delinCJuent for more than 90 days. In or<ie1 to :woid these 
c harges, forwc1 rd payments to the office listed above by the indicated due dare. 

You have l he right 10 reyue:--t a h.:.a1 ing on the determination thm any or all of lln: violation~ 
occuued. Such request must be da ted and in writing; rnust contain specific reasons why you 
believe that the violatiollS for whidi you h,lve been charged did not occur; and musl l.Je received 
wi 1hi11 J O d<1ys from Ll1e <fate of thi~ lel ter by the Adminislralor, Wage and Hour Division, U.S. 
Dr.panmc11t of L1l.Jor, 200 Consti tution Avenue, N.W., Room S-3502, Wnshing1m1, D.C. 20210, 
with a copy 10 this office. The procedure for re<Juesting a hearing is provided in Section 501.33 · 
of Regu lations, :29 CFR 5()1 . If a request for a hearing is not received withiu llrt time specified, 
the dctcnni11atio11 of the Administrato1 shall become 1hc final and una1ipcala l.Jk: Diller of Lltc 
Sec1t' l,11 y. 

We would like to call to your nttention that when a re<Juest for ;i hearing is filed wi th 1he Wage 
:md Hou1 Administrntor. the matter is refc1rcd ro the Chief Administrntivc Lt1w Judge. /\ fo1111al 
hc;iring is then scheduled for a final determination with respect to the alleged 11i,)lations. At such 
hea1 ing you may, hy you1self ,)r through a11 attorney rt:lained by you, present .~uc:h witnesses, 
i lltroducc such cvidtnce <i nd estalilish such lacls as yo11 believe will support your position. 

Copies of Section 218 of l~A mid Regulations, 20 CFR Par1 655 and 29 CFR P,111 501 c,m lie 
viewed at www.dol.gov. 

2 
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hn_ally. wc wish lo point out that the.re rn;iy he a quc.~tion as to the deductibility of civil mo11cy 
penaltit:s paid as a busincs!'- expense untll:r rile l111cnwl l{cvcnuc Code. ln this rngard, you may 
wi5h to cont,iCl the Internal Revenue Scrvict.. 

Sincerely, 

~ 
Ch:11 lcnc Rachor 
District Director 

cc: Regional Adminis trator, Mark Watson, Jr. 

l •:nclus11re.s: Surninary of Violations 
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U.S. Dep~rtmcnt of Labor 
Wage a11d Hour Div1s1on 

Gn5elD: 1765359 

1\CT. H--2A 
l:IN: 46-0542793 
t~amc: ·sun Valley Orchards, LLC 

En Address· 29 Vestry Road 
Salem, NJ 08085 

Unpaid Wages 
Amount Due: $369,703.22 

THIS SHEET MUST BE INCLUDED WITH PAYMENT 

YOU MUST WRITE YOUR TAX ID ON YOUR CHECI< 

MAIL TO: 

U.S. Depanmer,t ot Labor 
Wagl' and Hour Division 
The Curtis Center, Suite 850 West 
1 70 ::;_ Independence Mall West 
Philc1dctphia, PA 19106-3317 

/\MOUNT P/\1O: s _______ - --- - -- -

- • Hc;yiunal Or-tice Copy · • 

4 
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U.S. Dr,partrnenl of Lc1l:or 
Wage; and Hour Division 

Cnsc lO: 1765359 

/\CT: H-2A 
EIN: 46-05'1?.793 
Narne: Sun Valley Orchards, LLC 

ER Address: 29 Vestry Road 
Salem, NJ 08085 

Amount Due 
In Civil Money 
Penally: $212,250.00 

THIS SHEET MUST BE INCLUDED WITH PAYMENT 

YOU MUST WRITE YOUR l AX ID ON YOUR CHECK 

MAIL TO: 

U.S . DP.partment ol Labo; 
W age an<i H8ur Division 
The Curl is Center, Suite 850 West 
t 70 S. Independence Mall West 
Philndelphin, PA 19106-3317 

AMOUN'f PAID: S ________ _ 

DAH' OF PMT: 

CHECK NO. 

SIGN.A.TURE: 

- - Di:;tr1ct Otfice Copy • -

.'i 
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Summary of Violations 

Summary Description -- ,- - - - - -- ----- ---- -:;----i . Unpaid W.igcs I Civil 1 I Owed Money j 
______ ,_ P_cnally I 

$0.00 ] $3,600.00 I 

Regula tory I 
Reyuiniml'n( 

Viola1ed 
20 C:.f..R. t--E-n-1p_l_o_yc_1_· f-n-il_<:_d_t_o_p_r_o_v_id_e_f_or or secure 

~655.122(d)(l ) I housing for those worlcers who :ire not 
I rt:asonably able to return to their 
. pe11nanwt n:sidencc ut the end or the work ! 

I day, without charge to the worker, that 
1:omplies with the applicable housing snfcty 

I and henllh standards. Specifically, the 
investigation disclosed that the housing facility 1 
provided for workers was missing window 
screrns and had screen doors not in good repa ir 1 
contributing In the insect infcstntion 

I lhroughoul the <.:amp. Several bathroom sinks 
dicl 1101 have hnl water, refuse c;o11tainl!rs 
throughou t facility were missing fl y_tight lids 
nnd multiple rnatt:esses used by occupants for 

I I 

I 

sleeping purposes wr rc directly on the floor I ! 

r·- .. 20 c.F.R. F::;ilurr to comply with "meals" S234;079j g·-1 $J98,4SOJ>O 
wi1ho111 a bed frame. r· 

I §6'.'i.'i.122(g) 

-1 

requirement (s). Specifically, the investigation 
disclosed thn t the employer fai led to provide 
free and convc11 icnt cooki11g and kitchen 
facilities to the workcJ!'> that woul d enable 

1 

them to prepare tLei1 owu meals. The job 
offers for these COfl tracts specifically slated 
that these faci lities wO\JJd be p1ovidcd to 
workers. When the employer prov-ides a meal 
plan, the job offer for the contract must slate 
the charge for such mc<1ls, in..::Juding d1inks. 
The job offer ior tht~se contracts docs nol 

· contain di~c!osure of meal clli:lrges <1 11d ilS such 
all meal c1nd chink charges must be~ n:lumeci to 
1hc workers resulling in bi-lck v-;ages being-due 

i lD 147 affct:lt> d worke rs. ,-
1 

-:10 C. r-.R. I-'ailurc (u pro1·idt: tra nsportation in 
, *(155. l 22(h)(4) I curnplia1H:c 1~ ith oll applicable Federal, 

Sta te, or local la w~ and regulations hctwecn 
j t hr worker's living quarters and the 
I cmp!oyer·'s \\orksite without cosl to the 
, 1H>rker. Sp::cifit.:a lly, the iuvcs tig,!lion 
I tlisclost:d tha1 th1 ce or the five vehicles used 10 

I 

$(l.00 · $7,500.00' 

--- --------------- --- - ------~---

JX 10 Page 160 
AR - 1662 Appx351

Case: 23-2608     Document: 21-2     Page: 250      Date Filed: 09/06/2024



20 C.F.lC 
§u:i:i.122(i) 

~O C.F.R. 
~oss. 12-::(q) 

20 C.F.R. 
*u55.122(p) 

1irts for safe operation ,,nd one had a non­
runc1iuning rc;ir <lircctional. A<l<l i 1ionalJ.y, the 
fivt v1;;.llicles u~ed to t1:rnsporl Il-21\ and 
corrcsponrhng work1:rs were operated by 
drivcis who faikd lo possess valid, um.:xpiied 
dr iver's lia:1N~!', 1ecognizt:d lly.lhe S1:1l t of 

___ ?'-lcY-'. Jer~ey for operation of sam~--_____ , __ _ _ ______ _j ____ --1 

F ailure to comply with the lhrcc-fourt.hs $.1 35,623 .94 
guarantct:. Spc:<.:ifically, the investigation 
disclosed that l 9 of the H-2/\ workers on the 
first contract of 2015 did 110 1 meet the¾ 
guarantee since they were constructively forced 
l o return home pl ior to the enrl of the conlrat:f 
reriod rlue ID the myriad of misreprcsentlltions 
on t.hc conlrncl, poor housing condjtions, IHck 
of trnnsponation and gcnernl mistrc:itmcnt by 
the cniploye1 an<l or his farm labor con1ractor. 
l\ddi tionally, 6 other workers employerl in 
2015 did not met: t l he % g 11nrnnlce hast:d on a 
r1:vit:w uf payroll records. 
Failure to comply with requirement to 
disclose th(' work cont n ict. Sprcitkally, the 
investigation clisclnsed that lht employer 
provided a copy of 1he worker 1.:ont rac1 thal did 
11ot contain the actual cond itions of 
employment. The contracts do nol acl rlress the 
"meal plan" c:harge~ and misrepresenl Llrnl free 
c:0nking f;icililies will l1e provided tn the 
workers ,ilong with free 1ransporla tion to 
purchase food. The kitchen facili ties were 
locked , workers had no occess to the kitr.hen I 
for prC!pnrntion of meals ancl'1ranspor1,11ion In __ I 
. ~c:h~~s<: fs>2.9 ,~~': !)_Ot P!ov!dcd...: _ . _ . 

l;ailurc to comply with "(}t>ductions" I 
n :quircmcnl(s). Spe<.:ifically, lhe investigation 
disclosed thal lhc job offer d id nut specify ";ill" 1 

1hc deductiLlfl!> 1101 required by !;1w which th<>. I t mployt:r will make. from worke,s' PilY checks. 
, Tht "meal pl an" wns not discloser! in the job 
1 Mfer or the contract. The I.Jack wngcs 
,

1

• nssoci:ued will, this violati0n nnd pr.n;ilty for 
, Sdlllt: arc ac.JtlrcS$Cd above in 20 CFR 
l (j55 .122(g). 

$0.01) 

$0.00 

i 
I 
! 

$1,350.00 

$0.00 ; 
I 
' 

$0.00 

-- ·' 
___ J_ 
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,--·--·-- 1·-· -·-·-· - -. ·--- ·- -, 1 2?, ~·.F.~ . The invc~Ligation disclosed (hat Russell .I. . 

I 
:p OL:i Marino sought to havt covered workers 

wuivc rights conferred under sec. 218 orthc . 
INA, regululiuns a( 20 C.F.R: § 655, or 1

1 rcgulatiu11s a( 29 C.F.R § 501. Spcciiically, 

I 
i the investigation disclosed lhiit 1he employer 

und or his form labor contractor coerced 

Tor.al 

I workers !raving the contrac ts prior to the 
I ending dale Ln sign a form l:TCatcd hy Sun I Vallt:y Orchards, LLC slating that !hey were 
; leaving early fo1 "personal reasons" in an ! attempt to Jiave them waive their l/4 guarantee: 

I. rights as parry to the contrncts. Workers left tile . 
jou early due lo the conditions stctlc:d above i11 I 

1

20 CFR 655.122(i) and/or because of 
misreprr.senrnlion~ by the employer and/or his l 

J farm labor connactur. I 

$0.00 s1,3so.oo I 

$362,703. 22 ___,__ .... 2 ... 1....,2 =25 __ 0 ..... 00....., 
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By F t•densl Express 

Dr. f)ayid Weil 
.:\dminbtrntor 
\Vagc and Hour Di,·ision 
Uni1ccl Stalt·s Dep:11 trnent of Lahm· 
201) C,rnstitutiun /\Venue:, N. W. 
Room S-3502 

Washing10n, D.C. 20210 

Ms. Chorlcn..-: Rachor 
District Director 
Wdg_c anJ Hoor Di vis ion 
L:ni1ed Srnte~ Department of l.abor 

July 20, 2016 

.1131 Print:ernn J>ikL· . Buil<ling 5, lluom 216 
L::iwrcncevillc, 1\J 08648 

Re: Request For Hearing Hcgarding Notice of Dctuminatinn of Wages OVlcd 
:md AsH·ssmcnt of Civi l Money l'~naltic~, No. 176~359 dall!d.Junc 22, 2016 

Sun Vallc:y Ordrnrds, 1.1 C (--Sun V;ilJey") h:is rdained this Jim1 in connection with the 
ah()vc-n::fc1cnccd matter. Sun Valley requcsb a hearing as 10 every factual and kgal issue raised 
by the l\ c,icc or Drkrminution uf \Vagcs Owed and Asscs~mclll of Civil :vtoney l'encltics, No. 
1765:;59 dot,'.rl J11ne 22, 70 l 6 (\:oiice"). 

Sun Vallry Ori.:hards is a fam ily farm operated by 4 generations of the l\larino family 
dating back almost I 00 years . Sun Valley p.rows, packs. and distributes fresh market freestone 
pcachc~. CUL'llmh,:rs, sq1111sh, )'ickles. peppers, and aspllragus on mon:: than 2,000 acres ur 
farml:intl 1n Swedesboro. f\c-" Jnsl·y. Sun Valky is one of the largest growers, ~hipf><:r~, ant.I 
r.:ick<"rs i11 New Jersl!y. 

The 2015 growin::; se.-ison wa~ Sun Valley's first in the H-2A progrnm after it was unable 
10 find am.i hirl! enough quali lied peorlt to perform 1he seasonal w,irk. For the 2015 season. 
\\•hich 1\.is t'lc scas0n giving rise to the current case. rh1.: Dcpartmenl of Labor /_"l)OL ·::, ci::rtilieJ 
Sun Val ky !'or 40 workers for the period of April l 3. 20 I 5 10 Oc·tobcr l 0, '.W I 5 and 60 workers 
kir 1:1e per ind or .J Ullt'. l', 20 1 5 ltl lkwht:r 1 (J_ 2015 . 
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Dr. David Weil 
\ ·h . Charll'lll' Rm·hor 
.luly 20,2016 
!'age :2 of 3 

·1 he Wugl' and l Jour l)i1·bio11 uf DOL (\\'HD) inl'es1iga1ed Sun Valley with rl.?SJX'CT 10 the 
l! -2A rer1ificat ions for tlw period of April IJ. 2015 through October 10, 2015. The WI-ID 
'-!otice Juted Jun\' 22, 20 I tl contends the Sun Valley failed to c.omply with the requirements of 
the DOL !-l-:2A n.:gulations. The Notice provides few details but has two primary allegation$ 
agaimt Sun Valley: ( I J th ilt worker~ were not olfored three-fourths of the hours ohvork as set 
for th •n 1h1: joh ord1:rs; and (2) thr workers were provided a meal plan insteaJ nf _cooking 
fm:i lities for them to use on their own. The Notice also seeks civil money penalties (CMPs) 
n:latcd 10 ullt:gutions of minor housing anti local transportation i!>sues, c1np claiming tJmt workers 
were asked to wai,·e th1:ir rights under the H-2A program. There are also allegations for which 
no back wages or civil nwncy penalties are nssocia1ed in the Notice. In all, WlH) seeks 
$369,703 .22 in ba~kwugcs fur 147 workc1-s and $212,250.00 in CMl's. 

Sun Valley rt"qucsts a hearing crn every factual and lt:gal is!>ue raiseJ by the Notice. The 
>lutice alkgcs the violati,rn~ cJescribccJ ahuve. but fails lu identif) any of the workers or offo1 an} 
infomia1io11 that would support those allegmions. Sun Valley denies that it committed an) of the 
violutions alleged, uud will defonct i1self vehemently :.igainst these charges. The allega1ion,; are 
falst· anti the assessment of back "ages and l'.\-1Ps arc l<.:gally unsupportable and crrunc:ous. 

·1 he Notice uppear~ (although ii is impossible to dis1.:ern with certainty. given the lack of 
infl,nna t11H1 prnviJctl) to assess hack wages for 100% ,,f the DOL-approvcd meal ratc that the 
workers paid for the 1 prcpore<l meals per day for (, months tha1 the workers ate without raising 
an issue- · not !he cJifkrt'nce between the fo 1r market vuluc uf th.:- meals provided and tht' cost of 
purchasing their own groceries and preparing tlwir own meals (which would exceed the rost of 
the artual meals prt,Yidcd). Tbe 11-2,\ rcgulat10m absolute!) do nut require double-payment of 
tl11s sort cs~entially providin~ 6 rne11ls per day p1:r workt'r fur tht' entire season. ro the: extcnl 
that ti:.:.' Admini~:ratiYc La\, Judge finds any violation of the terms and conditicins of the job 
L1rdn reg:mJing 1:1e11 b for workers, the 1m:thlid u~ed by \VHD ll 1r calculating back wages aml 
C\11', 1s ch::.i rl ) .:rroncuus. 

\\.ith rc~pt'CI to the: three-fuur1hs guarantee allcga1ium,, 20 C .F.R. s 6,·s.12:?(n) provides 
thi:11 the ;,blig.aticin 10 nffer (or pay for) th1.: hours in qu~stion ends if the worker l'oluntarily 
tcnn inntl'~ ernpluyment :ind the employer n:porls the early termination to DOL-s Chicago 
Na11unal Prnc:essmg Center (C\:PC) and DI IS. Here, there \,ere 11,0 groups of workers who 
tcrn1inakd employment before the cml uf the period-of-need in the job ordtr. One group left 
very ~:irlv in the senson. but turned in their 1:mployee lD cards ar.d signed documents explaining 
their reason for terminating their empl 0yment curly. Sun Valky time!)' provided the required 
110t1cc of 1hcse dt:parture~ 111 C:--JPC · am! DHS, as required in the regulations. The workers wen: 
not asked 10 ''1~iiive thcir rights," since they had alreudy decided to tenninate their employment 
1·siluntarily (at g1~·;,t disaJ\·.int;1ge ID Sun Valley . whic h needed a fu ll complement or workers to 
p<.:rfi.1m1 the work on the form), they were simply asked to execute a document explaining why 
they had made their decision. as pa11 of Sun V:1Ue( s reporting. to C'\PC and DHS on the 
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voluntary termi nations. For workers who tenn inalcd their employment late in the season. they 
had already worked and been compcnsaieJ for at least 1hree-four1hs of the hours offered in the 
job order. Thus, no back wages (or CMPs) are owed for either group of workers, pursuant to 
DOL's own regulations. 

In addition lo the factual and legal arguments set fonh above, Sun Valley reserves its 
right to challenge the June 22 Notice based on all lega.J grounds available to it. Beyond these 

· ;.ngumen1s, which will establish ih,11 Sun Valley has 110 liability for any of the alleged violations, 
Sun Valley challenges the calculation and assessment of CMPs. None are warranted because 
then: \Vere no violations, but the amounts assessed are a1 or near the maximum possible. The 
No1ice offers neither explanation nor factual basis for these calculations. Application of the 
factors listed in 29 C.F.R. § S0l.19(b) for determining appropriate CMPs shows that the CJ\-fPs 
.uc too high. assuming for the sake of argument, that there is an underlying back wage liability. 
Sun Valley demands strict proof 1ha1· the CMPs wen: properly ass1:sscd an<l assessed in the 
correct amount. 

For all of the foregoing reasons, Sun Valley Orchards denies all of the allegations 
asserted in the WI ID Notice dated June 22, 2016, requests an cvidentiary hearing before an 
Administrative Law Judge on these charges, and demands strict proor of any of the alleged 
,·iola1ions a11d calculation of back wages and civi l money penalties. 

cc: Joe Marino. Sun Valley Orchards 

s;,m,ly, ~ 

Cf!iQ S,h"lt' 
CJ Lake, LLC 
525 Ninth Street, N.W. 
Suite 800 
Washington, D.C. 20004 
(202) 465-3000 (p) 
(202) 347-3664 (f) 
csc hult~@cj-lake.com 
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